
At? 3’Wd/

Vol 6

REPORT

of the

STANDING COMMITTEE

on

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

together with

EVIDENCE

1985

Legislative Assembly Office

Whi tehorse

Legisrotyo Assembly OIfice’

r

1.:

it

YUKON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY

I
‘.. z:
L.



I

r
C
-.,

L



Vol. 6

YUKON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY

REPORT

of the

STANDING COMMITTEE

on

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

together with

EVIDENCE

1985

Legislative Assembly Office

Whitehorse

Drafted by Public Accounts Committee of the 25th Legislature
Spring, 1985

Adopted by Public Accounts Committee of the 26th Legislature
Fall, 1985



STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Yukon Legislative Assembly

Fifth Session 25th Legislature

MEMBERS

Tony Penikett, M.L.A. Whitehorse West
Chai man

Bill Brewster, M.L.A. Kluane
Vi ce-Chai rman

Maurice Byblow, M.L.A. Faro

Al Falle, M.L.A. Hootalinqua

Sea Firth, M.L.A. * Whitehorse Riverdale South

Staff

Clerk to Committee

Missy Follwell

* Clarke Ashley, M.L.A. (Kiondike)
substituted for Bee Firth throughout
the Formal Hearings.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREFACE

YUKON LIQUOR CORPORATION 1

GOVERNMENT REVENUES 3

EDUCATION, ADVANCED EDUCATION AND MANPOWER 7

STATUS REPORT - “ANY OTHER MATTER’ 12

STATUS OF PAC (1981) RECOMMENDATIONS 17

STATUS OF PAC (1982) RECOMMENDATIONS 19

STATUS OF PAC (1983) RECOMMENDATIONS 21

STATUS OF PAC (1984) RECOMMENDATIONS 25

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 1985 30

WITNESSES 1985 31

DOCUMENTS TABLED 34

FORMAL HEARINGS: EVIDENCE

APPENDICES



Preface

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts has held eleven meetings
since November, 1984. During the Formal Hearings, February 12—21,
1985, the Committee reviewed the Yukon Liquor Corporation and the
Department of Education, Advanced Education and Manpower. In addition,
the Committee departed from its usual practice of examining the
expenditure side of the ledger and took a look at government revenues.
As always, witnesses were called to outline progress on implementation
of previous PAC recommendations and undertakings and to discuss the
Auditor General’s report on “any other matter.” This year, witnesses
appeared from the Departments of Community and Transportation Services,
Finance, Government Services, and Economic Development and Tourism
and from the Workers’ Compensation Board and the Public Service
Commission.

The Public Accounts

held its first round of

first Report during the

has now reviewed all of

Yukon government. In its

Committee, which was

Hearings in January,

third session of the

the major departments

first five Reports, the

established in 1979,

1980, and tabled its

24th Legislature. It

and agencies of the

Committee made some
seventy—two recommendations, the majority of which have either been
implemented or are under active consideration. Generally the Committee
has been very pleased with the overall cooperation of the witnesses
who have appeared before the Committee and with the thought given
to and action taken on the recommendations. The Committee has made
a concerted effort, during its hearings and in its reports, to focus
on a future good effect principle rather than on headline—grabbing
sensational issues and feels that this has enhanced its effectiveness.
Members are convinced that the existence of the PAC has been a positive
contribution to financial and managerial accountability in the Yukon
government and has, in some measure, advanced legislative control
of the public purse.
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The Yukon Public Accounts Committee was honoured to host
approximately eighty—five delegates and guests who attended the seventh
annual meeting of the Canadian Council of Public Accounts Committees
and the Canadian Conference of Legislative Auditors held in Whitehorse
in July, 1985. Mr. Tony Penikett, who had been elected President
of the Canadian Council in 1984 at the sixth annual meeting held in
Prince Edward Island, chaired the meetings. fl

‘Li
*** *** ****** * * *** ***

U
Once again, the Committee would like to thank Raymond Dubois,

Deputy Auditor General, and Harold Hayes, Principal, of the Office
of the Auditor General for their cheerful cooperation and assistance
throughout the Formal Hearings. -

0
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FORMAL

HEARINGS

NOTE

In the following section there are number
indicators in the margin. These relate to the
page reEerence in the appended “Formal Hearings:
Evidence”.



YUKON LIQUOR CORPORATION

The Yukon Liquor Corporation, which is currently within the
Department of Justice, was the last of the Crown agencies to be reviewed
in the cycle of Public Accounts Committee Hearings. The Yukon Housing
Corporation was reviewed in 1983 and the Workers’ Compensation Board
in 1984. Witnesses appearing for the Liquor Corporation were Bill
Byers, Deputy Minister; Pat Harvey, Assistant Deputy Minister; Rolly
Thibault, General Manager of the Corporation; and Olive Pociwauschek,
member of the Board of Directors.

ANNUAL REPORT

The Committee noted some inconsistencies in the figures in the
2:8 Annual Report, for example, the schedule of spirits, wine and beer——gross

sales did not reconcile with sales reported in the statement of income.
Jt turns out that one figure included liquor taxes and beer bottle
deposits while the other did not. This was not explained in the Annual
Report which resulted in the impression that the figures viere not
accurate. Care should be taken to ensure that the figures contained
in the financial statements and the schedule reconcile.

2:8 The Corporation will provide, in future Annual Reports, a breakdown
of liquor taxes between spirits, wine and beer and the gross profits
of sales for each category.

REPORTING RELATIONSHIP

Background

As a result of the government reorganization in July, 1984, the
Yukon Liquor Corporation, an entity established by statute with the
mandate to administer and enforce the Liquor Act, has been included
within the Department of Justice. According to the Organization Chart
submitted by the Department, the General Manager in the year under
review (1983/84) reported to the Minister responsible and the Chairman
and Board of Directors of the Corporation.

—1—



The 1985 Organization Chart shows the General Manager reporting

to the Assistant Deputy Minister of Justice and the Chairman and Board

of Directors. In his opening statement to the Committee, the Deputy

Minister said that the General Manager has the responsibility to advise

and recommend policy to the Minister. Subsection 9(1) of the Act states:

9(1) There shall be a General Manager of
the Corporation who shall be the chief
executive officer and shall be charged
with the general direction, supervision
and control of the business of the
Corporation and shall under the general
direction of the Board administer this
Act and supervise persons engaged in
the administration of this Act and
the regulations.

Analysis

3:1 The Deputy Minister stated that the “Liquor Corporation continues

to function the same way it did prior to the announcement of the

reorganization.” However, it would appear that the General Manager,

at least, has a different reporting relationship. It is not clear —

to the Committee at this stage just who is responsible for decisions

made and implemented. Conceivably this could alter the management

accountability of the Corporation. U
1. Reconnendation

The role, responsibilities and reporting relationship
of the General Manager of the Yukon Liquor
Corporation should be clarified.

In examining the above recommendation, careful attention should be

paid to ensuring that there is compliance with the provisions of the

Liquor Corporation Act.

•0
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GOVERNMENT REVENUES

Although the Public Accounts Committee tends to place its emphasis
on the expenditure side of the government ledger, it decided this year
to look at the revenue side. Witnesses were called from three different
departments to examine the question: Frank Fingland, Territorial
Treasurer, and Ray Hayes, Director, Taxation and Money Management,
from Finance; Bill Klassen, Deputy Minister, and Alan Davidson, Director,
Health Services, of Health and Human Resources; and Peter Kent, Deputy
Minister, Chris Knight, Director, Lands and Housing, and Mel Smith,
Manager, Property Assessments, of Community and Transportation Services.

The Committee limited its review to the more substantial areas
of revenue including:

3:5/6 Operating and capital grants from Canada
3:6/7 Income taxes
3:9 Fuel and heating oil taxes
3:9 Tobacco taxes
4:1 Interest on municipal and housing loans
4:1 Bank and investment interest
4:1 Insurance premium taxes
8:3-7 Yukon health care insurance premiums
8:8—10 Property and school taxes

The Committee did not look at the area of recoveries at all.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

In discussing the question of revenues with officials from Finance,
the Committee was of the view that generally there are adequate measures
of control in place to ensure that revenue due to the government in
those areas administered by the Department of Finance is being levied
and collected.

t

Income Tax

3:6 As far as income tax goes, the biggest concern is, of course,
the fact that revenues accruing to the Government from it have been

—3—



3:7 on the decline. The other ongoing problem is that of tax leakage due

to the December 31st residency stipulation. Yukon loses a considerable
amount of tax on income earned in Yukon during the summer months because

3:7 many payees move Outside for the winter. An inter—jurisdictional Income

Tax Allocation Committee is studying the problem.

Departmental Responsibilities

The Committee enquired about the specific responsibilities for
revenue of the Department of Finance as the Yukon Annual Report, 1983/84,

states that that Department is responsible for the collection of all
taxes and revenues. The Territorial Treasurer stated that specific
departments, including Finance, have responsibility for collecting

4:2 revenues that flow from the administration of specific legislation.
The Treasurer accepted the fact that certain obligations are imposed Q
by the Financial Administration Act, particularly with regard to ensuring
that moneys are collected properly and remitted to the Department for (3
deposit. However, he went on to say that the Department has considerable
hesitancy about utilizing the extensive powers to intervene provided

it by the Act.

COMMUNITY AND TRANSPORThTION SERVICES 0
Property Assessment 3

8:8 Property assessment is done by the Property Assessment Branch

of Community and Transportation Services but the Department of Finance

is responsible for levying and collecting the taxes and for dealing
with outstanding taxes. A memorandum to the Committee from Finance
dated February 20, 1985, stated that there were property taxes

outstanding on March 31, 1984, of $634,620 including interest. That

figure represents 809 property tax accounts which, in turn, comiSrise
18% of all assessed properties. F

Some properties and improvements, particularly certain mining rproperties that do not fit into the exempt—by-policy class, are not L

C



assessed due to difficulty in locating them. The Branch is in
communication with the federal mining inspector but there is no control
in place to ensure every assessable property is indeed assessed.

8:9 The Branch has adopted, for assessment purposes, the Alberta
assessment manual which is generally adequate but which fails to deal
with assessment rates for public buildings. The Branch has found,
when looking at othey manuals that do include rates for public buildings,
that it has been under—valuing many of these properties, perhaps by
as much as fifty percent. The Branch is currently working on a formula
to correct this discrepancy.

HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES

Premiums Receivable

Generally, it would appear to the Committee that the health care
insurance premiums system has been inadequate because it permits a
significant number of errors and omissions. That system, however,

8:4 is being replaced by a new one which should ensure registration of
only those bona fide residents of Yukon who are currently eligible
for medical services coverage.

8:6 One of the biggest problem areas has been premiums receivable——to
date, the claims assessment and accounting records for premium collection
have been operated totally autonomously on manually—maintained ledger
books. At no time does the Department ever really know what the premium
liability is, particularly the total receivables as distinct from the
year—end receivables. To compound the problem, there has never been
a write—off procedure and, as a result, invoices are sent out each
year to any person owing any amount going right back to 1972 when the
plan was introduced. The Committee is hopeful that the
fully—computerized premium system to be implemented by Fall, 1986,
will dramatically increase the efficiency of the operation and that
the Branch will develop accounts receivable procedures regarding control,
collection, and write—offs.

—5—



Net Costs

8:4 The Committee noted that the net costs of the Yukon Health Care

Insurance Plan have been rising dramatically. For example, from 1981/82

($779,000) to 1983/84 ($1,519,000) the net costs almost doubled. The
Department explained that this is due partially to escalating medical

fees and increased utilization of the service. According to the 1983/84
Annual Report (page 32), however, this would not appear to be the case.

The Report states that the number of claims from doctors showed a minor

increase and that there was a small rise in the average cost of a claim

from $42.13 to $42.29. The other factor mentionedby the Department

is that the nature of the service is becoming more complex and, thereby,

more expensive.

The Committee suggests that the Department monitor the costs closely

through such methods as independent checks on medical billings,

analytical review, and confirmation of patient visits to ensure that

costs are being properly controlled.

El
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DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, ADVANCED EDUCATION AND MANPOWER

The Department of Education, Advanced Education and Manpower was
the only large Department that the Public Accounts Committee called
for major review this year. The witnesses were Jim Davie, Deputy
Minister; Ron Wallace, Assistant Deputy Minister, Elementary and
Secondary Schools; Dan Odin, Assistant Deputy Minister, Advanced
Education and Manpower; Stan Marinoske, Director, Administrative
Services; and Rick Butler, Director, Recreation (the branch is now
in Community and Transportation Services and is called Arts, Sports
and Recreation). The Committee would like to acknowledge the quality
of information that was provided by the Department during the Hearings
and the readiness with which it was given.

1. FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA

It was evident on a number of occasions during the Hearings
5:6 that Committee members were suffering “from a lack of detailed

information,” and it was a constant struggle to determine where
certain moneys were actually allocated. For example, in
Supplementary No. 1 in 1983/84, there is a total of $1,558,000
in the 0&M expenditure and $1,724,000 in Capital. The only
information provided was that these were Funds required primarily
for employment stimulation projects.” When the 0&M figure was
broken down, it was found, among other things, that $124,000 was
allocated for alternate programs and $124,000 for the gifted
program, both of which were new programs but which were not, in
any way, identified in the Supplementary Estimates.

Analysis -

The Department is certainly not lacking data or information
rather the problem is one of classification. It is almost
impossible to glean meaningful or comparable data from the myriad
of numbers, especially when comparing the Main Estimates and the
Annual Reports of the Department of Education. It is difficult,

in any systematic way, to close the accountability loop.

—7—
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The information provided does seem to be accurate as presented

but, to make sense of it, more detail is required. The Annual

Report for Advanced Education and Manpower, 1983—84, for instance,

states that there was an “annual course registration of over 1700

students” (page 24) but it does not break that out into full—time

students, part—time students, short course students, and so on. fl
6:8 The Department has undertaken to convert the statistical information U

into “full—time equivalents”, so that it will be more useful when

attempting to justify the level of funding requested.

The information in the Main and Supplementary Estimates does

not allow Committee members to get a handle on the Department.

If the Annual Reports included more complete data, the Public

Accounts Committee could rely on them as the primary documents

during the Hearings. The fact remains, however, that for the

House to make sound judgements on the levels of funding requested

for any given program, it is necessary either to include meaningful

information in the Main and Supplementary Estimates or provide

it in some other format to all Members before the Department’s

Estimates are discussed in the House. The Committee notes, however,

that the Department does in fact provide better and more complete

information than most departments.

2. Recon!nendation
The Department should provide in the
Estimates and in its Annual Reports
information that is complete, comparable,
and meaningful. fl

3. Recomendation
When a new program is introduced through
a’ Supplementary Estimate, that
Supplementary should include a narrative
describing the program.

2. STAFFING ENTITLEMENT FORMULA

Background

The staffing entitlement formula, which became effective

in July, 1984, is used to determine the number of teachers and U
-8-



administrative staff at any given school. Included in the

pupil/teacher ratio are administrators, counsellors and all those

who are assigned at the school level. The Department stated that

it is following the customary practice of most Canadian

jurisdictions by including all school level professionals in

calculating the pupil/teacher ratio.

Analysis

Because all personnel are included in the formula,

pupil/teacher ratio as reflected in public documents is not

accurate representation of the actual average classroom size.

If the Department wants

with other jurisdictions but

reading of the pupil/teacher

sets of calculations to show

(including all personnel) and

4. Reconunendation
The Department
pupil/teacher ratio
as an all—inclusive

3. PERSONNEL CATEGORIES

to continue to have comparable data

also wants to give a more accurate

ratio, it should provide two separate

both the broader pupil/teacher ratio

the actual ratio.

should
on an

basis.

During the year under review, there were many transfers of

personnel within the department. The organizational charts provided

by the Department gave little assistance in tracing the novement

or elimination of positions. Also, it was not possible to relate

position numbers to the information provided in the Estimates.

Analysis

After plodding through the figures and on being

with back—up information related to the Supplementary

and an additional explanatory memo1 it was possible to

provided

Estimates

reconcile

5:8

6:2

5:5/6

the

an

report
actual as

the
well

—9—



the organization charts, the scattered information in the Main

Estimates, the bulk figure in the Supplementary Estimates, and

the Annual Report. To help assure the Legislature and the public

that resources are being utilized as intended it is essential

that information be consistent between these documents.

5. Reconunendation
When the Department effects a reallocation
of human or financial resources, it should
ensure that this is clearly and properly
recorded in all appropriate documents
including the Estimates, the Annual Report
and the departmental organization chart.

4. YUKON CAMPUS

Background II
In the 1983/84 Main Estimates, Yukon Campus and the Yukon

Vocational and Technical Training Centre were two separately

6:6 identified programs. However, in March, 1983, the two were fl6:7 amalgamated to become Yukon College. The main purpose of the

Yukon Campus program was to train native Yukoners to become

teachers. The program has since been replaced by an offering

of the first two years of a general degree.

Analysis

B
In 1983/84 the true projected cost of Yukon Campus was not

indicated in the Estimates as the cost of space utilized and the fl6:7 attendant overhead were not included. Although the Department

did submit some very useful statistics during the Hearings regarding

courses offered and student participation numbers, the

publicly—available information was very scanty and of little value

in relating resources requested and allocated to the question fl
of whether they were utilized with due regard for economy and

efficiency.

- 10 —
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5. RECREATION

As the Recreation Branch has been transferred out of the
Department, the Committee spent very little time dealing with

it. The only problems identified were the incompleteness of the

supplementary information in the Estimates and the fact that it
was not possible to tie the information in “Grants, Contributions
and Other Transfer Payments” into the preceding supplementary
information. The Director acknowledged the problem and, in a

follow—up letter, stated:

It is apparent that details which appear
in the estimates must be better explained.
The problem is that budget work sheets,
which the Branch submits [to Finance],
contain much more information than what
appears in the final published estimates.
For purposes of brevity, the detailed
information is summarized. This
summarizing process is largely to blame
for the lack of clarity. The 1985/86
Estimates will contain clearer information.

The Committee hopes this will be true for all Departments.

— 11 —



STATUS REPORT

Auditor General’s Report “on any other matter”

for the year ended March 31, 1984

‘The Committee noted that most of the Government’s and Corporation’s
comments were positive and to the point on the observations and
recommendations made by the Auditor General in his report (Appendix
1) to the Legislature “on any other matter” arising from his examination
of the Government’s accounts for the year ended March 31, 1984. The
Committee, therefore, decided to review certain matters only at its
Formal Hearings. While recognizing the argumentative nature and length
of some of the comments, the Committee chose to concentrate on the
positive rather than the negative aspects of the Government’s comments
on the Auditor General ‘s recommendations. The Committee reports as
follows:

1. Year—end Closing — Finance

The Department advised that a number of fruitful discussions
had taken place and are continuing with the Auditor General ‘s
representatives. These will lead to a clear understanding by
the Department of Finance of the Auditor’s year-end requirements
and scheduling of the work required to meet the reporting deadline
of October 31 following year—end.

2. Appropriations Overexpended and Appropriation Acts — Finance

The Department advised that

General had raised the issue of

had been a matter of concern to the

Fifth Appropriation Act 1983-84 was
of these difficulties. The real test

for 1985-86.

The Department recognizes that- a separate contingency vote
is a clear option open to the Government, but the preferred option
at present is to continue making the provision through specific
votes.

4:2

4:3

it was pleased that the Auditor

transfers between votes as it

Department for some time. The

an attempt to overcome some

will be the O&M Main Estimates

- 12 -



U
3. Signing Authorities — Finance

4. Commitment Control - Finance

The Department advised that the framework for signing

authorities had been established by the Signing Authorities
4:3/4 Directive (Management Board Directive 6/84). The Department

acknowledged that there is a need for a centralized commitment
control system. There is some uncertainty about proper
communication of internal delegations of authority within
departments suggesting that there may be a need for a uniform
system to cover this aspect. A feasibility study for a combined
commitment control, accounts payable and financial information U
system has been completed and a detailed project plan is about
to be submitted to Management Board through the Priorities Committee LIfor approval. Further comment on the delegation of authority

and commitments is made under PAC (1981) recommendation 1, page

17, on delegation of authority.

5. Accounting Policy - Employee Pay and Termination Benefits
— Finance

The Department advised that it does not foresee any problem
4:5 with the accrual of teachers’ salaries at March 31, 1985. However,

there may be problems meeting that date for the accrual of employee
leave and termination benefits because of the need to capture a
data.

6. Manuals and Procedures — Finance

The Department advised that it fully agrees with the need

to have proper manuals and to keep them current. Because of

4:4 involvement in the new financial information system which will

replace the existing outdated system, the Department considers
that it may be 1986 or 1987 before the work is done.

U
7. Engineering Services Agreement - Highways and Transportation

(currently a Branch in Community and Transportation Services)

The Department of Highways and Transportation is now part

of the Department of Community and Transportation Services. The
latter Department advised that it is presently negotiating a new L
Engineering Services Agreement with the Department of Indian and

- 13 -



Northern Affairs, which, it is hoped, will be in place in 1986.
Meanwhile, the Department is making monthly claims on DIAND because
of the lengthy delays involved in getting project authorizations
and accountable advances.

8. Road Equipment Replacement Account/Fund
9. Dust Palliatives Revolving Fund

Highways and Transportation — (currently a Branch in
Community and Transportation Services)
The issue in both cases was making payments in excess of

1:2 the limits authorized for these Funds. In the case of the first
item, the Department advised that the situation was caused by
the slow processing of credits to the Account/Fund which the
Department was anticipating would become available by the time
of delivery of the equipment. Processing of credits can take
up to six weeks. A new accounting system is being developed to
overcome this problem, hopefully within the next year.

In the case of the second item, the order for the calcium
1:3 chloride was placed with the expectation that the limit of the

Fund would be increased by the time the calcium chloride was
delivered. For both items, the Department was in effect
anticipating funds becoming available to meet the payments. The
new Financial Administration Act ought to prevent future occurrences
of this kind.

12. Land Sales — Municipal and Community Affairs
(now Community and Transportation Services)
The Department advised that finished land inventory has been

1:6 charged with carrying cost since 1983 and this will be extended
to land developments in progress in 1985—86. The Hillcrest

1:7/8 Development of $9 million includes about $5—S Tnillion for 557
lots in phase one and the balance covers additional common services
and legal surveys for phase two. The Committee noted seven lots
were sold in phase one for less than $6,000 each. According to
the Department, this price excludes water and sewer lines (part
of the infrastructure) which have not yet been activated. The

- 14 -



U
selling prices will be adjusted for water and sewer costs when 0an overall sale agreement for phase one is reached with the Federal

Government.

16. Porter Creek Junior Secondary School — Education r
This major project involved a significant sharing of U

responsibilities between the Department of Education, in the initial

stages of the project, and Public Works Branch, now with the

Department of Government Services, which was responsible for the
7:1 construction of the project. The Department of Education advised Uthat initial planning prior to 1979, was for an elementary school

and then the project was subsequently changed to become a junior

high school. This resulted in additional costs for components

not included in an elementary school such as work shops, science

labs and typing rooms. According to the Public Works Branch, LI
a good percentage of the overrun was caused by changes in the

scope of the work. The project escalated from an initial estimate ,fJ
7:3 of $3 million to a final cost of $8 million. Unfortunately there

is no written information documenting the changes. Education

7:2 advised the Committee that it now has procedures in place to review

every stage of a project. In addition, Government Services advised

that its project management procedures manual was to be submitted

for the approval of the Minister and Management Board in the near

futuye. It is hoped it will be distributed to government

departments and implemented by April 1985.

a
YUKON HOUSING CORPORATION

As a result of the recent government reorganization which placed
the Yukon Housing Corporation in the Department of Community and fl
Transportation Services, the Committee reviewed the Corporations

comments on the recommendations included in items 17 to 21 of the Auditor UGeneral’s report with officers of that Department.

1:8 The Department advised that the Corporation will continue to L
administer its programs in the area of social and staff housing. The

11
Finance and Administration Branch of the Department will handle the

-15-



accounting function for the Corporation and the repair and maintenance
function will be handled by Government Services. The Corporation will

1:10 be billed for these functional services based on actual cost. The
1:9 Director of Lands, Department of Community and Transportation Services,

has been appointed by the Board of Directors as General Manager of
1:10 the Corporation. His work related to the Corporation will be paid

for by the Corporation and the rest of his salary will be paid by the
1:9 Department. The Director of Lands advised that, so far, there has

not been a conflict of interest between his role as Director of Lands
and his role as General Manager of the Corporation.

— 16 —



STATUS OF PAC (1981) RECOMMENDATIONS

In the MC (1984) Report, the Committee reported that three of
the fifteen recommendations made by the Committee in 1981 had not been

fully implemented. The Committee has been advised in writing by the
Department of Finance that co-ordination of the Government’s construction
program is the responsibility of Management Board and, therefore,
considers the intent of the following recommendation to be implemented:

9. Construction Program Co—ordination
— Public Works
(now Government Services)

The Department of Highways and Public
Works should be responsible for the
co—ordination of the Government’s
construction program.

The Committee considers that the following two recommendations
outstanding from the 1981 report are not yet fully implemented.

Recomendations Not Fully Implemented - MC (1981) Report

1. Delegation of Authority

Ministers should be responsible for all
delegations of financial signing authority
within their departments.

The Deputy Minister of Finance advised in writing that Ministers
have been given collective responsibility, as Management Board, to
delegate signing authorities within the Government in accordance with
Sections 24 (Contracts), 30 (Certificates of performance) and 31
(Requisitions for payment). The delegations are dealt with in the
Signing Authority Directive which came into effect on June 26, 1984.
New contract regulations should be ready for implementation in 1985.

4:6 The Committee was advised that the new contract regulations will

spell out procedures for calling tenders and entering into contracts
but will not specifically deal with signing authority, or levels of

— 17 —



U
authority to sign contracts. These are covered in the Signing Authority B
Directive which establishes Minister and Deputy Minister limits for

contracts and other types of expenditures. While dealing with fl
contracting and payment authorities, the Directive does not seem to

deal with commitment authority, i.e., the encumbering of funds to meet Uthe payments, as required by Section 25 of the Financial Administration

Act. The Department of Finance indicated that it would be prepared

to undertake a review of the Directive once the new contract regulations

are in place.

B
13. Performance Measurement — Renewable

Resources

The Department should define its objectives
in terms of the activities for which
funding is being requested so that,
wherever possible, performance can be
measured against these objectives.

The Department of Renewable Resources advised in writing that

Peat, Marwick and Partners had completed their study of the Department.

A new organization structure has been established and objectives defined.

These will be reflected in the 1985—86 Estimates.

11
U
ci
¶1

r
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STATUS OF PAC (1982) RECOMMENDATIONS

In the PAC (1984) Report, the Committee reported that four of
the thirteen recommendations, including one recommendation revised
in 1983, made by the Committee in 1982 had not been fully implemented.
The Committee, based on the appropriate Department’s comments before
the Committee at the 1985 Formal Hearings or in written communication,
considers the following recommendation to be implemented:

6. Health and Safety Performance Indicators
— Consumer and Corporate Affairs

The Department should establish performance
standards for inspections and investigation,
depending on complexity, and measure the
performance of the Occupational Health
and Safety Officer against them.

The Committee considers the following three recommendations
outstanding from the 1982 Report are not yet fully implemented.

Recomendations Not Fully Implemented - PAC (1982) Report

5. Activity Performance Indicators — Consumer
and Corporate Affairs

The Department should establish unit cost
performance indicators for those activities
where statistical information is available.

The Department of Justice advised in writing that the Consumer
and Corporate Affairs Branch regarded unit cost performance indicators
to be of limited value and a work flow method would be better. Work
flow studies have been carried out, systems reviews are underway and
Labour Services are compiling a further data base to measure work flow
and establish parameters to measure unit performance.

11. Social Worker Performance Indicators
— Health and Human Resources

The Department should establish performance
indicators for social workers and disclose
them in the Estimates.
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The Department advised in

not be included in the 1985—86

the Committee with a summary

Allocation Indicators” which,

very useful and comprehensive document

The Department should gather the information
needed for an adequate data base and develop
an action plan so that it will be in a
position to plan and control more effectively
its capital construction and maintenance
activities.
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The Department advised that a 20-year skeleton plan has been

developed, with estimated expenditures for the first five years only.

The Department has a rough idea of the approximate capital requirements

for the remaining fifteen years but is reluctant to make them public

as there is a weak data base which makes the reliability in the later

years uncertain. The Department has engaged a technician to build

the data base.

The long—term plan is fashioned around existing roads and does

not allow for new road construction in areas not currently served by

roads. While it is difficult to project possible future needs, the

Committee believes that areas not currently served by roads but which

have been identified as potentially resource—rich should be taken into

consideration in the plan if the Department is to meet its overall

objective. According to the 1984—85 Capital Estimates, this is to

maintain and improve Yukon’s transportation infrastructure and to

facilitate the orderly development of commercial and private motor

vehicle transportation.
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STATUS OF PAC (1983) RECOMMENDATIONS

In the PAC (1984) Report, the Committee reported that eight of
the eighteen recommendations made by this Committee in 1983 had not
been fully implemented. The Committee, based on the appropriate
Department’s comments before the Committee at the 1985 Formal Hearings
or in written communication, believes that the following recommendation
may not have been appropriate in the circumstances:

9. Yukon Courtworkers — Justice

In the Estimates, the l.egal Aid Program
should include details on the Yukon
Courtworkers service.

Reconmiendations Fully Implemented PAC (1983) Report

The Committee considers the following recommendations to be
implemented:

1. Revision of objectives — Government Services

The Department, when undertaking activities
not falling within its stated objectives,
should revise its objectives to include
the new activities as soon as possible
thereafter.

2. Descriptive narrative in supplewentary
estimates — Government Services

When a departmental objective is changed
by a supplementary estimate, that
supplementary should include a narrative -

which describes the change in the objective.

The Committee notes, however, that in its written submission to
the Committee the Department stated that its objectives “have not been
changed” whereas in fact between 1983—84 and 1984—85 they have changed
quite dramatically.
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8. Transfer of responsibilities and funds
— Finance

The Government should obtain legislative
approval for a transfer of responsibilities
and funds from one department to another.

Reconmiendations Not Fully Implemented - PAC (1983) Report U
4. Unit cost data — Public Affairs Bureau f]

The Public Affairs Bureau should provide
unit cost data, where feasible, in the
Estimates.

The Bureau advised in writing that it will implement a reporting

system similar to that used by advertising agencies, accountants and

lawyers as a means of billing clients. Unit cost data generated by

the system will be available for inclusion in the 1986—87 Estimates.

5. Formalization of procedures — Government
Services

The Department should, with regard to
construction projects, formalize the duties
and responsibilities of client departments
and the Public Works Branch, as well as
all management procedures to be followed
during the project and have them incorporated
in the policy manual.

The Department advised the Committee, in a joint response with

Community and Transportation Services and Finance, that a project U
management policies and procedures manual has been drafted and should

be completed by April, 1985. At the same time, a government—wide

directive on the responsibilities of the Department of Government

Services and its client departments is to be implemented if approved

by Management Board.

‘C
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12. Production of documents — Justice

The Department should produce public
documents on a more timely basis and, through
increased documentation, should develop
performance indicators against which
performance can be measured, wherever
possible, for each of its programs.

The Department of Justice advised in writing that a report on
court case load had been issued and that a workload measures pilot
project in three Provinces has been initiated. The results will be
available to all other jurisdictions. The project will seek indicators
for case loads, staff resources and costs, and courtroom resources.

18. Review of legislation — Consumer and
Corporate Affairs

The Department should review all legislation
under its administration on a systematic
basis, identifying provisions therein that
are not enforceable, and recomend
legislative amendments to the Government.

The Department of Justice advised in writing that the Corporate
Affairs Branch is undertaking a systematic review of more than fifty
pieces of legislation under its administration. The review will take
from five to seven years and will address enforceability. The Committee
is concerned about the length of time it will take to undertake this
review.

OUTSTANDING ISSUE — 1983

GOVERNMENT RESERVATION OFFICE — Government Services

Background

During the 1983 Formal Hearings, the Department of Government
Services undertook to provide the Committee with a report on the savings
achieved by the Reservation Office, or central travel office. In
January, 1984, the Committee was provided with some information on
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supposed cost savings but neither administrative costs nor other overhead U
costs were included in the figures. In January, 1985, the Committee

was provided with a report which showed net savings of $29,000 for U
fiscal year 1983-84 and $54,000 for the period April 1, 1984, to October

10, 1984. U
Analysis

The net savings reported take into account the direct costs for

salary and equipment rentals but no other overhead costs such as floor

space required or supplies. The Department agreed that the net savings

reported are not accurate in that they are incomplete. As well, it Uwas agreed that personnel within any Department could request and benefit

from the same excursion airfares and government hotel rates as are

obtained through the Reservation Office. It was confirmed that private

travel agencies issue the airline tickets and receive their usual

commission.

6. 1985 Recomendation (outstanding from 1983)

The Government should review the economies
of continuing operation of the Reservation
Office.

U
U
0
U
n
n
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STATUS OF PAC (1984) RECOMMENDATIONS

In the PAC (1984) Report, the Committee made thirteen
recommendations as summarized on pages 44—46 of that Report. The status
of the implementation of those recommendations is as follows:

Recommendations implemented 3

Not fully implemented 10

13

Recomendations Implemented - PAC (1984) Report

The Committee, based on the appropriate Departments comments
before the Committee at the 1985 Formal Hearings or in written
communication considers the following three recommendations to be
implemented:

5. Classes and Assessment Rates — Workers’
Compensation Board

The Board should include in its Annual
Report a description of the various classes
and disclose the specific industries within
each class, the assessment rates of each
class for that year and for the previous
year, and details, by class, of actual
assessable payrolls compared to those of
the prior year and to those estimated.

8. Doubtful Accounts and Write—offs —

Workers’ Compensation Board

The Board should disclose in its financial
statements the allowance for doubtful
accounts and the actual write—offs for
the year.

12. Project Management Policies and
Procedures — Government Services

1984 Recommendation (arising from 1983)
The Department should submit its project
management policies and procedures to the
Auditor General for review and coninent
once approved by Management Board.
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U
Reconunendations Not Fully Implemented - PAC (1984) Report U

1. Delegated authority procedures — Public
Service Connuission

The Conmiission should establish procedures
as soon as possible to monitor the practices
and procedure exercised by departments
through delegated authority to hire casual
employees. U

2. Casual appointments — Public
Service Connnission

The Coninission should disclose in public
documents the total number of casual hires, Uthe number of casual appointments made
by departments through delegated authority,
and the number of appointments terminated
after six months and then re—engaged.

The Commission advised the Committee that procedures to monitor U8:2 casual hires through delegated authority should be implemented by April,
1985. The Commission hopes that the information sought in the
recommendation will be available once the computerized human resource
information system and the position control system are implemented,
possibly by Fall, 1985. Once the information is available, the
Commission will include it in the Estimates.

____________________

n
3. Activity performance indicators -

Public Service Conunission

The Cotwnission should include in its
Estimates information, wherever possible,
planned activities supported by performance
indicators justifying its request for funds
in order to create a base for future
accountability.

The Commission advised in writing that it is very difficult to
develop reliable performance indicators for central agencies but that
it would address the question during 1985 as part of the government-wide
system of program evaluation. The Committee notes that the Department
of Health and Human Resources has been able to develop time allocation
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indicators for its social worker activities even though the
government—wide system has yet to be developed.

4. Training and Development Program
Costs - Public Service Cowmission

The Conunission should disclose in public
documents the full cost of its Training
and Development Program, including the
cost of educational leave and the number
of employees taking that leave.

The Commission advised that this information will be included
in future Main Estimates commencing in 1985/86.

6. Transfer Occupational Health and Safety
Officer - Workers’ Compensation Board

The occupational health and safety officer
should be transferred from the Department
of Consumer and Corporate Affairs to the
Workers’ Compensation Board.

The Board advised in writing that the Government is presently
reviewing all aspects of Occupational Health and Safety and is drafting
new legislation to replace the Accident Prevention regulations under
the Workers’ Compensation Act. The Committee requests the Board to
advise it of the results of the review when completed. The Department
of Justice (Consumer and Corporate Affairs Branch) advised in writing
that “the Yukon Government has reviewed this legislation and determined
that the present location of the occupational health and safety officers
with the Consumer and Corporate Affairs Branch is the most appropriate.”

7. Performance Measurement System
— Workers’ Compensation Board

The Board should develop a performance
measurement system including comparisons
with previous years of the time taken to
process claims and of changes in the rates
of accidents which should be sunrarized
in the Board’s Annual Report.

The Board advised that it would be very difficult to develop
meaningful performance indicators because of the many variables in
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8:1/2 individual treatment. It did, however, agree with the Committee that Uit has the data base from which performance indicators related to the

adjudication of claims could be developed. The Board also agreed that

the average time taken to process claims could be used as a standard

to provide comparative information.

9. Management of Human Resources —

Economic Development and Tourism

The Department should imediately take
proper measures to develop and implement
the necessary management processes in order
to control better its resources, to establish
performance indicators, and to be accountable
for the management of its human resources
in the conduct of the various projects
for which it is responsible.

7:6 The Department advised that a project management information system

would be in place by April 1, 1985, but was not able to provide any
specifics as to how it will be used to quantify activities to support

resources requested in the Estimates. The Department is hopeful that

this will be possible in the 1986—87 Estimates.

10. Activity performance indicators
— 0Economic Development and Tourism

The Department should include in its
Estimates document, wherever possible,
planned activities supported by performance
indicators justifying its request for funds
in order to create a base for future
accountability.

7:7 The Department advised that it has not taken any action on this
recommendation as the Department of Finance has established a committee

on program evaluation and the Department is waiting for Finance to 13
define “a government—wide process for departments to follow in developing

and implementing a program evaluation plan” before the Department Uinitiates the process internally. By April 1, 1986, the Department

hopes to have performance indicators for some of its programs in place

so that it can evaluate effectiveness during fiscal year 1986-87.
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11. Accuracy of Information — Economic
Development and Tourism

The Department should ensure that all
information it includes in public documents
is clear, accurate and consistent.

The Department advised in writing that the information to be
included in public documents will receive careful scrutiny for accuracy
and clarity. The Committee notes, however, that this did not seem
to be the case with the information contained in the Yukon Data Book

7:8 84—5 which was assembled by the Department. The Department recognizes
that there might be errors and inadequacies in it.

13. Project Management Processes —

Community and Transportation Services
(formerly Municipal and Community
Affairs)

1984 Recommendation (arising from 1983)
The Department of Municipal and Community
Affairs should determine the applicability
of the project management processes developed
by the Department of Government Services
to projects undertaken by the Department
of Municipal and Community Affairs and
follow them as far as possible.

2:6 The Municipal Affairs Branch has developed project management
procedures, based on a draft procedures manual developed by Government
Services, for municipal projects and land development. The Department
feels it is necessary to develop its own procedures because of the
added factor of community involvement. The Department will review
the procedures with the Highways and Transportation Branch to see if
they are directly applicable or if others should be developed to suit

8:10 the nature of the projects. The Department has agreed to review their
procedures in light of the Government Services’ manual which is to
be finalized by April 1, 1985.
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SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 1q85

Yukon Liquor Corporation

1. General Manager

The role, responsibilities and reporting relationship
of the General Manager of the Yukon Liquor Corporation
should be clarified.

Department of Education, Advanced Education and Manpower

2. Meaningful Estimates information

The Department should provide in the Estimates
and in its Annual Reports information that is complete,
comparable, and meaningful.

3. Description narrative in supplementary estimates

When a new program is introduced through a Supplementary
Estimate, that Supplementary should include a narrative
describing the program.

4. Reporting pupil/teacher ratio

The Department should report the pupil/teacher
ratio on an actual as well as an all—inclusive
basis.

5. Reporting reallocation of resources

When the Department effects a reallocation of human
or financial resources, it should ensure that this
is clearly and properly recorded in all appropriate
documents including the Estimates, the Annual Report
and the departmental organization chart.

Government Reservation Office — Government Services

6. Review of Reservation Office

The Government should review the economies of continuing
operation of the Reservation Office.
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WITNESSES 1985

Department of Community and Transportation Services (Feb. 12, 1985)

Mr. Peter Kent, Deputy Minister
Mr. Kurt Koken, Director, Administration and Finance
Mr. Grey Anderson, Manager, Financial Operations
Ms. Connie Zatorski, Manager, Administration and Special

Projects
Mr. Chris Knight, Director, Lands and Housing; General

Manager, Yukon Housing Corporation

Department of Community and Transportation Services (Feb. 13, 1985)

Mr. Peter Kent, Deputy Minister
Mr. Kurt Koken, Director, Administration and Finance
Mr. Greg Anderson, Manager, Financial Operations
Ms. Connie Zatorski, Manager, Administration and Special Projects
Mr. Chris Knight, Director, Lands and Housing; General

Manager, Yukon Housing Corporation
Mr. John Cormie, Director, Municipal Engineering Branch

Yukon Liquor Corporation (Feb. 13, 1985)

Mr. William Byers, Q.C. , Deputy Minister, Justice
Mrs. Patricia Harvey, Assistant Deputy Minister
Mr. Rolly Thibault, General Manager, Liquor Corporation
Mrs. Olive Pociwauschek, Board Member

Yukon Liquor Corporation (Feb. 14, 1985)

Mr. William Byers, Q.C., Deputy Minister, Justice
Mrs. Patricia Harvey, Assistant Deputy Minister
Mr. Rolly Thibault, General Manager, Liquor Corporation
Mrs. Olive Pociwauschek, Board Member

Government Revenues (Feb. 14, 1985)

Mr. Frank Fingland, Territorial Treasurer
Mr. Ray Hayes, Director, Taxation and Money Management

Government Revenues (Feb. 15, 1985)

Mr. Frank Fingland, Territorial Treasurer
Mr. Ray Hayes, Director, Taxation and Money Management

Continued ..
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Department of Finance (Feb. 15, 1985)

Mr. Frank Fingland, Territorial Treasurer
Mr. Uday Patankar, Comptroller

Department of Education, Advanced Education and Manpower (Feb. 18, 1985)

Mr. Jim Davie, Deputy Minister
Mr. Ron Wallace, Assistant Deputy Minister, Elementary

and Secondary Schools
Mr. Stan Marinoske, Director, Administrative Services
Mr. Dan Odin, Assistant Deputy Minister, Advanced

Education and Manpower

Department of Education, Advanced Education and Manpower (Feb. 19, 1985)

Mr. Jim Davie, Deputy Minister
Mr. Ron Wallace, Assistant Deputy Minister, Elementary

and Secondary Schools
Mr. Stan Marinoske, Director, Administrative Services
Mr. Dan Odin, Assitant Deputy Minister, Advanced Education

and Manpower
Mr. Rick Butler, Director, Recreation (currently in Community

and Transportation Services)

Department of Government Services and
Department of Education, Advanced Education and Manpower (Feb. 20, 1985)

Mr. Andy Vantell , Deputy Minister, Government Services
Mr. Sam Cawley, Director, Supply Services
Mr. Bill Davies, Director, Public Works
Mr. Jim Davie, Deputy Minister, Education, Advanced Education

and Manpower

Department of Economic Development and Tourism (Feb. 20, 1985)

Mr. John Ferbey, Deputy Minister

Workers’ Compensation Board (Feb. 21, 1985)

Mr. Brian Booth, Chairman, Workers’ Compensation Board

Continued . .
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Public Service Commission (Feb. 21, 1985)

Ms. Geri Waishe, Director, Compensation
Ms. Dorothy Drummond, Manager, Employee Records and Pensions
Mr. Carey Conway, Manager, Training and Development

Health and Human Resources (Feb. 21, 1985)

Mr. Bill Klassen, Deputy Minister
Mr. Alan Davidson, Director, Health Services

Community and Transportation Services (Feb. 21, 1985)

Mr. Peter Kent, Deputy Minister
Mr. Chris Knight, Director, Lands and Housing
Mr. Mel Smith, Manager, Property Assessments
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1985

STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Yukon Legislative Assembly

DOCUMENTS TABLED

PAC # Department Document Title

1 Finance Territorial Accounts 1983/84

2 * Auditor General Auditor General ‘s report on
“any other matter” for year
ended March 31, 1984

3 Community & Request for purchase of 4284
Transportation tonnes of calcium chloride in
Services the amount of $1,725,120

4 Justice Yukon Liquor Corporation Annual
Report 1983/84

5 * Justice Yukon Liquor Corporation Organization
Chart 1983-84 and 1985

6 * Justice - Relative revenue by alcohol category
and total liquor tax transferred
to the Government of Yukon

1 Justice Final net sales of the Yukon Liquor
Corporation for 1983-84

8 Justice Memorandum of Understanding between
the Department of National Revenue
and the Yukon Liquor Corp. respecting
the selection and control of land
border duty free shop operators

9 Education, Advanced Opening statement
Education and
Manpower

10 Education, Advanced Relationship between organization
Education and and programs
Manpower (a) Organization Chart April, 1984

(b) Organization Chart Feb., 1985

11 * Education, Advanced Staffing Entitlement Formula for
Education and Yukon Schools Effective July, 1984
Manpower

12 Education, Advanced Casual person years as related to
Education & Manpower school clerical staff

* Appended to the Report
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PAC # Department Document Title

13 Education, Advanced Consulting firm which conducted
Education & Manpower a study of reading levels of

Yukon students

U14 Education, Advanced Review of departmental objectives
Education & Manpower

15 Education, Advanced Management planning schedule,
Education & Manpower Advanced Education and Manpower

16 Education, Advanced Advanced Education and Manpower UEducation & Manpower — Human Resource Development
Directions Paper

17 Education, Advanced Annual Plan, 1983-84 — Occupational
Education & Manpower Training and Continuing Education,

Advanced Education, Manpower and
Immigration

18 * Education, Advanced Comparison of the school level
Education & Manpower professional teaching force deployed

during the 1982—83 and the 1983—84
school years

19 Education, Advanced Cumulative Student Statistics
Education & Manpower — Yukon College, July/August 1984

19(a) * Finance Property Tax Receivable

DOCUMENTS FILED FOLLOWING CONCLUSION OF HEARINGS

20 * Education, Advanced Clarification of 1983/84 0
Education & Manpower Recreation Estimates

21 Finance Revenue: 1) Municipal Loan UInterest; 2) Bank and Other
Interest

22 * Health & Human Health Care Insurance
Resources Premiums

23 * Economic Development Request denied for reorganization 0and Tourism recommendations

24 * Public Service Delegated authority procedures [Commission for casual hires

25 Education, Advanced - Response to Committee letter
(a) & Education & Manpower of February 25, 1985
(b) *

26 Justice - Relative revenue by alcohol category [
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ORDER OF REFERNECE

ORDERED. THATthcflonnorable Members Mr. Penikeit, Mrs. Finh. Mr. Falle. Mr. Brewster. and Mr. Byblow be appointed to the
Standing Committee on Public Accounts;

THAT the said Committee havethepowertocall forpersons, papemandrccords;tosil during iniemessi.nalperiods; and
in print such papers and evidence as may be ordered; and

THAT the Clerk of the Legislative Assembly be responsible for providing the necessary suppoil services to the
Committee,

(July 14. 1982)
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February 12, 1985 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 1:1

i EVIDENCE
Tuesday, February 12, 1985

Mr. Penikett: I will now call the meeting to order. This is
Meeting Number I of the sixth sitting formal hearings.

Let me briefly remind all participants that the issue before us is
spending by the adminisration. We will be looking at (he economy,
efficiency and effectiveness of the management of (he Government

U
of the Yukon Territory. Before we begin, I would like to table for
the record the Territorial Accounts and the Auditor General’s
Report On Any Other Matter, dated January 30th, 1985.

Let me introduce members of (he committee firsl. On my far left:
Mr. Brewster. MLA for Kluane: on my immediate lefi, Mr. Clarke
Ashley, MLA for Klondike: on my far righi Mr. Maurice Byblow.
MLA for Faro: on my immediale right Mr. Al Falle. MLA for
Kooialinqua.

This morning we are beginning with Ihe Department of Commun

fl ity and Transportation Services, and we will deal with matters

Li arising from (he Auditor General’s Report On Any Other Muter.
and follow-up from the 1984 Public Accounts Commitee ReporL

Witnesses this morning are Mr. Peter KenL Mr. Kurt Koken, Mr.
Brian Anderson. Ms Connie Zatorski and Mr. Chris Knight. who
are respectively the Deputy Minister. Direcwr of Administration
and Finance, the Manager for Financial Operations, Manauer of
Administration and Special Projects. and the Direcwr of Lands andr Housing, and also the General Manager of (he Yukon Housing

Li Corporation. I would like to welcome (he witnesses, and also make
special mention of the fact that, once again, we are grateful for the
services of the Office of the Audiwr General. Mr. Raymond

Li Dubois, the Deputy Auditor General, and Mr. Harold Hayes. a
Principal from that office.

— If I may, I will begin by welcoming you. Mr. Kent. and ask you
if you have any opening statements.

r Mr. Kent: No, sir.

[ Mr. Penikett: Let us move immediawly then to the questions.
If I could direct your attention to page 12 of the Auditor General of
Canada’s Report On Any Other Matter, which begins with the

D Department of Highways and Transportation, I want to ask you a
couple of questions about that section there on the Engineering
Services Agreement, if I may.

Let me, for the edification of all members, read the comment
from the Auditor General’s Report On Any Other Matter; “Con
struction and engineering costs from federal highways projects that
were recoverable from DIAND under (he Engineering Services
Agreement. This agreement provides for accouniable advances to
be made to the government. Because of the administrative

complexity of obtaining individual project approval for each
advance, no accountable advances were received during (he year.
Costs recoverable under the agreement in 1983.81 amounted (0

U
$6,577,000, including an accrual of $1171000 for expenditures
incurred February 1st to March 31st. 1984. Two progress claims
were submitted to DIAND and paid during (he year. The first
covered expenditures were $1,965,000. incurred from April 1st,

U
1983 to July 20th, 1983, paid to December 2nd, 1983. The second
covered expenditures of $3,441,000. incurred from July 21st, 1983
w January 31st, 1984, and paid to March 21st, 1984.

The expenditures also paid by DIAND were, in effec, being
financed by the Yukon Consolidated Revenue Fund for extended
periods of time. This has a limiting effect on (he government’s cash
flow and working capital.

The Auditor General’s recommendation following from that was:
(I). Accountable advances should be obtained from DIAND, or

billing should be made on a monthly basis. The government’s
response was that it is the department’s intention to take advantage
of the advance provisions of all agreements.

Could I ask you, Mr. Kent, to expand on that answer. Would you
tell us how and when this intention will take effect.

Mr. Kent: There has been a slight change since that time.
Basically, as I understand it, accountable advances are very
difficult and awkward to achieve under the agreement. They must
be done on a project-by-project basis, in the required documenta
tion. If you wish, I will ask Mr. Koken to elaborate on (hat.

What is new is that the Engineering Services Agreement, which is
old and antiquawd and has problems such as I just described, will
shortly be replaced with a different agreement, which we are
presently discussing and negotiating with the federal government
now. In those negotiations, we hope to convince the federal
governmen( to provide for advances on a very simply administra
tively forward perspective.

Mr. Penikett: I might ask Mr. Koken to elaborate, but to make
it clear, are you now telling me that the answer contained here is
not operative anymore?

Mr. Kent: Le( inc put it this way: if ii appears thai we are
going to be successful in negotiating this new cos(-sharing
adminis(rative agreement soon, we will not try to achieve advances
under the presen( agreemen(, which is awkward. If it looks like
(hose negotiations are going (0 take a long time and be unsuccess
ful, then we will take another hard look a( the advance positions
under the present agreement.

Mr. Penikett: I understand what you are saying: you are
attempting to negotiate a more acceptable or simpler arrangement
with the federal government to get these advances.

Mr. Kent: It is not just an advance: it is a whole new
agreement. It is not just covering the advances, but all provisions.

Mr. Penikett: But it will include, presumably, a new arrange
ment regarding advances.

From the time this answer was recorded and the currcn( date,
what method have you been using to take full advantage of the
advance provisions?

Mr. Kent: We are making monthly claims — or period claims
—. but we have had no success in achieving advances.

Mr. Penikett: Because the federal government is not respond
ing to those claims on (he basis in which you are making them?

Mr. Kent: The advance provisions of the present agreement. as
I say. are yen awkward. They are very difficult to exercise. They
require extensive paper work. Rather than manipulate that, we fel(
it would be better to at(empt to negotia(e this whole new agreement.
which is administratively simpler.

Mr. Penikett: As recorded in the Auditor General’s Report On
Any Oiher Matter — the government’s comment — you have
attempted to obtain the advances according to the existing
agreemen but failed, and are therefore trying to negonate a new
arrangement. or you have been unable to make application
properly?

Mr. Kent: The answer is the second one.
Mr. Penikett: In essence, whatever your intenuons were when

this answer was recorded, you were no able to follow through with
those inentions because of the difficulties you described.

Mr. Kent: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: Would you permit Mr. Koken to elaborate. I see

him leaning into the mike.
Mr. Koken: Under the Alaska Highway Maintenance Agree

menL which is in excess of $10,000,000, that amount is approved
prior to the commencement of the year. Then. automatically.
quarterly advances, based on cash flow projections, are made. It is
very simple and straightforward.

Under the Engineering Services Agreement, on the other hand.
we will only receive money from Ottawa once an approved Project
Authorization is in hand. The authorization approval is lengthy and
often difficult. In many instances, a project authorization is only in
our hands afler the work is already in progress and perhaps has been
done, so we cannot take advantage of the advances provisions under
that agreeement because of the fact that an approved project
authorization must be in hand.
os Mr. Penikett: If Mr. Kent will permit me to ask you. Mr.
Koken, could you just briefly describe that project authorization
process?

Mr. Koken: The federal government provides roughly $11
million for federaly financed roadwork in the Yukon Territory. This
amount is broken down into many projects. Each project is
identified, and a project authorization, which contains the contrac
tor’s amount, the engineering cost, the material cost and the total,
is then submitted to Ottawa for approval. It is only when these
project authorizations are approved that we can start claiming. They
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come back very slowly, that is the problem.

Mr. Penikett: How slowly?
Mr. Koken: That depends. I cannot give you a direct answer to

that.
Mr. Penikett: Could you give me an approximation. It is not a

mailer of days: is it a mailer of weeks or months?
Mr. Koken: It depends. If it is a project that has been planned

for some time, and has been cleared prior to April 1st, then we get
the project authorizations — I am guessing now — approximately
mid-year. However, during the year. new projects pop up. We
negotiate with Ottawa, letters go back and forth, telegrams go back
and forth, and eventually funding approval is received. We prepare
the project authorization. Ottawa approval to proceed is received
and then this piece of paper wanders to Ottawa and eventually
comes back, It depends on what type of project it is, I cannot give
you a definite answer on that.

Mr. Penikett: If I heard you correctly. Mr. Kent, you are
presently negotiating a new Engineering Services Agreement?

Mr. Kent: I would say they are early discussions. We are not in
the Final stages of negotiation.

Mr. Peniketi: Are you prepared to venture any kind of guess as
to when you might conclude such negotiations?

Mr. Kent: I would like to refer that question to Mr. Koken.
Mr. Kokcn: I am sorry, I do not know the answer. We have

had preliminary meetings with Ottawa. How long it will take. I
would assume is anybody’s guess.

Mr. Penikelt: Let me try and put you on the spot. Do you hope
for it in this fiscal year, next fiscal year, or the one beyond that?

Mr. Koken: It is hoped that an agreement “ill be obtained in
the next fiscal year.

Mr. Penikett: Let me come back to my original question then.
In the meantime, in between the point when you get a new’
agreement and the statement in this document that you intended to
take full advantage of the advance provision of the existing
agreement, how are you operating in terms of these accountable
advances?

Mr. Kent: At present we arc not using the provisions for the
reasons stated. What we are doing is: we are making claims on as
timely and quickly a basis as we can, which in this case is on a
monthly basis.

Mr. Penikett: If I heard you correctly, Mr. Kent, you are not
getting satisfaction on most claims, is that right?

Mr. Kent: There are no problems with those claims.
Mr. Penikett: There is no problem with those claims? Okay.

Let me ask is the other members of the committee if they have any
questions on this.

Mr. Kent: I am sorry if I confused you. It should maybe help if
I say the monthly claims are claims made for expenditures already
made.

Mr. Penikelt: Okay. But in effect I guess the problem
identified by the Auditor General here could recur until such time as
you get a new agreement. Is that correct?

Mr. Kent: I do not think so. I would ask Mr. Koken to correct
me, but I believe that if I am making claims as quickly as we are
doing, on a monthly basis, we will not have those large outstanding
balances anymore.

Mr. Penikett: Is that correct. Mr. Koken?
Mr. Koken: That is correct,
Mr. Penlkett: Let me move onto item 8 on page 12, which is

the road equipment replacement account fund.
Regular guests before this committee, such as Mr. Kent and Mr.

Koken. will recall that this topic has been almost a hardy perennial.
I do not intend to go over again the old problem of legislative
approval of expenditures, which is the key constitutional issue.

Looking at the expenditures with proper authority to the top of
page 13 in the Auditor General’s letter, ‘‘The expenditures charged
to the account in two consecutive accounting periods resulted in the
account being over-expended in those periods by $452,000 and
$486,000 respectively. Though correcied in subsequent periods, the
department, during the period in question, was approving expendi
tures for payment, even though funds were not available in the
account to meet those expenditures.’’

Thc Auditor General recommended that the department should
not approve payments in excess of funds available, The govern
ment’s comment of record is that the department operated prior to
April I. 1981. on the understanding that a deficit in mid-year was
allowed: that is. year-end balance was the operating criterion. This
practice has been changed under the new Financial Administration
Act.

In regard to the first sentence — that the department operated
prior to April I. 1984 on the understanding that the deficit in
mid-year was allowed — could you explain that a little bit more?

Mr. Kent: I guess I have an understanding, but I was not there
at the lime. I would like to refer thc question to Mr. Koken.

Mr. Koken: This fund has been in operation for many many
years. This is not the first time, to my knowlege, that we have
ended up in a minus position in this fund. We were not concerned
when the fund went into a minus position in period two and period
three in the amounts indicated. These temporary over-expenditures
were not illegal, as far as I know, prior to the establishment of the
fund in April. 1984.

Of course, we are now very closely monitoring the fund on a
monthly basis via the garage operations account and machine
account, et cetera, so that this “ill not happen again. We should
realize, though, that we are operating within a very very narrow
hand, from zero to $3,000,000. That is a very narrow band, if you
look at the equipment costs, and it will take a lot of pre-judging,
and it will take a lot of accounting controls to make sure that they
stay within the budget. but this is an odd case.

i Mr. Penikett: Let me ask you a couple of questions. Mr.
Koken, and maybe I can state them all at once so you can see where
I am going, and maybe ask you to respond. As the fund is now
operaied. presuming there is somebody who is responsible for the
administration of the fund, that person is presumably not the same
person who authorizes the purchase of equipment?

Mn Koken: That is basically correct.
Mr. Penikctt: Given that the fund has recoveries, let me call it

that — not revenue—, that are made up of charge-outs to other
departments for the use of equipment and a portion for depreciation.
could you explain to me how it is the fund can go into a deFicit
position. Is it simply the timing of purchases of equipment that
causes that situation to occur, or what?

Mr. Koken: There could be a number of reasons for that. The
slow processing of credits, and the purchasing of equipment has to
be timed very well. You ordered equipment, and you assume that
the equipment is received within a reasonable time, assume three or
four months: you are looking at that time period.

Mr. Kent: If equipment arrived unusually early, for example.
you might have anticipated that it would arrive in four months: if it
arrived in two months, the fund may not have replenished itself
enough and you could put yourself into a deficit right there.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Kent, Mr. Koken mentioned the slow
processing of credits. Is this a problem?

Mr. Koken: It has been a problem and we are looking into
correcting it right now. We had a number of meetings only lately to
see what could be done to speed up that process.

Mr. Penikett: Describe the nature of those problems, please.
Mr. Koken: Work orders are processed slowly. They are not

closed at the end of each month, necessarily. Expenditures go
through, and paperwork is not processed as fast as it should be.

Mr. Penikett: Is that slowness a problem in your shop, or is it a
problem in terms of the client department?

Mr. Kokea: It is partly in our shop. We are in the midst of
reviewing all our garage operations. We have an analyst analyzing
the procedures of all garage operations, and hopefully a new
accounting system will come out of that.

Mr. Penikett: You expect to have the problem, to the extent
that it is in your shop. solved by when?

Mn Koken: A year.
Mr. Peniketi: You said it is partly in your shop. Are there

some client departments that arc a particular problem in terms of
slow payment’?

Mr. Koken: No.
Mr. Penikelt: All right. It almost seems to hint that the
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r- problem is not just partly in your shop, but mostly in your shop.

L You concede that?
Mr. Kent: I do not think it is necessary to say it is a problem.

Right now, for a grader ploughing the highway, at this very hour,
some of the charge-out rates could be used to replenish that fund,
but it is a considerable length of time before that depreciation that is
being incurred at this very minute passes into the fund because of
all the paperwork that has to be gone through.

U
Mr. Penikett: How much time, Mr. Kent?
Mr. Kent: I cannot answer that question.
Mr. Koken: Approximately six weeks.
Mr. Penikett: The second sentence in the government’s com

ment says that this practice has been changed under the new
Financial Administration Act. Could you briefly explain to me how
that will change things?

Mr. Kent: It is to the extent that it is extremely clear under the
Financial Administration Ac: that you cannot have a deficit at any

(9 time during the year. Highways has felt that there was at least some

LI ambiguity and were permitted to have these deficits during the year.
Under the new Financial Administration Act, it is perfecily clear
ihat this is not permitted at any time during the year.

fl Mr. Penikett: As I understand it, the solution will come
because of the new act in terms of tighter controls and speeding up
the processing of credits and will solve the problem for you?

Mr. Kent: The rules are known under the Financial Athninis

P tration Act, and there was an argument to say that a deficit during
the year was permitted prior to that. There is no excuse any more.

Mr. Penikett: Does anyone else have any questions on this
one?

Mr. Falle: Just to follow upon your last statement: in the event
that you have a piece of equipment which does arrive earlier than
expected, of the money is not in the fund, are you saying that the
equipment will sit at the dealers until the fund is replenished?

Mr. Kent: No, it will not do that. It will be paid for. You have
to be very careful in terms of delivery dates and all these other
factors or you will get yourself in trouble, It is a complex, factor
which is not a mechanical thing. It depends on the transportation
system and how fast a person can deliver something. You have to
consider all these factors and he careful about them, some of which
are controllable and some which are not controllable.

Mr. Falle: I realize that, but you know the rules are such that
you cannot exceed the funds that are available so precautions are to
be taken.

Mr. Kent: Yes, that is correct.
Mr. Penikett: Maybe I could move on to item nine in the

Auditor General’s letter which is the dust palliatives revolving fund
— a pretty exciting subject.

We are talking mostly about salt here. I guess. The problem I see
here is that the amount charged to the fund is not to exceed an
authorized limit of $1.2 million. That is according to the act which
created the dust palliatives revolving fund. In addition, under the
new Financial Administration Act, which came into effect on April
I, 1984, the value of the inventory is not to exceed the authorized
limit. The Auditor General reports that the balance of the
expenditure charged to the fund at March31, 1984 was $1,442,000.
It was represented by inventories of $1.9 million at year-end. The
amount charged to the fund exceeded the authorized limit by
$242,000 at year end.

Now, the Auditor General also notes that at the subsequent year
end, the limit of the fund has been increased to $2 million. Could I
just ask you, first of all, on what authority did the department
exceed the limit on this fund?

Mr. Kent: The decision was primarily due to the closure of the
White Pass Railway. The decision was made to have calcium
chloride delivered in one big order rather than in two small orders.

Mr. Penikett: I understand that. I just want to get back to the
technical question. On what authority was the decision made to
exceed the limit?

Mr. Kent: The answer to that is the department was told that
the legislation would be changed to increase the amount to $2
million. Unfortunately the calcium chloride was delivered prior to
increasing the fund to $2 million.

Mr. Penikett: I want to get into that, but I want to ask you: on
what authority was (he decision made? Was it the deputy minister’s
decision? Was it below that, or was it a ministerial decision?

Mr. Kent: My understanding, and I will refer that to Mr.
Koken, was to order the calcium chloride and by the time it arrived
the legislation will have been changed. Where that instruction came
from. I do not know.

Mr. Penikelt: Mr. Koken?
Mr Koken: We received approval to proceed on that basis

from our superiors.
Mr. Penikett: Okay. I am asking you a purely technical

question here. In what form did that approval come?
Mr. Kent: I cannot answer the question.
Mr. Koken: I would have to check. I do not remember.
Mr. Penikett: Could you document the authority to exceed the

statutory limit there please? I think we would like to have that
documented. Let me just briefly explain, lest there he any alarm on
the other side, if it is simply a ministerial decision then it ceases to
become a prob]em in the business of this committee. Okay?

Let me read you the recommendation of the Auditor General:
‘‘The depuriment should establish maximum and minimum levels
for storing and recovering and reordering calcium chloride’’. The
response: ‘‘Calcium chloride is not stocked for use as are most
stores items and therefore maximum and minimum stocking levels
do not apply’’.

Could you explain that. Mr. Kent, in view of the fact that there
was an inventory of $1.9 million on March 31st, 1984?

Mr. Kent: I think what is being suggested here is that we do
not order two years, or five years. or seven years of calcium
chloride. We order the amount of calcium chloride that is felt will
be needed in that particular year. period. We do not see why there
should be maximum. or why there should be a minimum. You
simply order what you need.

Mr. Penikett: So ihe needs were probably pretty close to
million, given that even under (he new regime there will be
million limit. There was SI million in inventory, which
been almost the maximum need for the year. Is that

Mr. Kent: The net amount was SI .4, was it not.
Mr. Penikett: I am depending on the Auditor

numbers here. The inventory is $1,913,000.
Mr. Kent: Less accounts payable of $471 .000.
Mr. Penikett: Yes, okay. The year’s need could be represented

by something a little less than $2 million, is that correct?
Mr. Kent: I think that is fair to say.
Mr. Penikett: What, in that case, is the monthly consumption

pattern? Is there an average use per month of this material?
Mr. Kent: There are generally two applications of calcium

chloride during the year. I believe the first one is in June and the
second one is in August.

Mr. Penikett: How much is the maximum amount that we need
on hand at any time?

Mr. Kent: I would refer that to Mr. Koken, but I suspect half.
At the beginning of June, you would want about half of the total
amount required during the year. and the other half you would
require in August. assuming there is a uniform application in both
phases.

Mr. Koken: This is correct. You would need half before June
and the other half before July. The purchase this year, by the way,
is $1.3 million, That is the current purchase order.

Mr. Penikett: Let me deal with recommendation number two.
‘‘The department should establish procedures to ensure that the
fund limit is not exceeded at any time”, The government’s
comment was, ‘‘The fund has been established at $2,000,000 in the
Financial Administration Act to allow change in delivery schedule
precipitated by the closure of the White Pass and Yukon Railroad.
With the rail closure, the total tonnage required had to move up the
highway system. Scheduling was changed to require delivery of the
annual tonnage prior to March 31, before the spring break-up,
rather than in two movements bracketing the fiscal year-end.
Procedures are now in place to ensure that the fund limit will not be
exceeded’’.
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Mr. Kent: I come buck to the cause of the initial concern when
we went over. We knew that if the change in legislation was not
forthcoming at an early date that we would exceed the fund. We
have always been able to control and manage the account. We knew
where we stood, so I have to refer to the early instance when,
because the decision was made to order it in one bulk sum earlier,
we knew it would exceed the fund unless legislation was changed.
In that context, I have a hard lime answering your question.

Mr. Penikett: I am sorry. You will understand my hard time. I
am reading the government’s response to the Auditor General and I
am asking you to explain it. that is all. It says, “Procedures are
now in place to ensure Ihe fund limit will not be exceeded”.

Mr. Kent: I guess I should say. Procedures are now, and have
been, in place to ensure that the fund limit will not be exceeded’’.

Mr. Penikett: I will ask other members of the committee if
they have any questions on that in a minute,

We are talking about calcium chloride here, which you have
described as being used twice in a year. in June and August. I
would like to refer you to page 50 of the Yukon Hansard for 1983.
In Question Period on March 26, 1984. Mr. Tracey. the Minister of
Highways at the time, was asked about winter application of salt to
Yukon roads. He was asked if he could tell the House when the
decision to usc sodium chloride for snow and ice control was
actually taken. Mr. Tracey said, ‘‘Not specifically, but I do know
that the decision was made to use sodium chloride over this past
winter. Calcium chloride has proven hard on vehicles, whereas
sodium chloride has not. Calcium chloride also holds moisture at
the surface of the road and sodium chloride does not. So the
decision has been made, as in most other areas of Canada. to use
sodium chloride mixed with sand in order to remove the ice off the
road. I know there has been some concern expressed by certain
people in the territory who do not like to see dirty roads...”.

This answer seems to indicate that there was some calcium
chloride also used, or has historically been used in winter on the
roads here, or tried on the roads in winter.
ii Can you tell me if that is the case?

Mr. Kent: I am certain that sodium chloride has never been
used as a salt control except possibly on an experimental basis, but
I will refer that to Mr. Koken.

Mr. Kokcn?
I am not sure, but I think that calcium chloride is

other calcium chloride which is talked about here,
in the past.

it has been used, but it is not the same
chloride?

This is somewhat different. It comes in bags.
Mr. Penikett: Okay. Let me ask you then if of the sodium

chloride referred to here, none of this was included in the inventory
referred to by the Auditor General’s report?.

Mr. Koken: No.
Mr. Penikett: So any of this sodium chloride or calcium

chloride purchased for winter use would have been purchased out of
a different account?

Mr. Koken: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Does anybody else have any questions on that?

Mr. Falle?
Mr. Fnlle: Yes, I have ooe question I would like to refer to Mr.

Koken. Basically what it is is: in your answer you stated that the
rules had to be changed because the closure of White Pass Railway.
the salt is now being trucked up the highway. I would like to know:
have you saved any money by trucking?

Mr. Koken: That is very difficult to answer. We are trucking
during the slack time of the trucking industry in the Yukon, and we
get very competitive prices. To compare it to ships, I would not
know. Are you asking how much difference this trucking costs
rather than rail?

Mr. Falle: I realize you cannot compare with the railroad,
because you cannot get any bids presently from the railroad, but it
cost a certain amount of dollars to haul it up when it was running
versus now. The question is: is the price about the same or are we
losing, because we are taking about the same amount of calcium, I
would imagine.

Mr. Koken: I would assume it would cost more but I have not
looked at that.

Mr. Peniketi: Mr. Koken perhaps you could take a quick look
at those numbers, and perhaps you could give us some kind of
indication of the global amounts. Does anybody else have any
questions on this point? Mr. Byblow?

Mr. Byblow: With regard to the sodium chloride, you said
earlier that it was not part of the inventory represented in the figures
of the Auditor General’s report. Have you an idea, by estimale, of
the inventory of sodium chloride?

Mr. Koken: This is usually purchased for immediate use on
roads ale in the fall and early in the winter, and I believe it is
charged directly to the account where it would be used. It is then
used. It does not go by the stores procedures.

Mr. Byblow: So you do not know how much is purchased?
Mr. Koken: We know how much is purchased. We could look

at the purchase order and find out, yes.
Mr. Byhlow: I was just trying to establish a comparison on

inventory of sodium chloride to calcium chloride. or use through
the year.

Mr. Kent: I can secure that.
Sir. Byblow: You indicated that you just purchased $1.3

million worth of calcium chloride for this year. Inventory in March
of lust year was $1.9 million. Why the drop in the amount
purchased this year?

Mr. Kent: My understanding is that we are finally starting to
get some benefits from our extensive BST program.

Mr. Penikelt: Let me move on to another exciting topic: motor
vehicle licencing. on page 14 of the Auditor General’s Report On
Any Other Matter, item 10. This has to do with internal control
deficiencies in the handling of licence plates and decals. The
Auditor General noted that “unused decals held by the territorial
agents were not being returned to the department at the end of each
renewal year: a physical count of the unissued plates and decals
held by the department was not being made and together with the
unissued plates and decals held by the territorial agents, reconciled
with the control records to account for the cash received, and, the
employees responsible for preparing the cash blotter has overall
control of the licence plates and decais”.

As I would understand the problem, you could have had losses
there and you have no way of knowing how much, when or by
whom. Is that the case?

Mr. Kent: Yes, sir.
Mr. Penikett: Have you any experience to indicate that you

might have had a problem in that area?
Mr. Koken: No.
Mr. Penikett: The Auditor GenenFs recommendation was that

‘‘the territorial agents should return unissued decals to the
department at the end of each renewable year’’. The government’s
comment was The territorial agents now return unused decals to
the motor vehicles branch at the end of the renewal year.

Could you confirm the effective date of that new procedure?
Mr. Koken: The decals were returned last year. The plates will

be returned at the end of this fiscal year. We have had meetings on
that particular subject over the last few’ weeks.

Mr. Penikett: Decals were returned last year at the time
licenccs were dealt with, and the plates will be returned this year as
the licencing procedure goes through, to what, March I?

Mr. Koken: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: The second recommendation was that ‘the

department should undertake a physical count of unissued plates
and decals at the end of each year and reconcile the inventory with
control records’’. The government’s comment was that a ‘‘physical
count of unissued plates and decals will be done at the end of the
current year and reconciled with the issue records’’. Can I
reconfirm that that will be the situation with you?

Mr. Koken: Yes. We have made an agreement with the Yukon
Liquor Corporation to cheek plates in the outlying areas. Whenever
they take their liquor inventory, they will also count our plates and
decals. We will now require that not only the decals but also the
plates be returned to us at year-end, or be counted.

We will accept, though, the inventory of plates held by
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r government services, because they are there in large quantilies.
We would have to accept their count,

L Mr. Penikett: Just let me go to the third recommendation of the
Auditor General: “The department should establish overall control
of plates and decals through a person independeni of the cash

function. The government responded to thai by saying ihat
L_J “commencing February 1st, 1985’’, — I guess thai is a few days

ago —, (a new licence year), the decals will be maintained and
reconciled by the Finance Administration branch and thc cash
collection and reconciliation will be performed by the Motor
Vehicles branch’’. Can I reconfirm that with you, Mr. Koken?

Mr. Koken: Yes, the decals were indeed transferred to us.

r They are now under lock and key in this building. They are issued
on an as-need basis, We have not worked out the details yet. We

LI are thinking in terms of issuing perhaps one or two weeks of
supplies and then issue each week. We will control the issue of the
decals from here. We will make periodic audits of the Motor

Vehicles branch as to decals and cash on hand and we will balance

Li it against the issues.
Mr. Penikett: Do any other members of the committec have

questions on this subject?
The next subject is the question of land development costs

inventory and I think we might want to spend some time on this.
Can I suggest, therefore, if nobody dissents on the committee, we
might lake a coffee break right now, and reconvene at lO:3t). 10
begin with that subject. Is there any problem with that in
committee? Okay. The committee will recess for fifteen minutes.

Recess

1 Mr. Penikctt: Before we broke, Mr. Kent. I indicated we were
going to go on to the land development cost inventory. But before
we do that, a couple of the members of committee have[ supplementary questions that they want to pursile from one of your
items this morning. For that purpose I will recognize first Mr.
Ashley.

Mr. Ashley: To Mr. Koken, on page 13, item 8, under the road
[1 equipment replacement account fund, you mentioned that it was

J going to take an interval of six weeks accounting to write off
depreciation. To me that should be just a journal voucher or internal
accounting.

bothers me. Could you tell me what it would normally take in other
circumstances to do journal entries like that?

Mr. Koken: What we are dealing here with is the central
machine account into which flows money derived from equipment
rental rates. It is replenished constantly by the use of equipment.
From this central machine account money flows out to the garage
operations, to operate the garage.
p. What is left over, after that is done, in the central machine
account, overflows into the equipment replacement account, and
that is vhcrc we do the purchasing.

Mr. Ashley: Currently, that is taking six weeks?
Mr. Koken: There are many, many functions within that

central machine account. The credits flow into the account: the time
money is drawn out of it to garage operations, the fuel oil costs are
charged. and the suppliers are paid. All of these are separate
accounting functions. There are many involved. In the garage
operations. there are accounts within accounts. Only then do you
know the balance of the account at any given time.

It depends upon various paper flows, as to how the account
stands. One problem we had — perhaps I did not make myself clear
— was that we were unable to closely read the account at times. We
have greatly improved on that in the last few months. We are now
taking monthly readings. At the time under review, we failed to do
that. That was one of the problems.

Mr. Ashley: You are saying that the system is improved. How
long do you think it will take now?

Mr. Koken: It has improved. We are steadily pushing the paper
work through, but it is the system that has to be changed, and the
system will be changed within a year. We are really working on that
right now.

Mr. Kent: There are limitations to this. Ideally, I guess what
would happen, is that at the end of today, that snowplow operator
checks how many hours he works today, and then he runs in from
Watson Lake and says, ‘‘You know, there is $5 that should be
credited to the equipment replacement fund’’. Hut you just cannot
do that, There is no sense in sending in daily reports of how many
hours all the equipment worked, You wait for the end of the month
and each garage would send in its report as to how much equipment
was used, what type of equipment was used for how many hours
and what the depreciation rate on that is, and then you go through
your various paper processes.

There is a limit to how much time, effort and resources you want
to put into that.

Mr. Penikett: We take your point. Mr. Kent. We would still
appreciate an answer though, given that it takes six weeks now, and
given the hope for improvements in the process as described by Mr.
Koken, when those improvements are made: how long will it take?

Mr. Kent: I cannot answer that question.
Mr. Koken: I would think this depends upon the proposals that

will be made by consultants. Will we end up with a direct on-line
system? I do not know what the final findings of that will be.

Terms of reference were given to the consultants. This is one
major point.

Mr. Penikctt: Mr. Koken. you are a person who has a
reputation of being infinitely knowledgeable about your own
department. We find it remarkable how little you are willing to
share with us this morning.
in Do you think you might be able to reduce it down to four weeks?
Three weeks? Two weeks? What is the scale of the improvement
you hope to achieve with these new processes?

Mr. Koken: I would say it is more in the one week range.
Mr. Penikett: Thank you. Mr. Byblow. you have a question.
Mr. Byhiow: I have a question related to motor vehicle

licensing. Does the Motor Vehicles branch receive new place issues
from their supplier source during the course of the year? Or, what I
am asking is, is the full inventory of plates and decals procured
prior to the licence year, and there is no additional inventory
purchased of licence plates during the course of the year?

Mr. Koken: Not to my knowledge, no.
Mr. Byblow: Who makes the decision with respect to a

changed licence plate style, colour or design?
Mr. Koken: I am not too sure. I would assume that that is a

Koken: No, I do not think I said that. I said it takes six
for the paper to flow through.
Ashley: The paperwork to go through?
Koken: The paperwork to go through.
Ashley: Internally, within your office? That is what I am

So to write off a piece of equipment it takes six weeks
your own internal paperwork?
Kent: No, I think what is being said is that from the time a

piece of equipment operates until the fund is credited with the
depreciation charge. which permits you to buy more equipment, is
approximately six weeks.

Mr. Ashley: From the time it has arrived in your hands?

fl Mr. Kent: No. There is a piece of equipment out ploughing
your road today, and what Mr. Koken said is that it takes six weeks

- for the portion of the charge-out rate related to the depreciation to
get into the equipment replacement fund.

U
Mr. Ashley: And you are starting that system to tn and

upgrade it to try and improve it from the six week time length?
Mr. Koken: That is correct, yes.
Mr. Ashley: Also for the writing off of that equipment. did you

also mention that? When a piece of equipment broke down, and is

[ to be written off, does that also cake six weeks so that that amount
also comes into the fund. Is that how that operates?

Mr. Koken: No, when a piece of equipment becomes unser
viceable, then it is sidelined. The next thing that happens is it goes
before the Board of Survey for write-off. When that is approved

U then it is sold at the next auction, which may be half a year hence.
and the recovery during the auction goes into the equipment
replacement fund. That could be many months after the piece of
equipment has been declared unserviceable.

Li Mr. Ashley: Just back on to this six week part, it still really
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from the Motor Vehicle branch and that it be
minister, but I am not too sure of that.
Could you check on (hat for us?

Certainly.
I would have had a follow-up question to that if

there was an answer.
Mr. Kent: I can answer that question. The minister approves

(he design and the colour of the licence plate.
Mr. Byblow: In that there was a change this year, for example,

that would have been under ministerial direction?
Mr. Kent: I believe, and I will confirm this, that the decision

to change the licence plates is a Cabinet or Management Board
decision, but the particular design or colour would be a ministerial
decision.

Mr. Penikctt: Let us go to land now. Because this is a
complicated matter, Mr. Kent, let me read from page 15 of the
Auditor General’s Report On Any Other Mailer, Item II. Land
Development Costs Inventory: ‘Our reports to Council for the past
three years have referred to inadequacies in the Department of
Municipal and Community Affairs land inventon records and the
lack of disclosure in the territorial accounts of the government’s
substantial land inventories. The government’s policy is to charge
these costs to expenditure when incurred, and to recognize revenue
from the sales of land at the time of sale. The department estimated
the land development costs inventory at March 31st. 1983. to be
$18 million.

In responding to the recommendations of our 1983 report to
Council, the department referred to discrepancies and inconsisten
cies between the land inventory records and land registry, which
had to be investigated. The investigation was extremely time-
consuming, and although a considerable amount of work had been
done, a more realistic time frame to complete this work would be
March 31st, 1985, instead of March 31. 1984, as recommended by
us.
, ‘The department is working towards meeting this objective. In
the meantime, the government, in 1984. approved the department’s
land costing policies. Should the department meet its objective of
completing the land inventory by March 31, 1985. the department
will be in a position to implement the other recommendations made
by us. These recommendations relate to disclosure in the financial
Matements of the development cost of land for sale as an asset of
the government, and commencing in the 1985-86 capital estimates.
disclosure in the capital estimates of the proper funding require
ments for land development cost expenditures and the cost of land
development inventory”.

The recommendation of the Auditor General was that ‘‘the
department should take every action to ensure that the development
costs of land for sale are determined by March 31. 1985’’. The
government’s comment was that ‘‘the department is taking every
action to ensure that the development costs of land for sale arc
determined by March 31, 1985. The 1985-86 capital estimates
disclosed the recovery component of land developed for sale. The
financial statements for the 1984-65 fiscal year will disclose the
value of the finished land inventory, and the development inventory
as an asset of the Government of Yukon’’.

Perhaps Mr. Kent or Mr. Knight might want to share with us
something about the problems that you had in completing the work
by March 31, 1984, described here, and talk to us about the
conclusion that a more realistic timeframe to complete this work
would be March 31, 1985?

Mr. Kent: Other than the statement that we will meet this
commitment deadline, and the work will be completed by March
31. 1985, we will fulfill the commitment?

Mr. Penlkett: I was just curious about the problems you ran
into. Could you describe the nature of the problems.

Ms Zatorskl: Some of the problems encountered were the
requirement of staff time in order to actually confirm that those
developments were there, and the properties were there, and to do
the physical check to the registry. Once all the time was made
available and the checks were done, the time component was then
eliminated. It was a delay as a result of the resources available to
complete the inventory.

Mr. Penikett: It turned out to be a bigger job than was
originally anticipated?

Ms Zatorski: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: The Auditor General notes here, ‘‘In the

meantime, the government, in 1984, approved the department’s
land costing policies.’’ Could you indicate something about the
broad principles of those policies?

Mr, Kent; I would like to refer that question to Mr. Knight.
Mr. Knight: The government has adopted a policy to sell

residential land at development cost. These development costs
include costs involved in preliminary site selection, planning,
design, legal survey. geotechnical work and municipal infrastruc
ture where required, Essentially, all the costs that could be
associated with that particular development are then appropriated on
the basis of a market value establishment.
, In other words, market values are taken of each individual lot in a
particular development, and that ratio of an individual lot to the
total market value of the overall development, times the develop
ment costs, will allow us to arrive at a cost per lot.

Mr. Penikett: Could you just explain to me briefly the charge
that we might. if we were talking about a private developer here.
describe to interest costs. or the carrying cost of land that may have
been developed some time ago but is now finding its way into the
market for. perhaps. a numbcr of years hence? Presumably if there
is something relating to an interest charge it would be fairly
arbitrary because you are not, in fact, borrowing the money, I
assume.

Mr. Knight: If I could clarify that for you, Mr. Chairman, we
have not, up to date, been charging carrying costs on what we
deemed to be developments in progress. Carrying costs since 1983
have been charged on finished land inventory, and they reflect the
borrowing experience of the Government of Yukon. However,
beginning with the upcoming fiscal year. we will be charging
carrying costs as we now do on finished land to those developments
which are in progress.

Mr. Penikett: I think I understand your answer there. You are
saying that cost is only applied to the time of sale — or that charge
for interest.

Mr. Knight: At the present time.
Mr. Penikctt; My question was a different one. Can you tell

me how that charge was calculated, and on what basis? You said it
was based on the borrowing experience of the govnerment at the
time — at prime rate plus whatever — whether or not you had to
borrow the money to develop the land.

Mr. Knight: That is correct. The interest rates that we calculate
for carrying charges on finished inventory presently are set
semi-annually by the Department of Finance.

Mr. Penikett: Just before I move on to the next item, let me
ask if any member of the committee has any question about this
particular one, about the inventory.

Mr. Brewster: As I understand it, on the property, you charge
interest each year. Is this corrrect? In other words, if a person did
not buy for five years. he would be paying five years of interest?

Mr. Knight; That is correct.
Mr. Brewster; Vhen do we get to the point where we stop this

interest? Will we not be having this property out of price in a very
short term?

Mr. Knight; There is a possibility that the application of these
finished land carrying costs could drive the price of the property
beyond what the market acceptability is. In that case, those
particular developments, or that particular inventory, would be
referred to Cabinet for decision and approval to either suspend the
carrying costs application or reduce it.

Mr. Penikctt; Let me move on then, if I may. Mr. Knight, to
the next question which is land sales.

I am reading from page 16. item 12: ‘‘The provision in respect of
the determination of the sale price of land requires that it be based
on development costs, with each lot bearing an equitable portion of
the costs, including such costs as carrying charges.’’

At the end of that paragraph, there is this concluding pair of
sentences: ‘‘For example, the main portion of the costs of the
Hillcrest development is included in work in process at a total cost

recommendation
approved by the

Mr. Penikctt;
Mr. Koken:
Mr. Byblow:
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of aboui $9,000,000. The costs were primarily incurred between
1979 and 980.”

Before I ask you about the Auditor General’s recommendulion
there, and the response, I wonder if I could just try to walk through
a couple of queslions I have. Perhaps you would be palieni and

1 genile with me, because I am not as knowlegeable as you in some
of ihese numbers.

Mr. Knight: I hate 10 hear statements like thai.

O
Mr. Penikelt: I am looking at ihe $9000000 number here, in

fact, about 557 Jots. I think it was confirmed yesterday.
Mr. Knight: The $9,000,000 covers essentially two phases of

the development. The 557 lots which you referred to ‘vere planncd

__

as phase one. However, additional common services and legal
survey of the second phase is also included in the 39,0(10.000
referred to.

Mr. Penikett: That would puzzle me, because that would work
out to $16,000 a lot without the interesi charges. What portion of
that $9,000,000 would be for the first phase’?

Mr. Knight: I am estimating now. I would say roughly
between five and six million.

Some of thai is costs attributed to common services such as the
access road and reservoir, which would serve future phases. ci
celera,

Mr. Penikelt: That would still work oul 10. in terms of the firsi
- phase, between $11,000 and $12,000 a lot. That relates to my

IJ question. I note from the Yukon Gazette. Part 2, November 15.
1984, page 507, that seven lots were sold in that area for less that
$6,000 each. In the House, the minister responded to this question:
“For the record, is the minister saying that in the case of these lots.

fl interest charges have been included in the sale price, including all
development costs, including carrying costs to this dale from
1977?’’ The minister said, “That is what I am saying’’.

Given ihat II to 12 thousand dollar costs per lot, by these[ calculations, and given the price of the lots as recorded in the Yukon
Gazette, and given the minister’s statement that this was following

- the development cost policy, plus an interest charge, can you square
those numbers for me?

Mr. Knight: I believe I can shed some light on that. The

U infrastructure is not activated in the Hillcrest-Mclniyre subdivision.
Mr. Knight: The way it works is, the system as it stands now is

essentially a dry system, for which the water lines have not been[ charged and ihe sewer lines have not been activated. When those
lois were sold to the federal government, there was a recognition
made in ihe price thai those services were not aciuaied, and ihat for
the initial phase until sufficient development was contemplated to

fl activate Ihose services, those costs were taken nut of ihe purchase
price. In other words, what the price included was the price for Ihe
legal survey, the roads to their present condition, the power and
phone, and but did not include any water and sewer charges

r because, quite frankly, the purchasers did not have access to them
at this particular point in time.

—‘ Mr. Pcnikett: Okay. I take that explanation, but ii still seems
to me. Mr. Knight, that it is questionable, then, whether they were
in fact sold the full development costs because they are being sold
for less than half the development cost. The charges you talked
about to upgrade or activate the services surely could not come to
$5,000 or $6,000 a lot, could they?

q Mr. Knight: They could. Obviously sewer and water installa
tions are fairly expensive on a front foot basis.

U Mr. Penikett: The main lines are in there now?
Mr. Knight: That is correct, However, the purchasers do not

have use of them, so there will be an adjustment to those prices that
were charged on the seven Jots when and if an overall agrccment is
concluded with respect to the purchase of the subdivision.

Mr. Penikett: Given that these lots were developed some time

r ago, if they were to go to private sale now, with ihe sewer and
Wj water be hooked up. and given that you are adding interest charges
J to the $11,000 or $12,000 approximate cost — I am just doing

rough calculations here — what would the approximate price be,
given your knowledge of the interest charges?

Mr. Knight: Well, as I mentioned in previous statements, Mr.
J Chairman, that development is presently considered to be work in

progress, or development in progress. As such, we will not be
beginning to appropriate carrying costs 10 that until the beginning of
the 1984-85 fiscal year.

Mr. Penikett: So assuming that, let us say that in the next
fiscal year some lots go on for private sale, given the way you
calculaie these things — I am just looking at this as an example—.
whai would the sale price nf ihnse lois be, approximately?

Mr. Knight: I would estimate that they are going to be, by the
time you add curb, gutter and paving, ihey would probably be in the
518,000 to 322.000 range. But that is just

Mr. Penikett: That is including interest?
Mr. Knight: That would include one year’s interest. thai is

correct.
Mr. Penikett: So, the price to the federal government for these

seven lots was something like beiween a quarter and a third of the
aclual cost to a private purchaser some time down the road?

Mr. Knight: Oh. no, as I meniioned before, the present price
does nol include curb, gutter and paving.

Mr. Penikett: But let me understand
Mr. Knight: Ii does also not include those costs which are

appropriated in the sewer and waler insiallaiion.
Mr. Penikett: As I understand it from what you indicated to

mc. at ihe point when you turn on or perhaps hook up ihe sewer and
water, the federal govemmeni will be charged for that?

Mr. Knight: Yes.
Mr. Penikeit: So, the price of those lots could suddenly jump

to between $11,000 and $12,000, which is your actual cost. Will
you then be going after then to recover the interest costs on those
lots at that point?

Mr. Knight: I do not believe so, because until that subdivision
is completed, it remains work in progress, and we will only begin to
start charging carrying costs on that effective April 1st of this year.

Mr. Penikett: The price thai has been recorded in the Yukon
Gazette — a little less than $6,000— is, if you like, a conditional
price?

Mr Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: These people do not have full and clear title to a

standard residential lot because they do not have all the services that
they normally get. They have been sold for a little less than $6,000.
There will be a subsequeni fee to pay if they get the sewer and water
hook-ups that everyone else would get in a normal residential subdivi
sion. They would not, ifl undersiand correctly, be charged the interest
which other purchasers will pay somewhere down the road.

Mr. Knight: They will not be charged interest. The development
is noi accruing interest and will not be until April I. 1985.

Mr. Penikelt: But. as an accouniing policy, you are going to be
going to a system where, at any point during a year. you will be able 10

record the interest charges on the lots to a certain point, will you not?
Mr. Knight: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: In a year from now, ii someone buys them, those

interest charges will be applied to ihe sale price of those lots.
Mr. Knight: Once the development is complete. and the curbs.

gutter and paving are in place, and alt ihe infrastructure is brought up
to standard, and the land development is transferred into finished
inventory, as a finished development, the standard semi-annual in
terest calculations will start to apply.

Mr. Penikett: I explained that you have to be patient and gentle
with me. As I understand it. the federal government has paid some
thing less than $6,000 each for these seven lois now. When they get
full services — sewer, water and all that stuff— they will pay another
charge, perhaps a similar amount, on top of that. Will they also be
charged an interesi charge at some point when the subdivision is fully
in operation?

Mr. Kent: Perhaps I could help in that regard, I believe that what
we will do is, at April I, 1985 we will look at exactly how much money
we have tied up in that place, in work and progress. We will deduct
from that, say, the $40,000 the feds have paid us. On the balance, we
will start applying interest. When we negotiate our agreement with the
federal government for all the lots, we will simply say: ‘‘This is the
outstanding amount you owe us.’’

Mr. Penikett: There is no sense at all in which the price recorded
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in the Yukon Gazette is the price for those lois? It is almost a down
payment?

Mr. Kent: If you like, or it reflects what is available for what
they bought.

Mr. Penikett: But, because they will subsequently be getting
more services, or full services, for that subdivision when it is fully
developed, you are not going to be charging the other purchasers
for those costs for these lots; you are going to be charging the
purchaser in this case, the federal government, for these lots?

Mr. Kent: Ii is all the same purchaser.
Mr. Penikctt: I assume the federal government is not going to

be purchasing all 557 lots in (he Hillcrest subdivision.
Mr. Kent: I believe (hey are, sir.
Mr. Penikeft: Oh, are they? This is news to me. All 557 lots?
Mr. Kent: Maybe I should explain.
Mr. Penlkett: That will certainly be a revelation to the people

in the area.
Mr. Kent: Hillcrest was basically designed for five major

nodes, of which one node is this 500 or so lots. Negotiations, to
date, are chat the federal government. on behalf of the Whitehorse
band, will buy the whole node.

Mr. Penikett: The federal government is going to buy the
whole node. In other words, it is probably not going to be
developed in the way it was originally planned. The federal
government is going to pick up — and I mean to be clear about this.
as it is the final point — by your estimate, Mr. Knight, what
portion of the $9 million?

Mr. Knight: They will pick up those costs which are directly
attributable to the McIntyre phase I, plus that portion of the
common service costs which are applicable, based on the total
conceived development of the area. In other words, if 2,000 lots
were contemplated and planned and designed, they would roughly
pick a quarter of the common service costs.

Mr. Penikctt: Could you give me an idea of what that might
mean in dollars?

Mr. Knight: I think roughly somewhere in the $5 million to $7
million range.

Mr. Penikett: And this is on the assumption that the entire
Whitehorse Indian Band will be relocating there?

Mr. Knight: I believe that is contemplated.
Mr. Penikctt: Has anyone else any questions of this particular

aspect before I ask some more general questions?
The recommendation of the Auditor General in this respect is that

“the department should include the carrying charges in the
work-in-process land inventory as development progresses so as to
ensure compliance with the regulations”. The government’s com
ment was that “the department would include, commencing April
1st, (985, the carrying charges of the work-in-progress land
inventory as the development progresses”.

I think you previously explained that, but just to be clear, Mr.
Knight, what that means is. unlike today. as of that date, you will
be able to account for those things like interest charges at any given
point, even on land that is not on the market yet?

Mr. Knight: If, for example, a project spans two or more fiscal
years between inception and completion. before it is offered for sale
or transferred into finished land inventory, the costs incurred in
developing a particular project will now bear the carrying costs.

Mr. Peniketi: Does anybody else have any questions on this
particular point?

I suspect that you have given me a couple of things to think about
and I may want to get back to this when I have sorted it through in
my own mind, because even as someone who allegedly represents
this area, some of this is news to me.

Let me then suggest that we might move on to Yukon Housing,
which is page 23. I will ask you, for that purpose, to submit to the
tender mercies of Mr. Brewster,

Mr. Brewster: We will go on to page 24 of the Auditor’s
Report On Any Other Matters. The first recommendation was:
“The Corporation should establish a proper segregation of duties to
ensure independent control of the output’’. The Corporation’s
comment was “The finance and administrative duties of the
Corporation have now been assigned to the Director of Finance and

Administration Department of Community and Transportation
Services and his staff’’.

this transfer made?
Prior to the fiscal year end. 1984.

Could you possibly look it up and give us an

What date was
Ms Zatorski:
Mr. Brewster:

exact date?
Ms latorski:
Mr. Brewster:

department would
community affairs
buildings. Is this

Could you give us an actual breakdown of which department does
what?

Ms Zatorski: As far as the usage of the computer?
What exactly are you looking for a breakdown ofl
Mr. Brewster: A breakdown of what the finance department

has; what part of the corporation they handle, which I presume
would be the financing, and what part the communities and
transportation department handles, which presumably would be the
actual administration of the buildings and that.

Ms Zatonki: The finance department is not involved with the
accounting of the Yukon Housing Corporation. The corporation
does its own accounting.

The method in which they get involved is through regular
reporting requirements of the corporation to the Department of
Finance on a regular reporting basis.

Maybe I should ask Mr. Knight to talk about what component the
corporation handles as far as the unit is concerned.

Mr. Knight: The finance administration branch of the Depart
ment of Community and Transportation Services is handling the
accounting function for and on behalf of the Yukon Housing
Corporation. The Housing Corporation continues to administer all
programs in the area of social housing and in the area of staff
housing.

The maintenance and repair function is being handled as an
administrative unit by the Department of Government Services.

Mr. Brewster: Moving onto recommendation number two on
page 24: “The Corporation should establish priorities and develop
procedures for correcting the above deficiencies as soon as
possible’’. The Corporation’s comment was: ‘‘ Computer systems
and procedures are now in the process of being documented in the
Financial Administration Manual’’. When is this likely to be
completed?
:i Mr. Kent: In answer to that question, there are four para
graphs. They are an attempt to answer those five questions above.
The first paragraph attempts to answer the concerns in one and two.
The next paragraph relates to the third dot, and the next two
paragraphs relate to the latter two dots. Having said that, can I
direct this question to you, Greg?

Mr. Penikett: Ms Zatorski?
Ms Zatorski: There is presently a financial administration

manual on the computer system. It is nearing completion. There are
a few areas that arc not completed. They should be completed
within the next few months. It is written from a user point of view.
It documents the system and how to go about utilizing the system.
The computer software is purchased in package form from the
vendor, and the Corporation does not do its own customizing in that
area. The regular backing up on the computer is performed on a
weekly basis. Its data files are stored off site. Those systems are in
place as well. The department is formulating contingencies on other
back-up plans in the event of a failure of system, or something.

Mr. Penikett: I just might have one quick question, if I could.
It relates to the re-organization. Mr. Knight, you are aiso now
General Manager of the Yukon Housing Corporation?

Mr. Knight: That is correct,
Mr. Penikett: Could I ask you who you report to in that

capacity?
Mr. Knight: The Board of Directors.
Mr. Penikett: And it was the Board of Directors that appointed

you to that position?
Mr. Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: In addition to your other position in the Public

Yes, I can.
For clarification, I presume that the finance

look after the financing and the department of
would look after the administration of the actual
correct?
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Service of the Yukon Territory?
Knight:
Peniketi:
Knight: No, I do not.

Penikett: I am just curious. So, you, in essence, wear two
When you are working for the Housing Corporalion. you
to the Board, and when you work as Director to Lands, you
to Mr. Keni here?
Knight: Yes, that is correct.
Penikett: Are there ever occasions of conflict there?
Knight: No, it has been a very happy marriage so. far.
Penikett: Since you. in essence, represent both partners in

the marriage. Mr. Brewster?
Mr. Brewster: On to page 26 now, on recommendation one:

‘‘Year end planning should commence prior to the year end and
standardized procedures and pro-forma working papers should be
developed to ensure the timely preparation of complete and reliable

F? financial statements’’. The Corporation’s comments are: “Every
attempt will be made to close the year end in a timely and orderly
fashion for 1984-85. Implementation of standardized procedures

U “ Could you explain those last three words?
Mr. Anderson: The implementation of standardized procedures

would be regular accounting type functions that should occur on a
monthly basis. At year-end. it would basically occur for the last
period of the year. Standardized procedure, for example, could be a

L bank reconciliation to ensure that your cash position is accurate;
therefore, you would do that standard procedure all during the year.
At the end of the year, for the last period, you would do it.

[ Another procedure would be reconciling your accounts receivable

L or accounts payable sub-ledgers hack to your general ledger control
account, and so on and so forth. Is that the type of thing you are
looking for?

Mr. Brewster: t will go on to page 27, recommendation one:
“The Corporation should establish a system to ensure that claims
on CMHC are prepared and submitted on a quarterly basis as agreed
to by CMHC”.

[1 The corporation’s comments are: ‘‘A system will be established

(J so that claims on CMHC are prepared and submitted on a quarterly
basis for the fiscal year 1985-86’’.

What date would you expect this to come into effect?
Ms Zatorski: It would come into effect with the first claim of

the 1985-86 year. which will be placed on CMHC the first week of
March. We claim on actuals for the first two months, January and
February, and we estimate for the month of March. So at the

U
beginning of March, the first claim for 1985-86, will be forwarded,

Mr. Brewster: We will go to page 28. recommendation number
one: “The signature plate and signature stamp should be kept in the
safe in a tacked box under the control of a person independent of
the cheque issue process’’ -

The corporation’s comments are: ‘‘Signature plates arid stamps
are now being stored in a safe under the control of the director of
finance and administration Department of Community and Trans
portation Services who is independent of the cheque issue process”.
What date did this come into effect?

Mr. Anderson: This would have occurred approximately the
last week of January.

Mr. Brewster: Recommendation number three: ‘‘Cancelled
cheques should be voided but not destroyed”.

Corporation’s comments: “All cancelled cheques will now be
voided but not destroyed’’.

Does this mean that the corporation will account for all cheques
issued now?

Mr. Anderson: Yes. sir,
Mr. Penlkett: Could I just ask if anyone knows yet what

happened to cheques HA17925 to 7 and HA17960?
Mr. Anderson: No.
Mr. Penikett: Is there any prospect of finding out?
Mr. Anderson: I can certainly investigate it. yes.
Mr. Penlkett: It is noted by the Auditor General. t assume

there has been some curiousity about it before now.
:s Mr. Anderson: Depending on the series that these are within,

in which time they would have gone missing — ie. if it was the
beginning of last year — if they have not subsequently turned up
any place, if they have not come through the bank, if they have not
been found somewhere, then they are presumed to be currently lost.

Mr. Brewster: On recommendation number four: “A commit
ment control system should be established and maintained to control
expenditures’’. The Corporation’s comments were: ‘‘The Corpora
tion agrees that a commitment control system is worthwhile and
every attempt wilt be made to implement a commitment system in
the future’’. Has this been done io date, and if so, what date?

Mr. Anderson: No. sir. It has nut been done and it will be
some time before it is in place.

Mr. Brewster: When you mean some time, is that six months.
years. or . .7

Mr. Koken: The computerized system is about one year away.
A manual commitment control can be implemented shortly after
April I of this year.

Mr. Brewster; Recommendation number five: “Procedure
should be established to ensure compliance with the contract
bylaw’’. The Corporation’s comments are: ‘‘Procedures are now
being developed to ensure compliance with the contract bylaw’’.
Could you indicate what date in 1985-86, or when this will be
completed?

Mr. Koken: We witl commence complying with the bylaw
almost immediately. With the appointment of the General Manager
in place. contracts and commitments will now go through the
financial section of the department, so we will have some control
there.

Mr. Penikett: Will you permit me a supplementary, Mr.
Brewster?

Mr. Brewster: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: In reference to the final sentence in the

paragraph. describing purchasing function deficiencies, “a contract
exceeding $18,000 was executed without public tender, contrary to
section 13(4). which requries contracts over $10,000 to be the
subject of public tender’’. To whom was that contract issued, for
what and on whose authority?

Mr. Kent: I do not have that information but perhaps someone
else has it.

Mr. Penikett: Can it be obtained readily? We have a commit
ment that that information will be obtained.

Mr. Brewster: On page 29, recommendation six: ‘‘The prog
ram administrator should ensure that rental revenues collected by
housing associations are remitted on a timely basis and reconciled
with their remittance’’. The Corporation’s comments were: ‘‘Proce
dures are being developed to ensure that rental revenues collected
by the local associations are remitted on a timely basis for
subsequent reconciliation on a scheduled basis’’. Has this been
done, and developed yet, and if so, what date?

Mr. Anderson: We are in the process of doing this. What we
have done in terms of procedures, is to put in place a one-write
system for each of the local housing managers in Mayo and
Dawson. et cetera, to use, This system has already been put in
place. This is a new system, and this will help ensure the timely
remittance of funds, and also enable us to more easily go back and
reconcile receipt of funds. In addition to this, we are also receiving
from the various associations a copy of their monthly bank
statement. to enable us to go back and reconcile what they are
putting into the bank with what they are reporting to us.

In terms of further development, there is perhaps some further
refinement to the one-write system to make it more easy for these
various people to use, and we also are looking at a procedure
whereby’ we can have direct access to the bank accounts, which we
do not have now, and also these bank accounts would be set up as
straight transfer accounts. ie. any money that is put in these
accounts is directly transferred to the Corporation’s account in
Whitehorse, as opposed to cheques being written on the accounts.

Mr. Brewster: Do you feel comfortable with the system as it is
progressing along?

Mr. Anderson: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Mr. Ashley, supplementary?
Mr. Ashley: Due to a problem that has cropped up in Yukon
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Housing, which happened in Dawson — I read about it in the
newspaper — it looked like controls were not in place in Yukon
Housing to find out when something is going wrong in that
manager’s control. Have there been audits since Lhen put in place.
or a system of auditing, to find out how many people are living in
units, as compared to what will also fit in with this one-write
system, to check that out? Do you do any audits of that type?

Mr. Knight: The situation that Mr. Ashley refers to is a
situation which is under criminal investigation now’. I believe, is
that correct?

Mr. Ashley:
Mr. Knight:

really anything
what happened.

Mr. Ashley: Actually what I am asking is. is there a system of
auditing the number of the people thai are in the houses, or is only
thai manager the person who knows how many houses are filled?

Mr. Knight: The Corporation in Whitehorse has thai informa
tion.

Mr. Ashley: So you do audits. Your person goes around and
does a check to see how many people are in the units, compared to
how many are being written down in your one-write system? That
system sounds much improved from what it was. I am happy about
that. But I still wani to make sure thai for the people ihat are in the
units. ihat there is a control basis there as well.

Mr. Knight: That particutar question I will have to take under
advisement and check with the program administraior. I could do
that for you, if you wish.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Anderson, did you have anything to add
about the particular audit part of the question Mr. Ashley asked?

Mr. Anderson: Them is not currently in place a financial audii
of the various housing associations. Thai would be something that
could potentially be done.

Mr. Brewster: We will go now to page 30. recommendation
one: ‘‘The Corporation should review the existing draft manual to
see that it deals adequately with all policies and procedures’S. The
Corporation’s comments are: ‘‘It is the intention of the Corporaiion
to review the existing drafi manual wiih a view to identifying any
inadequacies with respect to policy and procedure’’. Whai date will
this review be completed?

Mr. Penlkett: Ms Zaiorski?
Ms Zatorski: 1985.

11 Mr. Brewster: Recommendation three was: ‘‘The development
of the missing policies and procedures should be closely moni
tored’’. The Corporation comments: ‘‘This will be monitored by the
Director of Finance and Administration, Departmeni of Community
and Transportation Services’’, Does the Corporation expect to have
this policy and procedure in 1985-86?

Ms Zatorski: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Just going back, Mr. Knight. to your two hats,

as General Manager of the Housing Corporation, I note ihai the
Housing Corporation Ordinance section 6 says the Board of the
Corporation shall employ such employees as it considers necessary,
and fix salaries or remuneration of employees, et cetera. Could I
ask you: is your salary expenditure split between the departmeni
and the Housing Corporation?

Mr. Knight: That is correct?
Mr. Penikett: How about the services provided by Government

Services? Does Government Services bill for maintenance services
provided to the Corporation?

Mr. Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: How about accounting services provided by

Community and Transportation Services?
Mr. Knight: That is also an administrative charge to the

Corporation.
Mr. Peniketi: Could you give me some idea as to what the cost

of these services is?
Mr. Knight: I really could not. I do not have any idea at this

point in time.
Mr. Penikett: Would it be possible to report to us on that, in

simple terms, not in great detail?
Mr. Kent: These will be based on actual cost, with respect to

maintenance, or of housing units, or of construction of housing
units, depending on how extensive the housing maintenance
program is or how many units we construct, II will vary.

Mr. Penikett: So the Corporation is being hilled for these
services by the other agencies then?

Mr. Kent: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: Does that also happen in terms of the salary item

on some of those things, or is that just split right now, as a budget
item?

Mr. Kent: No, it is based on an actual cost.
Mr. Penikett: Based on an actual cost?
Mr. Kent: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: On the time you devote to the Corporation? Does

anybody else have any questions on that?
Mr. Falle: Does the Yukon Housing Corporation have to have

the maintenance done by Government Services, or are they at large
to bc able to hire contractors to do the work?

Mr. Kent: The work will be undertaken by the Department of
Government Services, but whether they choose to do that work with
their own forces., or through contracts with the private sector, that is
their concern.

Mr. Falle: I
like cutting the
whatever. This
understand?

am referring to general maintenance of the house,
lawns, and making sure they are painted, and

is through Government Services, is that what I

Mr. Kent: That is correct.
Mr. Ashley: lust to get at the Audior’s comments here dealing

with this mini-computer. I would just like to find out, if that is still
being used, or has that been totally taken out of the system now, or
what has happened?

Mr. Anderson: It is still in use.
Mr. Ashley: It is being used and a major asset to the

Corporation, because of the programs involved in it?
Mr. Anderson: Mr. Knight may have the numbers, but if we use

the manual system as opposed to the computer system, we would need
four, five or six additional man years. So it is efficient in that sense.

Mr. Penikctt: It is a major asset, or a mini asset?
Mr. Kent: There may have been some growing pains that have

been outlined in the Auditor’s report, but I think in terms of its overall
effectiveness it is a good tool.

Mr. Brewster: We will go on to the letter from the Department of
Community and Transportation Services, file number 2842-31. page
four, clause number 10.

Mr. Penikett: In view of the time, Mr. Brewster, I think we
would be better to continue this tomorrow morning. We have only one
minute to go. We would love to hear you read and I think we will do
that first thing tomorrow morning.

Mr. Byblow: On the last subject regarding maintenance of Yukon
Housing units, if I understood Mr. Knight correctly, he said the
government services had to, or could be, used for the maintenance
contracts?

Mr. Knight: That is their function at the present time.
As Mr. Kent pointed out, they are charged with the responsibility for

selecting the most effective vehicle to deliver that maintenance ser
vice.

Mr. Byhlow: Can the Yukon Housing Corporation, through its
own personnel and staff, assign contracts for maintenance of Yukon
Housing units, or do they have to go through government services?

Mr. Kent: At the present time, by policy, it has to go through
government services.

Mr. Penlkett: Mr Kent, can you and your officials perhaps spare
us an hour tomorrow morning?

Mr. Kent: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: We will look forward to seeing you back again in

the morning at 9:30 am.
The Committee stands adjourned into executive session now,

The Committee adjourned at 11:30 am.

The sentence has already been handed out.
The investigation did not indicate that there was

that the Corporation could have done to prevent
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n ‘ Mr. Penlkctt: I would like to welcome back, this morning. this

marvellous collection of people from Community and Transpona
U tion Services. I see we have Mr. Cormie with us this morning, and

not Mr. Kent.
Mr. Kent will be here.
Let me briefly review what we hope to be doing. I will explain ii

t to the witnesses who will be pursuing each of these lines of
enquiry. You might, at the outset, if there is some additional

r information that you have to volunteer, or maybe in document
form, indicate that to us.

L We have a number of items we have flagged from the testimony
yesterday. We have some questions about the Yukon Housing

U
Corporation and the role of the board, board policy versus
government policy and the nature of some of the contracting nut,
which Mr. Falle will be pursuing.

We have a couple of questions about the dust palliatives revolving
fund, both of which we indicated to you yesterday. One was about
the authority of the over-expenditure. We asked that that he

Li documented. The other question was about the quantity of sodium
chloride. I think that was a question on which we gave notice.

U
Mr. Byblow has a couple of quick questions about the licence

plates inventory. I have a couple of questions about the land sales
question that we were talking about yesterday: the land develop
ment inventory costs and the interest calculations.

Mr. Ashley has one more question about the charge-backs.

Because we do not have much time, I hope that will indicate the
kinds of things we want to cover.

Mr. Kent: I would like to start off by answering those
questions referred to.

The authority for the expenditure on calcium chloride was
aulhorized by the minister of the day.

Mr. Peniketi: And you will table that document then?
Mr. Kent: Do you want to do that right now?
Mr. Penikett: Yes. Could we table that document now, please.
Mr. Kent: The expenditures on sodium chloride in 1983 was

S 149.625.
On the question with respect to who approves the design and

fl colour et cetera of licence plates, that is a ministerial decision.
A question was asked as to what precise date the finance and

administrative duties of the Housing Corporation were transferred io
the centralized administrative unit of the new department. The date
was December 12th, 1984.

L There was a question as to what happened to the two missing
cheques of the Housing Corporation. They were inadvertently
destroyed by an employee of the Housing Corporation.

U Another question that was asked was about a contract for $18,000
that was placed without tendering by the Housing Corporation, and
you inquired as to what that was. You may recall that 1% months
ago, or so. there was a contamination of the well in Beaver Creek
on account of calcium chloride contamination from highways. The
contract was for the drilling of a new well, and there was some
urgency involved in dealing with this contamination problem,
especially as it occurred around September and winter was coming.

The

contract was awarded. That was the contract.
ni Mr. Penlkett: Mr. Brewster may have a question or two about
that, but we will wait for that.

Mr. Kent; That is all I recall.

“9 Mr. Penikett: Let me go immediately to the follow-up ques
(ions chat Mr. Falle has concerning the Yukon Housing Corpora
tion.

Mr. Falle: Does the corporation have its own maintenance
staff? I am more concerned about the year we are dealing with. I
want to know, at that particular time, did the corporation have a
staff changing light bulbs, painting, or whatever they have to do to
maintain the buildings. I wanted to know if they had their own
people to do it, or did they have the people [mm Government
Services do it?

Mr. Kent: At that time, the majority of the maintenance work,
say 95 percent, was contracted out to the private sector.

Mr. Falle: At that time?
Mr. Kent: Yes, sir.
Mr. Falle: Of course, the obvious question is: what is

happening now?
Mr. Kent: To my understanding that is still the case. Basically,

what happens is, the maintenance contracts
Mr. Falle: If 90 percent of the jobs now are being contracted

out to the private sector, does the board have any authority to give
coniracts out, or is it the manager?

Mr. Kent: At that time?
Mr. Falle: Yes.
Mr. Kent: At that time, the maintenance contracts were

awarded by the Housing Corporation.
Mr. Penikett: But such contracts are awarded by Government

Services now?
Mr. Kent:
Mr. Falle:
Mr. Kent: Yes.
Mr. Byblow: Does that apply to routine maintenance as well as

the special projects?
Mr. Kent: It applies to construction, so called scheduled

maintenance, and emergency repairs, which are the three categor
ies. The answer is yes.

Mr. Byblow: With respect to emergency maintenance, where
you have to act either within the hour or within the day, what is the
policy?

Mr. Kent: The policy is that the local housing manager in any
community phones up the maintenance contractor and says ‘‘Get
over there right now and fix that leak”.

Mr. Byblow: So then, within communities contracts are estab
lished in somewhat of an open-ended fashion for a year?

Mr. Kent: That was always the case, sir. It is impossible to
anticipate the amount and quantily of emergency repairs that will
occur in any place or any year. Basically, you have a local
contractor under retainer with a ceiling and charge-out rates for
various services.

Mr. Penikett: There is a ceiling, so there is a budgeted amount
in order to maintain some control?

Mr. Kent: That is correct, sir.
Mr. Falle: Does the Corporation have any authority for buying

local?
Mr. Kent: What type of buying?
Mr. Falle: For instance, if a furnace goes out in one of these

houses, can the local manager buy the furnace locally? If there is
one available in Dawson City at that time, do they have the
authority to do that?

Mr. Kent: No, sir, that is a Government Services function
now. They make these purchases and acquisitions in terms of the
department’s policies.

Mr. Ashley: Could you tell me what role
playing now with the Corporation being
government much more than what it was?

Mr. Kent: The role of the Corporation
Mr. Ashley: The Board of Directors, I mean.
Mr. Kent: The role of the Board of Directors is absolutely

identical to what it has been for the last number of years, with two
exceptions: maintenance and administrative finance services are
performed by the Department of Community and Transportation
Services, with respect to administration, and Government Services,
with respect to maintenance.

Mr. Ashley: And the Board has given those powers to them?
Mr. Kent: That is correct.
Mr. Ashley: I believe that in legislation the Board has the

control of that.
Mr. Kent: That is correct.
Mr. Ashley: Unless they delegate it out.
Mr. Kent: That is right.
Mr. Penikett: Presumably, though, the government is making

certain policies in respect to the Housing Corporation. Are those
transmitted to the Board so they can be transmitted to the General
Manager, or how is the government policy conveyed?

Mr. Kent: In exactly the same manner as it has been conveyed
for the last number of years, sir. What we are saying is is that there
is no change. But you may want to know how this situation works.

Mr. Penikett: Whenever, even an extremely competent public

That is correct.
That is due to the reorganization?

the board is actually
integrated with the
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servant like Mr. Knight has two masters, there can be occasional
difficulties if they occasionally have different ideas about which
direction one should move. That is even possible, presumably, in a
marriage, with two closely allied masters. You have the Corpora-
lion and you have the government policy. It is at least conceivable
in my imagination that they might have a different view of things
from time to time. One is curious as to which would prevail, or
whether there is in fact a line of command, if you like: minister,
board, general manager.

Mr. Kent: I would be interested in Mr. Knight’s reply lo Ihat
question.

Mr. Penikett: So would I.
Mr. Knight: The board of direciors of the Housing Corporation

are the policy iniliators with respect to housing in the territory. Any
policy initiatives that are departmenially initialed, or, I would
assume, initiated from the minister, would be subject to review by
the board of directors of the Housing Corporation bcforc any
implementation measures were taken.

Mr. Penikett: You are saying thai they are not policy makers
anymore; the minister is the policy maker? They are performing a
review function?

Mr. Knight: No. Obviously, they still have a major role to
play, the same role they have played historically with respect to
policy initiatives that orginated with the board of directors. i.e. the
Housing Corporation.

We have some good talent on the board of directors, and they are
very involved in terms of the new policy initiatives and policy
renovations. et cetera.

Mr. Pcnikctt: Has there, in your experience as general
manager, been a case where the minister’s policy has contlicted
with the board’s policy?

Mr Knight: No.
Mr. Penikelt: Do you, as manager, have any idea how you

would perform in the situation of such a conflict, perhaps, in being
the fulcrum of it?

Mr. Knight: If that sort of situation should occur. I would
think that negotiations and some compromise would effectively give
us an amswer.

Mr. Penlkett: The key question, to me, is whether the minister
would be communicating with the board in that case, or whether
you would be the person who would be the mediator, or the
arbitrator?

Mr. Knight: I would think that I would apply whatever talent I
have to its extent, and then, if I was unsuccessful in resolving any
conflict, there may be some direct dialogue.

Mr. Peniketi: It is an interesting subject, but perhaps we
should not pusue it this morning.

Mr. Brewster: I would like to go to your letter, rile 2822-3 I.
Mr. Penikett: Mr. Brewster, could we just finish up the

flagged items, then we will get on to the that one.
Mr. Brewster: I will be able to brinp Beaver Creek up in my

own programs.
Mr. Penlkett: Yes. I just want to finish up these Ragged items.
Mr. Byblow: What is the current status of the infamous

chemicals inventory?
Mr. Kent: I cannot answer that question.
Does anyone here have any information on that?
Mr. Byblow: Could you provide to the committee what amount

of the inventory has heen disposed of, and what is currently in
storage?

Mr. Kent: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: While we are on that subject, it might be

interesting to know, given the relationship with Government
Services, if there has been a charge for warehousing that material
from Government Services to the corporation?

Mn Pcnikett: While we are finding out the other information,
it might be interesting to document that.

Mr Kent: The first question was how much calcium is in
storage right now?

Mr. Penlkett: No, furnace cleaning chemicals. The question is,
I understand, that it was being warehoused in a Government
Services facility. The question is whether there was a charge-out to

the Housing Corporation for that warehousing.
Mr. Falle: I just wanted to have a few things clarified in my

mind, Mr. Kent. The question that I asked was: did the Corporation
have its own maintenance staff? You said 99 percent of the work
was being contracted out. But the question is, do they have their
own staff, ie. to change a light bulb, to do this or that, small minor
maintenance? Do they have their own staff to do that?

Mn Kent: Mr. Knight.
Mr. Knight: At the present time the Housing Corporation has a

staff employee who designs the schedules for maintenance, and who
provides liaison with Government Services to ensure that the work
is done in a timely and expeditious fashion. As for specific
maintenance employees of the Housing Corporation, at the present
time there are none.

Mr. Falle: Were there any before the re-organization?
Mr. Knight: Yes.
Mr. Falle: There was a maintenace person assigned to the

Yukon Housing Corporation before the re-organization?
Mr. Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Kent: Maybe I can clarify that a little. There were two

employees of the Housing Corporation whose jobs were not to
change the light bulb so much, but to coordinate and oversee all the
contractors, to make sure they did their work properly. To the
extent the guy is up at the site, he might help out or lend a hand or
something. Or have I confused you further, sir?

Mr. Falle: No. you have not confused me. lam still looking for
the person that actually does the physical work on the homes. My
answer was that 99 percent of it was contracted out, but still there is
a certain amount of work that has to be done, or should be done,
and I want to know’ whether or not that work is being done by
Government Services or an employee of the Housing Corporation.
and I am getting skirted around on this.

Mr. Kent: It is being done by Government Services.
Mr. Falle: It is. Do you think there is any chance in the future

that the Housing Corporation would he given a person to do this
work, or is it more economical to go through Government Services?

Mr. Kent: Under the present policy, it is extremely unlikely. I
cannot see it, because the policy is that all maintenance work shall
be contracted to the Department of Government Services, and I
believe the bulk of that work is tendered out to the private sector by
Government Services.

Mr. Falle: Does this apply to a Crown corporation like the
Yukon Housing Corporation?
n Mr. Falle: I understand that if it is community and public
service. or any other department where there is highways, that that
rule does apply. that all maintenance work has to go through
Government Services. This is an independent housing corporation
board. I am wondering if the same rules apply?

Mr. Kent: I think the Housing Corporation is unique in that
regard with the transition to Government Services. I believe
education, for example, has some of its own maintenance staff; I
am not sure.

Maybe I should clarify that. The Housing Corporation does none
of its maintenance work.

Mr. Falle: I would like to know if the corporation could be
given authority to do its own local contracting?

Mr. Kent: Only if there was a change in policy direction from
the government.

Mr. Ashley: Unless there is a different policy direction given
by the board?

Mr. Kent: No, by the government.
Mr. Ashley: The board has to delegate that responsibility,

according to legislation. So it would actually be a policy direction
given by the board to the general manager and the general manager
would have to negotiate that with the government, would he not?

Mr. Kent: I think it would be negotiations, regardless of what
the legislation says, directly between the minister and the board of
directors.

Mr. Penikctt: Perhaps it would be a strongly worded sugges
tion from the minister to the board, or something like that.

Mr. Kent: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Let me move on to the question of dust again.
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n Mr. Kent. you talked about $149,000 as the quantity of sodium
chloride used. We are still in the early stages of use of that salt for
winter purposes. There is a different control method being used for
the calcium chloride. I assume that part of the reason for having a

fl
revolving fund on the calcium chloride is not only (he question of
inventory’ control but the fact that its use is spread over the year end
so you want to be able to not have to vote new money in order to
keep the inventory.

r What kind of quantities of sodium chloride do you anticipate? Do
you see an increased use of that salt, and do you see any problems
in terms of control of the inventory down the line?

Mr. Koken: The quantities you are talking about are roughly
600 tonnes. At this time, we do not foresee an increase in the use of

sodium chloride.

Li Mr. Penlkett: So you do not anticipate any necessary new
measures in terms of the control of the inventories?

Mr. Koken: No, they would be very difficult to control in any
case, because the stocks are used up in emergencies.

Mr. Penikett: And you do not have the same kind of supply or
transportion problems you do with the calcium chloride?

Mr. Koken: That is correct.
Mr. Peniketi: Let me move then immediately to motor vehicle

licensing. Mr. Byblow has a couple of quick questions here.
Mr. Byblow: We established yesterday, through the recom

mendations of the Auditor General under item 10 on page 14 of the
report, that a tighter control will exist now on the unissued plates
and decals. We also noted and confirmed this morning that a
complete new issue of the plates was authorized under ministerial
direction, and these are now’ going into circulation. What number of
old plates are left over, and what is happening to them?

Mr. Kent: The old plates are still available for sale and valid
until the end of March. So I do not think we have a precise
inventory of what is left over yet. In 1981. the surplus plates were
turned over to the Macbride Museum. I imagine we would do
something similar to that again.

Mr. Byblow: Was there any recovery on the old plates when
they were turned over to the museum?

Mr. Kent: Did we sell them to MacBride Museum?
Mr. Byblow: Yes.
Mr. Kent: I believe they were donated.
Mr. Byblow: Do you have any way of estimating the number of

old plates that will be left over?
Mr. Koken: We could find out fairly fast, but we do not know

at this moment.
Mr. Byblow: Given that an agency, such as YVA and various

tourist establishments who now sell the souvenir issue of plates,
would it be reasonable to dispose of them and recover some revenue
in such a fashion?

Mr. Kent: I think the decision as to how’ to dispose of any
surplus plates, if there are any. I would leave with the minister.

Mr. Penikett: If I can, I go back to the question we were
talking about yesterday. Mr. Knight, on the land inventory
development costs. Before I get to that though, just to try and
improve slightly my understanding of the Hillcrest sale, can I
re-confirm that you talked about there being negotiations, or an
agreement, with Indian Affairs to purchase 557 McIntyre-Hillcrest
lots for the 90 some families in the Kwanlin Dun Band. That is a
correct understanding?

Mr. Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: So, given what we were talking about yesterday

about the prices of those lots. Indian Affairs has a contingent
liability for something in excess of $5 million, perhaps something
up around $7 million, in respect to that agreement?

Mr. Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: In which case the YTG has a contingent

receivable of a similar amount, and that will be stated in the
accounts?

Mr. Knight: Once the agreement is concluded. The final details
with respect to a schedule of payments or schedule of recoveries to
the government has not been firmed up yet. Of course, it will be
shown as recoveries.

Mr. Penikett: Let me get back to the administrative question,

which is a little tougher for me to understand, When we were
talking yesterday. I believe you explained quite well the interest
charges we talked about, would only be applied April 1st, 1985, to
finished land.

Mr. Knight: No, that is not correct, Mr. Chairman. We began
applying interest costs to finished inventory, effective April 1st,
1983. and those carrying costs have been applied to finished land
inventory semi-annually since then.

Mr. Penikett: Let me try to explain my confusion. Perhaps you
can help me out. The land we are talking about in Hillcrest, for
example. has been in the bank since what. 1977 or 1978. I
understand that an interest charge will only be applied to it at the
point it becomes finished.

Mr. Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Kent: It is not applied to land, even though it is in fact

sold, such as the seven lots we talked about now; not even a portion
of interest is applied?

Mr. Knight: The one point I want to make is that we will be
applying carrying costs to developments in progress, such as the
Hillcrest-Mcintyre subdivision, and any other developments we
have that are not completed and ready for public sale beginning
April I, 1985. If the negotiations are not concluded and the sale not
completed prior to that, interest carrying costs on that particular
development will begin to accrue April I, 1985,

Mr. Penikett: And you will be collecting, even in respect to
those seven lots, if you do not have a final agreement?

Mr. Knight: I would say that, certainly, the policy direction is
to begin to apply carving costs to work in progress. If the deal
cannot be concluded prior to that date, that is something that we are
going to have negotiate with the federal government.

Mr. Penikett: Let us not talk about those seven lots, because
that is a particular case. Let us talk about April I of this year, at
any point from now on, you could, from a bookkeeping point of
view, do a calculation of the interest on any one of those particular
lots, or group of lots, and know what that charge would be?

Mr. Knight: That is right.
Mr. Peniketi: So that would be shown as part of the asset?
Mr. Knight: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: I think I understand that a little better now,

Anyone else still confused? I seem to be the slowest member of the
committee on this subject.

Let us move to a question that Mr. Ashley has about the
charge-backs. I think it is a clarification to an answer Mr. Koken
gave yesterday.

Mr. Ashley: Yes, it is on the road equipment replacement fund
account. I would like you to clarify whether you meant one week
would do the job under the new system that you hope to put in, or
whether it would take five weeks to do the internal journal entries?

Mr. Koken: There are no internal journal entries, The period of
time would be greatly reduced under the new system we are
proposing.

Mr. Ashley: I will read the answer back to you to get some
clarification on it. You stated, on page 1.5 of February 12 Public
Accounts Committee record, ‘‘1 would think this depends upon the
proposals that will be made by the consultant’’. Mr. Penikett had
asked the question here: ‘‘Do you think you might be able to reduce
it down to four weeks, three weeks, two weeks. What is the scale of
improvement you hope to achieve with these new processess?’’

You advised us. ‘1 would like to say it is more in the one week
range.’’

Were you meaning that it is going to Lake one week to do the job
now’, or five weeks to do the job?

That is correct, That is what I meant, yes.
Which?
It would be less time under the new system.
One week less.
That is approximate.

One week less or five weeks less?
No, it would take place within one week,

We will move immediately to Mr. Brewster,
go back to the Housing Corporation.

I have just a few questions and they all concern

Mr. Koken:
Mr. Ashley:
Mr. Koken:
Mr. Ashley:
Mr. Koken:
Mr. Penikett:
Mr. Koken:
Mr. Penikett:

who is going to
Mr. Brewster:
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my favourite little community of Beaver Creek, which always
seems to be picked on. I do not know why this is, but everyone
picks on it.

In Beaver Creek right now, you have four houses that you are
heating, maintaining and have done major repairs in, yet they are
completely unoccupied. What is your intention for these buildings?
H Mr. Knight: We -are actively trying to market them, for one
thing. We do not have much of a clientele these days in Heaver
Creek for any of the Housing Corporation’s programs. One of the
problems that has arisen, one of the things that the community has
said, is that the rents we have tagged on those units are high, and
they do not reflect what the market conditions are. We have
undertaken to review the market rents that we have established on
those four units, to bring them into line with what the community
experience is, and what the market experience is in the community.
Unfortunately we have had some problems getting independent
appraisal people into the community, in the last little while,
because there are not that many qualified appraisers in Whitehorse.
Once that is done, we are (a) reviewing the rent structure presently
being charged, and Ib) actively tn’ing to market the units.

Mr. Brewster: On thi.c contract that was not tendered out for
$18,000. does this include the cost of re-installing hot water
heaters? As I understand it, each water heater had to go because of
calcium chloride in them, so you would be approximately buying
five or six new hot water heaters, et cetera?

Mr. Knight: I am not exactly sure, Mr. Brewster. but I assume
that it was probably covered. It is hard to say. It may not be
because it is two different types of activity. The contract for
re-drilling the well was to one particular company.

Mr. Penikett: Could you find out for us?
Mr. Brewster: Could you find out the actual total cost, because

you have a well drilled, you have a complete new water line that
was dug in frozen ground, and I believe all the hot water heaters
and a few other things had to be replaced because of calcium
chloride.

Now we come down to the interesting thing. The Department of
Public Highways, which was responsible for the pollution. there is
no doubt about that, the calcium chloride went there. Did the
Yukon Housing Corporation recover any money from the Depart
ment of Public Highways for the damage that they did to the town?

Mr. Knight: I am not aware of any recoveries. Mr. Brewster.
but we can look into it if you like. Do you know anything on that.
Kurt?

Mr. Anderson: An invoice has been raised by the Corporation
to the Department of Highways for recovery of costs in regards to
some of the damage within the homes, ie. - water heaters, but they
have not received payment yet.

Mr. Penikett: What is the size of that invoice? Can you tell us,
Mr. Anderson?

Mr. Anderson: No, I do not have that information. sir.
Mr. Penikett: Approximately?
Mr. Anderson: I can certainly find out.
Mr. Penikctt: Please do.
Mr. Penlkett: Okay, before we go to Mr. Byblow, who wants

to do some follow-up on project management procedures, can I ask
you, just to clarify an answer you gave just a moment ago. Mr.
Knight. in respect to marketing houses. We are aware of some
changes going on wiLh Yukon Housing Corporation. Are you trying
to sell much of your housing stock?

Mr. Knight: Any units which are deemed to be surplus to the
requirements of the Corporation, or inappropriate with respect to
the type of clientele that we have in the various communities, yes.

Mr. Penikelt: That is, surplus to the staff and the social
housing needs?

Mr. Knight: That is correct. Or inappropriate for social
housing needs. We are attempting to market to the private sector,
and have been successful over the last year in marketing somewhere
in the neighbourhood of a hundred units.

Mr. Penlkett: How many?
Mr. Knight: A hundred.
Mr. Penikett: Out of a total of?
Mr. Knight: Over five hundred.

Mr. Pcnikett: So, 20 per cent of your stock.
Mr. Byblow: Mr. Chairman, I want to ask a couple of

follow-up questions from our public accounts report on long-term
planning before project management.

I want to draw reference to a letter from the Department of
Community and Transportation Services to the clerk of the
committee dated January 21st, 1985, file number 2842-31. It is a
letter in response to the clerk regarding a number of concerns that
the committee had in previous hearings when highways appeared
before the committee. Do you have that letter, Mr. Kent?

Mr. Kent: Yes, sir,
This is the letter of January 21 to Missy from me. Is that what

you are referring to?
Mr. Byblow: Yes.
Mr. Kent: And that is in response to a letter of March 13, 1984

to Larry Blackman from Missy.
Mr. Bybtow: From the clerk.
Given thai you state in the first main paragraph of the response

that your department has established a 20 year program of capita)
works and roads, my first question is to ask: in what form does that
program exist? Is it in writing? Is it in a chart form, such as a
spread sheet? Does it contain today’s projections of costs, for
example. fiftecn years from now? Could you elaborate on the form
and the detail of the 20 ycar program?

Mr. Koken: It is in the form of a spread sheet. It shows
proposed works from engineering to final paving or dust control
measures for various sections of the numbered highway system. It
does not give dollar amounts.

What we have here is the skeleton of a 20 year plan. We looked
at a number of criteria. The highways are built to geometric design
standards, and structural standards, of course — geometric meaning
the widths, the shoulders, et cetera — and, of course, the surface
type. That is what the roads are built to: mainly geometric and
structural standards.

What triggers the road to be reconstructed is the degree of
non-conformity to these geometric standards, which are established
based on amended RTAC. or Roads and Transportation Association
of Caada, standards for the three classes of roads we have in the
Yukon Territory. What triggers the reconstruction is the degree of
non-conformity to geometric standards, the short-fall in structural
standards, the non-conformity to the surface type; the projected
traffic density on the road; the accident frequency; maintenance
costs; estimated capital costs, and the capacity. The last item.
capacity, is just thrown in there because we do not think this will
apply to the Yukon for a long time to come, except perhaps the
Two Mile Hill. Those are what trigger reconstruction.

Now we will look at the program. What I first described when I
talked about geometric and structural standards of highways, was
design standards. Perhaps a better word is “desirable’’ standards,
because the design standards may not necessarily always be met.
i.e.. if you go around a sharp corner where there is a lot of rock,
the costs to come up to the design standard would be prohibitive,
but you are always aiming at your design standard.

Below the design standard, which is the highest, is a so-called
‘‘tolerable standard’’. i.e., if a road falls below the tolerable
standard, then, eventually. I presume, it has to be closed. All roads
in Yukon should be between the tolerable standard and the design
standard, in a fashion. We are looking a re-building program of 20
years, which is general in Canada. So, we are looking at a road,
when it is completed at design standard, slowly over 20 years going
down to a tolerable standard and to be rebuilt back up. So there is a
constant degrading of roads and upgrading of roads.

The tolerable standard is judgmental. If funds are not available,
the tolerable standard can be reduced. Mind you, there is one point
at which it becomes so untolerable that you either have to close the
road or it becomes dangerous.

This is basically what we are talking about; the roads being
between those two lines. Keeping that in mind, we went into our
numbered highway system, and section by section of this system
was then evaluated.
,: There were a number of headings, and we established spread
sheets for that, too.
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U
Mr. Byblow: I think I understand what you are trying to say.
though it is an interesting way to put it, as an explanation. Now,
you indicate in the letter in question that the entire 20 year program
is built around existing roads, and there is no contingency or there

fl
is no portion of that program that permits or allows fnr new road
construction in areas that arc not currently served by roads. I want
to understand what your program would do if there was an
identified need or demand for the creation of a new road. Let us
assume, for an example, that there is a new road desireable between
Cannacks and Haines Junction. What do you do? How does that fit

U into the 20 year plan?
Mr. Koken: We cannot plan for something we do not know,

and I think that when it comes up we will have to deal with it.
When it comes up we will have to ask for extra funding. We have

L not planned for that sort of thing.
Mr. Penikett: Could I ask you a quick question, Mr. Koken? If

the estimated cost is significantly different from the allocated funds,
does that mean the roads will eventually decline to the point where
they are unacceptable?

Mr. Koken: I would like to take that question under advise.
ment, Mr. Chairman.

U Mr. Byblow: I have no further questions on highways. Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. Penlkett: Why do you not move immediately then to. in
view of the short time, into the queslion of the public managemeni

JJ procedures, Mr. Byblow?
Mr. Byblow: Okay. Yes. I will direct these to Mr. Kent.
Mr. Penikett: Just before we do that. Mr. Koken, was it your

intention to table a copy of that spreadsheet with us?
t, Mr. Kent: It is the minister’s dispensation to provide that to
you.

Mr. Peniketi: I do not know how much it would mean to us but
it might be interesting.r Mr. Byblow: I am drawing reference to a letter to the deputy
minister of the Legislative Assembly Office, marked to the attention
of Missy Follwell. It is a response to the Public Accounts
Committee presented by Mr. Fingland. To put my question in

[‘ perspective, the Municipal Affairs branch of your department has

[) developed a manual for project management procedures. That is
intended for all the municipal and lands projects, from what I
understand. It is attached to the letter I drew reference to and it

L appears to be a fairly useful and worthwhile document.
Al the same time, the Auditor General’s office has undertaken a

review of (he project management procedures of Government
Services. A manual is 10 be completed on those procedures by April

O I of this year, I believe. What coordination has taken place to
dovetail those procedures that are taking place through Government
Services with the ones that your community affairs branch has
prepared?

— Mr. Kent: In preparing this document, we used preliminary
drafts of procedures that Government Services is considering using,

U so we used that preliminary information which, I guess, has not
been finalized, as an input and a reference and a check in terms of
the kinds of procedures we adopted.

Mr. Byblow: To your knowledge, is the manual being prepared
-J by the Government Services branch identical or similar to your

manual? What will happen if the Government Services manual has
-

identified some different procedures under project management?
Mr. Kent: , Because of the nature of the work that Government

J Services does, which is primarily in building construction, and the
nature of land development, water and sewer, I anticipate thai there
will be differences.

Mr. Byblow: Could you perhaps express an opinion. Should
not project management procedures be the same for all branches of
government in all project undertakings?

.—
Mr. Kent: I might refer that question to Mr. Cormie.
Mr. Cormie: In the broad characterization of project manage

J ment, yes, they are the same, The manual that I have referred to in
the preparation of procedures for our department, the Government

, Services manual, is similar to our manual. The basic break down of
what we are trying to do — the planning stages, the preliminary

J design stages, the design stages, the construction stages — are all

very similar. The actual detail in our manual is directed more to the
kind of projects we are looking at in land development, water and
sewer projects, whereas theirs is directed in much greater detail to a
building project.

Mr. Kent: I might give you an example. Many of our projects
require a greal deal of community involvement, such as water and
sewer systems for a community, so in these procedures you will
notice a fair level of consultation and input at the community level.
I do not think you would find as greal an emphasis on that in
Government Services as you would in these guidelines.

Mr. Byblow: Are you saying that your manual will stand even
Ihough Government Services may change?

Mr. Kent: That is our intention. sir, yes.
Mr. Byblow: Why does yours not apply to road construction

then. Mr. Kent, given that you have the managing authority in both
areas?

Mr. Kent: I guess it does not at the moment, sir. That is a good
question. and my intention will be to review these standards and
criteria with the Department of Highways to see if they should not
adopt them, or if (here is another need for them to be unique or
different because of the nature of the work they do.

Mr. Byblow: You indicated earlier that your project manage
ment procedures are clearly different in process than those for
Government Services, because they do projects of buildings, and
you do things with communities, One of your criteria in your
manual is a needs assessment, which involves the community. How
do you maintain accountability in that portion of the project
management procedures, in the sense of financial control?

Mr. Kent: You mean who ultimately determines whether there
is a need sufficient to do something?

Mr. Byblow: That question, plus how do you maintain control
over a community-initiated exercise?

Mr. Kent: The final assessment of need is determined by who
pays the bill, That is just the reality of life. In terms of a
community, if a community wishes to initiate a project and fund it
itself, that is entirely their business, and has nothing to do with us
whatsoever.

Mr. Byblow: Your needs assessment calls for the community
participation in identifying a project. Your department is peripheral
ly involved. You are involved in the project management. You are
authorizing money that the community may be spending. What is
your measure of control?

Mr. Kent: In some instances, where in the community which
does not have great expertise and resources, the project is actually
implemented by the department. In another instance, where the
community has some skill and expertise and can manage a project,
and it is decided that the project should proceed, an agreement is
entered into between the community and the department which
specifies the terms and conditions under which funding is made
available.

Mr. Byblow: I will examine that. One last question, Mr.
Chairman. You have established an agreement with municipal
entities for capital projects, and regulations affecting them that went
into effect in April of 1984. An Order-in-Council was passed
establishing that agreement. An Order-in-Council was passed in
April of 1984 governing regulations for those agreements. Has that
been renewed?

Mr. Kent: I am not sure that is the case, sir.
For what date?
Mr. Byblow: April 13.
Mr. Kent: That is entirely different. These are regulations

governing conditional and unconditional O&M grants. It has
nothing to do with capital. They are regulations pertaining to
subsidizing water and sewer systems, dwelling unit grants. that kind
of stuff. It has nothing to do with capital construction projects.

Mr. Byblow: So, they are applicable on a one-time basis.
Mr. Penikett: This is in terms of operating grants for municipa

lities; it has nothing to do with capital projects at all,
Mr. Kent: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: I think, Mr. Kent, that is all of your time that we

need to take. There may a couple of clarifying questions which we
may want to communicate by phone. There may be a couple of
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We looked at current traffic and projected traffic. I believe the
figure we used for projecting traffic into the future was two and a
half percent. That is what we used, Now, it is questionable.

As a matter of fact, at this point, perhaps I should interject and
say that a lot of the data upon which we built this 20 year plan is
very, very weak. We engaged, as we said on the second page of the
letter you have there, a technician whose job it is to build up the
data base. He is building up the data base.

We now have electronic counters and mechanical counters — we
are getting out of those, and are getting more and more into
electronic counters. We are getting into machines which will read
the results of the electronic counters — not only in which direction
the traffic goes, but what traffic ii is, i.e., is it truck traffic, et
cetera. He is building up an excellent data base. He is monitoring
the type of traffic, the orgination and destination. He is monitoring
traffic vehicle configurations, in conjunction with the weigh scales.

We are slowly building up a data base, but the plan we have right
now is built on a very weak data base. Nevertheless, we set up the
planning. We look at section after section of each highway. The
Klondike Highway was broken down into 10 sections, and then
each section was evaluated to current traffic, and to traffic loads to
1993 and 2003. Then we looked at the percentage of trucks that has
an impact of the existing surface type, and then we get into the
geometrics of the road. i.e., the width, the horizontal and vertical
curvature, the slopes, et cetera; how much are these sections
conforming to the geometries. We then look to the maintenance
costs which is another criterion, Of course, last but not least, the
accident frequency per 100,000 vehicle-kilometers,

We used an evaluation system here where we subjectively rated
highways from zero to 10, zero being totally unacceptable, and 10
where the road has just been constructed to geometric, structural
and surface standards. The degree of non-conformity is then
expressed in these. So. using these various formulae, and doing this
in this spread sheet fashion, we then arrived di which section of
wad had to be reconstructed.

We are fairly close. I think, to what we proposed for the next five
years. From five to 20 years, the information becomes less and less
accurate, but there is. indeed, a 20 year plan in effect right now and
the data base is still being added to. This is improved. We have the
skeleton; we have some meat on it, but it needs a lot of
improvement to be really useful.

Mr. Byblow; I appreciate that thorough answer, Mr. Koken.
Indeed, you do share your infinite knowledge with us.

If I understand what you have just described, it is a reconstruction
program for existing highways in the territory.

Mr. Koken: That is right.
Mr. Byblow: In that 20 year plan, you do not have the financial

requirements it would take to maintain that reconstruction program.
Is it not a logical extension of any program or plan to have the
financial requirements built into the program?

Mr. Koken: We ran through an exercise like that. I do not have
it with me right now, but we went through a pricing exercise. We
assigned prices for common excavation, paving, excavation work et
cetera.

Mr. Byblow: My question was more general, because I did not
understand from your explanation that a financial requirement or a
budgeting process was built into it, and I recognize that it is very
difficult to predict costs six years from now, or 12 years from now.
But certainly in any program, if it is a planning process, you must
have some rudimentary form of costs. Perhaps you could break the
answer down in the zero to five, and six to 20. What financial
estimates does your program have? What costs are also built into
this reconstruction program? I ask that with the intent to understand
what information the government may have to make decisions.

Mr. Koken: When we prepare our five year forecast, we go
into these spread sheets. We look at the sections of work that need
to be reconstructed. First there is engineering and then reconstruc
tion and then surfacing. We come up with these figures for year
one, year two, three, four and five, based on what we project has to
be done over five years. Needless to say, we never get what we
think we should be getting, because it is quite a large program. This
is what we aim for but do not necessarily get.

Mr. Byblow: So you have financial estimates for the first five
years’?

Mr. Koken: That is correct.
Mr. Byblow: Rut not the remaining IS?
Mr. Koken: No. I must hasten to say that there is one exercise

that perhaps will make you understand much better. One exercise
we did go through was, when all this was finished the way I
described it. section by section, there were great variations. If
everything fell exactly into place you would have years with $50
million, other years say with $10 million, for the sake of argument.
We then rearranged the 20 year program, evened the 20 year
program out, to arrive at the steady flow of financial requirements,
ill should put it that way. So if you know what we want in year
one, two, three, four, five, you can almost project further.

Mr. Byblow: What you are saying is that is a cyclical thing.
and there should not be any great demands for financial require
ments in any given year. It is process where the financial
requirements should remain constant.

Mr. Koken: Not exactly, but we cut off the hills and fill in the
valleys, so to speak.

Mr. Penikett: So you can even now approximate your capital
needs for each of the next 20 years roughly?

Mr. Koken: Roughly, yes, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Penikett: Give us a ball park figure, Mr. Koken?
Mr. Kent: Mr. Penikett, I am reluctant to provide the

committee with those kind of specifics without the approval of the
minister.

Mr. Penikett: Why, Mr. Kent, I do not understand?
Mr. Kent: As Mr. Koken has stated, these numbers are rough,

there is a poor data base, the reliability in the last years arc
uncertain, and it may become sort of magic number. It becomes a
benchmark against everything else, where, after this guy is
collecting the data and doing more work, it may change by 30 per
cent a year.

Mr. Penikett: I do not accept your explanation Mr. Kent, but
continue. Mr. Byblow.

Mr. Byblow: You described in your explanation that the 20
year program is intended to bring all roads that are now maintained
by the department to a standard at the time of construction, and that
begs some meaning, because the inference can be drawn that the
roads are not up to standard at the time of construction. Now, you
are working towards bringing them to a standard that they ought to
have been or should have been. Could you just clarify what you
mean by that statement of bringing roads up to the standards at time
of construction?

Mr. Koken: If our assumption that the road needs to be
reconstructed every 20 years. Only in the year it is constructed is it
at 100 percent of the standard. After 20 years it is not up to
standards and has to be re-built, i.e., in year one, year two, or year
three, the road is no longer up to standard. If you want straight line
projections, it is roughly five percent per year until it comes to a
point where there is reconstruction. So it is only at that point in
time, at the reconstruction, when it is up to standard, and then
slowly goes down, It does not stay there, because otherwise it
would not have to be reconstructed 20 years later.

Mr. Byblow: So the principle that you are working under is that
the road deteriorates each year after construction, and the level of
maintenance on it does not keep it to that level of original
construction?

Mr. Koken: t am not sure how you term maintenance.
Mr. Byblow: I am having difficulty understanding what you

mean; that your program is an effort to restore roads to their state of
original construction.

Mr. Koken: Of approved standards. Not all roads. At the
outset, I said that we have now established geometric road design
guidelines for the Yukon. based on RTAC standards. I believe I
mentioned that we have three classes of roads. Some sections of the
Alaska Highway are not built to these standards. There is a lot of
restoring to the standards, because these roads are not up to the
standards we have established.
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outstanding questions regarding which you have indicated that you[ want to get the consent of your minister in order to answer. I do not
think there was any matter of great urgency there, ill recall. Let
me, for our purposes, thank you Mr. Kent, and excuse the witness,
Mr. Kirk Koken, Mr. Greg Anderson, Ms Connie Zatorski. Mr.[ Chris Knight and Mr. John Cormie. Thank you for being patient
witnesses and providing us with the information we needed.

The witnesses are excused.
The committee stands in recess for 10 minutes. We will be

hearing witnesses from the Yukon Liquor Corporation.

Recess

[ ‘I Mr. Penikelt: We have witnesses here from the Liquor
Corporation: Mr. William Byers, Mrs. Patricia Harvey, Mr. Rollic
Thihault and Mrs. Olive Pociwausehek,

We are going to ask you to surrender to the attentions of Mr.
Falle this morning for most of the questions. He will do the lead off
questioning. You have provided us. Mr. Byers. with an opening
statement. In order for us to save time, if H is agreeable 10 you.
since it has been made available to all members of thc committee
and they have had a chance to read it. I am going to ask that it be
deemed to have been read into the record.

Mr. Byers: That is fine.

(Opening statement by Mr. Bvers deemed to have been read into
the record as follows.)

r Mr. Byers: I welcome the opportunity to appear before the
Public Accounts Committee today, and to provide you with
information concerning the operations of the Yukon Liquor
Corporation. The officials I have accompanying me are: Mrs. Pal
Harvey, Assistant Deputy Minister of Justice, and Mr. Rollie
Thibault, General Manager of the Liquor Corporation. Also here is
Mrs Olive Pociwauschek, who is a member of the Board of
Directors.

fl
We will do our best to answer your questions and to provide the

follow up material that you require for your deliberations.
The Yukon Liquor Corporation is a Crown corporation. Its

accountability differs from that of a department’s because the tasks

fl
are directly assigned to the Corporation and not to a minister of the
Crown. However, the minister responsible for a Crown corporation
must still account to the Legislature for the results.

The Corporation derives its legal mandate from the Yukon Liquor
Act. The Act established the Corporation and the Board of

Directors which governs its operation in 1976. Its main objective is
Li to provide for the importing, transporting, storing and selling of all

alcoholic beverages in Yukon within the requirements of the Act

U
and its attendant regulations. This means it serves the dual role of
wholesaler and retailer in the distribution of liquor. It is also
responsible for the issuance, suspension or cancellation of all liquor
licences, and the enforcement and regulation of the sale of liquor
through licences.

The Corporation is comprised of a Board of Directors, five people
L appointed by Cabinet, who represent the various areas of Yukon.

They serve on a part-time basis, and in 1983-84 held ten meetings.

U
They also hold public hearings to examine applications for new
lieenees and transfers or alteration in licences. in 1983-84
twenty-five hearings of this type were held. They also approve the
annual operation and maintenance budget of the Corporation which
is then forwarded to the minister and the Department of Finance.

U The Board’s members are reimbursed on a per diem basis.
The General Manager of the Corporation is its chief executive

officer, He is charged with the general direction, control of the
day-co-day business, and supervision of employees engaged in the

fl administration of the Act and its regulations.
In addition the manager has two other major areas of responsibil

ity. The first involves responsibility to his minister, In this role he
advises and recommends policy:

- for ensuring that the needs of the public sector are reflected to

- for foreseeing potential political needs and problems related to
the Corporation

- for control of the purchase and sale of beer, spirits and wine in
Yukon

- for changes to the Liquor Act and pertinent regulations
- for programs to assist in the alleviation of liquor abuse
- for amounts of revenue and percentage mark-up generated by

the Corporation
- for coordination of Yukon liquor legislation and regulations

with federal and provincial agencies involved in similar related
activities in the purchase, distribution and sale of beer, wine and
spirits, while still maintaining awareness of unique Yukon require
ments.

In addition he directs the financial control of the Corporation, the
provision of territorial agent service on behalf of the Yukon
Government in corporate stores outside Whitehorse and acts as a
liaison between the minister and the Board of Directors.

The second other major area involves responsibility to the Board
of Directors of the Corporation. In this role he advises the Board on
all corporate matters including policy, he interprets the legislation
and regulation.s governing the Corporation’s powers, he determines
the nature and extent of the resources required to operate the
Corporation, he approves the strategic program functions required:

- to license and control the operation of liquor sales outlets
- to review, select, acquire, transport, store and distribute beer,

wine and spirits
- to operate a network of corporate sales stores, a licensed outlet

store, a major central warehouse and empty bottle depot
- to identify and respond to public expectations in the operations

of the Corporation and the operation of licensed premises.
Under the Act the General Manager has the signing authority for

all expenditures. orders, contracts, written notices, directions on
behalf of the Board, setting liquor prices, increasing and decreasing
prices due to changes in landed costs, or delisting products due to
insufficient sales remain under his jurisdiction.

The General Manager is rcsponsible for the negotiation of liquor
and beer prices for Yukon. A bidding procedure is used on all beer
products which reduces the rate of mark-up on the lowest tender’s
product. The process encourages more competitive bidding. Proof
of the success and benefit to Yukon of this procedure is that the
price of beer is lower in Yukon than in British Columbia.

The General Manager is a member of the Canadian Association of
Liquor Commissioners which meets semi-annually to identify and
implement common strategies in all aspects of liquor pricing.
distribution, transportation, new products, stores operation, safety,
federal regulations, and new provincial policies and procedures in
the licensing area. He and his colleagues in the provinces also
participate in the negotiations with ocean carriers in order to obtain
advantageous freight rates for all liquor boards.

The General Manager also negotiates with recycling firms for the
best available price on the sale of aluminum from crushed cans and
also for the best price possible for the empty beer bottle returns to
Pacific Brewers Distributors.

In comparing the organizational charts for 1983-84 and 1985 you
will note that we have amalgamated the duties of the manager,
corporate planning and personnel branch with the manager of
financial control and systems development. This new branch will be
headed by the manager of finance and administration. This new
position will be responsible for the identification, development and
management of comprehensive financial, personnel and data pro
cessing. and structures and processes for the Corporation under the
general direction of the General Manager.

The manager will develop, organize and manage the accounting
and financial functions of the Corporation in order to control and
minimize operation costs. The manager will be responsible for
providing advice on acceptable standards of service from a financial
management point of view. The manager will develop and
implement procedures for internal audits of inventory and cash, and
liaise with the office of the Auditor General on the conduct of the
Corporation’s audit, and ensure that all accounting systems comply
with the Yukon Government’s and Auditor General’s requirements.

The manager of the licensing and enforcement branch carries outthe government
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the Corporation’s program in the areas of licensing and enforcement
of licensed establishments under the Liquor Ad and regulations. He
assists new applicants and processes applications for liquor Ii
cences, permits, ID. cards, renewal of licences, and inspects liquor
establishments for any violations of the Ad and regulations. He
also issues warnings or suspensions resulting from violations,
assists operators to overcome difficulties in the enforcement of the
Liquor Act and regulations, and works closely with olher agencies
in areas of building standards, fire and health requirements. and the
R.C.M. Police who also are appointed as liquor inspectors and who
carry out an inspection program in licensed establishments.

Specific concerns in the enforcement area are to restrict alcoholic
beverages to under-age and intoxicated persons, and to discourage
advertising that encourages the use and abuse of liquor.

The manager of store and warehouse operations oversees the
management of Yukon’s six liquor stores and the Corporation’s
warehouse operations to ensure satisfactory standards of service to
the public and licensees in liquor as well as in territorial agent
services in outlying areas. A new development to aid in providing
better service is the installation of inventory control cash registers
in all stores. This is the first stage of a computerization program for
the Corporation.

The manager is responsible for the ordering and transporting and
distribution of liquor, the security of stock, buildings. capital assets
and monies, and provides for sufficient insurance coverage of
products in transport and those stored on Corporation premises.

Not only are store managers responsible for the operation of the
Yukon Government liquor stores, but in the rural areas they also act
as the territorial agent for the government. This involves providing
territory agency service to local residents and tourists in order to
meet the needs of persons who are without ready access to
information and assistance provided by atl Yukon Government
departments and agencies. This alleviates confusion and difficulties
that could arise for those persons because of their geographical
distance from Whitehorse. Duties involve such things as the selling
of licences, collection of health care premiums. etc.

In Mayo this service was extended by having the territorial agent
also provide a banking service in the Mayo liquor store. He cashes
cheques for the residents. This service will continue until arrange
ments can be made by the Yukon Government to again establish a
bank in the community.

The Yukon Liquor Corporation’s approach is based primarily on
financial considerations so that an appropriate level of service is
provided as economically as possible. Another consideration is the
moral responsibility that is attached to the selling of alcoholic
beverages. The primary analytical tool used is the life cycle casing
technique program. This program has been developed to accommo
date its requirements in capital funds to provide the facilities and
equipment required to support the Yukon Liquor Corporation’s
operations. The Corporation has developed four liquor store
concepts to accommodate the varying service requirements of
Yukon communities. Each concept is designed to satisfy a different
range of requirements based on community size, through-put of the
facility, and permanence of the community. Program standards on
stores and equipment are available.

I hope that this review of the Yukon Liquor Corporation’s
mandate, objectives and the roles and responsibilities of its senior
personnel has provided you with a useful overview of its
operations. As I said initially, my officials and I will provide all the
other information you require, either verbally today or in writing as
soon as possible.

Mr. Penikett: With that, maybe I can ask Mr. Falle to begin.
Mr. Byers: If I might beg the chair’s indulgence for one

moment prior to responding to questions, there is one thing that I
would like to bring to the committee’s attention. The annual report
of the Yukon Liquor Corporation was tendered in the House on the
last day of the sitting of the House. There are errors in that report
that occurred. I will give the committee an explanation of what they
are. We have brought up a number of revised copies of the report.
The clerk’s office was notified of the errors as soon as they were
discovered by Mr. Thibault and a corrected annual report will be

filed when the House next sits.
It might be to the committee’s benefit if they marked the copies

that we are handing out now as the new ones, and then I will point
out where the errors are.

Mr. Penikett: I think that is agreeable. Let us table, for our
purposes, both the original and the revised copy of the annual
report, and, at the same time, the material that Mr. Byers has
presented. The covering page is called ‘‘Yukon Liquor Corporation
Organizational Chart’’ and it has a number of attachments to it as
well.

Mr. Byers: Briefly, as I indicated, the report was tendered to
the House on the last day of sitting. It was received by the
corporation from the printer the day prior to that. Probably because
of the time constraints, the errors were not immediately noticed by
Mr. Thibault. These really are not typographical errors, but these
are corrections in the corporation’s financial statements, which
result from the review of the corporation’s statements by the
Auditor General.

If you would turn to page three of the report, the figures are
incorrect. Under the paragraph headed ‘‘Sales”, in the first line.
‘financial operations net and profit’’, you will note that there is a

difference in that net profit figure. In the original report filed, it is
$4527566. In the revised version it is S4,512,578.

The next error is in the next line. This sentence represents a
decrease. You will note that the figure there is different, as is the
percentage decrease. The percentage decrease is 6.9 percent, not
6.5 percent.

The other error that occurs on that page is in the last line of that
first paragraph. The first figures in that line, in the original version
showed 55.814,970 or 5.27 percent. The correct figures are
55,799,982 or 5.52 percent. Those are the only corrections on page
three.

The next place where any errors arise is on page 17.
9 The heading is ‘‘Schedule of Operating Expenses’’. The adjust
ments all occur under the topic of salary and wages and run right
across that top line through to 1984, You will note that there are
differences in each of the salary and wage figures from each of the
liquor outlets all the way across. That has the effect, of course, of
changing the 1984 totals, only because of those salary and wage
differences, and again, straight across the chart from Whitehorse
through to the column 1984. Those are the only corrections in that
annual report.

Mr. Penikett: Okay. Mr. Byers. Your opening statement
having deemed to be read, Mr. Falle, first question?

Mr. Falle: On page 16, I hope we are talking about the new
report. We are. Okay. Sales inventory on a percentage forecast.
How does the Corporation control sales and inventory of its liquor
stores?

Mr. Thibault: On page 16?
Mr. Falle: Yes. I am just referring to a page in the report where

I am getting information from, that is all.
Mr. Thibault: And your question is how
Mr. Falle: How does the Corporation control sales and

inventory of liquor stores?
Mr. Thibault: The inventory is controlled in accordance with

the sales in each one of those stores. If the sales are decreasing, the
inventory naturally will decrease also, depending on the purchase
made at each one of those locations.

Mr. Falle: How does it deal with slow moving inventory?
Mr. Thibnult: Slow moving inventory I review twice annually.

We keep records of all the sales of each bottle by locations and also
a total for the Yukon Territory. As a brand decreases by a certain
amount in sales, we class it as a low sale item, then we, in order to
decrease the loss by losing the bottle, especially if it is a bottle of
wine, for example, after a two year period, we may decide to
decrease the price of that product, and therefore, gain as much as
we can from the sale at the decreased price.

Mr. Fallu: So therefore you have sales.
Mr. Thibault: We have sales, yes. In the area of sales, those

brands are not relisted again. A new brand will be listed in its
place.

Mr. Falle: Does the corporation establish maximum and
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minimum levels for each of its inventory stock items?
Mr. Thibault: Yes, we do. In the operation of the department,

we do keep an inventory control of all the stock. The main control
is in our central warehouse. We have, through an inventory cash
register control, from day-to-day exact totals by bottle on each
brand that we have on hand. As the sale is processed daily. at the
end of the day, if we so wish, we can get from the cash register the
exact inventory of each of those brands. From those reports, the
operation branch then proceeds to order items that are required for

fl future sale.
Mr. Falle: What is the current percentage markup of liquor,

wines and beers?
Mr. Thibault: The markup on liquor is a cabinet decision,

fl given to us. I do not feel that it would be proper for me to divulge

J the markup on liquor, spirits, beer and wine,
Mr. Penikett: What is the administrative reason for wanting to

make that a confidential decision?
Mr. Thibault: We do — for example, on beer — negotiate the

price with the four major breweries and allow the brewery that
gives us the lowest price a preferential markup according to the
quotation to us. We do this also, from time to time, on wine and

O liquor. If we give a preferential markup to a brand that has been
reduced in price to us, then the other breweries, in that case, will be
able to obtain the exact costs quoted to us. In other words, if we do
not keep them confidential there is no reason any longer to[ negotiate for the price of beer. We felt that the negotiations that
have been going on for the past three years have been very very
successful for the Yukon Territory.

At the present time, the price of beer in the Yukon is cheaper than
BC, both in bottled beer and draft beer.

L Mr. Falle: You said that the minister authorizes the markup.
Mr. Thibault: The markup is proposed to the government for

approval.
Mr. Falle: It does not come from the bâard?
Mr. Thibault: Yes, that is right. It goes from the Corporation

and the board to the government.
Mr. Falle: Then it is a board decision, not a ministerial

r decision?
Mr. Thibault: Yes, but it is finally approved by cabinet.
Mr. Falle: How often are they revised, or are they?
Mr. Thibault: The last general markup on our liquor was in

U
1979. Later, in 1980, or 1981, we had a change which was
approved by cabinet, leaving the corporation the power to negotiate
the prices on beer. I believe it was in 1981, roughly.

Mr. Falle: On page 16 of the corporation’s annual report, a

U
schedule of gross sales of spirits, wines and beers is included.
Those sales, as shown in this schedule, are $14,914,000, which
does not agree with the sales of $12,854,000 shown on the
statement of income on page 8. What accounts for the difference?

Mr. Thihault: I believe that the difference here is the liquor

L tax. One is gross sales and the other one is net sales.
Mrs. Harvey: Page 8 shows the net sales which excludes the

tax, which then shows up on page 10, itemS. You add the net sales
and that item 5 to reach the real sales.

Mr. Falle: Would it be possible to show the liquor tax
components separately for each category: spirits, wines or beer?

Mrs. Harvey: Yes, that is readily reached.
Mr. Falle: Would it also be possible to show the gross profit of

sales for each of these items and categories?
Mrs. Harvey: I would say yes, it would, it might require a lot

of man hours; however, it is certainly there.
Mr. Falle: It is probably just a suggestion that I am trying to

make on this. If it could be done, and it is not too many man hours.
could the additional information be provided on that?

Mrs. Harvey: Yes, we are able, and we would, if you so wish.
Mr. Falle: Page three of the annual report indicates that about

60 percent of the corporation’s sales are to licenced premises. Is the
percentage markup of sales to licencees the same as the percentage
on sales through the liquor store?

Mr. Thibault: Yes, it is.
Mr. FaHe: Does the corporation control the markup of sales by

licencees? Do you control the price of the liquor sold in the bars

and taverns?
Mr. Thibault: Yes, we do.
Mrs. Harvey: We had, through the years, regulated that;

however, that is now removed. We do not regulate in that area.
Mr. Falle: So you would not know the markup in these cases

where it was regulated, at this time?
Mrs. Harvey: That is right.
Mr. Falle: What was the markup in 1983-84?
Mrs. Harvey: I think I am right when I say that it was not

regulated then. We sell to licencees. They resell and set their own
margin or markup, unless you are referring to the off-sales. Are you
referring to the off-sales?

Mr. Thibault: Are you confused with the off-sales premises
with those of licenced establishments?

Mr. Falle: Yes, as well as the bottles sold in the taverns.
Mr. Thibault: Yes, it is under regulation. We control the

off-sales, For example, a bottle of liquor sold from a licenced
establishment to the public can only be marked up $1.35 above the
liquor store price, Beer is $2.00 above the liquor store price. So,
we do regulate this under the regulations.

Mr. Penikett: Going back to the explanation that Mrs. Harvey
gave regarding the difference between the numbers on page 16 and
page 8, and explaining that by the item on page 5, referred to as
taxation. I have done a quick calculation here and I still find there is
$773,143 difference between those numbers. If I may walk through
those numbers, could we just check them? On page 14, gross sales
is $14,914,143. The tax Mrs. Harvey referred to on page 10 is
$1,287,000, which comes to a total of $13,627,143. The page 8
sales figure, again, is $12,854,000, There is a discrepancy there of
$773,143, by my calculations.

Mrs. Harvey: May we review this? We will make sure we have
the answers you need when we meet next.

Mr. Penikett: We will just flag that question then.
Let us go back to one other question that we might also flag. You

may want to consult with other people about this. Even taking into
account, Mr. Thibault. your explanation for the reasons for not
wanting to disclose specific markups, is it not possible, without
regard to the agreements you may have with the particular
companies, to indicate in some global terms what the markups are
for some of those categories. I am not asking you to respond to the
specific question now, but I wonder if you would take that question
under advisement.

Mr. Thibault: Yes.
Mr. Falle: The follow-up question I wanted to ask on the

markup: what is the markup in a percentage, if a case of beer is sold
in Whitehorse oft-sales, from the liquor store to the private vendor?
You said $1.35 a case, I believe, so it is roughly about a 10 percent
markup.

Mr. Thibault: I think I said it was a $1.90 or $2.00 for a case
of beer. I think that is roughly about 19.5 percent of profit for the
licencee.

Mr. Falle: In the case of the private sales, if that person
happened to be in Dawson City, would he or she have to pay the
transportation from Whitehorse, or is the markup the same?

Mr. Thibault: No, the transportation of liquor from Whitehorse
to Dawson is paid by the Yukon Liquor Corporation to all the stores
and also to all licencees in the territory, as long as the licencee is
within a 25 mile radius of a store or a warehouse.

Mr. Falle: People in Beaver Creek, then, would have to pay the
freight difference from Whitehorse to Beaver Creek. That would
not be borne by the Liquor Corporation, that would have to be
borne by the licencee?

Mr. Thibault: I am sorry. If you are referring to a licencee in
Beaver Creek, we do pay the freight, because it is more than 25
miles from Haines Junction, where he could purchase.

Mr. Falle: On page 5 of the corporation’s annual report, you
indicate that licenced premises were subject to regular inspections
throughout the year. How often are these inspections carried out?

Mr. Thibault: They are carried out pretty well on a weekly or
semi-weekly basis. An inspector will visit the licenced establish
ment, They do about four general inspections all over the territory.
Within Whitehorse, the inspections are done on a weekly or
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bi-weekly basis. Some of them are done during the day and some of
them are done during the evening.

Mr. Falle: The figures in your annual report show that there arc
267 licences out, and you have done 712 inspections, so thai is
roughly two a day. You must have a fairly busy inspector.
. Mr. Thibault: I must say that they are busy, but I am not sure
that that represents two inspections a day. We could inspect a
licensed establishment once or twice a day, depending on the work
that has to be done Ihere, It could be measuring a licensed
establishment, or it could be talking 10 the management, or it could
be several reasons. I believe the figure of 712 inspections may also
include everything, inspections and all.

Mr. Byen: The number of licences is somewhat misleading. I
have forgotten the total he quoted. That does not represent thc
number of physical establishments. There may be, in rough figures.
about a hundred licensed establishments. Each establishment would
have a variety of licences — dining room licences, cocktail
licenses, whatever — so there may only a hundred premises in the
territory that the inspectors have to visit. They may check half a
dozen licences in any one particular place.

Mr. Penikett: Even given that information, which would
change the frequency [actor which Mr. Falle was after, that would
seem thai you are talking about inspections bi-weekly. or weekly.
or perhaps even more frequently. How does it compare with what is
done in the provinces? Are you aware of that? Or is it a question of
how you define inspections, which Mr. Thihault was beginning to
describe.

Mrs. Harvey: Through meetings, which are annual, we meet
with those outside. I would say, number one, that we meet well the
needs they have laid out in their areas. The hang ups we have, vis a
vis the miles involved, are very real and even at that, I think we do.
You reach a level through the fact that naturally each outlet must he
rated on merit, and where the need arises, they are inspected maybe
quite often over a few hours or a week or over a month, which may
result in resolving whatever was seen as the headache there. In
other areas, where it is fairly certain that the owner-manager
upholds the law and has the aim of upholding that law, you would
make your usual three or four annual inspections, and you would
make those soundly and rest with that unless you heard otherwise.
It would sound very neat if we were saying, yes we make all those
rounds each year. That would not be so. They are reviewed on
merit, vis a vis queries we may have had, and the needs that are
read.
a Mr. Falle: I want to know, basically, if the 712 inspections that
have been done, have been done solely by the inspector, or does
this figure include inspections by the R.C.M.P. or other type of
inspectors? For one man to do 712 inspections a year. he is a pretty
good employee.

Mr. Thlbault: Mr. Chairman, it does not include the inspec
tions by the R.C.M.P. By the way, we have two liquor inspectors.
one doing the inspections.

Mrs. Harvey: We would not like it left that there is an
inference of harassment here, when you see what may seem like a
high volume of reviews. I think that we all may exaggerate that in
our own minds when, unless we realize that in one night in
Whitehorse, they may reach 12 or more outlets in a very few hours,
and many will end up purely routine, as a walk-through.

Mr. Fafle: Yes, I realize that. Like Mr. Byers said, it could be
more than one licence in the establishment, and that would account
for the inspections I would imagine.

Mr. Thibault: If I may add, Mr. Chairman, the inspection visit
includes special occasion reception permits. As you probably know
we issue about 588 and 122 reception permits. so we do visit those
functions taking place also as part of the 712. During Rendezvous,
for example, or during the Discovery Days in Dawson. an inspector
may make three or four or five visits to each licensed establishment
during those two or three days. So each one of them is counted
every time. The time is marked and compiled and if they go two or
three times, it is three or four inspections, in other words.

Mr. Falle: I gather from your answers that they are systematic
inspections to cover all the licensed premises annually throughout
the Yukon?

Mr. Thibault: Yes.
Mr. Ealle: In addition, are surprise inspections carried out?
Mr. Thibault: Yes. I do not know Lhe percentage that would

be, hut an awful lot of them are done — at midnight and after one
o’clock or even two o’clock, or even after the closing time at two
o’clock. Those inspections are done fairly often by our inspectors
when we have received complaints, specially when licensed
establishments are not closing at the proper time, or are carrying on
a party after the closing time. Also, our inspectors. from time to
lime, join the R.C.M.P.. the undercover people. in conducting
inspections.

Mr. Falle: Again, referring to the annual report on page 4, for
the purchases of liquor, wine and beer from various suppliers, does
the Corporation negotiate firm prices for a fixed period?

Mr. Thibault: It depends. We are talking about a wine
supplier?

Mr. Falle: Wine or spirits.
Mr. Thibault: Usually, the suppliers of spirits have prices they

submit yearly or semi-yearly. Often, you will see a general price
increase. If one company, for example, set the price increase in
April. you will see pretty well all the other producers also coming
up with a price increase. You will realize three or four months after
some of the companies have reduced their price because they want
to achieve a lower retail price. Also they may come back to me and
they say “I would like to make an agreement with you. I will give
you a price rebate on transportation of liquor, and I want my retail
price to be lower by 20 cents or 30 cents’’. We do that all the time.

Mr. Falle: Do these prices include the freight charges to
Whitehorse? Some do and some do not, is that what you are saying?

Mr. Thibault: The price of the Canadian product that we have
is FOB Vancouver. This is why all Canadian suppliers have to give
us a price FOB Vancouver. If we have a supplier from Ontario, for
example, it is their responsibility to find the cheapest transporta
tion. We give them the authority to do so, and they transport the
liquor to a firm in Vancouver with whom we have an annual
contract for transportation.

Mr. Falle: The Liquor Corporation then pays the freight from
Vancouver to Whitehorse?

Mr. Thibault: That is correct.
Mr. Falle: That is not negotiated in the price of wine or beer?
Mr. Thibault: It is not.
Mr. Falle: A new liquor store built in Faro was recently

constructed. Is the building in Faro fully occupied by the
corporation?

Mr. Thibault: No. Roughly about 1.000 square feet of the
building is occupied by the Department of Health and Welfare. I
believe they have some social workers there.

Mrs. Harvey: They have a three year lease, I believe, on that.
Mr. Falle: Is it being fully utilized by the government, by the

Liquor Corporation or other departments? Are there any empty
spaces?

Mr. Thibault: I believe that during the time the mine was
going under normal production, the Faro Liquor Store was
well-used. Today, I think the situation is different, due to the fact
that we have quite a reduction in sales, something in the
neighbourhood of sales being down by 20 percent.

Mr. Falle: I realize what you are saying regarding the liquor
commission, but is there any spare room in the building in Faro, or
is it completely being utilized?

Mr. Thibault: It is completely in use.
Mr. Falle: On page 19 of the annual report for the year ending

March 31, 1984. showing contents of schedule of tonnes of liquor
sold by location, what is the purpose of this schedule?

Mr. Thibault: We calculate the tonnage of liquor. We are
using that information as a guide. The sales, the number of bottles
sold at each one of the stores, the tonnage of liquor handled by the
staff, assist us in establishing how many staff we will have at each
one of those stores, so we have a scale that helps us to determine
the number of staff. The number of bottles, which is the tonnage,
helps classify each store according to the volume of work they do,
and also assists us in establishing if there should be one, two or
three staff in the store.
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Mr. Penikett: Also your trucking contracts, presumably.
Mr. Falle: I was looking to see if it had anything to do with

U freight, really.
Mr. Thibault: Yes, it does.

P
17 Mr. Falle: The Corporation collects liquor tax under the Liquor
Tax Act for (he Government of Yukon, How does the Corporation
ensure that the correct amount of liquor tax is collected?

Mr. Thibault: It is quite simple. Mr. Chairman. If you want to
take a month as an example, and we have sold let us say SI million
in one month, at retail price, the tax is 10 per cent of the retail

L price, so we just take one-tenth of the sales. That is your tax.
Mr. Falle: That is what we wanted to find out before. Has the

U
Corporation considered the cost and benefits of establishing a
bonded warehouse in the territory? If so, what is the conclusion?

Mr. Thihault: A bonded warehouse, did I hear?
Mr. Falle; Yes. What is your conclusion, if you have consi

dered it?
Mr. Thihault: We considered a bonded warehouse several

years ago. After we studied it, we came to a conclusion that we
were farther ahead not having an in-bound warehouse, as we would
restrict the movement from the in-bound warehouse to the main

U warehouse to serve the public. We realize that having a bonded
warehouse would save the duty and excise, and federal sales tax
would not be paid, however, in order to separate the warehouse as a
separate entity as a bonded warehouse, every shipment coming in

U would have to go into the bonded warehouse, and then there is a
process of ex-warehousing the liquor from the bonded warehouse
and then pay to the federal government the duty, excise and federal
sales taxes. This would involve extra clerical people and also every

L time we wanted to open the warehouse we have to have an officer
from customs and excise on site, After we studied it, we concluded
(hat it would be just as cheap to carry on the way we are and pay
the duty and excise on liquor as the shipment comes in.

Mr. Penikett: Thank you, Mr. Thibault. Let me get in, if I can,
before we have to break, a couple of quick questions to Mr. Byers.
which arise out of the opening statement, if I can.

I gather the re-organization of the Liquor Corporation, as it

D relates to the total government organization, is a result of the
famous study about which there has been much public mention. Let
me give you this question of notice. Would it be possible for us to
get the relevant or pertinent portions of that study as it relates to the

U economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Corporation moving
into this new arrangement? I will file that question with you as
notice and ask you not to respond now.

Let me ask you a direct question, though. We understand that the
General Manager now reports to the deputy minister of Justice.

Mr. Byers: In point of fact, it is to the assistant deputy
minister.

Mr. Penikett: Could I just ask you to elaborate a little bit on

U
that reporting relationship, Mr. Byers?

Mr. flyers: I am not sure I fully understand what you mean,
Mr. Penikett, by that.

Mr. Penikctt: It is a rare treat for us to have a lawyer here. Let

U
me put it to you in these terms. How does it comply with section
9(l) of the Liquor Act, which states that the General Manager is
‘‘the chief executive officer charged with the general direction,
supervision and control of the Corporation under the general
direction of the Hoard of Directors’’?

Mr. flyers: I do not think the reporting relationship that now
U exists infringes, in any way, upon the act. The board is still

autonomous; it is still a Crown corporation. If you are asking me if
the reporting relationship has changed as a result of the reorganiza
tion, it really has not, particularly. Mr. Thibault reports at a

U different level than he did before, but those relationships are not
any different now than they were before.

Mr. PenikeH: What are your responsibilities in connection with
the corporation, as deputy minister of Justice?

Mr. flyers: Just liaison, primarily. I do not have any direct role
to play with the Liquor Corporation in the sense of establishing any
policy; that is the board’s prerogative.

Mr. Penlkett: You use the word ‘‘liaison’’. Your opening
statement refers to Mr. Thibault, as the general manager, being

responsible for liaison between the minister and the board.
You both have liaision functions, do you?
Mr. Byers: Yes, I would say that is correct.
Mr. Penikett: What is the role of the board of directors under

the reorganization? Has it changed?
Mr. flyers: No.
Mr. Penikeit: To whom are they accountable, since under

section 3(l) of the Liquor Act, they are the corporation, and under
3(10), they are responsible for the conduct and management of the
corporation.

Mr. Byers: Since it is a Crown corporation, they are, in one
sense, responsible to themselves. The minister responsible for the
Liquor Corporation is first responsible to this House, In that sense,
they have a responsibility to that particular minister.

The board itself is independent, in the sense that it is a board of a
Crown corporation: they are not in line directly, responsible, or
responsive to anyone.

Mr. Penikett: I know the reorganization was recommended by
experts and people who know more about management arrange
ments than I do, but if I could draw your attention to the
organization chart that you presented us, the first thing that
concerns me about that is that I would be worried about any
organization where you have someone, in essence, reporting to two
masters. You have the general manager reporting to the minister
and to the chairman of the board of directors. You have, just a
moment ago, described the general manager as reporting to the
assistant deputy minister of Justice.

Mr. flyers: You are looking at the first page. This is the
organization that existed prior to the reorganization. There is now
another chart — the pages are not numbered, unfortunately —

headed ‘‘1985’’, and it shows the new reporting relationship.
All of the Crown corporations do have that type of reporting

relationship prior to reorganization — the Housing Corporation,
Workers’ Compensation, whatever — and the general manager was
responsible to the chairman of his board and to the minister who
was responsible to the House.

Mr. Penikett: Can I just flag this as something that I do want to
pursue further with you? Let me explain briefly why. You refer to
the other Crown corporations, but the act for this corporation is
much more specific as to the powers and duties of the board than
are the acts of the other two that you refered to. I wonder if I can
flag that as something that we might pursue when we come back
tomorrow.

Mr. flyers: The Housing Corporation is not within my respon
sibility. and I cannot answer for it,

Mr. Penikett: No, but you used the other Crown corporations
as an example, and this one, I think has a much tighter act in
respect to the reporting relationships. I would like to pursue that
from the administrative point of view.

Let us ask now that the witnesses be excused and ask if they
could rejoin us tomorrow morning at 9:30.

We will now adjourn into executive session.
The witnesses are excused.

The Co,,z,,ziuee adjourned at 11:30 a-rn.
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EVIDENCE
Thursday, February 14, 1985

Mr. Pcnikett: Meeting number Ihree. sixth sitting. We are

r continuing where we left off yesterday with a review of the

operations of the Yukon Liquor Corporation. I would like to
U welcome back, this morning. Mr. Byers, Mrs. Harvey, Mr.

Thibault and Mrs. Pociwauschek in their capacities as Deputy

fl
Minister of Justice. Assistant Deputy Minister. General Manager of
the Liquor Corporation and a member of the board of the Liquor
Corporation, respectively.

Mr. Byers has kindly responded to a couple of questions which

O
we asked yesterday with written responses. I think I would ask the
clerk to receive on the table those answers now. We will have them
tabled and then we can deal with them in executive session.

I believe all members of the committee have seen them and they

fl
have substantially answered the questions we were asking. Sc) there
will be no further follow-up on that.

Let me move immediately. Mr. Hyers. to the organization
question. You will recall that yesterday I asked you a couple of

O
general questions about the act under which you are operating and
the extent to which the reorganization is in harmony with the
specifics of that act. I wonder if you have had a chance to look at
the act and could respond in a general way to that question.

Mr. flyers: Yes, I have. The Liquor Corporation is obviously a
creature of the statutes, so called a Crown Corporation. By statute.

Li there is a board which is responsible for the operation of that
corporation.

The reorganization has not changed the legislative mandate of the

f , liquor board, It still operates under that piece of legislation. It will
quite possibly continue to operate under that piece of legislation
without any alteration. If the reorganization is to have any major
impact on the methodology of the board’s operations — in other

fl words, to change its historical role — then of course this House
would have to deal with any amendments to that legislation.

At the moment, no amendments are contemplated by the
Department of Justice. The Liquor Corporation continues to
function the same way it did prior to the announeetnent of the
reorganization. There has been no alteration to that.

We have no way of altering that, because, as I said, the
governing legislation sets out the powers and duties of the board

fl and the general manager and they will continue to function in that

[ fashion. I have no legal right, no legislative right or no mandate to.
in any way, interfere with, or alter, those roles or relationships. So.
it continues to function as a corporation as it always did.

C e Mr. Penikett: Permit me just a couple of questions on that
point about the roles and relationships and the mandate as it is laid
down in law. Referring to your opening statement yesterday, on
page 3. you outline the duties of the general manager. The second

fl paragraph says, ‘‘In addition, the manager has two major areas of
responsibility. The first involves responsibility to his minister. In
this role he advises and recommends policy’’. There arc a number
of things detailed there. There are two I would like particularly to

fl direct your attention to. One of these roles is to advise and
recommend policy for the control of the purchase and sale of beer,
spirits and wine in Yukon, and the last one, for amounts of revenue
and percentage mark-up generated by the Corporation.

P
Now I grant that I am a layman, but my reading of the act seems

to suggest that under the act the general manager is directly
responsible to the board for those specific things, rather than
through the minister through the new chain of command, the
assistant deputy minister and the deputy minister. Would you have
any comments that would illuminate that apparent contradiction for
me?

Mr. Byers: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I am not so sure that it really
is a contradiction. The board has delegated that authority, really, to
the general manager, so that he is the party with that relationship
with the minister and/or deputy minister. Under section 13 of the
act, there is a requirement that the corporation, through the
particular executive council member or minister responsible for the
Board, table an annual report to the House. The minister is
responsible to the House, therefore, for the general operation of the

corporation and, as such, has to be advised and informed by the
corporation. He receives that advice and information through the
general management. The re-organization, as such, has not really
changed that, except that the reporting is now done through the
assistant deputy minister. Again, that information has to flow to the
minister who must respond to this House for what happens within
that corporation.
o Mr. Penikett: Let me ask you one final question on that
subject. You said that the board had delegated these responsibilities
to the general manager. Did you mean that the board had delegated
those responsibilities to the general manager since the reorganiza
tion’! If you did mean that, I was wondering if that delegation is
limited in any way?

Mr. Byers: No. That has always been the situation. The
chairman of the board, historically, has reported — maybe that is
not even the right word, because “report’ has connotations to it of
a responsibility of receiving direction, those sorts of things. It is
more of a liaison role. The chairman of the hoard has, from time to
time, had meetings with (he minister responsible and there has been
a relationship, historically, between those two individuals. Again, it
is really to keep the minister informed so that he can respond
appropriately to the House when asked questions.

The board has always given the major responsibility of that
information role to the general manager. The reorganization has
not. in any way, changed that.

Mr. Penikett: Before we move on, do any other members of
the committee have any questions about the separate reporting
relationship of the general manager to the board and to the assistant
deputy minister’!

Mr. Falle: I am completely confused now. I would like you to
explain to me exactly what the power of the board is.

Mr. Byers: The power of the board, basically, is to run the
Liquor Corporation. By legislation, it has the sole responsibility
and authority to do that. That is its mandate by the Liquor Act.
which sets regulations and policy for the day-to-day operations of
the liquor corporation.

Mr. Falle: Please explain to me. very clearly, why the general
manager reports to the minister instead of the board.

Mr. Byers: He does report to the board. I hope I have not
raised any confusion on that point. His prime responsibility is to his
board. He takes direction from the board, as well as advising the
board. In order to keep the minister informed, he liaises with the
minister. Let me use that word, rather than ‘‘report’’. There is no
obligation in the act upon the board or the general manager to
‘report’’, in that sense, to an assistant deputy minister or deputy
minister or to the minister responsible.

That has always been a cooperative thing; it has always been an
historical liaison role, where the board chairman and the general
manager have kept the minister informed so that he can, as I said
before, be responsive to the House when he is queried on any issues
involving the corporation.

By legislation, there is no direction or mandate in the act that
says. ‘‘You shall, as the general manager, report here or there’’.
His responsibility under the act is to his board. The act also places a
responsibility on an executive council member to the House, so that
in order for him to be able to respond to whatever questions are put
to him, he has to be informed, and he gets that information through
two vehicles: his relationship with the board chairman, and his
relationship with the general manager.
,c Mr. Falle: On your flow chart, it is your general manager who
liaises between the minister and the chairman of the board. Is there
any vehicle in place where the chairman of the board can have a
direct link to the minister, or does the board have to go through the
general manager?

Mr. Byers: No, the board can respond directly to the minister,
or may reach the minister as it sees fit. The Chairman does, and he
does not have to seek anybody’s permission or consent to do that.

Mr. Falle: I just got this from the flow chart here.
Mr. Penikett: Could I just ask you a question on the

organizational chart, Mr. Byers; the 1985 chart as opposed to the
1984. Following up on Mr. Falle’s question, this organization chart
describes certain line relationships. From your answers I assume
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that in addition to these relationships described here, there are also
functional relationships, as I heard you describe them, between the
general manager and the minister, and the board and the minister,
which are not described on this chart.

Mr. Byers: There should, in fact, be a line as you have
indicated on the chart you are showing to me, Mr. Chairman,
between the chairman of the board of directors and the minister, so
that there is a relationship between those two. The general manager
does no’ deal directly with the minister, as he did before. As he did
in the year we are looking at, 1983-84, the general manager was in
fact a deputy minister, or had that slatus, and therefore had the
normal role of the deputy minister in relation to his minister. That
is. he had a direct line responsibility to the minister and was
answerable to the minister. That is no longer the case.

Mr. Penlkett: Could I just ask you: have you had a chance to
consider our request for the relevant recommendations from the
re-organization study as it affects the department?

Mr. Byen: Yes, sir. I do not have it within my power to give
to this committee or anyone else that actual document. I do not have
it. and it is not mine, and you would have to seek that from the
government leader. I can give you what my understanding is of (he
reasoning.

Mr. Penlkett: Yes, if you want to do that briefly.
Mr. Byers; I think the recommendation was basically to

examine whether or not any economies of administration could be
achieved by having the Crown corporations, in essence, having
some role with a line department, in this particular case, the liquor
corporation and the Department of Justice. That simply means that
there may well be within this government certain services we could
offer to that corporation which would effect cost savings to the
corporation. They might be in the area of computer services, for
example, personnel management, or whatever. We are in the
process of examining that now, as is the board, to see whether or
not, in fact, it can be achieved.

Mr. Penikelt: Just a further question, Mr. Byers. Yesterday
you were first describing the changing relationship of the Crown
corporations with the Government of Yukon, and you referred to
the housing corporation, the liquor corporation and the Workers’
Compensation Board.

Let me just ask you about the Workers’ Compensation Board.
which, for those of us who have dealt with that board have always
understood there has been a special kind of statutory and even
constitutional independence of an agency like that, because it is
running an insurance game, and so forth.

As to the independence of the board, as it may be illustrative of
this relationship, does the actual independence of that agency
change because of this reorganization, in your view?

Mr. Byen: No. I think the short answer to that is no. The two
that I have some relationship with now, because of the reorganiza
tion, are both creatures of statute. As I indicated earlier, any change
would have to be by an amendment to legislation which would be
brought before the House. No, they are both created by statute, are
creatures of statute, therefore, and the reorganization simply cannot
make an effect on their independence of they way they function
without the major revisions to their legislation.

Mr. Pcnikett: I think that may be a side issue so I do not want
to pursue that too far.

We will move on to Mr. Brewster who has a question he wanted
to ask you.

Mr. Brewsier: This has something to do with reorganization.
As I understand ii, the directors actually run and make most of the
decisions for the liquor corporation, is this correct?

I get conflicting reports on this Beaver Creek situation of a duty
free shop. I have been told that there has been no agreement signed.
I have been told that an agreement has been signed. Who made the
decision? Did the directors make the decision?

Mrs. Poclwauschek: The decision was made by the chairman
and the general manager of the corporation. This was only a
decision, insofar as they signed a memorandum of understanding in
November. This occurred after the board had met and before the
board was likely to meet again.

They were well within the scope of the act. They are authorized

to make agreements for the corporation. This was later brought to
the attention of the board at the first meeting after that letter was
signed.

However, I would like to state that the question of there being a
duty free shop is something that has come up over the years a
number of times, both from Mr. Thibault at his meetings of the
Association of Liquor Board Administrators, which meets in
Canada at least once a year, and also from Mrs. Harvey, who
appeared, as you know, as the administrator for the liquor board,
when she went out to the Association of Liquor Board Administra
tors meeting.

Over a period of years, this was discussed many many times. It is
usually a very slow process and I think everybody was caught off
base. In fact, having signed this memorandum, suddenly within a
matter of two or three weeks, they received copies of federal
advcrtising. There was no correspondence. This advertising just
suddenly appeared, much to everybody’s amazement. At that time,
Mr. Thibault was away, and therefore, the government was not
contacted, as it should have been, We would at this time, like to
apologize to you, because we do not normally operate in this
fashion. We do expect to keep you informed at all times of things of
this type that may come forward.

Mr. Brewster: As I am 10 undersiand it now, the memorandum
is all you have. You do not have a complete, signed legal
agreement?

Mr. Thibault: The next step for the duty free shop is an
agreement between the powers of the Yukon Liquor Corporation
and the successful applicant. The process is, of course, that the
federal government, as the only body that licenses duty free shops,
has gone ahead and advertised for applicants to apply to run the
duty free shop. The selection of the applicant will be done in
connection with the Yukon Liquor Corporation, and then, thereaf
ter, an agreement would have to be signed between the applicant —

if there is a decision that we go ahead with a duty free shop in
Beaver Creek, which is the case — and the corporation, to make
sure that the liquor is purchased from the liquor corporation, for
example, and establish the mark-up that we are going to apply on
the liquor. As you know we have to sell the liquor to the applicant,
less duty and federal sales tax. The way the duty free shop would be
run, the conditions and the employees would be a decision between
the federal government and the Yukon Liquor Corporation. There
are many, many steps, if I have your question right here, Mr.
Chairman. There is a long process before a duty free shop is
established, and there are many areas that have to be studied to
decide on it.

Mr. Byers: If I could just add one point to clarify this, the duty
free shop, if I understand it correctly, would be established under
federal legislation, the Excise Act. The selling of liquor in that duty
free shop is only one component of what would be allowed and that
is really the only reason we have an involvement. The involvement
would be because, in their total operation, they might want to sell
duty free liquor, so it would have to be purchased through this
corporation. Hut aside from that, I would not think there would be
anything thai would prohibit the federal government from setting up
a duty free shop on any border they so chose without necessarily
consulting with the territory or province. and could sell any
watches, cameras, or whatever goods they might impose duty on
now, at some lesser rate. I guess it is really only because they want
to include liquor in their items for sale that we have had any
involvement with the process at all.

Mr. Brewster: I agree with that, and have no problem. I will
just read part of what is in the communique from Ottawa, and I
presume that this is not quite correct: ‘‘In addition, the minister
announced an agreement for the sale of liquor in duty free shops has
been reached with the Government of Yukon’’. Now you tell me it
is an agreement memorandum. Now, somebody is not on line here.
, Mr. Thibault: It is a memorandum of understanding that we

have signed.
Mr. Byers: It is called a memorandum of understanding. The

preamble starts off recognizing that the federal government controls
the licensing of duty free shops, and recognizing that the Yukon
government controls the sale and distribution of liquor within the
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n Yukon. It then goes on to set out what the federal department will
do, which includes inviting application by national advertisement
for the establishment and operation of the shops, and advertising
and consulting with (he Yukon with respect to anyone it might issue
the licence to to operate the shop.

The responsibilities that the Yukon Liquor Corporation has
agreed to are basically that they will provide the federal department
with whatever terms and conditions they deem necessary to

fl
establish the sale of liquor in that shop.

Mr. Penikett: You are the lawyer, Mr. Byers. is there a
contradiction between what the federal government has agreed to
and the agreement we signed?

Mr. flyers: There are several things, I think. This document is

fl signed only by the liquor corporation, not by the Government of
Yukon, so it is not binding on the government at that point.

I have always held that there is a substantial difference between a
memorandum, or an agreement of understanding, and an actual

(1 contractual relationship.
Mr. Pcnikett: Mr. Brewster, would you be interested in having

a look at that document?
Mr. Brewster: Could that document be filed with us?

U Mr. Byers: Yes, we can make a copy available.
Mr. Brewster: Could I also get the date of the meeting when

the decision was made by the board members, and what board
members were there at that meeting?

U Mr. flyers: Yes.
Mr. Pcnikett: Mr. Byblow, you have a question about pre

ferential mark-up in negotiating with suppliers.

U
Mr. Byblow: I have a couple of questions stemming from

yesterday’s discussion. I will direct these to Mr. Thibault.
You stated yesterday that during negotiations with suppliers you

gave a preferential mark-up to the lowest bidder on stocks procured.
Could you explain, perhaps by use of a hypothetical example, just
what that means and how it is applied?

Mr. Thibault: When we negotiate, for example, the price of
beer with the breweries, we receive quotations from each one of
them. After we have received the first submission from them, they
are told where they stand, that they are the lowest, second lowest or
the highest in their submission of quotes. In the second round, they
are able to resubmit another quotation to us. and the latest, of
course, is the final, From that, we decide which one is the lowest

F and therefore give the lowest tender preferential mark-up.

[ The preferential markup is in relation to the price submitted to us.
For example, the second lowest submission is five percent higher
than the lowest, then, therefore, the mark-up would be in
accordance with that. If the third highest is 15 percent higher, then
the markup would be in accordance with that.
., Mr. Byblow: Then preferential mark-up in essence means that
the lowest bidder gets less of a mark-up on the shelf than in the

r second, third and fourth, or whatever?
Mr. Thibault: Yes, it is strictly according to their quotation.

U Mr. Byblow: And that is an established practice and policy of
the corporation since 1981?

Mr. Thibault: Since 1981. that is right.
Mr. flyblow: Do you negotiate with your suppliers a number of

U times through the year, or on an annual basis?
Mr. Thibault: On beer, we negotiate once a year. Itis usually

U
done in March, and the prices of beer are set on April 1st, and will
carry through all through the year up to March 31st the following
year, with the exception that if there is a change in the excise tax by
the federal government on beer. Last year, for example, we had an

fl
increase in the excise tax on beer, and we also had an increase in
the federal sales tax, which includes beer, so the increase that we
applied is strictly in relation to the increase from the federal
government. They are able to increase their price to us in

U
accordance with the increase of the federal government.

Mr. Byblow: Does this also apply to liquor stock?
Mr. Thibault: Liquor is a little different. The mark-up on

liquor could come in two different ways. Their prices are quoted to
us usually on April 1st, and they are able to change their prices, as
long as they give us at least notice of two months, in order for us to
re-calculate the liquor and re-establish retail price. What may

happened is that some of the suppliers may like to have their retail
price lower than others, so therefore they are ready to give to us
what they call a freight rebate, a certain amount of money per case.
In some other cases, we may have an abundance of a certain brand
in stock, and they may be ready to reduce that price by 10 or 15 per
cent. They ask that if we want to go ahead with this, of course, they
should give us a preferential mark-up so we can clear the product.
Our aim is to provide the liquor at the cheapest price as possible to
the Yukon Territory. We take advantage ci that, and we may
sometimes alter the mark-up on that brand.

Mr. Byblow: L have a question on that. Just going back to the
preferential mark-up affecting increases throughout the year, why
do we have so many changes? To answer that, I assume it is
because of these efforts by suppliers to change their price through
the year, which in turn is a negotiation through the freight rebate?
. Is the freight rebate in direct proportion to the cost reduction of
the stock you have, either on the shelf, or in the warehouse?

Mr. Thibault: Yes, it usually is.
Mr. Byblow: What my question is leading to is: when you

accept a transportation rebate in exchange for a reduction of a price
of a stock, is there a direct relationship there, or are you marking up
the stock perhaps less or more than the transportation rebate?

Mrs. Haney: May I help on this? I think, number one, we are
exaggerating this through the fact that we may have let you think
that this happens frequently, or regularly, or as a matter of course.
When it happens, it is in an area where you have an item on the
shelf that should not remain more than a year, or whatever, That is
all laid out when you have these items on hand. You rate their shelf
life when you receive them, vis-a-vis, the roll-over required, so that
you are not losing money through the amount of money you have
lying on those shelves.

The more frequently you are able to roll those over, the more
your net revenue, the less your losses are on shelf life. So, when a
firm reaches you, it is not only the fact that you want to move these
items. The item, in their eyes. is not moving like it should, through
whose ever fault. They want it moved so that it is not seen in your
eyes as an item that is not raising money, but may be lowering your
net revenue, which means that you are much less likely to order a
new’ item from that firm,

They say, ‘‘I am not asking for a lower markup’’. They do not
infer that, nor do we. The net result is that. What happens is that
they offer us a freight allowance through the fact that we live so far
away and the freight from outside to Whitehorse is unusual in
relation to freight in ocher areas. When they are squeezed, they will
offer this, and we squeeze them very well, without qualm. They
will offer a rebate on freight, but when we do these things, we
always have in mind the overall net revenue which we have said we
will achieve that year, realizing that when you lower freight it looks
like you are lowering markup. It is net result, but not in fact.
although it is closely related.

You might reach a lower net revenue than you said you will
reach, so the net result on liquors and wines is that when you set a
markup rate, you do not offer a lower markup on any item. You
realize the net revenue you must reach and you run it like any firm,
wherein you set your selling rates so that you hopefully achieve the
net that you said you will.

Mr. Byblow: That explains it.
Are you committed by policy or by law to mark up, or down,

stocks according to cost?
Mrs. Harvey: No.
1 am sure you have observed monthly mark-ups or reductions.
Mr. Penikctt: Many.
Mrs. Harvey: Yes, one of the major reasons is — and this is

set by not by law, it is set by the board — that when you receive an
item in. say you receive an order that has one hundred items in it.
you review the FOB Whitehorse price on each and every item,
ensuring that you achieve and reach the net revenue, which means
mark-up. on each and every item. When you have used the old
items of that same brand on hand, the net result, and the need is,
that you raise or lower items almost monthly. The aim is that we do
it at as few times as we need. However, we must achieve that net
revenue, and I am sure that many would be most unhappy iere we
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absorbing more than we should without lowering French wines —

the French franc is low so you lower French wines. On the other
hand, were we not achieving our net revenue through not having
raised those items, we are liable.

Mr. Byblow: Just on that subject in general, many licencees
have expressed almost an annoyance at the number of changes that
come out of the liquor corporation, and I now understand part of
why all that is happening, and how you are applying your mark-ups
in relation to the supply. Do you see any way to reduce the number
of those changes, and still achieve the objective of net revenue?

Mrs. Harvey: Yes, we are reaching it gradually and I am sure
you have observed in this last year and a half or more, that we are
reaching fewer. It may not seem that way, but it really is, as we
have required the firms who sell to the corporation to do so, and it
is rather unusual in larger organizations in larger areas. We are
small enough that we may reach these things more readily, maybe.
They say on April I what they will charge us. Also we have
reached agreement on freight rate hauls — and we have worked at it
for a lot of years, and we have achieved great strides in that —

where we will accept no rate reviews more frequently than once
annually. When you discuss the excise tax and sales tax, we have
no say over that, I am sure you know. There are a few fluctuations
that we accept logically. When there is a sudden slump in the value
of the French franc, we immediately zoom in and we say, now,
look, we know where you are. You are reaching more than we think
you should, nor what it looked like you would reach on April I.
You should lower it.

Mr. Thibault: The year 1983-84 was very unusual for price
changes. As a matter of fact, we did issue about 39 price change
notices through the year 1983-84, which was very unusual. They
involved, I believe it was, 587 brand price changes. In the year that
we are on now, 1984-85, we do not foresee, with the exception of
the federal sales tax increase in September — and I believe there
was duty and excise increases in August — very many changes in
prices, with the exception of course, again, in the spring coming
up, depending on the French franc. The price of the French wine
may go up or down, but 1983 was a very unusual year.
ii Mr. Byblow: Does the liquor corporation have any special
orders made up by suppliers — special to mean, particular Yukon
labels, private stock or anything other than the ordinary shelf stock?

Mr. Thibault: One special brand was originated by the Yukon
Liquor Corporation, which you may know about. With the
assistance of Canadian Schenley, we have introduced Yukon
Hootch a few years ago.

Another may be a special label, made at the request of a licencee.
We have one establishment in this town that has requested a special
label. In that case, we contacted a supplier and the supplier was
happy to have a special label made for that person. They are
specially ordered for that licencee. When the shipment arrives, the
shipment is turned over to the licencee for his use. Those special
orders, of course, are not for sale to the public.

Mr. Byblow: Do all thit markup procedures follow in those
instances?

Mr. Thibault: The markup procedures apply just like any other
brands.

Mr. Byblow: And any resale of that liquor has to go through a
licencee?

Mr. Thibault: That is correct.
Mr. Byblow: Can special liquor stock be ordered by other than

a licencee?
Mr. Thibault: Yes, as a matter of fact, we do have special

orders frequently at the request of the public. Any person in the
territory could request a special brand, through our manager of the
liquor store, and we will order the product especially for that
person. This is one of the systems we have. If that product becomes
very popular, for example, if there are two or three people
requesting that brand of wine and we do not have that brand
available as a general listing, and if we see that that brand becomes
very popular, we place that brand into the general listing and it is
available to all the people in the Yukon.

We do have special orders and they are increasing in numbers
through the years.

Mr. Byblow: Are these special orders being resold, or are they
private stock?

Mr. Thihault: They are private stock for the person who places
the order.

Mr. Byblow: Is it a condition of that procurement that they
cannot be sold?

Mr. Thihault: If a licencee requests a special brand, he is
authorized by his licence to resell it, but a private person cannot.

Mr. Falle: If, for instance, a gentleman or an outlet decided
that they wanted a special stock and they wanted a year’s supply of
stock, is that person or outlet compelled to take the entire stock on
arrival, or can they take one case this week and one case next
week? Basically, what I am trying to get at, and I have heard
complaints as an MLA, is that when there is special stock in, the
order could be from $10,000 to $20,000. Because they like this
special stock, they would ask that they be able to take this stock as
required; I understand that they cannot. Is that right?
u Mr. Thihault: It has been a policy in the past, for example,
that if a licencee ordered one hundred cases of a specific wine,
when the shipment arrives, he take it. We try as much as possible to
have the licencee purchase the whole shipment at once. There is
problem in our warehouse, because that item has to be placed in a
specific location, and marked “Do Not Touch’’ and all the
precautions to make sure that some of that product is not sold to
anybody else. However, we have tried to assist the licencee in that
area by asking him to purchase a hundred cases in four orders,
rather than one order. So we have been more lenient in this area to
keep that special order for that private licencee.

Mr. Falle: Yes, maybe I am making a suggestion to the board
here, I am not sure. But thank you. You have answered my
question.
ii Mr. Penikett: The line of inquiry this morning has reminded
me that there was once a special sale, Mr. Thibault, for deputy
ministers and other important people. I assume that is not
continuing?

Mr. Thibault: I missed that.
Mr. Penikett: I seem to recall there was at one time a special

sale available for deputy ministers and other important people. That
is not continued, I assume?

Mr. Thibault: Really, Mr. Chairman, to be honest, that special
sale was for everybody, not just for the deputy ministers or
ministers, and so on.

Mr. Penikett: It was just that the advertising was limited.
Mr. Thibault: It was a memorandum that I sent out, not simply

to some of the deputy ministers, but I can assure you that this
situation will never arise again.

Mr. Peaikett: Okay. Mr. Byblow, you have a question about
the pricing policy?

Mr. Byblow: No, my question relates to inspectors, and is very
brief. Mr. Thibault, you said you had two inspectors, yesterday.
The chart IC shows one. Is the manager of inspections also an
inspector?

Mr. Thibault:
Mr. Byblow:
Mr. Penikett:

bonded warehouses?
Mr. Falle: Yes. You have explained to me, Mr. Thibault, that

you have already investigated the possibility of having a bonded
warehouse and I believe your remark was that it just was not
feasible. How I understand bonded warehouses to be, is that they
handle mostly all imported stock, all items with federal taxes on it,
and the majority of them in the country are private industry. I
wonder if, when you made your investigation, you were basically
thinking that the
it solely for the
possibly turning
private sector?

Mr. Thibault: I was strictly thinking of having the bonded
warehouse as part of our central warehouse. As to the other
question, about a private bonded warehouse, I do not believe this
would be possible.

Mrs. Harvey: May I help on this, sir? These exist in one area
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Yes, he is.
That clears that.
Mr. Falle, you have a follow-up question about

government creating the warehouse and operating
purposes of the liquor board, or can you see it
into another industry for the Yukon under the
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that I know of, and that is in B.C. It is within the last three to live
years. They arc the only ones who moved in this manner. What has

U happened there is that the agents, or the firms who ship the items
in, have a warehouse. They hold and sell to the liquor board as

fl
required. They hoped it would resolve a loi of things, and the main
thing that they hoped it would resolve was the fact that they had to
to use millions on the new warehouse, A lot of millions. The first
few years has shown thai they are not reaching what they had hoped
they would reach. Number one, they are not reaching savings,

U which reflect on retail items, due to the fact that you are out of the
norm, out of the sync, out of the freight rate meetings — that is one
example — where you add up with the associations from every area
in Canada and with the large overseas freighting firms. I learned a
lot through the fact thai they named me the rep from the west in
1981 or 1982, where it is really hard-nosed rate arguments and
fighting. You need everyone with you. They lost out on Freight
rates through the fact their agent had no clout re their freight rates[ that they absorbed en route from Europe. and so on. They had
hoped, long range, that they would move further and they would let
these ads out, and a private firm would assume this. I have not
heard in the last year and a half, but from what I had learned at thatr hour. they were certainly realizing that all of these hopes might well

U be shattered and they might see in the next five, eight. line years

where they would move away from they have now, at the loss of
maybe millions. And the firms are not that thrilled. When the
recession happened, these firms were caught with very large

U amounts of these items on hand.
They were not selling, so each firm absorbed those losses. So

they were screaming a year and a half ago. I do not know if it has

fl lessened or levelled off.
Mr. Falle: They are probably smiling now. I would like the

corporation to investigate the possibility of the bonded warehouse.
keeping in mind the perspective of the private industry maybe going

Q into that. It would not only benefit, in my opinion, the liquor
corperation. but any industry or small business that carries any
items which had to be disposed of.

Mr. Penikelt: Before the deputy minister responds to that. I

a think I hear a hint of a policy question there and perhaps you may
want to pursue that with the minister, rather than here.

Mr. Byblow: I will direct this to Mr. Thibault again. To what
extent do suppliers, through agents, use your facilities for

fl distribution of complementary’ liquor’? How does the practice work
where ball clubs and other organizations receive complementary
liquor from Molsons and so on?

Mr. Thibault: Usually, the agent will purchase the liquor from
the liquor corporation and deliver the liquor to the ball game or to
any organization that they so wish.

Mr. Penikelt: Molsons buys back some of their own stock, for
example?

r Mr. Thibault: That is correct, yes.
Mr. Byblow: Where it appears that a supplier is distributing

1—A complementary liquor, they have actually bought it from the stock
you originally bought?

n Mr. Thihault: That is correct.
Mr. Byblow: The Yukon Liquor Corporation never gives out

complementary liquor in any form?
Mr. Thibault: We do not.
Mr. Pcnikett: I will direct this question regarding com

plementary liquor to Mr. Byers, who may wish to refer it to Mr.
U Thibault.

I am referring to a legislative return which was tabled in May,
1984. I want to ask a bit of a lawyer’s question, which is why I am
directing it to Mr. Byers. I notice a small discrepancy between two
of the answers in this six point answer, I will read the first point
and then read you the last one and ask you to clarify them for me.

This was in answer to a question about the policy of the board in
terms of gifts from liquor suppliers and so forth, or from sales
people, which happens in many industries, The first answer says
that “the Liquor Act states that no gifts from liquor suppliers are to
be received by board members or corporation employees, and liquor
corporation policy extends this rule to the families of such members
and employees”.

The final answer said, ‘‘Because there are no records, it is
impossible to say how many samples have been received. The
estimate of four to six bottles per month received by the general
manager should apply to each of the last three years’’. This is the
sentence I want to draw your attention to. ‘‘The general manager
has reported to me that no gifts have been received by him, and no
gifts or samples have been received by board members or other
employees of the corporation in the last three years’’. There is no
reference to families in the last answer, as there is in the first
statement of the policy. It may have been an oversight, Mr. Byers.
o Mr. Byers: 1 am sure that it is, because the policy is the same.

Mr. Penikett: This committee would, however, want the
assurance that no gifts have gone to members of the families either,
in connection with this,

Mr. Byers: Oh. I think we can give you that assurance
unhesitatingly, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Penikelt: Any other questions? Mr. Thibault?
Mr. Thihault: Mr. Chairman, yesterday you asked for some

information on the mark-up on spirits and wine. To elaborate on
this, the mark-up on spirit and wine varies according to the
alcoholic content, the nature of the product, and the source of the
product. The mark-up could range between 100 per cent and 240
per cent. The beer mark-up varies according to negotiated price, of
course, and the type of the item. It could range between 40 to 100
percent in mark-up. As I am privileged to the mark-ups of all of (he
provinces. I would like to advise the committee that the overall
mark-up ratio in the Yukon is very much less than other
jurisdictions in Canada.

Mr. Penikett: Thank you. Mr. Thihault.
Mr. Byhlow: That mark-up you refer to as being lower in

Yukon than other jurisdictions, is that the mark-up after freight?
Mr. Thibault: Yes.
Mr. Bvblow: FOB Whitehorse?
Mr. Thihault: FOB Whitehorse, that is correct.
Mr. Penikett: On that note, then, I would just like to thank you

Mr. Byers. Mrs. Harvey, Mr. Thibault and Mrs. Pociwauschek.
You have been very frank and forthright witnesses and we would
like to excuse you now. Thank you for being here. I do not think
we will have any further questions. If we do we will communicate
them by letter and hope we can get a response that way.

Mr. Byers: Thank you very’ much. Mr. Chairman. If there are
further questions we will respond to them.

Mr. Penik-ett: The committee will adjourn for a 10 minute
recess.

Recess

Mr. Penikett: I will call the hearing back to order. This
morning, we are welcoming back, for, it must be, the umpteenth
time, I do not know exactly how often, Mr. Frank Fingland, the
territorial treasurer and Mr. Ray Hayes, the director of taxation and
money management.

If I could briefly explain, Mr. Fingland, we hope to, in something
less than the hour available to us this morning, take a look at the
other side of the ledger. We traditionally look very much at
expenditures. We hope to improve our understanding of the sources
of those funds and how they are collected and how that is managed.

I will begin by taking a look at the operating and capital grants
from Canada, which is the largest chunk of money for us. Could we
get a brief description of the procedures for negotiating the amounts
of those grants?

Mr. Fingland: To the present time, since the 1960s, we have
been negotiating the level of these grants with the federal
government on an annual basis. The method being used is described
as the ‘‘block funding system”, which is based on an agreed fiscal
framework. In other words, each year we go down with an
operating plan, which outlines what our estimated expenditures are
going to be for the year in both capital and O&M. That is discussed
sometimes in considerable detail. We then agree on a percentage
increase in the fiscal framework from the previous year.

On the O&M side, the discussions have varied quite considerably
in detail. It is sometimes discussed program by program, sometimes
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not. I think the difficulty with that has been that it has made it
necessary for us to generate very large volumes of paper on specific
programs or specific areas of interest and concern. It has also made
it very difficult for the federal government to really get a very clear
picture of what the framework consists of without an enormous
amount of work.

On the capital side, it has worked pretty much the same way.
although there has been considerably less scrutiny of the detail of
the capilal. The capital grant was theoretically increased by the
construction price index. Each year. in recent years, that figure has
really not been a specific index figure; it has been something thai
has been ullimalely decided upon by the Treasury Board as being
what they consider an appropriale increase for the year, frequently
related, as far as I can tell, on the kind of reference levels they have
issued to the federal departments.

Of course, it is largely as a result of the difficulties in these areas
that we are attempting to move to a formula basis whereby we
would agree on a given level for the fiscal framework in a particular
year. and then escalate it by a neutral set of indicators. That
formula is still in the final stages of negotiation and perhaps it
would be more appropriate for that to be left to be discussed at the
lime the legislation is introduced.
o Mr. Penikelt: I guess I will have to wait to ask you about a
neutral set of indicators until that time, then.

I understand Ihal the operating grants are negotiated based on the
annual operational plan thai you referred to, which is prepared by
the territory, and which lakes into account the estimated income tax
and other revenues. Does your department have established
procedures for developing Ibis operational plan?

Mr. Fingland: We have, and with the introduction of formula
financing we will no longer require an operating plan, per se. The
procedures are not formal procedures. We develop our estimales for
our own estimates, our own appropriation, and then we review
these again at the time we send them down for the operational plan.
The actual estimating of revenues for the operational plan has been,
in 1984-85, really not quite so compelling in the sense that in
previous years the estimates thnt we used were the final basis on
which we determined the amount of the grant. There was no
subsequent adjustment. In 1984-85, for the first time, there is a
requirement that there will be an adjustment in the grant on the
basis of the actual revenues that materialize. We have had that kind
of fail-safe mechanism in the past with respect to income tax, but
not with other revenues, but this year, 1984-85, for the first time,
we have had to do that. As you can see, that makes it not quite so
necessary to be absolutely certain about the estimates.

Mr. Peniketi: So that if the EPF goes down and the income tax
changes, the grant basically stays the same, because that is
automatically adjusted.

Mr. Fingland: Yes.
is Mr. Penikett: You have talked about the new system being
basically a new and improved one. Could you indicate just briefly
some kind of description of the processes under the old one. You
talked about volumes of paper, and so forth, but could you just
elaborate a little?

Mr. Fingland: Once the operational plan was prepared each
year and sent down, usually around the end of February, the plan
then was, at one point, actually rolled into the operational plan of
Indian and Northern Affairs, but in recent years it has simply been
accompanying their particular operational plan. tn order 10 be quite
clear about what the operational plan contained and to let both sides
question each other and to raise any outstanding issues, we had a
joint meeting, usually in May. at which all the various elements of
the operational plan were discussed. Then the operational plan, with
whatever alterations or adjustments that we had agreed upon, would
go forward to the federal treasury board. The federal treasury
board, in setting the reference level for the Department of tndian
and Northern Affairs, would also set a reference level for the
operating grant and the capital grant. That would then be made
known to the department sometime in July — sometimes in August,
but, hopefully in July. That would be communicated to us, and we
would then have an opportunity to review it again with what we call
the Intergovernmental Committee on the Federal Territorial Finan

cial Relations, usually around October. That would be the point at
which the department would be rolling up its figures on the basis of
its reference level for the main estimates for the following fiscal
year. Then, of course, that would go back for final approval of the
treasury board and the preparation of main estimates.

Mr. Penlkett: Can I ask you what restrictions, if any, are
placed on the territory’s expenditures through this process?

Mr. Fingland: There is no limitation on the O&M side. The
only limitation that exists is a requirement that expenditures on the
capital side of $5 million and over for a specific project must have
specific approval of the federal treasury board.

Mr. Pcnikett: But the surplus and the operating grant can go to
capital, hut not the other way.

Mr. Fingland: That is right. There is a provision that we can
make a transfer of up to five per cent of the previous year’s main
estimates.

Mr. Penikett: If a major increase in expenditure rises during a
year because of some new need that is identified — what with the
introduction of new programs that have to be financed — is there an
established provision for grant adjustments for items of that nature?

Mr. Fingland: It depends at the moment very much on what the
nature of the item is. Ln theory, we are obliged to either revise our
priorities or find the money out of our working capital. We have
taken the position, however, that where new expenditures have
been indicated as a result of an initiative at the federal level — and
something like Young Offenders would be an example — then we
feel that there is an obligation on the part of the federal government
to provide us with supplementary financing for that purpose. That is
a principle that we have endeavoured to maintain, with varying
degrees of success.

Mr. Penlkett: From what you are saying, Mr. Fingland. there
is not an automatic, if you like, re-opener in the process, when such
an event or occurrence like that takes place?
is Mr. Fingland: No, there is not an automatic re-opening.

Mr. Penlkett: If the planned capital expenditure does not take
place. does any part of that capital grant have to be repaid?

Mr. Fiagland: No.
Mr. Penikelt: If capital expenditures are significantly higher

than planned due to new requirements, is there any provision to
increase the amount of that capital grant?

Mr. Fingland: That would depend very much on our capacity
to negotiate with the federal government on the basis of what I
mentioned a moment ago. If there were some aspect of it that was a
federal initiative, we might attempt to have the grant adjusted. We
have had some success in this regard in the past, but at the moment
it is very much a matter of negotiation.

Mr. Penikett: The next largest source of money is the income
taxes. We had territorial tax legislation passed in 1980. Are we
experiencing any particular problems in terms of the administration
of that act?

Mr. Fingland: I could perhaps let Mr. Hayes speak about the
actual problems of administration. I think, in general terms, our
only problem has been that it has continued to decline. In fact, in
some respects, it has declined quite markedly, which is a reflection
of the economic downturn. As for the actual administration. I think
I would let Mr. Hayes speak to that.

Mr. Hayes: We have not had any significant administration
problems. The only thing that comes to mind is that the actual
agreement, whereby the federal government collects income tax on
behalf of the territory, stipulates that there has to be uniformity in
the ]egislatiun at this level and at the federal level. The only
administrative type problem is the delay in getting legislation at the
territorial level to reflect changes at the federal level. There is no
mechanism whereby when a legislative change is made at the
federal level, it is automatically made at the territorial level.
Sometimes there is a situation where there may be a time lag of a
year before you get that uniformity, while the actual changes are
being administrated as if they were in effect.

Mr. Penikett: The next question I want to ask has a policy
dimension, but I do not want you to respond to that. I want you to
respond to the administrative problem.

Clearly, in a place like ours, where a lot of the employment is
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p. concentrated in the summer months, and we have a lot of seasonal

workers here, we have a significant amount of income lax leakage
L because people become non-residents on the day of assessment.

December 31. Is there any administrative effort to deal with that
problem? Mr. Fingland may want to respond to that rather than Mr.
Hayes.

It is a problem that we have had identified for some time, and
Northwest Territories have an even bigger problem than we do, and

fl
they have been pressing for a solution to this problem. I was under
the impression that there had heen some discussion of this recently.

Mr. Fingland: There have been ongoing discussions for some
time now, and an actual committee set up, with representatives
from each of the ten provinces and two territories, as well as the

U federal government. It is a committee called the Income Tax
Allocation Committee. We are in the process, right now, of trying
to come up with a different method of allocating income as opposed
to the province of residence of December 31st — something along

fl the lines of where the income is earned. The details have not been
worked out yet, but it is under discussion.

Mr. Penikelt: Unless other members have any questions on
income tax, I might go on to look at the property and school taxes.
which is the next chunk of revenue, if you like. This is one more
completely under the control of the territory than the previous two.
Could I just briefly ask either of you for some kind of demarcation
of the respective responsibilities of finance and municipal and
community affairs with regard to the assessment levy and collection
of school and property taxes.

Mr. Hayes: Community Affairs right now are responsible for
the assessment of all properties in the territory, whether they are

fl within our collecting authority or the City of Whitehorse, Dawson.
Faro or any one of the five new municipalities. When it comes
down to the actual property tax levy, the recommended tax rates
that go forward are a joint recommendation between finance and

jfl community services. The actual collection and idministration from
that point on is a function of finance.

Mr. Penikett: Okay. Does the Department of Finance assume
any responsibility for ensuring that all properties are assessed?

Q Mr. Fingland: Not on the assessment side. I think on the
assessment side that it is community affairs.

Mr. Pcnikett: So you do not take any responsibility for
ensuring that properties are assessed, that properties that are taxable

R are identified, or any role like that?
Mr. Flngland: No.
Mr. Hayes: No.
Mr. Penikett: Could I just ask you, on that score, do you have

any responsibility in terms of — I want to choose the right word
here — chasing the federal Crown in terms of grants in lieu of
property taxes? I cannot remember for sure, but I think some 80
percent, or so, are paid at much less than the rate that they would be
taxed if they were in private hands.

Mr. Bayes: Yes, we do. Basically, what happens is that when
the tax role is generated, it will reflect all properties that are
taxable. We will then go into the assessment role and pull out all
properties that are subject to the grant in lieu. There are thc

U Department of Indian Affairs, NorthwesTel, CBC, CN, and various
other groups, and then we submit our grant request to the municipal
services branch of the federal government, I believe it is, and at that
point they will generally pay us within a reasonable period of time a
grant equivalent to 80 per cent of our request. Then, at some point

L down the road as they verify the assessment figures, they will pay
the balance.

Mr. Penikctt: Okay. It does not vary from the 80 percent. That
is just a general rule for all of them, is it?

L Mr. Hayes: We request 80 per cent up front.
Mr. Penikett: Oh, you do request 80 per cent up front. How

long is the delay before the payment of the remaining portion, or
does that become a matter of dispute sometimes?

J Mr. Hayes: It varies from year to year. Generally, four to five
years would be a reasonable average. It will depend on how soon
they get their people up here to verify the assessment through the
assessment branch.

Mr. Penikett: So they do their own independent assessment of

that?
Mr. Hayes: Not necessarily an assessment, but they do a

verification.
Mr. Penikett: Do they pay interest on those unpaid taxes?
Mr. Hayes: No.
Mr. Penikett: Let me say, then, that because you do not review

the assessment, you, yourselves, do not have any established
criteria for checking whether properties are assessed, or how they
are assessed, that you are responsible for?

Mr. Hayes: We do not have any responsibility to verify that
properties out in the territory arc on the assessment roll. When the
assessment roll is originally created in late November, early
December, a copy of that roll is sent to finance for checking. We
check to make sure that things like address changes that have come
through us in the last year, deletions for leases — things like this —

or all the property additions that come through our area are reflected
on the assessment roll.

We then return that assessment roll to the assessments branch
with a covering memo reflecting the changes that we would like to
see made and then they will make those changes and generate
another assessment roll. From that, the assessment notices will be
mailed out.

Mr. Penikett: I gather these assessment procedures and criteria
are contained in the assessment administration manual. Is that a
manual into which you have some input?

Mr. Hayes: Not to the best of my knowledge, we have not.
Mr. Penikelt: Beyond that process you just described to us, the

department does not take any role in assuring all the assessed
properties have been taxed then?

Mr. Hayes: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: The assessment review board and the assessment

appeal boards are not boards on which you are represented either?
Mr. Hayes: No.
Mr. Penikett: As to the adjustments or cancellations of

property and school taxes, who gives the approval for any of those
kinds of corrections, particularly when we have homeowner grants,
and so forth? Could you describe something about that process?

Mr. Hayes: I am not sure I follow what your question is about.
Mr. Penikett: At some point, the department collects school

and property taxes. They go into the consolidated revenue fund.
Because of the appeal procedares and the appeals against assess
ments and so forth, there may be adjustments. Those may be
adjustments in the assessments which, I take it from you, are not
your business. Presumably, if a house burns down, that changes the
situation, but because there is the homeowner grant, you have some
input there in this business of property taxes. Could you describe
something about that?
u Mr. Hayes: To carry a step further the procedure I outlined
earlier on the assessment role, when the assessment role I
mentioned earlier is created and the assessment notices are mailed
out, the individual property owner has the opportunity to appeal an
assessment. After all appeals have gone through the Assessment
Review Board, and all changes recommended by the Assessment
Review Board have been reflected in the assessment file,, an
updated assessment role is created to reflect all these changes. It is
from that particular file that the tax role is created.

Mr. Penikett: Let me move on to the question of delinquent
taxes. I am assuming that even in respect to school taxes,
delinquent taxes within the city become basically a collection
problem for the municipalities. Could I just ask you briefly about
that?

Mr. Hayes: We collect from the city regardless of whether or
not the taxes are collected by the municipality.

Mr. Penikelt: What happens in the case of delinquent property
taxpayers outside the municipalities, where the collection comes
directly to the territory?

Mr. Hayes: What happens is that when the tax roll is created,
and the tax notices are mailed out, the revenue is then recognized at
that point in time. The actual accounting function is transferred
from a revenue reflection to an accounts receivable one and a
collection problem. In the past, the only times that we have, if you
will, written off property taxes, either general or school taxes, are
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in situations where we have acquired a property through arrears,
and at that point there are specific instructions in the legislation
requiring us to delete the taxes.

Mr. Penlkett: Before you get to that point, Mr. Hayes, could I
just ask you: wha are your procedures for following up on those
delinquent taxes, and maybe you could talk about lien procedures
oo?

Mr. Hayes: The lax no(ices are mailed out on or before May 15
of each year. Taxes are due and payable on or before July 2nd of
each year. On (axes unpaid as of July 3rd. there is an automillic 10
per cent penally added, plus interest at the Bank of Canada rate that
was in effect at July 2nd. In about late August or early September,
we get into the collection aspect of the property taxes. We send out
collection letters on all property (ax arrears, we follow that up
through a series of other letters. When the taxes are outstaoding for
a period of six months, we are then in a position to indicate our
intention to rcgister a lien on the property. We do that by creating a
list of properties that we wish to register a lien on. That list is
forwarded lo the Commissioner and it comes back with the
Commissioner’s signature and basically his approval to go ahead.
We (hen take that list and delete any individuals off that list who
have paid the (axes in the interim period, advertise that form, which
then becomes a form TL2. in both the l’ukon News and Whitehorse
Star. Sixty days after that advertisement appears in the newspaper.
we then register a lien on the property.

Mr. Penikelt: How late can an individual have an opportunity
to pay off the taxes after the lien procedures have been set in
motion?

Mr. Hayes: The individual can pay the property taxes at any
time until the day before we acquire title to the property for arrears.

Mr. Penikelt: Then if you do acquire title to (he property,
subsequently, the property is then sold?

Mr. Hayes: The property is then transferred to the lands branch
of Community and Transportation Services.

Mr. Penikett: So you have no knowledge of how (he sale price
is determined after that?

Mr. Hayes: Not officially, no,
Mr. Penikett: When you have a sale, though, how are those

accounted for and reported?
Mr. Hayes: That would be a function of Community Affairs

and Transportation Services. I would assume that it would be
reflected at the price.

Mr. Penikett: Even though there is a revenue or recovery
coming back to you, it comes through their accoutfling?

Mr. Fingland: That is righ(.
Mr. Penikett: Do you have any statistics about the numbers of

delinquent properties for the year under review? I do not mean right
with you now, but do you keep maintaining (hose kinds of statistics
for the taxation year?

Mr. Hayes: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Could we, at some point, get some of those

numbers, and also some numbers about the values of the properties
seized under lien procedures in the year under review? I guess we
might have to go to community affairs for the numbers of properties
that might be sold.

You have a situation here where, in terms of property taxes, if
you look at the full spectrum you have described, or the full course
of things, you have, at the outset, an assessment branch under
community and transportation — I sometimes forget that depart
ment names are changed frequently — then when the money comes
in. finance has a responsibility. Then, if there is a lien procedure,
which may end up with the property being sold, it goes back to
community and transportation.

You have some general responsibilities for collections. Do you
have any kind of coordinating relationship with them in lerms of
this whole business of property taxation? Any functional rela
tionship with them?

Mr. Hayes: We put together a joint submission in setting the
tax rates, going on to management board and subsequently to
cabinet, for establishing the tax rates based on criteria that has been
established over the years. Assessments will basically create the
assessment file, and we, in finance, will create the taxation file,

and then we will be responsible for the administration of that until
(he time that the property is acquired, at which time it will then be
automatically transferred over. Land titles will, in effect, forward
(he title of the property acquired through arrears to land titles and
just notify us.

Mr. Penikett: Since assessmen is not your responsibility,
when you have a case such as was in a press story recently about an
over-assessing problem in Dawson City. that is not a particular
problem (hat you would take an interest in?

Mr. Hayes: I would only take an inerest in H from the point of
view of the impact of any possible change in that assessment on the
revenues.
24 Mr. Penikett: Let me move on then to the next question, which
is health care insurance premiums, and I am going to turn that over
to Mr. Ashley. Have you got a question on this, Mr. Ashley?

Mr. Ashley: Yes. I have. Just to clarify on the 20 per cent that
the federal government does not pay right away, did you say it was
four to five years before they paid?

Mr. Hayes: Four to five years would be a good average, yes.
Mr. Ashley: Until they had done an assessment?
Mr. Hayes: Until they had done a review the assessments for

(he individual years.
Mr. Ashley: Even if they have just done one the year before,

(hey still hold back for another four years until they do another
assessmen(?

Mr. Hayes: What they do is review the assessment as it relates
to a particular year, rather than doing an assessment and saying,
okay, that assessment is fine, we will pay on that for the next five
years. They will come in and historically review the assessment.

Mr. Peniketi: Could you compare that to grants in lieu that the
municipalities might want to coIledl from the territory?

Mr. Hayes: Grants in lieu that the municipalities collect from
this government are automatically paid out. There is no wait.

Mr. Penikett: Is that a hundred per cent?
Mr. Hayes: Yes. There is no 80 percent charge.
Mr. Ashley: We will go on to Yukon Health Care insurance

premiums. What I would like to do is to get a description of
procedures for the billing, recording and collection of the pre
miums. Now, is that done through finance, in actual fact, or is it
done through the health care insurance plan?

Mr. Fingland: No, Mr. Chairman, it is handled through health
and human resources, although we have an involvement insofar as
the employees of the Yukon Government are concerned, because
the premiums are collected by payroll deduction.

Mr. Pealkett: Could I just ask you to clarify that. Mr.
Fingland. Did (he finance department have any role in developing
those procedures at all?

Mr. Fingland: No.
Mr. Ashley: I would like to ask one more question on that,

basically. on the inspections done. It is kind of an overall question.
I will try not to get into the policy on it. In that act it specifies that
inspectors can go out and examine employers’ records. Now, there
are a number of acts that state that that has to be done. Do you
coordinate one inspector through finance to go out and inspect
places for workers’ compensation, for Yukon health care insurance
premiums. and for all the things that have to be done, so there is
only one inspector in the business instead of ten?

Mr. Fingland: We have tried, from time to time, in finance to
do that. We find it extremely difficult to work out a mutually
accep(able arrangement. We are doing audits in other areas, in the
area of fuel tax, and tobacco tax, and occasionally insurance
premiums. We have made an attempt to notify other departments
that we are willing to carry out audits or inspections of various
sorts, but we really have had relatively little success in that area.

Mr. Ashley: You do not foresee any change in that?
Mr. Hayes: Not at the moment, no, I do not.
Mr. Penikett: As it relates to a general problem of collecting

revenues, do you have to satisfy yourself in any way that premiums
are collected, or if there is an efficacy in the method of collecting
premiums, since it is a significant source of revenue?

Mr. England: We do not carry out any sort of independent
review of how effectively the Department of Health and Human
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Resources is actually doing (he job. We do come into it in a global
f sense in that, usually annually, we attempt to relate the amount of

revenues from this source, plus the recoveries that we make under
the EPF, to the total cost of the program, because we always like to
be able to verify, if we can, for minislers and for the Legislature,

L that the cost of (he program is being financed from Ihese two
sources and is not being subsidzed in any way from other sources of
revenue. That is the only review that we do in finance.

Mr. Penikett: I ask the question because I think it is
(1 remarkable, given (he premiums and the costs, thai the net costs

seem to bounce up and down from year to year. As an overall
budgetting problem, thai would seem io me to produce a difficulty
from your point of view.

Mr. Hayes: It is. very much so, yes.

L Mr. Penikett: Maybe I could ask some questions about fuel and
heating oil taxes. The taxes are assessed under the FIlL’! Oil Ta.t
Act. We know what the current rates are and we know thai monthly

U returns and remittances are required to be made to the government
and there is a periodic examination of vendors’ and distributors’
records carried out by the finance staff in order to verify proper
collection and remittance of taxation.

jJ To what extent, and how often, do you analyze these revenues, in
a global way? Presumably, there is a fairly easy way to establish
how’ much diesel fuel is sold in the territory in any year. and to
know whether, on the basis of the tax on that global amount.

[7 whether the revenue is being collected everywhere?

[j Mr. Hayes: We maintain what I refer to as cash flow charts,
We graphically plot the fuel tax revenue on a monthly basis as we
go through the year. Returns come in on the 28th of the month,

fl following the month of sale, and we use these for cash flow
purposes, and also as an indication of the total revenue we can
anticipate for the year.

Mr. Ashley: Is there a reciprocal arrangement (1w fuel that is

Q bought in the NWT and sold in the Yukon. where the tax is not paid
there, but paid here’? I would not want to see double taxation; the
fuel is already too expensive.

Mr. Hayes: That is not a major problem area. What happens is
that, for example. Imperial Oil will file a distributor return in the

L Northwest Territories, and also file a distributor return here. Fuel
that they have in inventory in the Northwest Territories that comes
to Yukon will show as an export from the Northwest Territories and

C
an import in the Yukon. Until that fuel is sold, it will remain in
inventory. It will become taxable at (he point of sale to retailers.

Mr. Penikett: How do you deal with the problem of fuel
bought wholesale in the Northwest Territories and sold in Yukon?

Mr. Hayes: The same situation would apply. To verify that we
are getting the correct amount we will periodically have an auditor

Li examine the books and records, in this case, of, say. Imperial Oil or
Shell or whoever it would happen to be.[ Mr. Pcnikett: Let me just move on to the question of licensinu
and ask you generally about the hunting and the fishing licence
revenues, which are smaller sums of money. collected under the
wildlife legislation, and so forth. Do you have any responsibility in
respect to those licensing fees or any procedures to of know

I whether everybody who is supposed to be licensed is licensed, or
U any checks on those kinds of revenues?

Mr. Fingland: No, Mr. Chairman. We have no actual involve

D
ment in the administration of. or enforcement of the collection of,
those revenues, other than to monitor in a general way, annually, to
determine the global return from those sources.

Mr. Penikett: So the problem of knowing whether everybody is
r licensed or everybody should be licensed is the responsibility of the

line departments.
U Mr. Fingland: Yes.

Mr. Peniketi: Could I just ask you about a discrepancy in
figures. You may not be able to respond directly. Mr. Fingland,
because you may not have them in front of you. I refer you to the
revenues from renewable resources for 1983-84. In the territorial
accounts in the Yukon Annual Report, there is a difference in the
numbers, Under campground permits, the territorial accounts refer

fl to about $71,500. The Yukon Annual Report refers to $65300. In
— hunting licences, seals and permits, and so forth, territorial

accounts show 5276.000; the Yukon Annual Report shows about
5278.900. Again, in respect to fishing licences. the territorial
accounts show $86,000. the Yukon Annual Report $84,400. The
Annual Report I am referring to is page 15 and lb. the one that we
just recently have. Now, there may he some adjustments here, but
the fact that there is a difference in all three figures is curious. Can
you shed any light on that at all?

Mr. Fingland: I am afraid I really do not know what might
account for that discrepancy. The only thing that springs to mind is
that the annual report may have been based on unaudited year-end
figures. That is only a suggestion.

Mr. Penikett: So at the time ii went to press, they did not have
the final figures?

Mr. Fingland: That is the only thing I can think of.
Mr. Penikett: Do you. as a matter of course, if you discover

such a discrepancy, cheek on that?
Nir. Fingland: We would raise it with the department if it is

brought to our attention, but we do not systematically go through
the reports to do that.

Mr. Penikett: Let me record our curiousity about it.
Mr. Ashley: I would like to know how you collect all your

tobacco taxes.
Mr. hayes: The procedures on tobacco taxes are very similar to

fuel tax. We have, right now, approximately 22 licensed distribu
tors of tobacco in the territory at the wholesale level. These 22
distributors file returns with us on a monthly basis, again due the
28th day of the month following the month of sale, in which they
account for sales and the tax calculation applicable to the territory.

Mr. Ashley: How do you actually find out who is importing
and wholesaling tobacco in the territory?

Mr. Hayes: The specific legislation covering the tobacco tax
makes it illegal for anybody to sell tobacco without the appropriate
licence. We also have contact with the weigh scale in Watson Lake
and Haines Junction, so that if there are truckloads of tobacco
coming in, and the weigh scale operators inquire as to the contents
of trucks coming in, they notify us that there is a truckload of
tobacco coming in and we will periodically coordinate that
intormation through the individual returns.

Mr. Ashley: The next question has to do with taxing. Taking
into account the latest information that has been medically proven
now regarding the health hazards to both smokers and non-smokers.
is the Government of Yukon collecting enough revenue from the tax
to cover these costs, basically?

Mr. Fingland: I have to be very careful and not express a
personal opinion on this issue. I guess, to be completely objective
about it, from my standpoint. I am really only concerned about the
actual dollars it generates without expressing any view as to the
source. My concern would be. if we were to discontinue the tax —

or increase it. to take the other point of view — what the impact of
that would he on the overall revenue position of the government.

Mr. Penikett: I think we have a couple more questions we
might want to ask in terms of the overall revenue picture. Mr.
Fingland. What we may like to do, if it is agreeable to you, is pick
those up tomorrow when we are hoping to talk to you about the
Auditor General’s Report On Any Other Matter. It is up to you to
bring whatever witnesses you wish, but I would like to close off
with a couple of questions on revenue first and then deal with the
Report on Any Other Matter.

Mr. Finglund: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Thank you very much for your time this

morning. Witnesses are excused. The committee will now adjourn
into executive session.

Cnniminee zdjourned at I! ,3Q a. m -
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EVIDENCE
Friday, February 15, 1985

Mr. Penikett: I will call the meeting to order. I apologize for
the short delay.

We would like to welcome back Mr. Fingland and Mr. Hayes and
Mr. Uday Patankar, the comptroller.

Mr. Fingland, I suggested yesterday that we begin where we left

r off and try to close the subject of revenue.
It was probably clear to you that we were working our way

through the revenue side of the ledger of public accounts. We went
from the larger items to the less substantial items of revenuc

Coming down to the question of interest on municipal and
housing loans, we understand that these are loans made to ihe

U municipalities as authorized by the Municipal General Purpose.v
Loan Act for the purposes of carrying on programs of municipal
work. Bylaws approved in accordance with (he municipal ordinance
contain the details of the amount to be borrowed, the purpose.
determining the rate and the method of payment, and so forth.

Could I ask you about the control systems in respect to these
monies and the monitoring of the loans, particularly in regard to the
revenues you expect from them?
n Mr. Fingland: These loans are set up with an agreed repayment
schedule. I will let Mr. Hayes speak to the details of the monitoring
and administration.

Mr. Hayes: When we make a loan to a municipality, we set up
an amortization schedule to cover the entire period of the loan. That
amortization schedule will break down the individual payments
between principal and interest as each payment comes in on the due
date.

Mr. Penikett: Is there such a thing as a delinquent account for
a municipal loan?

Mr. Hayes: Not at this point.

Q Mr. Penikett: Has there been?
Mr. Hayes: No, there was a situation where some loans were

re-negotiated in Faro, back in 1983. but there were no delinquent
accounts.

Mr. Penikett: So you have never had any occasion to write off
any of those?

Mr. Hayes: No.
Mr. Penikett: With reference to the revenues on pages 50 and

r 60, where is the revenue shown for those? It is shown on schedule

10
on page 29, but where is it shown on page 50 and 60 of the

territorial accounts?
Perhaps I could give you a couple of other questions and you can

fl take that as notice.
Mr. Fingland: We will find the point at which that is reflected.
Mr. Penikett: I will ask a couple of other questions of a similar

kind, where I do not find the statements perfectly clear, then if we

U want to flag them and set them aside, we can come back to them.
On page 29, we were talking about the bank and investment. It

indicates $3,540,545; on page 57, on interest on investment, it
indicates $3,781,008. The figures balance if you include, on page
29, the delinquent taxes and the land development costs. This is

U perhaps not a question, but the labelling of those amounts. It does
not seem perfectly clear to me. Let me put that statement as a
question in some way.

1] Mr. Finglaad: I could not respond to that without examining it
in detail, I am sorry.

L. Mr. Penlkett: Let me leave it with you. Mr. Fingland.
Again, regarding those statements, we understand that the

government is in the mortgage business in Porter Creek and has

U some mortgages on homes, Where do those show up in terms of the
revenue from those mortgages?

Mr. Fingland: I think it would show as revenue to the Housing
Corporation, because they administer those mortgages.

Mr. Penikett: In terms of this bank and investment amount, is
U there some established investment policy or criteria, because there

is a fair amount of short-term money that the government has in the
bank from time to time?

Mr. Fingland: Yes, there is. We have a fairly extensive set of
regulations governing this, which sets out the policy in some detail.

If you wish, Mr. Hayes could explain the actual mechanics of how
we do that.

Mr. Penikett: I would appreciate that, Mr. Hayes. In doing
that, could you indicate to us whether this is part of the overall
banking agreement that you may have with your bank, or if it is a
separate regime: in other words, if your investments may be with
other bankers, other than the one that we keep the territorial
accounts with.

Mr. Hayes: In practicality, very little of our investment is what
the Bank of Commerce would deal with on a regular basis. Our
investments are with basically whoever will give us the best return
on the investment at a particular point of time. On the extremely
short term investments, the individual in charge of the investment
area will be in contact with up to half a dozen investment houses in
Vancouver. Montreal or Toronto. on a daily basis, getting quotes.
intcrcst rates, and what they are prepared to pay for various terms
of the investment. On arrival of an agreed term and interest rate, as
well as collateral for that loan, we will then notify the Bank of
Commerce here to contact its office in either Vancouver, Montreal
or Toronto, wherever the deal is closing, to release ‘‘X’’ number of
dollars on receipt of collateral. Only on the receipt of that collateral
will they release that money. At the same time, we will give them
instructions on releasing the collateral at the maturity of the
investment on receipt of ‘‘X’ number of dollars, which will include
the principal originally invested, plus the interest.

Mr. Penikett: So our banker has no responsibility, if you like,
for managing our investments?

Mr. Hayes: No. None whatsoever.
Mr. Penikett: Is there one person — is it yourself, Mr. Hayes

— who is responsible for managing those investments the way you
described just now?

Mr. Hayes: I am the individual who would ultimately be
responsible for it. but there is another individual, the manager of
investment and debt services, who will make the day-to-day contact
with the investment houses. He will choose the investment, and
then recommend to me that we proceed with the investment. At that
point. I would authorize that investment, and prepare written
documentation to be forwarded to the bank to authorize them to
release the funds at a given point in time.

Mr. Penikett: Could you give the committee any idea of the
volumes of those investments?

Mr. Hayes: Hearing in mind that the same one unit of money.
say a million dollars, may roll over as many as fifteen or twenty
times throughout a year, we are probably dealing with a total
volume in excess of $200 million over a given year.

That is not to say that at one point we have $200 million invested.
Mr. Penikett: The revenue to the Government of Yukon then

from that activity is represented by this $3,500,000 number in the
accounts here?

Mr. Hayes: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Let me go back to one other small item, if I can,

which is the subject of insurance premium taxes, the revenue from
which was $292,871 in the year under review. Could I ask you how
you know you are getting all those insurance premium taxes?
o Mr. Hayes: What we have established, over the years of
administering this particular tax. — we are in the process, and
continually reviewing it—, what we refer to as a tax roll, a list of
insurance companies who regularly provide sen’ices in the Yukon
and would be subject to collecting tax under this act.

We ensure that these individuals are contacted on an annual basis.
We send them returns for each year and ask that they be returned.
even if there are no premiums collected in the territory during that
year.

We also have information available to us through the supednten
dent of insurance as to the insurance companies licensed in the
territory. We have a publication available called the ‘Brown
Hook’’ or the ‘‘Brown Charts’’, which summarizes aN insurance
premiums sold in Canada on a calendar year basis for which we
collected the taxes.

We also have information available through Revenue Canada as
to the number of insurance companies filing income tax returns
allocating some revenue earned to this particular jurisdiction.
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Mr. Penlkett: That gives you a good idea of the global dollars
you are talking about here. Do you actually ever have occasion to
do inspections of the brokers, particularly the local brokers, or do a
sampling of their portfolios?

Mr. Hayes: We have not done any in the past four to five
years.

Mr. Penikelt: Presumably, because you have found no gap
between what the revenue should be and ...?

Mr. Hayes: It is a combination of not having a specific problem
area that we were aware of and the economics of doing the
inspection. The records for the insurance companies that would be
providing service in the Yukon would be in Toronto and it is fairly
expensive to travel down there and perform the audit function.

Mr. Penikeft: Based on the information available to you, in
terms of an analysis, you know something about the volume of the
premiums and you estimate that we are getting all that we are
entitled to of the revenues from those volumes.

Mr. Haycs: That is correct.
Mr. Penikett: Mr. Fingland, I have a couple of general

questions about the Department of Finance’s responsibilities for
revenue. lam referring you to page 20 of the annual report, April I.
1983 to March 31, 1984, which says, in part, ‘‘The department is
responsible for the collection of all taxes and revenues.’’

Picking up where we left off yesterday, could I just ask you to
comment briefly on how you see that responsibility, or how you
would further define that responsibility?

Mr. Fingland: I would begin by saying that our perception of
the responsibilities of the department, particularly since the new
legislation was passed, is that there are specific departments
designated as having responsibility for specific pieces of legislation,
including the actual responsibility for collecting the revenues that
flow from the administration of that legislation. This is why, in the
case of things like fishing and wildlife licences, that would be the
responsibility of renewable resources, and so on. And, of course, of
those departments, finance is one. We administer the responsibili
ties for income tax, and so on.

There are, however, certain obligations imposed on the Depart
ment of Finance, the Minister of Finance, and on the treasurer,
myself, under the new Financial Administration Act. Also, more
specifically, if you wish to have a look at this, under the Receipt
and Deposit Regulations there are very specific obligations imposed
on us to ensure that in our administration of the Financial
Administration Act we ensure that the procedures being followed
are adhered to. That applies on the expenditure side as well as the
revenue side.

That is not to say that this consists of an audit function, as such.
We have to be careful here, I think, in distinguishing between our
ensuring that our day-to-day administration is in compliance with
the regulations and the Financial Administration Act, on the one
hand, and the functions of the internal auditor, and of course the
external auditor as well. What we do in the performance of our
obligations is attempt to ensure that anything that may be irregular
is brought to our attention, either by officers of other departments
or by my own staff, by communication between myself and other
deputy ministers, and there is a constant on-going dialogue all the
time between ourselves and other departments. I am really
astounded at the number of times that I am consulted by other
departments, asking me if the relationships between the two
departments, both on the expenditure side and on the revenue side.
are in conformity with the act and the regulations. So far, I have
never really had any reason to believe that the relationship should
be one other than a reasonable degree of curiosity on our part, and a
certain amount of discretion. I realize that there are rather extensive
powers under the act that enable us to intervene, if necessary. I
have had no reason yet, and I hope I do not have, to have to
exercise those powers.

I suppose that it is almost, perhaps, best described as a sort of a
pre-audit function. We attempt to verify, in the day-to-day
operations of the revenue gathering functions of the other depart
ments, that the monies have been collected properly and have been
remitted to us. We have considerable hesitancy about going beyond
that, unless we have ground for feeling that we should.

Mr. Penikett: 1 appreciate that answer Mr. Fingland. You
talked about the collection procedures in some departments and you
referred to the new Financial Adnu,tistration Act, and I take it you
refer to section 8(l)(a) and (d), which makes specific reference to
that. Let me, if I could, just use one example, and it is one that we
touched on yesterday. I think you used the words that you might
‘‘express some curiosity about something, but you would use
discretion’’. Let me just ask you about the manifestation of that
curiosity and discretion in respect to an item such as the premium
collection and Yukon Health Care Insurance costs for a couple of
recent years shown in the health care plan’s annual report. I referred
yesterday to the figures. In fact, I was not looking at them carefully
enough, but the observation obvious to anyone looking at them is
that in 1981-82 the premiums were $2,257,000; the costs were
$3.939,000. In the following year, the premiums were $2.65 1.000
and the costs were $4,712,000. The year after that, the premiums
were $2,315,000 and the costs were $4,796,000. The net costs,
therefore, though not quite doubling every year, but are going up
pretty remarkably from $779,000 in one year to $1,056,000 the
next year to $1 .500,000 the next year.

is that an item that might cause you to not only exercise
discretion, but indicate some curiousity. How would you do that?

Mr. Fingland: I think that there are a number of ways that that
might be done. If there were any reason to believe there were some
irregularities, of course, it would immediately rise in the order of
priority in terms of what we might want to enquire about.

Mr. Penikett: I guess I am asking about efficacy rather than
irregularities.

Mr. Fingland: I think that in the normal course of events, since
there is a pattern of this sort across the country, I would probably,
in the first instance, allow that sort of problem to be raised either
during the zero budget review of the Department of Health and
Human Resources by the management board, or be left to the
internal auditor. In the scheduling of his audits, we might ask that
that particular issue be advanced, if there was some concern.

Mr. Penikett: So your curiousity would be expressed both in
the internal audit function and at the management board level?

Mr. Fingland: Those are two possibilities, Of course there is
also a third possibility, and that is that we would be sufficiently
concerned, independently of those two functions, to ask specifically
that there be some examination of that problem.

Mr. Penikett: t think, for the time being, I am finished with
the questions I wanted to ask on revenues. I would like to now go to
the Auditor General’s Report On Any Other Matter and the follow
up questions from previous reports.

If you wanted to excuse Mr. Hayes now, I would be happy to do
that. May I say, Mr. Hayes, I think the committee has found you to
be an excellent witness and we appreciate your having taken the
time to be here.

Witness excused 1J
Mr. Penikett: Let me then go to the Auditor General’s Report

On Any Other Matter, item one. I would intend, if I can, Mr.
Fingland, to move fairly expeditiously through these first six items,
from pages one to 12 in that report. There is quite a lot said here,
perhaps, dare one say, even more than is necessary. I do not think
there would be much use in going over any of that ground again.
Perhaps I could just concentrate on the recommendations, rather
than the narrative. Addition comments, or comments not reflecting
on the year, or that may indicate remedies to the problems
identified, would be welcome. Can I indicate that as a general
approach?

Mr. Fingland: Yes.
Mr. Penlkett: We have almost three pages on the year-end

closing: a brief recommendation from the Auditor General and then
a long comment from the government. What has taken place since
this information was included in this document?
o Mr. Fingland: We have had a number of discussions with
representatives of the Auditor General’s organization about the
relationship between us, most particularly with a view toward
seeing if there are not some methods that we could explore to
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improve on what has been happening in the pasi. Obviously, the
working relationships beiween us have not been what they could be,

Li and we have had some fairly exiensive discussions about trying lo
ensure that this does not happen in the future. We would

fl
particularly like to see, and we have had some very positive
response from the Audilor General’s people in this regard, to have
the scheduling and the actual requirements documenied well in
advance and a good clear understanding beiween us as to what is
required and when, and then we will try to lend every effort at our
end to make sure that these are met.

Li Mr. Penikctt: And these discussions are on-going to thai end?
Mr. Fingland: Yes, they are.
Mr. Penikett: Let me then say, Mr. Fingland, is there anything

U else you would like to add in terms of that first point in the letier?
Mr. Fingland: I do not think there is anyihing more that I need

to add at this point. I think the test of the usefulness of this will be
how well we can surmount the difficulties for the coming year.

U Mr. Penikctt: Let me ask you about iiem 2, which refers to the
appropriations overexpended and appropriation acts. There is a
divergence of views about the interpretations of various statutes
there, which is ground I do not think that this committee wants tor venture into, not being lawyers or even accountants. We are just
ordinary MLA’s, plain folk. I want to ask you, if I could, to
respond to the recommendation, the hrief one by the Auditor
General, which refers to schedule A: ‘‘Schedule A should include

f funds transferred between voles in respect of responsibilities
transferred from one department to another’’.

It has been drawn to our attention that since Bill 43, the Fifth
Appropriation Act 1983-84, someone has in fact done this. Would
you care to comment further on that?

Mr. Fingland: Yes, we acknowledge, Mr. Chairman, that the
actual format of the appropriation act is not what ii should be. We
are rather glad that this particular iiem has been highlighted. This
has been a matter of concern for us in finance foi some time. I think
that the act that you refer to was an attempt to overcome some of
these difficulties. With the new year, the new Capital Mains have
been the stan of what we hope will be the basis for the elimination

of

some of these ambiguities. Again, I think the preparation of the
O&M Mains, which are much larger and more complex than the
Capital Mains, will be the test of this, but we think, and we hope,
that we have overcome these particular difficulties.

U Mr. Penikett: The next item in the Auditor General’s Letter On
Any Other Matters, the question of signing authorities. This may
get a little complicated, Mr. Fingland, because in the follow-up
questions that we have raised with the department, your letter to the
committee on January 4th of this year also dealt with our old long
standing concern about delegation of authority. I guess they are
connected in some way. If, in my naivete I repeat myself a little bit
when I get down to that point, I hope you will forgive me.

The recommendation is fairly simple: ‘‘Action should be taken to
ensure that payments are not processed without proper signing

Li authorities’’. Can you respond to that recommendation, in addition
to what comments there are in the letter?

Mr. Flngland: The first step, as I am sure you are aware, we

lw-I felt was to get some kind of framework for signing authorities. We
feel that we have done that with the directive. The old so-called
signing authority regulations were very unclear and unsystematic.

O
Management board has attempted to establish this framework in the
signing authorities directive. There is now a continuing problem
with the actual mechanics of the application of these authorities;
ensuring that the delegation of these authorities within departments
is clear and properly structured and that the actual authorization of
individuals within the departments to exercise these signing
authorities is clear and unequivocal, and that we, in finance, have a
proper record of the signatures involved.

While we have taken this first step with the management board

directive, we are still, I think, at the point where we are probably
not as absolutely certain as we would like to be that the internal
delegations within the departments are being properly communi
cated to us.

One area of perhaps immediate concern is, not so much whether
3 the continuing delegations are properly delegated within a depart-

ment, but what aciually happens when people are exercising acting
auihority. At the moment, when people go on leave, normally,
there is a memorandum designating some particular individual as a
person with that authority. We act on that basis. If it is an
individual for whom we have a signature, we simply continue that
arrangement.

Within the Department of Finance, itself, however, we actually
issue a new signature card on an interim basis for the individual
who has the acting authority. I think that what we would like to do,
if we can manage 10 get around to this is the near future, is to see if
we cannot make that sort of system uniform throughout the whole
public service.

Mr. Peniketi: For the record, you are referring to the manage
ment board directive 6/84, called ‘‘signing authorities’’?

Mr. Fingland: Yes, that is right.
Mr. Penikett: I may ask you a couple of further questions

about how that relates to sections 30 and 31 in the new act later,
Mr. Fingland.

Can I ask you, as a lay person, about a problem I think we had
before. I recall that in previous hearings before this committee, we
had wiinesses who indicated a belief that they could delegate any
authority that they had withoul any reference to a third authority.
You indicated that that, hopefully, would be solved under the new
arrangement. Since there are, in the document referred to, no
specific levels of authority for more junior employees, given the
nature of the document, is the separation of payment authority and
spending authoriiy clearly understood at all levels?
in Mr. Fingland: I would hesitaie to vouch for everyone in the
public service in that respect, but to try to ensure that there is a
better understanding of requirements of that kind, we have had now
two sessions, one with our own departmental people, and one with
people at the working level in other departments. It is a process we
intend to continue and which we are referring to in a general way as
training sessions to try to familiarize people with the new act and
with the directives to try in ensure that there is a much better
understanding of authorities.

Mr. Penikett: At the most simple level, I guess, the notion that
someone cannot commit funds or, in fact, take an expenditure all
the way ihrough by himself without any double checking is
understood?

Mr. Fingland: That is part of the process of attempting to make
sure that that is clearly understood. Of course, it also has to be
made clear that there are situations where individuals in particular
cases are going to have to exercise single signature arrangements,
but what we have tried to do is identify those. A teacher, all by
himself or herself, at a particular location may be the only public
officer in that location.

Mr. Penikett: L might want to go back a little bit to that
delegation of authority when we do the follow-up letter. Related to
this is ihe question of commitment control.

Before I get to that, I did not ask you about the other
recommendation under the previous item, about ‘‘A separate vote to
cover any contingency provisions should be included in schedule A
of the related Appropriation Act and placed under the control of the
management board’’. I apologize for that, Mr. Fingland. but could I
just take you back to that, and ask you to comment on that.

Mr. Fingland: We recognize that a contingency vote is a clear
option that is open to this government. We have thought about this
a fair amount, because under the new act we are faced with that
problem. We were faced with it last year when the new act came
into effect, and we will be faced with it again this year and we will
probably be faced with it again in another year. Basically the
problem is not having any kind of complete and adequate
commitment control system, in our view. It is still a manual
system, largely decentralized. The question in our mind is which
way do we go. Do we attempt to deal with the situation by
providing a whole range of supplementaries each year, or do we do
it by means of contingency vote. The federal example that is being
proposed is one with which I am familiar myself, and which I rather
like in many respects. I think though, just at the moment, the
preferred option on the part of the government is to stay with (he
present system of providing supplementaries for specific votes. I

February 15, 1985 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 4:3



4:4 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE February 15, 1985

would not want to give the impression that we have excluded this
possibility for the future.

Mr. Penikelt: The question is not closed in your mind?
Mr. Fingland: That is right.
Mr. Pcnikett: I believe that that moves us nicely into the

subject of commitment control. Again. I do not want to read into
the record all the material that is in the Auditor’s Letter. The
recommendation is fairly short and to the point: ‘The Department
of Finance in developing the new system, should take into
consideration the deficiencies referred to above’’. Could I just ask
you to respond briefly to that in addition to the comments (hat are
contained in (he letter.
ii Mr. Fingland: We have a study underway ‘at the moment. I will
let Mr. Patankar deal with the details of it. We have just had a
consultant complete a feasibility study for us that would endeavour
to deal with the combined problem of commitment control,
accounts payable and the financial management information system.

We feel, at the moment, that probably the best solution lo this is
some kind of computerized system. If you wish, Mr. Palankar could
elaboraie a little more on the slate of the actual proposal and what
we would hope to get out of it.

Mr. Patankar: I do not know how detailed and how technical
you would like me to be. To recap; we have identified the need for
having some sort of a centralized system which will capture the
commitments for all the departments concerned. It is a common
need throughout the government, and to that extent, we are willing
to treat it as a central requirement to be looked after by a central
agency, such as finance.

The initiative was taken to get some outside expert help to
identify our requirements. Thai slage has been completed, as Mr.
Fingland has said. We have a fairly good idea as to what will be
required to capture the commitments, as and when (hey are made,
by all the departments and carry them all the way through the
accounting systems by methods of decommitting and translating
them into actual expenditures as they happen.

We would also like to take this a step further and give regularly
scheduled reports to all the departments which will identify the total
expenditures, year to date, in addition to the total commitment, year
to date, which in turn will indicate to the deparimenis the free
balance that is available to be committed.

Mr. Byblow: Is this going to be a system that will be in place
during the coming fiscal year. or that you have at some stage of
completion now?

Mr. Flngland: Mr. Patankar can give you an indication of what
son of timing we would like to see, but we are rather hesitant to
make an out and out commitment.

Mr. Patankar: I do not think that it is eneumbent upon us to
make a commitment as to the lime. As I have said, we have referred
to outside consultants who are more knowledgeable of the time
spans required for implementation of something as complex as this.

As for the second question, we have just crossed the stage of
identification of requirements, which can be loosely called a
feasibility study. We have ascertained the fact that there could be
computerized systems which would do what we seem to be wanting
to do. The detailed project plan will now be submitted to the
management board through the priorities committee.

Mr. Penlkett: You have that consultant’s report on hand now,
or are you expecting it?

Mr. Patankar: It is on hand.
Mr. Penlkett: Let us move on io the question of accounting

policy; employee pay and termination benefits. There are two
recommendations there, the first of which is: ‘The accounting
policy with respect to teachers’ salaries should be to record them on
an accrual basis, the same as other government expenditures’’.

I remember the problem there was that teachers were being paid
on a 12 month basis, even though they worked on a 10 month basis.
Could you briefly respond to that, Mr. Fingland?
o Mr. Fingland: I think perhaps. Mr. Chairman, if you do not
mind, I would let Mr. Patankar speak to the mechanics of that.

Mr. Patankar: As you rightly pointed out, the problem
emanates from the fact that teachers’ salaries are earned on a ten
month period, but paid out on a 12 month period on a consistent

basis, which results in, at any given time, a certain component of
the salary being earned but not paid. That component becomes
critical at the time of the fiscal year end where we have to disclose
the financial status of the government to the fullesi extent possible.
We fully agree with this recommendation. We do not perceive any
problem in bcing able to do that at the end of this fiscal year.

Mr. Penikett: May I ask you about the second recommendation
then: ‘ The Department of Finance should ensure that an accounting
policy for the accrual of employee leave and termination benefits is
established and operative by March 31st. 1985’’?

Mr. Patankar: I would like to answer that in two stages, Mr.
Chairman. About the policy, in my mind there is no doubt that there
is a policy of full disclosure, but (think the problem emanates again
from the actual mechanics of accrual of this liability. This is my
accounting opinion, Mr. Chairman. This liability cannot be
specifically calculated with any degree of accuracy at any time. It
strictly is a contingent liability, contingent upon whether a certain
employee, or given group of employees, will continue to be in the
public service or terminate their service at any given time. At best,
we can come up with a guesstimate, but to come up with an actual
accrual, and report it in the financial statements of the government,
which is a precise document, would need very effective mechan
isms for capturing thai information and calculating and translating it
into the dollar figures. We have a bit of a hesitation as to how long
it will take for a central agency, such as finance, and public service
commission, to put that mechanism in place. That is why we
certainly agree, in principle, with this recommendation. It will
certainly, if we can do that, enhance the quality of the financial
reporting through the territorial accounting. But we are unable, at
this point, to commit to a March 31, 1985 deadline.

Mr. Penikett: Thank you. Mr. Patankar. I guess we might want
to pursue that in the following year. Let me ask you about the final
item, Mr. Fingland: manuals and procedures. There are two
recommendations there. The first of which is: ‘‘Procedures should
be established to systematically review and update the Manual”. In
your response, you indicate that because of the new act, there will
be, in essence, new manuals coming down the road. I want to ask
you if you could comment a little bit about the problem of keeping,
in the meantime, the old manuals up to date, which I presume is
important, and also respond to that question, if you like, to the
extent to which it is a necessity as a training tool for administrators
in the government.
o Mr. Fingland: We would agree completely with the desirabil
ity. and, indeed, the necessity, of having proper manuals, and
keeping them current.

The existing financial administration manuals were prepared. I
believe, in 1979, or thereabouts. When I came on the scene, they
were already very much out of date, although there were some parts
of them that were reasonably current and reasonably accurate.

With the changes being undertaken with the act and with (he
regulations and directives, and probably the time it will yet take Co
get all of these procedures properly clarified and documented, we
felt that we should attempt, as far as possible, to get that work done
before we made an effort to make a complete revision of the
financial administration manual.

My original hope was that we might have been able to do it in
1985, but I am afraid, at this point, we are not going to be able to
do it in the coming year, most particularly in the light of the work
that Mr. Patankar is doing with FMIS, and so on. We would really
prefer to defer that until we are quite sure that the work is going to
be an accurate reflection of what we want to have in place. I would
contemplate that sometime during 1986 or 1987 will be the earliest
that we could expect to have that done.

Mr. Penikett: I can only imagine the difficulties involved, but
could you perhaps indicate what special problems there might be in
simultaneously updating, or keeping current, an old manual while
developing a new one.

Mr. Fingland: We could update the old manual or issue new
sections for it as we move along.

Mr. Penikett: So, the new one becomes a new edition of the
old one?
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Mr. Fingland: We could do that. I guess the problem is
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r two-fold. One is that it is a piecemeal approach. It is also a question
of internal resources. We are devoting as much as possible of our
budget, or we plan to, to the professional and special services area,
to completing these systems studies and getting them in place and
also trying to make a move on program evaluation.

I think, probably, that it is fair to say thai, in terms of priorities,
we feel that that is where we should be dedicating our resources.

Mr. Penikett: Is it more difficult to keep the old manual
current when you are also simultaneously having to develop a new
one?

Mr. Fingland: If the old manuals were relatively current to
begin with, I do not see it as being that much of a problem, but
since it consists of such an extensive revision of what is already
there, it is a fairly large job.

Mr. Penikelt: So it might be more difficult doing both tasks at
once?

Mr. Fingland: Yes.
Mr. Penlkett: The second recommendation reads: ‘The poli

cies and procedures dealing with the revised payroll and disburse-
ment system, long outstanding cheques and approval of bank
reconciliations should be incorporated into the manual as soon as

p possible’.
There is a substantial answer there, but I guess the real question

for us is ‘when’’?
i. Mr. Fingland: I am not sure I can give you a precise deadline.

f Again, we acknowledge that this is something that should be done
as quickly as possible, but it is going to be a matter, likely, of some
time before we can do that.

Mr. Penikett: Your answer

N contemplated in this area in the
precise. Are you in a position to
point?

Mr. Patankar: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The contemplated solution
in relation to the recommendation of the Auditor General is
two-fold. Number one, we should have specific policies and
procedures defined, and then comes a stage of including them in the
manual. We seem to be making a distinction here. We are going to
take the lead and put down procedures for these reconciliations of
payroll activities, but the inclusion of these procedures into the
manual obviously will have to be delayed until such time as we
have a manual to include these in. So, that is the progress we

U referred to. It also involves a fair amount of training component.
Management Science America’s payroll system, that we currently
operate in the government, is fairly new. Not all the departments,
and especially the staff that is involved in running that, are fully

4’’) aware of the intricacies of the system. We wish to take some
initiative in the training at the same time the procedures are
developed.

Mr. Penlkctt: Having had a moment to reflect on that, Mr.

p Patankar, can I take you back to one answer you gave in respect to
the question of the employee pay, recommendation number two on

L.A page 10 in the letter. You indicated the problem of having to make
a guesstimate of the accruals there. Could I ask you, since

termination benefits are earned over a period of service, which
presumably therefore is a real liability, just the same as remunera
tion, even though the exact amount is uncertain, cannot valid
projections be made, just as one would do with pension liabilities,
or any other benefit that an employee might be eligible for?

Mr. Patankar: Yes, theoretically. In answer to your question,
yes. But before that can be done, a certain amount of actuarial data
is required, a data bank, on which you can base your projections.
We have explored that route since last year when the recommenda
tion was first made. Unfortunately, in the Government of Yukon,
there is not a tremendous amount of actual data available as to the
expected length of service. If we had that data we could have taken

3
a much more educated guess. Also, the exact amount of the benefit
accrued to an employee because of termination depends not only on
his length of service at that time, what is his expected or projected
length of service, and accrual to that extent becomes difficult.

Mr. Penikett: What is the reason for the poor quality of the

not available because it has never been accumulated. There was
never any need, especially in the public service commission, to
compile this data and keep statistics on the norm of the length of
service of employees. It has never been felt needed. So the data has
never been captured over the last fifteen or twenty years, if you
will.

Mr. Penikett: That is the problem throughout the system?
Mr. Patankar: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it is.
Mr. Penikett: I would like to move to the follow-up questions,

Mr. Fingland, and pick up on your letter of January 4th. May I
suggest that it might be appropriate now if we take a coffee break
until 10:40 and then return. The committee will recess for 10 or so
minutes,

Recess

i Mr. Penikett: We are going to continue now with the
Department of Finance. We will be following up on our 1984 report
from the Public Accounts Committee, and will be exploring, in
perhaps some further detail, the responses from the Department of
Finance.

Earlier this year, on January 4, the deputy minister, Mr.
Fingland. wrote to the committee, responding, in a long letter, to
some of the recommendations that were made previously.

The first of these dealt with the preface to the 1984 report, and I
do not want to go into that in any great detail because I think the
one concern, for myself anyway, which related to the special role of
the Department of Finance as was described by Mr. Fingland. has,
in some sense, been responded to today when we were dealing with
the question of revenue, In fact, Mr. Fingland has given us a
statement today of his perception of the role of the department
which, I think, will be very useful.

Let me then move on to the next item, which is the transfer of
responsibilities and funds. I think the committee found the response
in the letter, Mr. Fingland, generally a good one. We gather that a
new budget directive was issued by management board on June 26
of last year, which is outlined in the letter. This also relates to item
two in the Auditor General’s Letter On Any Other Matter, but I just
wonder, Mr. Fingland, if you have anything to add to what is in
your letter of January 4?
o Mr. Fingland: I think one thing that I might add, Mr.
Chairman, is that having now had some experience with that budget
directive we find that there are still some areas that are in need of
improvement. The internal procedures for the preparation and
review of budget material need some refinement. I hope it is only in
the areas of fine tuning. There are some areas, particularly in the
areas of person-year control, or establishment control, where we
have not really got all our internal procedures as refined as we
would like them. We would like to have a complete review of that
directive sometime in the course of the next six months after we
have got the 1985-86 O&M budget put to bed.

Mr. Penikett: There might be some consequent amendments
then?

Mr. Fingland: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Let me then go to the question of the delegation

of authority, about which I have asked previously, which again
relates to items 3 and 4 in the Auditor General’s Letter On Any
Other Matter. I was asking you about this under the previous item,
Mr. Fingland. Let me ask you the general question: could you
describe how the signing authorities document, the management
board directive number 6)1984, relates to sections 30 and 31 in the
new Financial Administration Act.

Mr. Fingland: The intention of the directive is to cover all
three sections —24, 30 and 3)— that is, contracting authority as
well as authority to certify and to requisition payment.

Mr. Penikett: What does not seem to be clear from the signing
authorities directive is how commitment control is dealt with. Can
you explain how the power to commit is defined in here?

Mr. Fingland: To actually incur commitments, to incur con
tractual obligations?

Mr. Penikett: Yes, as opposed to the actual issuing of money. I
am talking about the early commitment stage.

indicates that some progress is
coming year, which is not very
be more precise than that at this

data?
, Mr. Patankar: It is not the poor quality of the data, it is just
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Mr. Fingland: The actual procedures for entering into contracts
will take the form of a separate set of COnLracts regulations, or a
contract directive. The existing contract regulations are somewhat
antiquated. We have had a committee working on that and these
new regulations or directive — it has not been determined yet which
form it will take — is approaching completion. We would like to
have this in place, if we could, before the new summer work cycle
begins.

Mr. Penikett: Could I ask you just to elaborate a little further
on that, Mr. Fingland. You will notice that appendix A of this
signing authorities directive, in five of the eight columns, refers to
contracts specifically. Are you indicating that there will be some
kind of parallel document which deals with other aspects of the
contracting power?

Mr. Flngland: Yes the parallel document will be a document
that will spell out the procedures for actually calling tenders and
entering into contracts. it will not deal specifically with signing
authorities, or the levels of authorities to sign contracts. It will
specify levels of dollar value that relate to the point at which
tenders must be called in writing. In many respects something like
the existing contracts regulations. Then, anyone exercising the
powers of signing on behalf of the government must sign in
accordance with the actual dollar value specified in the signing
authorities directive.

Mr. Pcnlkett: I remember one case — my memory may not be
clear — we previously had before this committee of someone whose
contracting authority was considerably in excess of his spending
authority. That kind of situation could continue under the new
regime?
. Mr. Fingland: No, it should not. What we would hope is that,
notwithstanding the procedures that must be complied with, ‘as set
out in the contracts regulations, no one would be able to sign a
contract and thereby obligate the government to pay out amounts of
money that would exceed the authorities undc the signing
authority’s directive.

Mr. Penlkctt: Perhaps I was not hearing clearly. Is that
contracts authority or regulations complete now?

Mr. Fingland: They are virtually complete. It will take some
little time yet to finalize them. We still have to have a final legal
version, but we are very’ close.

Mr. Penikett: I just want to know if this is something that
could be tabled, but if it is not complete, no.

Mr. Fingland: Not yet, no.
Mr. Penikett: I was asking, before the coffee break, about the

understanding of the difference between the power to purchase
something and the power to actually spend money, or the power to
make commitments. That does not seem to me to be sufficiently
clear, if I were a new public servant, in this document. Can you
satisfy my concern on that point?

Mr. Flagland: I am concerned that you would not find it clear.
We had hoped that in the process of developing that document and
the contracts regulations that we would, if at all possible, make it
sufficiently clear, so that a person coming cold to the documents
would be able to get a good fix on what his authorities are.

I think that, probably, the contracts regulations might not be a
complete help in that regard, because they will simply spell out
obligations that will be imposed on people making bids or
obligations that are imposed on public servants in calling for
tenders. But then, in the actual signing of the contract, that is, the
actual incurring of the obligations on behalf of the government, the
dollar limits would be as set out in the signing authority’s directive.
But if it is not clear, then obviously there is some room for
improvement, I think. We would be quite prepared to undertake a
review of that once we have the contracts regulations in place.

Mr. Penlkett: Please do not do anything just because it is not
clear to me. It may be clear to the average, competent public
servant, but I am clearly not in that category.

Do you have any other comments, Mr. Fingland. that you might
want to add to your responses in that letter? I think we have covered
most of the main points in it.

Mr. Fingland: There is one thing that I thought I might say in
the revenue area, to perhaps give you a bit of an overview,

generally. The perspective of the government is that — perhaps this
is more in the area of general policy than the administration of
revenues — I am sure you appreciate that we have undergone very
significant reductions in locally raised revenues over the past three
years.

In fact, in total, they have declined by over 30 percent since
1981-82. We are having to operate in this area, on the one hand,
with that subsiding situation, if you like, while, at the same time,
attempting to structure the rates in a manner that would be of some
benefit to the people in the private sector who are struggling with
exactly the same kinds of problems.

I think I would like to emphasize the fact that, while there is a
concern in finance, we try to make sure that we administer things as
effectively and as efficiently and as economically as possible. And,
generally, to maximize revenues, we have to be cognizant of the
impact of these on the private sector at all times, and how these
actually impinge on the people who are generating the revenues in
the economy at large. I thought I should mention that, because there
is a wider concern than just simply the administration of these
pieces of legislation.

Mr. Penikett: Not wanting to precipitate any kind of policy
debate here, the problem is, if we were — and obviously we have
not identified any such problem — failing to collect revenues in
some areas, it might result in tax increases. It would increase the
burdens on other people.

Mr. Fingland: In fact, there was a conscious policy decision to
do that in the case of personal income tax. You may recall that we
introduced, first of all, small business rates for corporation income
tax, and then subsequently reduced it, cut it in half, and increased
personal income tax for that precise reason.

Mr. Penikett: Let me go back to close the circle a little bit,
Mr. Fingland. We were talking about revenue, about the operation
al plan and the new procedures for obtaining the federal money. I
do not think we explored in sufficient detail the new arrangements
about capital coming from the federal government. Can I take you
back to that point and ask you if you would describe that a little bit?
Mr. Byblow. I think, will want to pick up on the actual
management of capital projects here, in which you joined the
response from a couple of other departments.

Mr. Fingland: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Can I ask you to describe what is changing now

about the way in which we are getting the capital grants from the
federal government.

Mr. Fingland: The money that comes to us now, in the form of
federal grants, is in two grants. One is a capital grant specifically
earmarked as such, and the other is an O&M grant. Under formula.
it is proposed that these would be melded and that there would no
longer be a distinction between the two grants. There will be a
single grant, a single transfer payment. It will then be at the
discretion of the government as to how they split the available funds
in any given year.

Mr. Penikett: We previously have asked you questions about
the integration of capital plans and operating plans. A particular
concern, which I notice there has been some publicity about in
Alaska recently, has been the desire to make wise capital decisions.
with a view to the continuing operating costs in coming years. A
particular concern on this score would be leakages in the energy
costs going out of our economy, and all northern economies, in the
extent to which we make capital decisions not on the basis of just
the lowest capital cost but the optimum cost, taking into account the
operating costs, of which energy is a major factor. The government
now has a five year capital plan. I guess it has developed the capital
plan now. There is an accounting problem. at the very least, in
terms of trying to figure out some of those things. Since so many of
the capital projects are done, one, by the departments, but, two, by
groups like municipalities, and the Commissioner’s approval is
required on many of them, what kind of reviews, or what kind of
checks are going into it, in terms of those questions of the
economies of future operating costs and how they relate to capital
expenditures?
1 Mr. Fingland: One of the purposes of the capital plan is to try
to identify exactly that kind of spin-off cost. We have really not had
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that kind of systematic analysis of our capital expenditures up to
this point. As capital costs are identified on the basis of a set of
fixed standards, both program standards and construction or
acquisition standards, we would hope that we could also simul
taneously identify what those O&M costs would be. We have not

U yet had an opportunity to test the effectiveness of this kind of
planning, because the plan actually has not yet been put into place
and would not really go into gear until the new fiscal year.

Mr. Pcnikett: Presumably the proof of the effectiveness of it

fl would not come for several years in any case.
• Mr. Fingland: That is right. Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Penikelt: Perhaps then I could turn 10 the questions that
Mr. Byblow has, and which arise from the response on the capital
budget.

Mr. Byblow: Before I get 10 that, Mr. Fingland, you drew
reference to the formula for the establishment of the operating and
the capital funding that generates from the federal government. Is
that formula firmly in place, or is it still in the stage of
development?

Mr. Fingland: It is not in place. It really will not he in place
until there is final approval at the ministerial level, at both levels of
government. We do not yet have that approval. The capital plan
itself has yet to have the final approval of the federal government as
well. If approved, however, the capital plan component of formula
financing would go into effect on the 1st of April. subject to the
approval of the necessary legislation in the legislature, of course,
because we still have to have enabling legislation in the legislature
here in Yukon to enable us to authorize us to enter into an
agreement with the federal government.

Mr. Byblow: The eventual outcome of those negotiations, or
the finalization of whatever formula gets put into place, is going to
result in policy decisions as to the distribution between O&M and
capital?

U Mr. Fingland: Yes.
Mr. Byblow: I would like to draw reference to a letter, or

memorandum, dated January 22 to the Acting Clerk of the Public
Accounts Committee, Patrick Michael, from yourself. It is a
response to the committee relating to project coordination and
project management, which contains several recommendations
reviewed by the committee and responded to by yourself.

In response to the second Public Accounts Committee recum

fl
mendation dealing with the construction program coordination of
public works, or now Government Services, you make the point
that the coordination of government construction programs is the
responsibility of the management board, and that a government

U
wide directive governing interdepartmental relationships and re
sponsibilities in this regard is currently being developed,

I want to understand a little more about the nature of that
coordination. You can understand that, from our point of view, we
often see several departments involved in project construction, and
the need for the coordinatiun is paramount.

You state further in your response that it is not a matter of
clarification by the Department of Finance. I would like you to
expain the role of finance and the role of management board
towards coordination of construction projects within the three
departments, primarily.

Mr. Fingland: If I may, I will just go back a step. That
response was based on what appeared to us to be an approach by the
Public Accounts Committee that suggested that we, in finance, had
some kind of supervisory authority or responsibility in relation to
the overall coordination of the management of these projects. I
expressed some concern that I might somehow be put in the position
of having a role that would place me somewhere between deputy
ministers and their respective minister or between even ministers
and management board.

Mr. Penikett: You would have to get a hard hat and go out on
the job, or something?.

Mr. Fingland: It seemed to us, in preparing the reply, that the
nature of the relationships between sponsoring departments and
performing departments, if you wish, really lent itself to a situation
where management board itself should be prescribing what those
relationships should be. That is what gives rise to the suggestion

that we should be developing a set of procedures. In fact, we are;
they are very close to completion of a directive that will spell out
precisely what the relationships and responsibilities are of the two
kinds of departments. There are basically two kinds.

If I may give an example: in the case of the Department of
Education, they have the primary responsibility for seeking the
necessary financing for construction or acquisition of buildings for
the performance of their particular programs. They have to assume
the responsibility of developing what those cost estimates are; they
have to do it in collaboration with public works, or at least with
public works’ approval, if it is a consultant engaged by the
Department of Education, so there is an involvement of public
works or Government Services right from the outset. We will avoid
some of the difficulties that we have had of having non-professional
engineers developing costs and putting them forward and then
finding that those estimates are inadequate.

After having obtained capital approval of those estimates in both
the management board and in the Legislature, what we are
proposing to do is to set out precisely what the sponsoring
department must do in carrying out the actual work required. There
will be a prescribed procedure whereby the sponsoring department
will approach the performing department; the dollars will be
identified, and so on.

Having reached agreement at that stage, then of course the
internal project management procedures of the Department of
Government Services would click into place and they would
manage that project according to their own internal project
management procedures and in compliance with the work order
from the sponsoring department authorizing the work.
,: We think that this give us a government-wide system of controls.
Now, again, as in all these kinds of situations, the test is how
effective is it. But at least it gives us something that we have never
had before, and that is a clearly identified set of arrangements and
procedures.

Mr. Byblow: You are speaking to the converted when you talk
about the need for coordination. I still do have some questions.

As I understand the situation at the present, we have Community
Affairs and Transportation Services, who have developed their
manual. We have Government Services, who are in the process of
developing theirs, or it is almost completed. And, you are talking
about an overall project management and procedures policy, if you
will. All of this has a connection to management board. Now, does
management board have support staff to provide that pyramid
coordination responsibility, and if they do or do not have support
staff to provide that coordination from the top, who is accountable
before management board?

Mr. Fingland: The Department of Finance has a division called
the program analysis division. There are two person years in that
division. They provide probably some of the kind of support that
you refer to. In relation to management board, they perform
something like the same sort of analytical function that you would
find in a treasury board secretariat or a management board
secretariat in the provinces or in the federal government. Obvious
ly, the capacity to carry out that analysis function is very limited.
but submissions going from departments, including the actual
preparation of management board directives, funnel through that
division before going to management board. The actual proposals
going to management board are from individual ministers on behalf
of their respective departments. Those submissions must first funnel
through finance and be accompanied by an analysis that is prepared
by the program analysis division, before it actually goes to
management board.

Mr. Byblow: I guess I was trying to understand the accounta
bility process. You make reference to each department having to
prepare the submission, having to clear your department, and then
the minister presents it at the management board. Because each
minister has his own special projects for presentation, there is still
the need for that decision-making process, which requires some
support to determine what has priority; what goes ahead, and what
does not. I guess I am understanding from what you are saying is
that there is a support staff of two from your branch to provide that.

Mr. Fingland: Yes.
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Mr. Byblow: Does management board, within itself, have a
capital plan? We referred earlier to a five year capital plan.

Is that at the pinnacle of management board?
Mr. Fiogland: The plan is really a roll-up of the estimated

capital requirements of all departments. It is a government-wide
plan, and the roll-up is done on behalf of management board by. in
this case. (he budget division of finance. But we do nothing more at
that point (han roll-up what the departments submit to us. We
would, if it were necessary, accompany that with some analysis if
we felt that there were any particular difficulties. The ultimate plan
itself is a management board document that is approved by
management board,

Mr. Byblow: On the individual submissions that come out of
each respective department that surface ai management board, what
test have they had in terms of fitting into overall capital
anticipations of government?

Mr. Fingland: They really have not had any test at all in that
particular way. They have been tested for internal coherence and
consistency. It is our responsibility in Finance to identify any
discrepancies in that regard. The thrust of the document is really not
so much a control document as a document that is intended to
provide a basis for the estimated requirements of the Yukon
Government for capital purposes, which is then submitted to the
federal government to provide substantiation for the capital funding
we will require.

Mr. Byblow: Where all of the capital requirements are assimi
lated is emanating from your department: the document that goes to
Ottawa?

Mr. Fingland: Yes. That is right. Once it has had management
board approbation, we then become responsible for the negotiation
with the federal government. That is another part of the that,
actually, it is the fiscal relations part of the budget division.

Mr. Byblow: I suppose, in a nutshell, the Department of
Finance is, in effect, the support staff in total, in a way, to
management board?

Mr. Fingland: Yes, that is right
Mr. Penikett: No further questions’?
Mr. Byblow: No.
Mr. Penikett: Okay. I have no further questions, Mr. Fingland.

We have some time before we adjourn and excuse you. Do you
have any final comments you would like to make to the committee?
N We did ask a couple of quick questions which had to do with
public accounts. I do not know whether you are in a position to
respond to those at this time, or not.

Mr. Fingland: Perhaps we could see if there is something
specific.

Mr. Pcnikett: Just to remind you, I asked you a couple of
questions about the accounts, about some numbers which were not
clear to me, and I do not know if you are in a position to respond
now.

Mr. Fingland: I am sorry, I am not. I would like to go back
and examine the material, if I may.

Mr. Penikelt: Fair enough. Do you have any concluding
comment you would like to make to the committee about any of the
ground you have covered?

Mr. Fingland: No, I do not think so.
Mr. Peniketi: We have no further questions. I would like to

thank the witnesses, Mr. Fingland and Mr. Patankar. We appreciate
your appearance here today. It has been very useful and helpful for
the committee. I will not say that I look forward to seeing you again
in future years, because you may not appreciate that, but I am sure
we shall see each other again.

The witnesses are excused. The committee will now adjourn into
executive session.

The commiuee adjourned at 11:30 am.
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ni EVIDENCE
Monday, February 18, 1985
Mr. Penikett: The sitting will come to order. I would like to

welcome, this morning, witnesses from ihe Department of Educa

r tion, Advanced Education and Manpower. Mr. Jim Davie, the
deputy minister, I would like to welcome you back again for an

j encore. Mr. Ron Wallace. the assistant deputy minister, elementary
• and secondary schools: Mr. Stan Marinoske, director of administra

tive services and Mr. Dan Odin, assistant deputy minister of

P advanced education.
You are acquainted with the members of Ihe committee, so I will

not introduce them again. We have your opening statement, In
order to expedite matters. Mr. Davie. I am going to. if it is

U agreeable to you, ask that it be deemed to be read mb the record,
and then we can proceed immediately to questions. unless you have
something you may want to add to your opening stalement.

Mr. Davic: I have nothing to add, but I do have some changes
to make. Some mistakes were identified over (he weekend while we
were reading it. If I can makes these changes. I will have no
objection to it being read into the record.

These are not numbered, but on page what-would-be three. at the

F bottom, under the heading “organization’’, we have some maccu
rate figures: ‘‘As of March 31, 1984, the department had

— 491.82.,.’’. That should be ‘‘491.5’’. And, the department had
spent $29.1 million, as opposed to the $25.5 million shown here.

fl. Mr. Pcnikctt: I think you are evaporating a line of enquiry’
here, Mr. Davie.

Mr. Davie: Further down, ‘‘The public schools program
utilized the majority of the departmental budget with ‘$22.3’
million, or approximately 75 percent...’’.

In the next line, ‘‘a further $6 million, or 20.5 percent was
expended for adult education’’.

There is one more error. The third page from the end, in the
middle paragraph. ‘‘These funds were used to assist Yukon students
tu obtain training at post-secondary institutions. In total, the grants
amounted to $835,672, and the loans amounted to $472,158, for a
total of $1,307,830’’.

(The following statement by Mr. Doyle “as deemed to hose been
read and is recorded here for the record)

Mr Davie: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. On behalf
of the department, I would like to say that we welcome this
opportunity to appear before the Public Accounts Committee, We in
the department are highly cognizant of the need to be judicious in
the spending of public funds with due regard for efficiency.
economy and effectiveness. We look forward to hearing your views
on our ability to meet our program objectives and your recom
mendations for improvemeni to our program.

During the period under review, namely April I. 1983 lo March
31, 1984, the department commenced a reorganization in order to
streamline operations and to give the department a more ‘‘outward’’
focus. In the next few minutes, I would like to outline the goals and
objectives which provided the foundation for the department in
1983/84, outline the organizational structure that was put in place
during that year and provide a highlight of the activities of each of
the branches within the department.

In general, the Department of Education, advanced education and
manpower was responsible for providing quality education to both
school-aged and adult residents of Yukon, for increasing the
number of Yukoners meaningfully employed in the territory and
developing territorial and community.based recreation programs.
More formally, the department’s goals and objectives were:

A) To provide primary, elementary and secondary education for
all school-age children in Yukon.

B) To promote the French languagc in education in Yukon
through French programs in the schools and French courses for
adults through Yukon.

C) To facilitate the development of Yukon’s human resources by
providing an adult training and continuing education program and
manpower development programs throughout Yukon. Included in
this objective is a commitment to increasing employment opportuni

ties for Yukoners.
D) To provide university courses to ensure that a continuously

high percentage of secondary school graduates from Yukon schools
can pursue their post-secondary education locally.

E) To encourage optimum participation in sport, fitness, arts and
general recreation at various levels from recreational employment
through to the pursuit of excellence

- by enabling the orderly development of community-based and
-determined recreation

- by enabling the orderly development of territorial sport, fitness
and arts programs.

F) To provide administrative, supervisory, and support services
for education programs throughout Yukon,

- to provide financial management and coordinate the depart
ment’s financial activities,

- to administer the various student accommodation activities,
In appendices A, B and C, which are attached to our submission

to the committee, we have outlined the organizational structure of
the department. Appendices A. I - 8 indicate the structure as it stood
in April I. 1983 and Appendices B. I - 6 show the situation as of
April 1. 1984. Finally, Appendix C. I is the organization chart for
the department as it presently stands. We have not included detailed
charts for the different branches as some of these are in the process
of changing. As of March 31, 1984, the department had 491.5
person years and a budget of $29.1 million. These funds were used
to implement a broad range of activities under the auspices of six
major program areas namely, administration, public schools,
French language. Yukon College, recreation, and advanced educa
tion and manpower. The public schools program utilized the
majority of the departmental budget with $22.3 million or 75
percent of the budget being spent in support of Yukon’s children, A
further $6 million or 20.5 percent was expended for adult education
and human resource development programs in the territory. The
remaining funds were spent between the French language program,
Yukon College, and recreation,

As noted in the organizational charts the department was divided
into four branches, each branch headed by a senior manager
reporting to the deputy minister. The public schools branch and the
advanced education and manpower branch were headed by assistant
deputy ministers while there was a director responsible for
recreation and a departmental administrator for the overall adminis
trative functions.

In 1983 there were a number of internal modifications made to
the organizational structure in order to improve the overall delivery
of services to the Yukon public. The program activities of
in-service training, correspondence courses, curriculum develop
ment. and native language project, were transferred to the public
schools branch. In this manner, all activities related to the
education of children from kindergarten to grade 12 were under the
direct authority of one senior manager. On the other hand, the
student accommodation activity was transferred from public schools
to the departmental administration in an effort to organize all
administrative functions under one individual.

As well the responsibility for the operation of the various summer
student employment projects, and the post-secondary student grants
program was moved from the public schools program to advanced
education and manpower. Included in the restructuring was to
combine the separate activities of apprenticeship training and
manpower into one new activity called manpower planning and
industrial training. This process increased the accountability and
planning potential within the broad range of the manpower
development activities. Finally, the separate activities of Yukon
campus and the Yukon Vocational and Technical Training Centre
were merged to form the new Yukon College.

The administrative branch headed by the director of administra
tion was responsible for the overall departmental management and
the centralized departmental functions of personnel, administration.
financial management and general administrative matters. The key
function of the branch was to ensure the proper receipt and
expenditure of funds to provide assistance to all branch managers in
the proper implementation of financial management and control
systems, and to administer and coordinate the personnel function.
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The public schools section was headed by the assistant deputy
minister of public schools, whose primary responsibiliiy was to
provide quality education to all students enrolled from kindergarten
to grade 12 in Yukon public schools. As well, this assistant deputy
minister was responsible for the French language program.

The advanced education and manpower branch was headed by the
assistant deputy minister of advanced education and manpower.
who had primary responsibility for a variety of programs geared
towards human resource development including institutional train
ing, apprenticeship training, tradesman certification, industrial
training, manpower planning and immigration. As well, this
assistant deputy minister is responsible for the delivery of any
employment development programs for the territory.

The director of recreation was responsible for the delivery of a
broad range of recreational services to rural communities and for
overseeing a variety of cultural activities. Moreover, the director
was responsible for the developing of sport, fitness, and performing
visual and literary arts programs which fall beyond the parameters
of community recreation. The recreation branch was transferred to
the Department of Tourism, Heritage and Cultural Resources in
November 1983.

The 1983-84 fiscal year was a time of progress and renewal.
Major initiatives were undertaken in a variety of areas within the
department. Within the public school section there were a number
of initiatives. The branch developed programs for the gifted and
alternative programming for secondary students whose needs were
not met by existing courses. Pilot programs in both these areas were
started in September 1984. The successful early French immersion
program continued onto grade three and planning for the French
first language instruction enabled the planning to be ready to
commence in 1984-85. Moreover, there was continued progress
realized in developing native language curricula.
•i Within the facilities component of the public school system, there
were a number of major changes including: the addition of
industrial education, business education, music and lunchrooms to
Christ the King High School, and two classrooms, a library and
office space to the Carcross School; the commencement of
construction of two classrooms and industrial educatioo facilities at
Ross River, and of industrial education facilities at Teslin; the
completion of major upgrading to the hearting system at Whitehorse
Elementary School, increased lighting for GA. Jeckell School,
development of a sports field and parking lot at the Porter Creek
School and improvements of the heating and plumbing iystctns at
the Elsa School.

As well, micro-computers were purchased and introduced into the
majority of schools in Yukon, a Yukon environmental handbook
was produced in cooperation with the Yukon Conservation Society
and the Teachers Association in concert with the department
provided professional development for teachers in a number of
areas.

The advanced education and manpower branch was engaged in a
broad range of initiatives during the 1983-84 fiscal year. The
branch established the Yukon post-secondary education advisory
council, and the Canada-Yukon labour markets need committee.
These committees were intended to provide forums for increased
involvement in developing the human resource potential of Yukon
within the context of ongoing federal-territorial cooperation. In
addition, the branch created an in-house apprenticeship training
program which allows for the training of up to 20 apprentices
within the Y.T.G. departments and agencies. This activity was
brought on by the poor economic circumstances and high unem
ployment which lead to increased unemployment among appren
tices. In addition to this activity, and, as part of the Yukon
Territorial Government’s aid package to Cyprus Anvil, an appren
tice support program was established at the mine resulting in the
continued training of eleven apprentices. The branch also acquired
over three quarters of a million dollars through the federal skills
growth fund for renovation and upgrading of trades courses
facilities at Yukon College. As indicated earlier, Yukon Campus
and Yukon Vocational and Technical Training Centre were amalga
mated to form Yukon College. In light of this change, a major
review of the future college facility reqUirements was conducted

through Pyramid Facilities Planning of Calgary and work was
commenced on developing a long range strategy for providing
policy and program direction for the branch over the next few
years.

The branch continued to support employment development
programs. The department again offered the internal Y.TG.
summer student career development program and the summer
employment assistance program aimed at providing employment
opportunities for Yukon students. Moreover, the job retention
program for small businesses and the Canada Yukon community
recovery program continued to operate to address general unem
ployment concerns across the territory. In addition to these
programs, Yukon participated in the implementation of two new
programs, namely the new employment expansion development
program (NEED) and the Cyprus Anvil aid package. As a group
these six programs provided 4,255 weeks of employment for 781
Yukoners at a total cost of $2.1 million. The activities under these
programs provided for community and business enhancement while
simultaneously reducing unemployment levels in Yukon.

During 1983-84 advanced education and manpower administered
the grants and loans program, awarding 326 grants and 172
certificates of eligibility for student loans under the Canada Student
Loans Program. These funds were used to assist Yukon students to
obtain training at post-secondary institutions. In total, the grants
amounted to $835,672 and the loans amounted to 472,158, for a
total of $1,307,830.
91 Within the recreation branch of the department, a broad range of
üctivities were initiated in the 1983-84 fiscal year. A new
Recreanon Act and Public Lotteries Act was passed in the fall
session of the Legislative Assembly culminating a two year public
review process. The new Recreation Ac; provided for an expanded
mandate and increased resources at the community level whilst
providing new support for territorial arts and sports programs.

The branch coordinated the Yukon’s participation in the 1984
Arctic Winter Games and twenty three territorial sports organiza
tions received approximately $190,000 for assistance in administra
tion, training and competition.

As well, territorial arts and special recreation groups received
$65,000 in assistance for administration and various developmental
programs. Over 5,700 Yukoners are members of territorial sports
groups, while nearly 400 participants attended advanced skill
programs in the arts.

The recreation branch instituted a new advanced artist develop
ment grant which proved to be very popular in the fiscal year and
helped to assist six visual and performing artists. As well, the
branch provided various other support to communities including
training programs, marketing assistance and recreation advice.

Yukon’s communities were provided with $120,000 in assistance
for a variety of community-based recreation sport and arts
activities, while the Yukon Lottery Commission provided $108,000
from lottery proceeds to a variety of community activities.

In the final analysis, we feel that we have provided a standard of
service to the people of Yukon second to none in Canada.
Moreover, there was a clear indication that to maintain this standard
and to make it relevant to the needs of Yukoners, there must be a
shared sense of purpose and coordinated partnership between the
department, federal government departments and agencies, advisory
councils, interested community groups business and labour. During
the I 983-84 year we feel this goal was identified and the foundation
laid for major initiatives intended to improve communication and
enlist public support for our programs.

In conclusion, the foregoing was an overview of the department.
its activities, programs, some of our objectives, a brief outline of
the roles and responsibilities of our senior staff and a very brief
review of the highlights of the past year. This outline was intended
to be short and either I, or my staff, will be pleased to answer any
questions that you may have or to expand on any of the items we
have raised

Thank you

i Mr. Penlkett: We can move immediately to questions. Mr.
Byblow.
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r Mr. Byblow: Good morning to the witnesses. On behalf of the

J committee, I would like to express some appreciation to the
department for the early delivery of the opening statement before us
and the supporting documents that we will be using. I trust that the

1 co-operative spirit will remain for the next couple of days.
My first observation in respect to the various reports, as well as

1 J the main estimates, is that, contained in them is a departure from
previous reports and estimates: that is, an abundance of statistics.

fl
For the most part, these are very useful statistics and provide some
very interesting data on the activities of the department. However, a

J number of questions do arise about their use and application. In
some instances, inconsistencies do show up and I will pursue these

U
throughout the course of the hearings,

For the benefit of the witnesses, very briefly, I will state our
intentions in dealing with the hearing this morning and tomorrow
morning. I propose that we deal with the organizational structure to

U
start with, then deal with the objectives and responsibilities of the
department, and then we will deal with the administrative branch
and public schools. I do not expect we will get into advanced
education and manpower until tomorrow. For reference, I will
primarily be using the O&M mains and (he supps, the capital
budget and the sups, the annual report of the the advanced
education and public schools branches, the organizational charts
that have been provided by your department, as well as the

U
territorial accounts: all for the year under review.

Mr. Penikett: For the record, I suggest that the documents not
on public record, including the organization charts, he tabled at this
point.

Mr. Byblow: To begin with, I draw reference to the Audhor
General’s letter, particularly item 13 on pages 16 aod 17. Ii notes
that the objectives of the department as cited in the O&M estimates
ought to include the significant activity by the department in the
area of job creation and job retention.

The department’s response gives the commitment to restate the
objectives in that context for the 1985/85 fiscal year. Is that still the
intention?

Mr. Davie: It is the intention that we will restate these
objectives to include the job retention programs, as noted by the
Auditor General, yes.

Mr. Byblow: How is the objective respecting job creation and
job retention being restated?

Mr. Davic: I do not have the actual wording. We do have the
wording already, to include that aspect within (he objectives, but I
do not have that with me.

Mr. Byblow: Perhaps by way of notice, I could advise the
witness that we will be dealing more specifically with that in
advanced education.

Mr. Penikelt: A minor procedural point, too, Mr. Davie,
because of the needs of Hansard, I will have to take a moment to
identify the witnesses before he speaks, otherwise the record may
not be clear on that point.

Mr. Byblow: Still regarding objectives, the department empha
sizes, in the opening statement that was deemed to have been read
into the record, that, in the year under review, substantial
administrative functions changed. On page 34 of the O&M
estimates is an additional explanation of that administrative change.
My question, specifically, is: on page 34 of the O&M estimates,
when you say that the departmental administrator has ‘‘functional
authority in respect to the provision of financial direction and
assistance on personnel matters’’, what do you mean?
oi Mr. Davic: That means that in a department like education, you
have program managers. These program managers would be the
assistant deputy minister of public schools and the assistant deputy
minister of advanced education. They do have responsibilities in
terms of the staffing and all related personnel matters. For example,
they have responsibilities for hiring, recruiting, and that kind of
thing, but what we mean by a functional authority in terms of the
departmental administrator is that, while they are responsible, they
are to have an over-all review of what occurs. They are to keep the
reins in terms of personnel practices and government policies, in
terms of hiring procedures. That would explain what we mean here
by functional authority.

Mr. Byblow: If it is a functional role, who has the responsibil
ity for (he accounting and personnel matters? What is the line of
authority? Very specifically, what functional role does the depart
mental administrator play in personnel matters?

Mr. Doyle: The departmental administrator would have respon
sibility in keeping statistics in terms of ensuring that people were
using their sick leave appropriately or vacation leave appropriately.
They also have a responsibility to provide a service to departmental
managers in terms of making sure that they are keeping within
policies and procedures of government. They would look after a
number of details in connection with the Public Service Commis
sion, while not taking the responsibility of staff evaluation and staff
recruitment away from a program manager.

In other words, it is a service kind of function to make sure that
things are done according to policies and procedures.

Mr. Byblow: The role is one of providing support to the
various programs, not making decisions on whether someone gets
hired, or how many should be hired. Those decisions take place
elsewhere. It is a support capacity.

Mr. Doyle: That would be correct.
Mr. Byblow: On page 36 of the O&M estimates, the depart

mental objectives are silent on responsibility for personnel matters.
Why is that?

Mr. Davic: I would think that it is meant to be covered under
the very first sentence there, where it says, “to provide administra
tive supervisory and support services for education programs
throughout Yukon’’. That would include a number of things, in
terms of keeping statistics, and also what I have related to, in terms
of personnel functions.

It has just been pointed out to me that it was adjusted in the
following year to include personnel functions. You will see at the
bottom of that page, ‘‘to administer and coordinate the personnel
function within the department’’. It is all in mine; it is not in yours.
It is written in here to remind me. I will read it to you, ‘‘To
administer and coordinate the personnel functions within the
department, including coordination of recruitment activities, except
for teachers, maintenance control of employee documentation and
records and provision of advice and assistance to program managers
and supervisors of personnel matters’’.

Mr. Byblow: You said that the personnel function is exclusive
of public schools?

s Mr. Doyle: No. It is set for teachers, where the recruitment of
teachers is very much in the hands of the assistant deputy minister
of public schools.

Mr. Byblow: The estimates on page 36 indicate 11.5 years for
the administration branch, yet the April, 1983 organizational chart,
provided by your department, appendix A-2, says “10.5 person
years’’. Is there any reason for the inconsistency?

Mr. Doyle: There is a difference of one year in the main
estimate book. My position is included as being part of the
administration, that is why we see 11.5, whereas in the organiza
tional chart we gave you for that same year, my position is not
there, The departmental administrator reports to me, but there is no
box for me in that particular chart, so that explains the difference
between the two.

Mr. Byblow: During the year under review, your department
was engaged in preparation of a philosophical statement and a
comprehensive set of goals and objectives for the department. What
is the status of that now?

Mr. Doyle: You are right. Towards the beginning of that year,
we had prepared the philosophical statement of objectives which.
because of the nature of the department, we do not unilaterally
approve things or bring them into being. We consult with school
committees, the education council and a variety of other groups.

What we learned, after more than a year of consultation, was that
the vast majority of people — and I think rightly so, in retrospect
— felt that our overall statements were too grandiose. They were
not down to earth enough, and we were asked through the school
committee conference and various other sources, that we start from
the bottom up again. It appears, at least at this point in time, that
we are really starting from the bottom up again. Instead of
providing full-fledged outlines of philosophical statements, we are
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more or less just listing the kinds of ingredienis that should be in
goats and objectives and philosophical statements, and we are in the
process of stating that for review and put it through the system
again.

We envisage that that will take perhaps the best part of a year
before that process is complete. Together with that, we have a small
committee within the Department of Education, the public schools
branch, which is reviewing information and input we receive from
these various groups.

Mr. Byblow: Will the objectives of the department change
more with respect to job training and job retention in the next fiscal
year?

Mr. Pcnlkett: Will the objectives be written as a result of the
revised philosophical statement?

Mr. Davie: Yes. The philosophical statements, by the way, are
in terms of public schools, and not necessarily the whole
department. One should take it for granted that when this excercise
is complete, and we are serious about it, therefore it does mean that
we would have to, if required to by changes in these slalements,
make some changes in our objectives.

Mr. Byblow: I want to deal more specifically with the
administrative re-organization that you say in your opening remarks
took place. There is reference also on page 34 of the estimates that,
in effect, says that all administration relating to educational
activities moves to the public schools branch. I have some difficulty
understanding the efficiency and the economy of that in view of the
overall, departmental administrative function of the departmental
administrator. Because the responsibility of the administrator is in
pan to oversee the administrative responsibilities of the department,
it appears as if there is some duplication taking place. That is my
question. Was there any duplication or increase in the administra
tive function of the department in the year under review’ by that
re-organization?

Mr. Davie: There was no increase in terms of taff establish
ment or cost in terms of any changes we made in who did what.
That is not what happened What happened was that it seemed at
that time that we had a number of disparate functions through the
department. The previous deputy minister had carried certain
functions himself, certain things were under the director of
administration, and some were under the ADM for public schools.
It was really a shuffle in order to bring like things under the person
who should actually be responsible for them. I do not think it
created duplication, other than that duplication which exists in any
organization, or it can seem to exist, inasmuch as it is always very
difficult to explain the role of the departmental administrator
because the departmental administrator, although he brings together
budgets, and forecasts, and although he looks after the fiscal
management of the department, is not ultimately responsible for it.
The person who is more responsible for it than the departmental
administrator is the program manager. For example, the ADM
public schools, in my view, is the person who ultimately is
responsible for the management of these funds. The departmental
administrator is a support service in that sense, in providing
information and doing all the work that is involved in keeping track
of things.

Mr. Byblow: Your argument is that it improved the efficiency
in the delivery of programs to do that reshuffling?
a, Mr. Doyle: That is what we felt to be the case, and still feel to
be the case.

Mn Byblow: On page 36 of the O&M estimates, the general
administration of the department shows a seven percent, or
$16,000, decrease. On page 38, the branch administration shows a
12 percent, or $101,000 increase. On the basis of straight economy,
it would appear to me that there is clearly no shuffling taking place.
It is a healthy enhancement of administration — $84,000 worth.

This is at a time when it was anticipated that there would be 250
fewer students in the system, according to your statistics on page
40, though your annual report shows a decline of 158, in actuality.

On the basis of that, what justification would you give for that
apparent schools administration increase?

Mr. Doyle: I cannot give a detailed justification, because I
would need to do some background research into that. But I think

when you talk about the overall administrative figure on page 36,
you see a change of seven percent. Then you refer to public schools
where you see an increase of 12 percent. You are conjecturing from
that that that meant an increase in administration. In fact, it relates
to the explanation I gave before that there was no increase in
administration, but there were aspects of the administration
functions which were moved into the public school area.

There are other factors which come in there. That part of the
administration is not just administrative salaries or personnel; it also
relates to activity. For example, in that year, we wanted to have a
more outward focus so we did increase the amount of travel to rural
schools by the superintendents.

Mr. Byblow: You are drawing references to increases else
where, in which branch?

Mr. Davie: This would be in public schools. That sum that you
point to where there is a 12 percent increase, under general
administration, public schools, includes not only salaries for
administrators, if you would like to call them that, but other items.
For example, travel is in there, as is monies for teacher moves
within the territory.

There is the cost of some other things. The interchange in
Canadian studies is in that. Part of the reason for the 12 percent
increase is due to increased travel, because we wanted the
superintendents to visit the rural schools. We had a cutback in
travel the previous year because of the recession and the zero base
review that had taken place within the department. We felt that
there maybe was a need to increase activity in the rural schools,
activity of supervision by principals.

We also had quite a number of in-territory teacher moves in that
year, as a result of some falling enrollments. Faro, for example,
had some falling enrollments in that year. So did some other rural
communities. The total picture in schools did not change all that
much, because a number of these students came into Whitehorse.
That meant that teachers were transferred, therefore there were
increased costs for that. That is all reflected in this 12 percent that
you see, but it does not represent the 12 percent increase in
administration personnel.

Mr. Byblow: I think I understand what you are trying to say,
that administration directly by personnel itself did not increase by
$84,000. The $84,000 was an increase in other related activites of
the administration. One of the problems in trying to determine just
where that $84,000 increase would be is because the expenditures
and allotments do not hreak out very good statistics, For example,
on page 38. if we are just using the public schools branch as an
example, we are looking at a total of $21 million estimate for
1983-84 under expenditure, and that is broken out under the
allotments by personnel, other and transfer payments. There is no
way to find what portion of personnel relates to administration. Do
you follow what I am saying?

Mr. Dacie: Yes.
Mr. Byblow: Is there a way that an improvement on that form

of statistical information could be provided, even if later?
Mr. Doyle: We certainly have that information, because when a

department draws up its main estimates, it draws them up in quite
great detail. Then, of course, things are brought together in a more
synoptic form to appear in the main estimate book. At any time, if
called upon, we can provide back-up. iust to recap, because it
comes to mind, in that $80,000 plus that you identified, $47,000 in
that year was used for the hosting of the interchange in Canadian
studies. That is approximately half of that $80,000 for that one
activity alone.

Mr. Byblow: Is that a one time event, Mr. Davie?
Mr. Doyle: Yes.
Mr. Byblow: Would that have been budgeted? Was it known at

the time the budget was prepared?
Mr. Davie: It would be a known budget item, and it was

lumped in with general administration. I take your point that when
you look at these figures you do not know that it includes some
travel, and some moving expenses, and it kind of looks as if it is
purely administrative costs related to salary and personnel.

Mr. Byblow: Was there an actual decline in student enrollment
in the year under review? Let me walk through a couple of

U
U
U
(3
U
U
ci
U
U
U
U
U
0
U
U
U
U
C]



- February 18, 1985 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 5:5

statistics, Mr. Davie. In the estimates on page 40, looking at the
figures in (able one, the total number of kindergarten and

U elementary secondary students, in the year under review, adds up to
4,595. That is the addition of 238 plus 4,357. The year previous,
the total number of students is 4,849. In the public schools annual
report, on page 12, your enrollment figures in the first instance

I J indicate a decline of 158, and bear no resemblance to the statistics
in the estimates by quite a substantial number. To recap, in the

p
estimates, you anticipated an enrollment decline of 250 students. In
the annual report, if I can read those as actual, you have a decline

2 of 158. Could you shed some light on (he real numbers?
Mr. Davie: There is more than one reason. The figures you see

r in the annual report are accurate figures as of March of that
particular year. They were a head-count figure taken in all

LI classrooms in Yukon, and are in the annual report as March figures.
They are compared to March figures of the previous year in the

U
annual report.

In the main estimates, we were giving an eslimate of what we
thought the enrollment would be in the schools, prior to the event.
If it can be remembered, that particular year under review was a

fl
very difficult year, because we had the Fare situation looming; we
were really in the midst of a recession. It was very difficult to
estimate what would happen with the population; therefore, that
would be the reason why I think we over-estimated by 110 students
who would be in the public school system in our main estimates.

What we are looking at in our annual report is actual figures from
March of (983 and March of (984. In this one. we are looking at
projected figures as we, looking into our crystal ball, felt were
likely to be for September. 1983.

Mr. Byblow: So the actual decline in enrollment for the year
under review was 158?. Is it fair to say that there is some difficulty
in establishing numbers because of the fiscal year-end versus the
school year-end?

Mr. Davie: That is another factor which emerges when you are

.1 looking at the school system, because there arc three important
— dates in the school system. One is September. after the Labour Day

weekend, when the students are moving into the school system,

r when you are hoping and praying and keeping your fingers crossed
that you have projected accurately and you have your teachers in
place. You arrive at that within a few days after school opens.
basically by a head count in every classroom in Yukon. In the last

U two years, we have been fairly accurate and have required not too
many transfers of staff. That is the one important day.

The next important day is fiscal year-end, where, for purposes of
government accounting and main estimates and whatnot, we have to

[1 reconcile whatever figures we have in expenditures.

U The third day for us is year-end of school, in June, when the
schools are beginning to close, we need to know how many kids we
have there and what principals and others are projected for
classrooms.

So we actually deal with it in three different scenerios, depending
upon which part of the year we are in.
o Mr. Byblow: I can understand why an estimate for a coming

U year could be out. On page 40, where you cite figures for 1982-83.
you call it forecasts, Why do you call it forecasts, when by the time
this document is prepared you ought to have actual numbers,
because in the annual report, you have actual numbers.

[J Mr. Davie: I think we call it forecasts, I could be corrected
here by the director for financial administration, but I think it is
forecast because it relates to what we were forecasting at the same
time in the previous fiscal year. We could have another column

U
which showed actual, because we would know that. You are quite
right. We would know in the preparation of this document what the
actual figures were. I believe that it is forecast because we are
comparing like things, we are comparing a forecast or estimate for

fl
1983-84 with our forecast for 1982-83.

Mr. Byblow: You can appreciate the difficulty in trying to
assess a forecast against an actual that does not exist, and make a
judgment about coming expenditures. For example, in your column

r on page 40, under table one, for the 1982-83 forecasts, your total
there is 4,849 students. The actual, according to your annual report,

LI which would be a March 1983 figure, was 4,638. Over a

200-student difference. I suppose the obvious question is, is it
within the ability of the department to indicate more accurate
statistical data in the estimates, or more useful data, not suggesting
that this is not useful.

Mr. Davie: I would think that, generally speaking, the depart
ment could be more accurate. I think we were talking about very
difficult years for forecasting. I know that I found that so with very
different scenarios. If you, for example, look at Yukon economic
reviews for these year, you would find that their figures, which they
were forecasting, were again very different from the ones we were.
We were doing it in a much more basic way by, as I say, having
head to head counts in classrooms, and having the opinion of
principals as to what their enrollment might be. You get into
scenarios in Yukon in that year, and in the previous year, where we
think that ten families may be moving out if work does not come,
but we do not know. And ten families can translate into 20, 30, 40
kids, I think the director of financial administration maybe has a
more concrete answer to give you than that.
ii Mr. Marinoske: In respect to the 1982/83 forecasts, I think it
is termed ‘forecast’’ for consistency sake. The Department of
Finance has termed that year as the forecast’’ all the way through.
With respect to the tables on page 40, the 1982/83 forecast are the
figures as at September. so between September and March. there
are a number of students who drop out, or, say, grade 12 students
who finish their grade 12 in the first semester and do not come back
for the second semester. There are people who leave the territory.

The 1982/83 forecast figure is the figure as at September of 1982.
Mr. Byblow: Is it a fair assessment that between March of 1983

and September of 1983. there was a decline of 200 students?
Mr. Marinoske: That is possible.
Mr. Byblow: Would that be a reasonable conclusion from those

two sets of figures? I am referring to the annual report — actual —

which are March figures.
Mr. Marinoske: The annual report as of March of 1983 was

4.638. At September of 1983, the forecast was 4,595, which is a
decrease of 40 some students.

Mr. Penikctt: Except that the annual report includes kindergar
ten figures, too.

Mr. Byblow: Just to review your last statement, your annual
public schools branch report estimates for March of 1983, on page
12, says 4,638. Now that ought to compare with the 1982/83
forecast which are September figures, six months later.

Mr. Marinoske: The forecast is September, 1982; six months
earlier.

Mr. Byblow: So that helps explain that. The figure, then, for
September. 1983. would be the 1983/84 estimate?

Mr. Marinoske: Yes, that would be the forecast for September
of 1983. It should be remembered that we start working on the main
estimates in approximately October. The statistics, forecasts and the
estimates are made up in around November.

Mr. Byblow: I have no further questions on those particular
points.

I want to go back into the reorganization that took place. I ask the
patience of the committee and the witnesses because I have to walk
through some information. I will draw reference to the organiza
tional chart dated April, 1983 and April, 1984 for the public
schools branch.
: Mr. Penikett: Do you have all those documents?

Mr. Davie: Yes, we do.
Mr. Byblow: Unfortunately I have my appendix cut off. I do

not know what it is, A-something. It is the big one. It looks like
A-8 and 8-3.

Okay, classroom teachers for the three regions in April of 1983,
Appendix A-8, totalled 241.33. Classroom teachers a year later
shown in the organizational chart 8-3, for the two new regions that
were created, totalled 229.45. That, in straight arithmetic, is a
reduction of 12 classroom teachers. At the same time, when I
compare the two years organizational charts, in terms of Special Ed
teachers, remedial tutors and native language teachers, I find one
less for the total of those three groupings of teachers. That gives me
13 fewer classroom and support teachers in the course of that year.
At the same time that that reduction of 13 classroom and support
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teachers takes place, it appears that six gifted and alternate program
teachers are established. As well, there are four more consultants
put in place, a special projects officer, a library technician and an
instructional materials coordinator. That is from an analysis of the
two charts. It appears that a couple of clerk positions are
eliminated, a regional superintendent and a curriculum superinten
dent cut, but the net result of which is 3.8 person years less overall,
from one year to the next.

Having run through those figures and, if they are acceptable, the
obvious question would be to ask what principle of economy
governed this departmental juggling of personnel, considering that
projected enrollment decline was anticipated at 250, though the
actual was only 158. What governed that juggling in the public
schools branch?

Mr. Davie: It is difficult to respond quickly, because Mr.
Byblow is adding numbers from different boxes and has arrived at a
total. These totals that you mention, for example, are not seen in
these charts as one number.

Let me try to answer that as best I can. First of all, the same
formula for staffing of classrooms was in place in both of these
years; therefore, the number of teachers should have been arrived at
by following the same rules in both 1983 and 1984. When you
mention the teachers for the gifted, and some other projects, the
inference is that some way or other, they have been taken from the
teacher establishment. Would I be correct in that? That is something
that you were actually asking in that question?

Mr. Byblow: Clearly, my question prefaced itself by pointing
out that there are 12 fewer classroom teachers, plus one support in
the remedial tutor, special ed and native language. With that
reduction of classroom teaching staff, there is the establishment of
new programming and consultants. I want to understand that,
because the net result is only a reduction of three.

Mr. Davle: I understand. It is very difficult to compare
numbers of teacher from one year to another year and talk about
reduction. You have to talk about what formula you apply to arrive
at teachers. For example, in that year, we had quite a reduction in
some communities and we had quite an increase in our highschool
population in Whitehorse. You look at the total number of students,
total numbers of teachers — it depends upon the formula you apply.
If the same formula is applied, then you arrive at the number of
teachers you require under that formula.

That was also the year when some new programs came in in
mid-year — like the gifted program and the alternate program, and
separate funding was sought for these mid-year, when funds became
available. They came in in the middle of that year, with additional
funding, actually, to put these programs in place. Some of the
staffing for gifted, and some of the staffing for alternate programs
were already within the school system.

I am trying to give an explanation. I cannot explain it in terms of
actual figures as to why you see three more or why you see four
more. I can only give it in a general sense, unless you want us to
come back with an exact accounting of where the teachers were in
both of these years. We can do that.

Mr. Byblow: You understand that we have a reduction of
classroom leaching and support staff of l3, according to the charts.
That is, simply taking your figures for teachers for special ed, for
remedial tutors and native language. That is a reduction of 13. At
the same time, you established the various alternate and gifted
programs, as well as a number of consultants. You say that you
sought special funding, but there ought not to have been the need
for special funding, if your overall departmental complementary
reduced by 3.5.

If you look at the overall person years for the two years, of the
branch complement, one is 400.7 and the other is 396.9, there is a
reduction of three, overall, in the public schools branch. There is a
reduction of 13 teachers. There is an implementation of gifted
programming, alternate programming, consultants, and yet you
sought special funding? I do not understand. I am more confused
now.

addition to anything that was identified in the main estimates. In
fact, they could not have been launched within the targets set within
the main estimates. Funding, as you remember that year, became
available to this government mid-year, and we were asked to
identify areas where we could strengthen our programs, and
improve the quality of education. That we did. Two examples
where we did it were in the areas of gifted students and alternate
programs [or those students who were inclined to be non-academic
students. But, we did not have the funding for that. The funding for
the whole year’s program was already identified in the main
estimates. Therefore, it has to become an enhancement to budget.
and it did, mid-year.

Mr. Byblow: However, in the supplementary estimates, there is
no money identified for special programming. We could quickly
look at the estimates, and I call your attention to supps number one,
for the year 1983-84, on what appears to be page II of the total
book. The explanation for an increase of funding is “employment
stimulation projects’’ and in supplementary two, the explanation for
some $515,000 additional funding is explained as “increased
requirements for teachers, repairs at Grey Mountain School, greater
than anticipated volume of students, and grants’’. There is no
special identification in the supps for programming as you indicate
for gifted and alternate.

Mr. Davie: Again, you are suffering in this question from lack
of detailed information in the supplementary estimates. I can run
you through the supplementaries and tell you exactly the amounts of
money that were in there, and what they are identified for. That is
an umbrella figure, an all-embracing figure that you have in that
group there, and is not broken down.

Mr. Penikett: Could you perhaps run us through those figures,
Mr. Davie, but also I would be curious if you could respond to the
main principle, if you like, to Mr. Byblow’s question. You have a
supplementary to do these additional programs. There does not
seem to be yet an accounting for the fact that there should have
been some kind of reduction represented for the reduction in the
number of l3, I think it was, classroom teachers. Is that represented
in the budget, too? You might indicate that after you have done this
detail.

Mr. Davie: I think this is supplementary number one, is it not,
this one? Maybe Mr Marinoske could just explain that, and then I
can go through the list, and that would be more helpful.

Mr. Marinoske: If you look at the supplementary number one,
the total supplementary given was $3,282,000, $1,700,000 of
which was capital and the remaining $1,558,000 was operating and
maintenance. Of that operating and maintenance, $1,558,000,
$37,000 of that was for the departmental administration, $680,000
was for public schools, $17,000 was for the French language
centres, $64,000 for recreation, and $760,000 for advanced
education and manpower. So the amount we are talking about in the
supplementary for the public schools is $680,000.

Mr. Davie: I have the detail of that one. The $680,000 is
composed of these following items: $152,000, which was basically
the six percent salary increase that came in that year, together with
some monies for busing at Keno, Elsa and Mayo busing costs that
were identified there. $64,000 was a re-vote of funds from 1983
funds which were advanced in 1982-83. And here we come to
where you are requesting the special projects coming in mid-year,
special project of $145,000, which was general painting of
buildings and maintenance and paving, that kind of thing. That
money was brought in not only to upgrade the buildings themselves,
but in order to create some job oppotunities. There was $24,000 for
the special education program; $124,000 was for alternate prog
rams; $124,000 was for gifted programs; and $47,000 was to the
native language program. If you add these up that comes to
$680,000, which is the amount identified in the supplementary.

Mr. Byblow: I do appreciate those figures.
Mr. Marinoske, you indicated that $37,000 of the O&M, of the

$3.2 million, supp one, was administration. What would that be
for?
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4 Mr. Davle: I think that the explanation of that is quite
reasonable. The programs for the gifted, the alternate programs,
and the programs where we had to seek special funding were in

Mr. Penikelt:
Davie, could you
assertion about the

While Mr. Marinoske is checking that, Mr.
have a stab at responding to Mr. Byblow’s

reduction of 13 classroom teachers and how that
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r: would be reflected in the budget?
Mr. Davie: I am afraid I cannot respond too adequately by just

I..) looking at the charts, because my mind is unable to embrace Ihe
adding up of the different little boxes and arriving at why. I do not

fl
know if there is a break in proceedings this morning or not, but if
there is, I can guarantee to come back with the response.

Mr. Pcnikett: Perhaps you could take that questions as notice.
Mr. Marinoske might respond now to the question asked of him.

fl
Following that, we will have a coffee break. To make it clear, I do
not think that we would want to necessarily respond in that ten
minutes. Tomorrow morning would be fine, if it takes until then.

Mr. Marinoske: In respect to that $37.000, $23,000 of that

r was for the six percent salary increase granted to the staff as of

April I. That is not budgetted for because we never know until after

j-j we are into the year how much the increase is going to be.
Four thousand of it was for membership in the CEA, which we

had not paid for before. Ten thousand was the revote of unspent
funds, moved up to 1983/84 from 1982/83. The monies were not
spent, so they were revoted.

Mr. Peaikctt: Could you describe CEA?
Mr. Marinoske: Canadian Educational Association.
Mr. Penikett: Let us take a ten minute break. The committee

will recess now, and reconvene at 10:40.

Recess

, Mr. Penikett: This committec will now come to order. Mr.
Byblow?

Mr. Byblow: Mr. Davie, was there anything that you wanted to
add to the line of questioning before break?

Mr. Davie: I think what I would basically like to do. is, since
the response to your questions is fairly complicated, inasmuch as

— some of (he discrepancy in numbers that you identified relates to the

U fact that some principals have not been counted in the teacher
count, that two or three positions were actually then filled in
alternate and gifted programs, which should be added to that
teacher count. The discrepancy in dollars arises because we have a

r ‘i, percentage increase in these dollars for that year as well, which
amounts to a substantial sum, as well as merit increases, and that
kind of thing, through the system. What we have to do after this
morning’s session is get down and give you a detailed account,
which we will have to you before tomorrow’s session. That will
identify every aspect as clearly as we can.

Mr. Penikett: Okay, just to close the circle on that question,
Mr. Davie, I think it would be useful to relate the apparent

(‘1 reduction in classroom positions also to the lapsed appropriation of
half a million dollars.

Mr. Byblow: One question arising from the comments this
morning relates to the explanation for the administrative cost

O increase. We were talking about the 12 percent increase, and you
identified a number of things that accounted for it. On page 38.
when I look at the allotments under personnel, there is an eight
percent increase. What is included in the personnel allotment in the
estimate figure on 38? What kinds of things?
n Mr. Davie: I can do that in one second. You are asking
specifically about personnel and eight percent change from 14 to
16?

Mr. Byblow: Yes. I am asking in general terms, not dollar by
dollar. The reason I am asking that is because, earlier in your
comments, you said that branch administration did not truly reflect
an increase in personnel because of that 12 percent up top.

We established earlier as well that there was a 3.5 personnel
decrease in the year under review, yet under personnel, we have an
eight percent increase. What accounts for all of that increase, if it is
not people?

Mr. Davie: I will try to give you an answer as best I can. Part
of the increase you see, in maintenance, for example, is due to the
return to the 10 day fortnight in that year, which established a
greater cost because we were back on full tilt. Part of the increase
which related to personnel in elementary and secondary schools
would be due to the projected six percent increases in salary,
effective September I and the projected increase in per diem salary

for substitute teachers, which was effective September I. as well,
of that year, to bring their salaries in line with other regular fulltime
teachers. There were projected six percent salary increases for
special education teachers, remedial tutors and native language
instructors.

Also, there was an increased cost in custodial services, again
related to the return to the 10 day fortnight. The same thing was for
clerical support staff. There was a slight increase there because of
going back to the 10 day fortnight.

There was a slight increase in special education due to the salary
grid increases in that area, which is merit increases. The same thing
applied to rejnedial tutors. There was an increase in native
languages due to an additional permanent instructor hired in
1982/83. There was an increased demand for native language
programs. When you bring these all together, it accounts for the
eight percent increase you see reflected in the main estimates.

Mr. Pealkett: This may seem like a slightly provocative
question. When you are looking at this department, in terms of the
operation and maintenance expenditures, it is mostly salaries. That
is not surprising. This is a question of accuracy of information, or
relevant information: is there any expenditure under that rather huge
sum, under the personnel allotments there, which a fair-minded
person really might not describe as personnel?
is Mr. Davie: You asked a provocative question. I believe there
is, and I think we related to this earlier on when we were talking
about general administration. I am not saying it is not appropriate
for it to be under that heading, but it perhaps would be more clearly
understood if we had a better break-down of that particular section
as to budget. When you say are there things in there not
appropriate? — none that come to mind. I think maybe they are as
well in there as anywhere else, if you want an umbrella heading.
For clarity, perhaps things I mentioned earlier like moving
expenses, for example, could be flagged, and then it would not be
thought of as just purely personnel administration type cost, which I
think is misleading.

Mr. Byblow: I have a couple of questions on the new
programming that we talked about earlier. I draw reference to some
of your earlier remarks similar to what is said in the opening
statement on page 7 where the gifted and alternate programming
was developed because these were not being met with existing
courses. My question is: what prompted this determination in the
year under review? We have always had gifted students, we have
always had a need for alternate programming. How suddenly in the
year under review did we get this special program set up at a time
of declining enrollments, and declining teachers in the classroom?

Mr. Dade: There are two reasons I think for that one, Mr.
Byblow. Funding did become available, which allowed us to look at
areas which we had been considering for some time, that we have
not been able to capture within the main estimates. The other reason
is that, alternate programs in particular — not so much gifted
programs — were something that had been talked about in a variety
of different ways by school committees and other people. Some
people claim that the department, in fact, did not focus well enough
on these kids, and there are a large number of them, students within
the system who were non-academic, who were fumbling, who were
perhaps dropping out. Therefore it was a pet thing, if you like, of
the department to take the opportunity when it came along to
introduce the concept of alternate programs, which we are still
building on. and hope to build on even more in the future. Gifted
came for much the same reasons. There was another group of
people in the community who through school committees, school
committee conferences, said things like the really intelligent bright
academic kid, or the kid with a special talent in art, or whatever it
might be. is neglected within the system, which is a public school
system. Therefore, we should be trying to focus on some of these
students in order to realize their full potential. That is why these
two programs came in, because they had been referred to over and
over a period of time from school committees, and because of the
opportunity for initial funding in that particular year.
,o Mr. Byblow: What process was followed in the development
stage for this new program? During the year under review, it was
developed. In the subsequent year, pilot programs were put in



5:8 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE February 18, 1985

place. During the year under review, there were people who were
put on the job to develop the program. I am trying to understand the
extent of development that took place. Lhe process prior to
implementation.

Mr. Davle: Quite a lot of work had been done within the
department, particularly in terms of alternative programs. There had
been many projects in communities. Particularly in Teslin, the
principal there had shown a great interest in that kind of program.
In fact, he had been piloting an alternate type program in Teslin, so
we already had a fair idea of the kind of ingredients that went into
alternate programming.

We decided that we should not rush into something that would be
doomed to failure, so we decided that the best way to handle this
would be to second a person in the community of Teslin who
already had some hands-on experience in that area, bring them into
the department, set up the criteria for alternate programs and pilot
them, so that we would have something to evaluate and examine
before introducing them, holus-holus, into the system.

Gifted was a little bit different. We did not really have anybody
within the system who had been piloting in that kind of thing
already. In order to meet the need, we decided that what we had to
do was to hire somebody. We looked across the country and we
found someone with a good reputation in North America in terms of
the development of gifted programs, introduced that person to the
department and asked him to set up a model. Then we went into the
pilots.

Does that answer your question?
Mr. Byblow: To an extent.
Let me put something into general terms which will try to

capsulize most of our discussion this morning.
In the year under review, we have had introduction of new

programs. We have had a departmental reorganization; we seem to
have a reduction in classroom teachers and the creation of new
personnel in the new programming. Would it be provocative to say
that what was happening, especially during a year of declining
enrollment, was an effort by the department to protect its staffing
complement and not act with due regard for economy?

Mr. Dawle: It may be provocative, but it would not be accurate
to assume that that was the department’s intent. I think pan of the
additional funding used that year within ihe department — and this
takes it away from public schools, but also within the public
schools — was used forjob retention purposes in the communities,
which had nothing to do with staffing within the public schools or
the advanced eduation branch.

I think when we get back to you with the outline I said I would
bring back for tomorrow morning, you will find that, in effect,
there was not the reduction of teachers that there seems to have
been reflected in these charts. That was not the case, because we
applied the same formula in September of that year as we had done
the previous year. We added some teachers midway through the
year into two Whitehorse schools where enrollments seemed very
high in kindergarten classes. When you see the total, you will find
that there was not the reduction, as it would appear in these charts,
of something like 11.5 teachers,

The bringing in of these programs of gifted and alternate was in
line with our objective, which is to provide quality education to
Yukon students. It is also in line with a style, which is to listen to
the school committees, the school committee conference and the
education council, which highly promoted that kind of activity
within the school system.
, Mr. Byblow: You were not very provoked. When you are
doing the analysis, perhaps you could just make note of my
observation that there is a two clerical staff reduction. it seems to
me that if you are increasing your consultation to programming, and
improving and enhancing your programming. you need support
staff. It is just an observation.

I want to deal with the formula we keep referring to. but before
that, I want to understand the pupil-teacher ratio concept, as applied
by your department. The public schools annual report, on page 18,
summarizes the pupil-teacher ratios during the year under review
across the territory. I guess, very bluntly, how do you determine a
pupil-teacher ratio? What bodies do you use, what formula do you

apply, what is a pupil-teacher ratio as used by your department, that
has provided these figures?

Mr. Davie: In the year under review, the pupil-teacher ratio
formula, if you like, was one which had been in place since 1976. 1
think it was a Cabinet decision as to how schools should be staffed,
and for a period of years schools were staffed largely according to
that formula. Sometimes deviations were made in that formula
because of particular needs in a particular community. That formula
was never a public document. The formula as applied today, is now
a public document. The formula which was applied to staffing, for
example, for the schools for this school year, is a public document,
is available within the department, and it states quite exactly how
we arrive at the student-teacher formula. But in the year under
review we were still operating under the old formula, which had
been in effect over the years since 1976 until this particular year,
and it was not a public document.

Mr. Byblow; (have a copy. To some extent, in my mind, I am
confused about two things that we are talking about. We are talking
about a staffing formula, which is that application of teachers into
schools, and we are talking about determining pupil-teacher ratios.
Arc they one and the same, and could you clarify for the record any
difference?

Mr. Davie: They become the same. The first thing that is
applied, Mr. Byblow, is the staffing formula. The staffing formula
is applied and, of course, there is a pupil-teacher ratio in that
staffing formula. Once it is applied, then the overall pupil-teacher
ratio is extrapolated from it. If you like, Mr. Wallace could explain
some aspects of the existing formula, which, as I say, is available
to the public.

Mr. Byblow: Yes, I think we would appreciate it before further
questioning.

Mr. Wallace: To respond to your question, the pupil-teacher
ratio is essentially the total number of students in Yukon schools at
one point in the year. Probably the most accurate from an
educational point of year would be September 30. at which time we
provide input to Stats Canada, divided by the total number of
teachers we have employed. We use administrators, counsellors, all
those who are assigned at the school level, to arrive at the
pupil-teacher ratio. I do not think it is accurate to say that there
should be a pupil-teacher ratio per school. We have a formula that
varies, whether it is for classroom teachers, or librarians, or
counsellors, or administration. We simply cannot develop a ratio of
1:23 or 1:25 that applies equally to Pelly or to Jack Hulland,
because of the characteristics of the school. So we have a rather
complex formula that deals with all of the possible scenarios that
we will encounter.

Mr. Byblow: That complexity is documented in a way that is
digestible by the committees, and so on?

Mr. Wallace: Oh yes. Yes it is a public document, All of the
school committees have this document, and the education council
has it, and the principals have it.

Mr. Byblow: Maybe we should table that for the record, and
ask that it be tabled.

Could I just ask you a question on that subject, Mr. Wallace. You
seem to indicate that it is, in fact, not just teachers in the
classrooms who are included in the development of the ratios, it is
(he staff in the school, I think you said. Therefore, the pupil-teacher
ratio, strictly speaking, would not be a perfect representation of
average classroom size because there are people who are not in the
classroom who are included in the formula. Is that correct?

Mr. Wallace: That is correct to an extent, although in practice
most of our principals teach. We have an expectation that all of
them will teach. I think all but two this year are teaching, and those
two will be teaching next year. One principal, in many instances, is
probably seven eights of a teacher in practice.

Mr. Byblow: The ratio in rural schools is a fairly acceptable
one. I expect it is higher than in the urban schools, but in some of
those urban schools, presumably the principals are not teaching and
there may be other specialists who are not teaching as well, like
counsellors, is that correct?

Mr. Wallace: Yes, although it is common practice in most
Canadian jurisdictions to report this information and to include
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p
principals and support staff who are directly in contact with
students, as opposed to Department of Education officials.

Mr. Penikett: These figures would be close, but would not
necessarily be, average classroom sizes, then.

G
Mr. Wallace: Right.
Mr. Peaikctt: Because there are people who are included who

may not be in the classroom 100 percent of the time.
Mr. Wallace: Yes. But as a protection I should point out that

fl
there are maximum class sizes provided for in the staffing
entitlement formula.

Mr. Penlkett: Okay, we will take a look at that. Mr. Byblow?
Mr. Byblow: Just one last question on the formula. The public

document in circulation now: what is the date of its last revision?
Mr. Wallace: 1984.
Mr. Byblow: And it has not been revised since?
Mr. Wallace: No, although we made a commilment to the

U
education council and the school committees 10 look at it in
consultation with them and the YTA and principals association.

Mr. Byblow: Extending from the general discussion on prog
ramming, and eventually getting back into some stulistics provided

r in the operations and maintenance budget. what monitoring goes on
of the programs currently in the schools system. whether it is the
language program or a science program. To put it in context I want
to enquire about the department’s evaluation of the success of its

P
programs, after students get out of high school.

Mr. Davie: I think I will ask Mr. Wallace to answer the first
part of that, because he is very close to the detail of how you
actually monitor particular aspects of programs in the schools,

Mr. Wallace: The first thing I should point out is that Yukon.

by and large, follows the British Columbia curriculum. We have

j.J variations to suit Yukon needs, so, in a sense, in terms of program
evaluation, we have access to whatever British Columbia is doing.
With our limited resources, it is not possible for us to replicate the
type of work they do, but we have access to their program
evaluation.

The particular task that falls to us is to see whether the curriculum
is working for us here in Yukon and if our students are learning the
way we are expecting them to learn. We have quite a bit of data to
enable us to make judgments in thaI area — probably. I would say.
more data than most jurisdictions in Canada. We test all of our
students from grades three to eight annually. using the Canadian
test for basic skills. In most other jurisdictions, that is done in
grades three, seven and eight or nine, and that sort of thing. It is
quite often done every second year. We are testing every student
every year, so we have quite a considerable amouni of data
available. That has been analyzed quite extensively over the past
year by Bob Sharp, as part of his rural study. We have a lot of
information as to how our students are doing in relation lo studenis
across Canada in reading, in mathematics and in the basic core
areas.

That information is very detailed. It will tell us. for example,
which part of phonics that a student may be having difficulty with.
or which particular part of mathematics. We are able, from that, to
project trends over a period of time.

We have been able to establish. for example, that when the
results of our students are compared to those of students from
across Canada, Yukon has been actually advancing in terms of the
Canadian norms from 1977 to 1984, so there is a lot of data
available.

As well, we have the English placement lest, which is given at
the high school level. We are able to compare our students with
British Columbia students. There was a decision by the Minister of
Education last year that Yukon students would participate in the
British Columbia departmentals. This will give us a very good test
at the end of our system as to how our students are doing in relation
to British Columbia.

The first exam was written in late January by students from FF1.
Collins on the semester system, so we will have that information
and we will be analyzing it carefully. If we find that we are below
in physics, we will have a look at physics to see what it is that we
are doing wrong.

We have a considerable amount of other data as well. We are

concerned about achievement in our rural schools, so we commis
sioned a study last year by a professor fronl.k research institute in
British Columbia — she was associated with the university — of
reading results at the grade four level. We have an extensive
document as a result of that. We met about two weeks ago and we
have a number of things we are going to be doing over the summer
which we feel will improve our results. The results were generally
favourable, but they pointed out several areas of weakness.

We did a fairly extensive series of tests on our French immersion
students recently. The results, again, showed that Yukon French
immersion students, on the whole, are doing better than their
counterparts in British Columbia.
24 We are doing quite a bit of testing. We do an analysis of student
marks, and we have a close look al the student drop-out rate, or to
put it more positively, the retention rate. We are concerned about
that. I think that accounts for our initiatives in the alternate
programming that Mr. Davie pointed out, and also for a major study
we now have underway of our secondary schools. We are looking at
revisions of the junior high school curriculum and the senior high
school curriculum 10 meet the needs of students who are currently
dropping out, to see if we can improve on the retention rate. Again,
we have evidence that our retention rate has increased from 1977 to
1984. but there are still enough students dropping out, particularly
in some communities, to merit attention. Also, we regularly send
our staff out to model schools in the outside area. Recently, Mr.
Courtice, one of our superintendents, and Miss Weigel the director
of curriculum went down to select schools in Victoria and
Vancouver to look at methodology and ways other jurisdictions are
responding to the problems. Those are some of the areas, We do not
have as extensive a capacity as the Department of Education of
Ontario would have, but certainly, within out limits, we do a lot
more than equivalent school boards.

Mr. Penikett: You mentioned a woman who is involved in
some assessment of the reading instruction here. You said she was
associated with some research institute. Could you identify that
research institute, Mr. Wallace?

Mr. Wallace: I will have to provide you with that information
later. I am drawing a blank at this moment. She was associated with
UBC. I believe, and established her own private company. The
name, I cannot recall.

Mr. Penikett: It is not urgent. Mr. Byblow?
Mr. Byblow: We appreciate your thorough answer, Mr. Wal

lace. The monitoring and testing that is ongoing in the school
system, in the public school system, that forms an integral pan of
evaluation for program expenditures, such as the case of gifted and
alternate, that was a question, but my concern was that it may have
appeared as if it were a hasty decision in the absence of back-up
support. What is your response to that?

Mr. Penikett: I guess the question is, Mr. Wallace, was there
empirical evidence of the need for those programs before they were
established?

Mr. Wallace: Oh. yes, there is no question. You can go back
to Bob Sharp’s report in 1977, for example, which provides some
data. It was a question of, as Mr. Davie pointed out, awaiting the
availability of funds. I think the Sharp report, which will be
released in the next short while, will provide a lot more data to
support that.

Mr. Penikett: Was it a similar kind of empirical base the
decision to do departmentals?

Mr. Wallace: I do not think empirical data was necessary.
There are as much perception of the minister and the department
that it would be in the interest of students seeking admission to
universities to have the credibility of British Columbia departmental
examinations.

Mr. Penikett: Could I just ask you if I may, Mr. Byblow, to
pick up on the question of drop-outs. From time to time, the
Legislature has had occasion to remark on the drop-out rate, not
only in rural schools, but also in high schools in Whitehorse. I am
not asking a policy question here, but what kinds of research, or
what forms of research are done into the nature of that problem, and
the remedies? I was not quite clear from your answer as to how well
you may have identified the root causes of that problem.
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Mr. Wallace: I think we have very extensive information from

(he work that Bob Sharp has done. That is the core of his study. He
spent close to a year working on it. bob did a lot of tracking of
individual students who had dropped out. In fact, he identified,
over a seven year period, every student who had dropped out. To
the best of his ability, he tried to establish where they were now,
and some of the reasons for dropping out.

I think the key element that he identified was the lack of
appropriate education. In some communities, for example, it has
been customary to offer academic programs where the majority of
students require different types of education. Perhaps education
which would still have academic goals, but what would be more
appropriate than Shakespeare might he basic writing skills, develop
ment of some of the higher order of reading skills, for example.

Mr. Penikett: I take Mr. Sharp’s point well, and lam assuming
that much of the academic program is, in a sense, educating our
kids for export, because many of the skills that they require in
universities have not traditionally been marketable here. In respect
to the science programs, you alluded to the testing of our physics
programs, for example. That problem that Mr. Sharp identified, of
appropriateness — someone who is in a non-academic program but
requires the fundamentals in science — to what extent, with proper
regard to economy, is the department able to adjust the science
program, for example, so that it is more relevant in perhaps looking
at local geology while getting the fundamentals of the scientific
method. To what extent has the department been able to respond to
that, or lest the appropriateness of that with the methods available
to you, with regard to economy?

Let me ask you a different question: are the structures of the BC
curriculum such that it makes that difficult?

Mr. Wallace: I do not think it would be difficult. I think the
critical problem is to have the local community identify the type of
education they see as being most relevant to their students. There
are a considerable range of programs available on the market. For
example, there would be general science programs, or science
courses that presume a lot of ability in mathematics and perhaps in
reading. I do not think we would have difficulty in selecting a
curriculum. We may have to modify it to suit local needs.

I believe the most difficult and challenging areas would be in
mathematics and in the reading, language arts area. Education
begins with the study of the learner, so the important thing for us,
in a given community, is to be quite familiar with the learning
characteristics of the students. Once we have established that, if we
have the consultants with the expertise in the department, we can
work with the principals and the school committees and design a
program.

I think we are very conscious of the role of the school committee
here. We are beginning right now a process of consultation with
school committees in several communities in Yukon to address that
question, but we feel we have to bring them with us.
26 Mr. Penikett: I have another question. I do not want to stray
into the large policy dimension of it, but I want to stick to the
administrative dimension. The more narrow aspect. I am conscious
though, that when I scan the Science Council of Canada’s
assessment of science teaching in the schools this year, there was a
lot of comment about how abstract and dry and irrelevant it was to
the lives of most of the students. That it was not related enough, it
was not practical enough, it was not related enough to their real
world. Having mind to Mr. Sharp’s thesis about appropriateness,
what tests do you have within the department, or what means do
you have to test the efficacy of those kinds of programs that may be
presently existing, or even new models that may be available
because of technology? I mean computers that you might be able to
buy in packages. How do you test them? Do you just have to
basically wait until you start to see students who are the products,
and then measure their performance, is that the fundamental test?

Mr. Wallace: I think there is an important distinction to be
made in the college preparatory program and the technical school
preparatory program, and those programs that are designed to lead
students toward trade level courses or vocational level courses, and
an institution like Yukon College or an equivalent institution
outside. In a sense, but not totally, the student has to fit the

program in the college preparatory program. If we deviate too much
in the prescribed curricula, we may jeopardize the student’s chance
of getting admission into UBC and so on. in terms of the other
programs, I think that it is very important that the department
provide programs which fit the characteristics of the students. That
is our major attempt now, to begin with the study of the learner,
and design programs that meet the needs of grade eight in Ross
River, which may not be the same as grade eight in Haines
Junction, and so on. That is an important distinction. As to your
other question, of whether we are testing, for example, grade II
physics, I think the best answer I can givç you there is as a
department we have a limited number of individuals working, and
we are attempting to focus on certain areas. Right now, our chief
focus is on grade seven to 12 language skills, and seven to 12
mathematic skills, but particularly in language. We have identified
in our planning group within the public schools that language skills
seven to 12 are the chief focus for next year. We have spent
considerable time in the past on language of the other areas. That is
not to say we do not have initiatives, but we are not specifically
looking at ... next year except to compare the results of our students
in B.C. departmentals with those of others.

Mr. Peaikett: Could I just ask one more question, if I may,
Mr. Byblow, on this general subject as it relates back. Maybe I can
direct it to you, Mr. Davie. The implications of Mr. Byblow’s
earlier questions about the relative size of the administrative
component of your department, as opposed to the people who are
actually in the classrooms. You would be acquainted with the
problem which the economists call the miniature replica problem of
having to duplicate, if you like, the functions of a provincial
department of education in a very small community. Is there, from
your point of view, a problem of having to have an absolute
minimum of administrative and professional and technical services
in the centre of the department, or in the administration of the
department, which might be sufficient to service a much larger
jurisdiction that are the minimum necessary to, in fact, meet the
needs of this community, and therefore create the impression of an
administrative overburden. I do not know whether my question is
clear to you. It is talking about administrative minimums.
, Mr. Dayle: Part of the question was: do we have an administra
tive team together that could handle a larger load if we had a larger
population? I think there is always some truth in that. You need a
certain minimum number of people.

Another part of it was that we were trying to perhaps mimic other
provincial jurisdictions and so on. I do not think that would be at all
true, if you examine the staffing in departments of education in the
provincial jurisdictions, I think you will find that we are a
Cinderella among that group in terms of the kinds of functions we
have. The only position within the department, which really relates
to other intra-provincial functions, for example, the Council of
Ministers of Education, and that kind of group would be myself.
We do not have many other staff members involved in that
particular inter-provincial scene.

Mr. Penikett: You are the fairy godmother then?
Mr. Davie: Yes, that is right. I am Cinderella’s fairy god

mother.
I take the view, and I always contest this when it comes up.

because it is commonly stated that the Department of Education has
far too many administrators.

I think we have learned something today. I think part of the
reason why people think that is is because they look at general
administration in the main estimates. They see a large sum of
money and they think administration means people who are sitting
in offices, but not in the school system. In fact, if you really do
examine it, we have an assistant deputy minister for public schools
who is responsible for all the public school area, with two regional
superintendents for 26 schools, and a diverse geography. We have
expectations out there which can hardly be met even by two
regional superintendents. We have a departmental administrator
whose function is not just for public schools, but for advanced
education and manpower, Yukon College and all the other programs

U
U
p
U
U
0
U
U
U
U
U
0
U
0
U
U
[1
(zthat go on there.

My position, by the way, only partly relates to public schools.
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We have a school services supervisor with very minimal staff whose
job it is to look after maintenance, custodial services and have an
overview of capital projects in addition to public schools.

When you examine it, the actual administrative staff is very
small, considering the number of programs that we have to
administrate there. I think we give the impression of having a lot of

1, administrators.
I do not consider, for example, the co-ordinator of gifted

programs, the co-ordinator of alternate programs or the special
education person as being administrators. Their involvement in

L administration is almost nil. They are service people to staff and
students within the school system. They could actually be placed

- outside the education department and into the schools and still
f I perform the same function.

{j Mr. Penikett: Regarding the scale of administration. I would
imagine that it would be frustrating to be compared with other
provincial departments, but have you taken a look at the administra
tive costs of the department in this jurisdiction as it might relate to a
school district somewhere else with a similar population?

Mr. Davle: We have, and we have looked at that from lime to
time, partly because one of the questions that has been before us forr as long as I have been in the department, and before that, I believe,

I is should Yukon go in the direction of school boards, and should we
have autonomous school hoards similar to the school boards in
provinces. Naturally we have looked at these other things. They are

fl not always comparing like things when you compare a school
district in Alberta, say, with Yukon, because when you look at that
school district, you are not looking at the Government of Alberta,
which also has its provincial Department of Education and staff and
researchers, and all that goes with it. I would think that if you

j . compared a district of similar size in Alberta with Yukon. you may
-. find that we appear to have more administrative staff within the

department that that same district in Alberta. That would not be
comparing like things, because you are missing all these other
support services which are available to that district through the
provincial government.

Mr. Byblow: Mr. Davie, I am going to try to explain all that
( you said to the classroom teacher with 33 students and no support

I staff. I do respect what you are saying. Mr. Chairman. I am not
-j sure that I have a follow-up question to what Mr. Wallace was

talking about in terms of monitoring and testing value of programs.
(fl By way of notice, on advanced education and manpower I will have

a line of questioning that will enquire about the follow-up that is
done on students who leave our system. I will be calling attention to
the stats provided on grants, the students who go to other

n jurisdictions, and in general, a question is to enquire about what
follow-up is done following graduation, which, in a way, will
measure the success of ours. I suppose maybe on that note, that will
lead us into advanced ed tomorrow. There no doubt will be some

r follow-up questions that I did not complete on public schools, but

U we can deal with those tomorrow.
Mr. PeniketI: Mr. Davie, do you have any last thoughts before

we adjourn today?
n Mr. Dawle: No, other than we will bring in the information on
the subjects that came up today. I am presuming that Mr. Wallace

U will come to the first part tomorrow morning, in case that there is
some follow up on public schools.

r 1 Mr. Penlkett: We do not want to keep your officials before the

U . committee an excessively long time, because we had hoped to
complete the enquiry tomorrow, — that may not be possible, but
we hope to. 1 think we may want to indicate to you, in perhaps a
little more detail this afternoon, through our clerk, something a

U little more precisely ahout the line of enquiry we intend to pursue.
That may help expedite trying to get the answers we are looking
for.

On that note, can I ask the committee to adjourn into executive9 session. I will excuse the witnesses and thank them for the time
Li they have spent with us this morning.

Committee adjourned at 11:30 am.
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ni EVIDENCE
Tuesday, February 19, 1985

Mr. Brewster: I will call Public Accounts Committee hearing
to order. This is the formal hearing, meeting number six of the sixth

n sitting.
The witnesses today are Mr. Jim Davie. deputy minister; Mr. Ron

Wallace, assistant deputy minister. elementary and secondary
schools; Mr. Stan Marinoske, director of administration services;
Mr. Dan Odin, assistant deputy minister, advanced education and

I I manpower.
I believe that Mr. Byblow is asking questions now. Is ihere

anything you would like to say before he proceeds?
Mr. Davie: No, I think we can go ahead with the questions.
Mr. Byblow: I do have a number of follow-up questions from

yesterday, but before I proceed, what is happening with respect to
the undertaking we had yesterday for informalion relating to the
staffing complement questions I raised,

1 - Mr. Davie: I could answer these at the moment. I misunder
stood; I thought that was going to be your first question. I can
follow up.

Mr. Byblow: Certainly. Perhaps we could clear that out of the
way.

Is it a document that can be tabled, or are you proceeding orally?
Mr. Dade: I can give you a copy of the memo from which lam

reading. Would you like that?
If we are talking, at this point, about the question lhat was raised

about the apparent reduction in the number of teachers, I can give
you a copy of this memo.
oz Shall I read the response. Mr. Byblow?

Mr. Byblow: Certainly.
Mr. Dade: This is a comparison of the school level profession

al teaching force deployed during the 1982-83 and the 1983-84
school years. The following compares the number of professional
staff actually deployed at the school level during two school years.
namely 1982-83 and 1983-84. In 1982-83. at April — note that I
said April because at different times in the year the numbers can
change, so these are comparing April figures — regular teachers in
1982-83, 266.33: at 1983-84, 259.85; Special Ed teachers, 22 in
1982-83, and in 1983-84 was 25; nalive language teachers. 2 in
both years; for a total in 1982-83 of 290.33. and in 1983-84,
286.85. Therefore, a reduction in professional slaff from 1982-83 to
1983-84 was 3.48, not the figure that we were talking about
yesterday.

A regular teacher includes classroom teachers. principals, libra
rians and counsellors. Special ed ieachers include learning assis
tants and special class teachers in 1982-83, and learning assistants,
special class teachers, alternate education class Icachcrs and
teachers of the gifted in 1983-84.

The monies identified in supplementary main estimates number
one for gifted education and alternate education were used to pay
the salaries of the coordinators and to purchase materials for the
program, as well as to cover the cost of travel for the coordinators,
and professional development for teachers.

Since special ed teachers work directly in classrooms with
students, the addition of more has the implication of reducing the
requirement on the work load for regular teachers. Please note the
following with regard to information provided to the public
accounts committee in Appendix A-S. The figure of 266.33 regular
teachers derived from the organizational chart dated April 1983, is
an actual figure based on a count of regular teachers deployed at
that time. The figure of 255.45 regular teachers derived from the
organizational chart dated April 1984, is an estimate prepared in the
previous school year of the likely number of regular teachers
required to operate the schools during 1983-84. This figure should
not be confused with the actual figure shown in the table. The
reduction in professional staff in the school year 1982-83 to school
year 1983-84 of 3.48 person years represents a monetary value of
$81,200 in a budget of well over $20 million. This amount

represents a small increase to the total financial resources of the
education system.
n Mr. Byblow: Thank you, Mr. Davie.

This is another analysis of what I was talking about yesterday. I
do have some immediate questions. Note one, which refers to Ihe
regular teachers as including all classroom teacher, principals,
librarians and counsellors: would it also include, in the 1983/84
year, the gifted and alternate programming instructors and counsel
lors?

Mr. Dade: No. The funding for the coordinators of the gifted
program came from the supplementary which we discussed yester
day, so it does not include special education.

Mr. Byblow: Does the figure, 259.85, include the gifted and
special programming teachers, which total six, according to the
organizational chart?

Mr. Davie: There are 25 identified under special education
teachers.

Mr. Byblow: So, if I understand correctly what your note
implies, it is saying that the two new programs introduced are an
additional complement to the staffing noted here for the 1983/84
year •1

Mr. Wallace: The gifted and alternate education programs have
been classified as part of the special education program. They
appear in the table on the first page, in the grand total on the right.
opposite to 1983/84 in the total 286.5. The gifted and alternate
programs under special ed account for the difference between
1982/83 and 1983/84 from 22 to 25. tn fact, there were three
positions.

Mr. Byblow: The organizational charts indicate six positions in
allernate and gifted. Are you saying that those six positions, as
classroom instructors, are in the 25 under special ed for the 1983-84
year?

Mr. Wallace: No. The alternate positions do not appear on the
chart. They are not teachers assigned to the schools. They are
reported independent of this. They would appear under depart
mental.

Mr. Byblow: The coordinators, according to the chart, would
be the consultants. Right. I may have more questions when I have a
chance to study this further. Perhaps at this point I will express
appreciation for the explanation and if there is any further question
on it. our clerk will be in contact.

Mr. Dade: There were other questions from yesterday we were
asked to respond to. One was in the reduction of clerical staff. I
believe a memo has actually been tabled with you on that, is that
right? Yes. You have that response. And the other is that we said
we would get to you, and I believe you have it in written form, the
re-write of the departmental objectives to include job creation
programs. Do you have these?

Mr. Byblow: Yes. Item 6 on your memo just tabled draws
reference to the reduction of 3.48 person years as representing
$81000. A straight division of that would indicate about a $23,000
salary.

Mr. Davie: We always have this confusion, Mr. Byblow, with
teacher’s salaries because the school year is different from the fiscal
year under which we operate. That would be a partial school year in
which that money was allocated. The fiscal year ends the 31st of
March. The school year starts in September, so any new programs
that are coming in are accounted for from September to March in
that particular fiscal year.

Mr. Falle: Mr. Davie, I am sort of curious. There are 259.85
teachers in the Yukon, and 25 special ed. The administration staff
to cover 259 teachers consist of what? I mean, the top end load.
a Mr. Dade: The applicable organizational chart that I will refer
to is B-3. There is the assistant deputy minister of education who is
Mr. Wallace. He is responsible for the overall program and direct
supervision and is involved in the performance evaluation of
classroom teachers. There are two regional superintendents for all
of Yukon, There is a director of instructional services, which is
really a supervisory position. She has staff, education consultants,
in terms of curriculum and primary grades, intermediate grades,
alternate programs, special ed programs and gifted program. They
are really a resource to the school system, to enhance the quality of
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education. They do a supervisory function. In other words, I do not
think they are an administrative function. They are actually a
resource to the system and to the teachers in (he classroom.

I would say that the administrative staff consists of the assistant
deputy minister, the two regional superintendents and one other,
which is the school services supervisor, (he individual who looks
after all the plant, custodial and maintenance in the 26 schools that
we operate.

There are clerks and typists within the system as well.
Mr. Falle: I understand that there are four supervisory posi

tions, over (he 259.85 teachers. What does the administration staff
consist of on the 25 special ed teachers, or do they overlap?

Mr. Davie: The administrative staff for the 25 special ed? That
is more difficult to answer than it seems, because (he special ed
teachers have only one person responsible for them and that would
be the director of instructional services. They are deployed in
different schools throughout (he (erritory. On a day (o day basis,
their supervisor would be (he principal within the school in which
they operate.

Mr. mIle: So, their direct supervisor is the principal oF (he
school, and, the principal of the school would make the decision as
to what the special ed teachers do in the school?

Mr. Davie: In a sense, that is right, in as much as that is right
for any teacher, never mind special ed teachers. Obviously the
department and the principal have worked out the kind of program
they want to operate in that school and have come to some
agreement as to what should happen there.

Under (he direction of the department, the principal does
supervise the daily activities of the special ed teacher.

Mr. Falle: I had my question answered in a roundabout way. I
want to know if the principal of the school is directly responsible
for the education of the children attending the school along with the
staff of that school?

Mr. Davie: The answer is: yes.
Mr. Byblow: To follow up on some line of questioning from

yesterday, regarding the breaking out of statistical data, and the
issue of more information in the estimates surrounding expenditure
allocations. I want to ask how this can be improved, in a general
way. But, in specific reference — and for example. I draw
reference to page 38 again — in order to know how the $16 million
under personnel in allotment is distributed — and (hat is in relation
to (he expenditure in the vote above (hat line item — is it possible
to break out supporting data in the estimates, and if not, why not?

Mr. Davie: I do not want to be facetious by saying anything is
possible, but obviously when a figure arrives in the main estimates,
i( has to have back up, and there is departmental back up for every
figure in there. What happens is: the main estimates are drawn
together by the Department of Finance in some kind of common
format from background material given by departments. A number
of things are pushed together. I could give you, right now, for
example, an exact break-down of the $16 million that you refer to,
because we have the back-up within the department.

Mr. Byblow: No, I am not asking for a break-out of the $16
million, dollar by dollar. I am asking if it is possible, under the
personnel line item, Co break out the personnel costs in relation to
each of the line items in the expenditure allocation above that line
item.

Mr. Davie: Yes, it is possible.
Mr. Byblow: Of the $16 million shown on page 38 under

personnel, is it totally wage and benefits related costs?
Mr. Davie: No, it is not. There are other items in there.
Mr. Byhlow: What sort of other items are there than those

related to wage and benefits?
Mr. Davie: Sorry, I gave the wrong answer to that, because I

am looking at two sheets here. Yes it is wage and benefits broken
down into a number of different areas, like branch administration,
maintenance, teachers’ salaries. It is -all wages and benefits.

Mr. Byblow: Fine. My next question is perhaps more properly
directed to Mr. Wallace, because it deals with the pupil-teacher
ratio, and the formula issue. We established yesterday that the new
formula in effect now changes the meaning of the ratio information
that exists in the annual report. I do not want to dwell on those old

figures. My inquiry, rather, surrounds an attempt to understand the
implications of the new formula. I will make the question more
specific.

Since, in the new formula, we have principals included, we have
librarians included, and we have school counsellors included, where
they are applicable according to the enrollment, are they then used
when you produce pupil-teacher ratio figures within the system and
for public consumption?
n Mr. Wallace: The answer is yes. It is customary, in most
Canadian jurisdictions, to include all school level professionals in
calculating the pupil/teacher ratio.

For the purpose of comparability to other jurisdictions, we report
our data that way, otherwise, you would not be able to draw
comparisons with the situation in the Northwest Territories or
Alberta, or other areas. Certainly, in the formula, the principals are
assigned separately, over and above the teachers, as are the
librarians and counsellors.

Mr. Byblow: You recognize, of course, that if a principal is
part of the formula for allocation of teachers, and does not teach,
necessarily, in a direct proportion to that allocation, then his entry
into the formula is somewhat misleading. Clearly, a librarian, who
is outside the actual classroom situtation, and a counsellor, who is
outside the classroom situation, when you deliver, for public
consumption, a pupil/teacher ratio, it is inclusive of people who are
not directly in the classroom, and therefore, it has no direct
relationship to the numbers in the classroom. Do you understand the
point I am making?

Mr. Wallace: I understand your point. It is common practice in
most Canadian jurisdictions to report all of the school level
professional staff, the theory being that, for example, counsellors
deal directly with students. Librarians deal directly with students.
Principals, most of the day, deal directly with students, either as
teachers, or working with students who are having difficulty, or
discipline problems, or busing or whatever issues happen to come
up.

If we reported otherwise, it would appear that Yukon’s pupil/
teacher ratio was much higher than it is, since other jurisdictions
are including these personnel in their figures.

Mr. Byblow: I suppose that creates part of the problem we hear
about. It is observed that there are, in some instances, very high
classroom enrollments to a classroom teacher, when the pupil
teacher ratio for that particular school, or the entire system,
indicates a much lower one. That is pan of the misleading concept
that, I am suggesting, the ratio implies.

I am wondering if your department has the ability to provide full
information relating to maximum class sizes and minimum sizes, to
give additional information to support the ratio provided?

Mr. Wallace: The staffing entitlement formula provides for
maximum class sizes. Speaking of rural Yukon, there are no large
classes. I make a point of going over all the class sizes with the
superintendents. The class sizes in rural Yukon are most favour
able. I do not think that there is a jurisdiction in Canada that can
compare.

There are reasons for that, due to the numbers of students we
have enrolled, and we offer good programs. That is certainly not a
criticism. In terms of urban Whitehorse, in the elementary grades I
am not aware of any inordinately large classes. We have some that
perhaps I would like to see be a bit smaller, but there are no
inordinately large classes. There are certainly no classes of 35.

What may happen from time to time, at the high school level, is
the phenomena where students will opt more for one course or
another, and you do get some large classes. We had one situation in
September at F.H. Collins where there were some very large
English classes. We were able to identify another teacher person
year to give to F.H. Collins to reduce the class sizes.

I would say, on the whole, there are no really large classes here
in Yukon. It depends on whether you consider 27, 35 or 42 a large
class. Certainly there are no classes above 35. There might happen
to be classes above 30 in certain secondary levels. The same student
may then go to the next class and be in with 14 other students.

Mr. Byblow: That is one of the problems of administration.
because I think, indirectly, what you are saying is the responsibility
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for the distribution of those teachers within the classroom, or within
the school, rests with the kind of needs that the principals and the
teachers feel have to be met. You often have combinations of
classes that exceed numbers indicated in the formula. By the same

fl
token, you also have, in the same school, perhaps, a very low
number in another class. You have class combinations for courses
that well exceed 30, and I think that gives rise to the suggestion that
the ratio we have may not be so great.

To continue in that line of enquiry. Mr. Wallace, I want to

enquire how the department sees the role of the classroom teacher.
Let me frame the question a little better. I am trying to understand
the department’s policy of mainstreaming. while at the same time it
is developing a policy of new programs. To enquire specifically
about the role of the classroom teacher, how does the department
reconcile what amounts to a contradictory policy: the mainstream
ing versus a division system?[ Mr. Wallace; The term mainstreaming was popular a number
of years ago, particularly in the mid-70’s to late 70’s. It is a term
that we have not been using quite as much recently. The term I
prefer is ‘‘least restrictive environment’’. Mainstreaming basically
says that whenever possible, students of a similar age should be
taught together. Accepted as that, I agree with the principle, hut
mainstreaming was pushed beyond all reasonable expectations in
some cases where children, for example, with severe handicaps
were placed in regular classes and not given the special attention
they need and deserve. I certainly do not espouse that philosophy.
We do feel that, wherever possible, and where children can learn
together, they should be kepl together. Students should be taken out
of the regular classroom only when they have special needs that

f ] cannot be met in that classroom. For example, we operate two
j ) self-contained special education classes in Whitehorse for children

with severe handicaps. These are children who could not really
cope in the regular classroom. They require special methodology,

Ii special types of teaching, teachers who are properly trained, spccial

[J concrete materials, and so we certainly do not rigidly follow the
principle of mainstreaming.

As I indicated yesterday, education begins with the study of the
[1 learner. It is important for us to have a lot of information about the

types of students we have, then to determine which school
organization is most effective in meeting the needs of the students.
We currently have underway a review with all the principals — and
all of the principals are involving their staff — so all 300
professional educators in Yukon are a part of the process. We are
looking at our school organization to see the most effective manner
in which we can group students for instruction. I do not think we

fl start with principals; we start by studying the students and then
providing a system that meets the needs of Yukon students. That
school organization is going to differ from Porter Creek Junior High
School to Del Van Gorder School, or to the St. Elias Community

11 School. Certain principles we will establish after studying the

Li students. Generally speaking, we follow the principle of least
restrictive environment.

Mr. Byblow: So with respect to the role of the classroom
teacher, the classroom teacher is still expected to provide for the
needs of a broad range of student ability in a mainstream
environment. You are developing a philosophy, if you will, of
sharpening the two ends of the spectrum in that classroom by the
introduction of new programming- You are piloting new programs
now, and I would assume that this is to be extended.

Mr. Wallace: I think it is a generally accepted principle, in
education, that the range of student differences increases with the
age of the students. In other words, in grade one, the range of
achievement is largely narrow. If they are working on letters, the
range may be that some students know four and others may know
10. It is possible to keep students together and instruct them as a
class unit in grade one. By the lime you get to grade eight or grade
IC, the range of knowledge among students differs quite dramati
cally.

The range in reading levels in grade eight, for example, would be
— and this is typical throughout North America — anywhere from
grade three to well into college level.

Obviously, we have to have different organizational structures in

the higher grades. We have to begin separating students, because
the achievement is too wide apart, otherwise we give teachers an
impossible, or very difficult task, of instructing students at all
different levels of ability. There are so many groups that the
siluation breaks down and the teacher may not be able to monitor
the programs carefully.

I do not know whether I am responding to your question. I think
the implication is that we do provide differentiated instruction,
beginning around the middle of junior high school. Certainly, we
have it in high school, with vocational programs and college
preparatory programs.

Mr. Byblow: This type of a debate could go on ad infinitum.
but the entire purpose here is to examine the expenditure
justification for what is happening. To try to get back to that, I want
lo follow upon a couple of more things, specifically relating to ihe
eslimates and transfer payments which are noted on page 38 of the
main estimates.

On that page, $968,000 is identified as a transfer payment, and
on page 55, of the same document, there is a breakout, under public
schools, of what I assume would be the detail of that line item.
specifically, student transportation at $82,000; special ed at $8,000;
native language at $247,000 and post-secondary grants at $631,000.

Is that a correct assessment so far?
Mr. Davie: That is correct so far.
Mr. Byblow: Also, on page 38, student grants, under expendi

ture, are identified at $763,000. lam assuming that this expenditure
is part of the $968,000. Is that correct?
,o Mr. Davie: Not all of it, because $650,000 of that total is
contributions to students attending post-secondary institutions for
luition fees, books, supplies and living allowances. $153,000 of
thai $763,000 is return air fare to students receiving grants lo
Edmonton or Vancouver, once per year.

Mr. Byblow: Where does that show up, Mr. Davie?
Mr. Dade: That is part of the $763,000 under student grants. It

is in ‘‘other’’ under allotments, as well.
Mr. Byblow: Are you saying that the transfer payment is

included in the other allotment?
Mr. Dade: Underneath, and on the same page where the

heading allotments occurs, there is the heading “other’’, and that is
$416,800. Sl53,000 of that for 168 is. in fact, the return air fares,
which are given to students attending post-secondary institutions
outside Yukon.

Mr. Byblow: Let me just review what we are trying to
establish. The student grants under expenditure are $763,000. That
is part of the $968,000?

Mr. Davie: Only $630,000 of that is part of the $968,000.
Mr. Byblow: Could you just run through for me again how the

$763,000 reconciles with the $968,000.
Mr. Dade: I will tell you first of all what is in the $968,000. 1

think that makes it easier.
Out of the $968,000, $83,000 of that amount is in student

transportation. That is travel subsidies to parents of students who
live beyond the 3.2 kilometres. So that is $83,000. Special
education is $8,000. That is contributions for room and board cost
for special needs students receiving education outside of Yukon.
The native language program is $247,000. That is a contribution to
the Council of Yukon Indians in respect to a contract for the
administration and development of the native language programs.
The rest of that is $630,000, and that is student grants. That is
contributions to students attending post-secondary insitutions, for
tuition fees, books and supplies. These figures mentioned add up
$968,000. The $763,000 is composed of $153,000, which you find
in the allotments under “other’’, as part of the $4,168,000. That is
the air fares. And $630,000 are contributions to the students
attending post-secondary’ institutions.

Mr. Byblow: That explains that. Again, I think you can
appreciate a legislator looking at this and trying to rationalize the
expenditure.

Moving to page 39, you have an estimated number of grant
recipients. Those are labelled as post-secondary grants. I am
enquiring whether that statistic, firstly, should be listed under
public schools. Would it not make more sense to relocate that in
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advanced education?
Mr. Davie: That move has since taken place, in terms of

administration. At the time of this annual report, in fact, that
program was with public schools, but, in line with your thinking,
Mr. Byblow, we have tried to put like things together so that it is
now part of advanced education.

Mr. Byblow: Could that statistic be expanded to include
information such as the average amount per grant, averages per
recipient, a breakout of the progress through post-secondary years?

Mr. Davie: We can provide almost any statistic, if it were
required, such as the ones you have just mentioned.

Mr. Byblow: That information is quite readily available?
Mr. Davic: It is available, yes.
Mr. Byblow: The figures indicate 326 recipients in the year

under review for post-secondary grants. You estimate on page 39
considerably less. Is there an explanation?

Mr. Odin: If you look on page 39, Mr. Byblow, in 1982-83
there were roughly 268 recipients of grants. In projecting the
requirements for 1983-84, the assumption was, going on past
statistics, that there would be roughly the same number of grants
awarded in that particular year, but given the downturn in the
economy in Yukon and throughout Canada, we find that there were
many more students who were interested in going off to post-
secondary education in one form or another than we had projected.
That is the reason for the increase. If I might enlarge on that, it is
rather interesting that we did a review of the graduation stats from
the schools in Yukon. In 1982 there were 246 graduates from the
school system; in 1983 there were 264 graduates, and in 1984, there
were 239. So if you base our projections even on the graduation
figures, there was no way we were in a position to know that there
were going to be an extra hundred odd students who were going to
want grants. We are assuming, from here on in, that there will be a
larger amount of grants than there has been in the past, because of
the economic downturn, and because people are awire of the fact
that they have to get further qualifications to even have a chance in
the job market these days.

Mr. Byblow: By way of notice, Mr. Odin, perhaps alter break I
will have some questions relating to the success rate of graduates
through post-secondary institutions. We have grant recipients, we
have listings of numbers of students attending various institutions,
and I want to relate those to the graduates who are moving out of
the system. That is by way of notice.

I want to just finish up some public schools information. On page
37 of the estimates, we deal with student accommodation. The data
that is provided would appear to be in actual dollars, which
therefore, ought to include provision for the inflation factor. Is it
possible to have it in constant dollars, especially the accommoda
tion expenditure and the recovery per student per day?
ii Mr. Marinoske: I think it would be very difficult if we tried to
do that in constant dollars, because of the various things involved in
the expenditures. The accommodation expenditure statistics relate
to the public school dormitories — the St. Elias Dormitory in
particular — as well as live-in subsidies for students.

The operational costs at St. Elias Dormitory include many things.
II is food, utilities, salaries, so on and so forth. All of them vary in
the inflationary factors, so it would be very difficult to figure out a
constant dollar on it. I imagine it could be possible but it would be
done with a great deal of difficulty.

Mr. Byblow: Could you explain the accommodation recovery
item in terms of its appearance of a constant $48,000?

Mr. Marinoske: The accommodation recovery charge, the
rental rate, was set about three or four years ago, and that is the rate
we charge parents for accommodating students in the St. Elias
Student Residence. If the number of students remains relatively
constant, the dollars remain constant. The rates have not been
changed over the past three years.

Mr. Byblow: Could I ask why the recovery remains at a
constant figure, which translates into a reduction in what you are
recovering in terms of your expenditure? Is it an established
contract? Is it policy? Is it reviewed?

Mr. Marinoske: It is currently under review right now, I
believe.

Mr. Davie: Are you asking why the costs have not been
increased?

Mr. Byblow: The recovery.
Mr. Davie: The recovery is increased by increasing the fee. I

think we did it out of kindness to people during these recessionary
times over the past two years. At present, we are reviewing it,
which does not mean to say we will increase it, but we are
reviewing it.

Mr. Byblow: Calling reference to page 36, there is an item of
$66,000 under transfer payment. That is explained again on page
55, relating to student accommodation. Could you explain the terms
of that? What student accommodation are we talking about?

4 If I could guide what I believe to be the answer, on page 55, it
would appear that that $66,000 is money paid to families for
assistance in boarding costs, either in homes or dormitories, when
they go outside their community or residence for school.

Mr. Davic: That is in fact the case.
Mr. Byblow: Under terms of the ordinance, there is a standard

provision of $110 per child per month?
Mr. Davic: Yes, $110 per child per month under the ordinance.
Mr. Byblow: Is that in the ordinance, or in the regulations?
Mr. Marinoske: The $110, Mr. Byblow, is the rate charged to

the parent for dormitory accommodation. That is not the living
subsidy paid to parents whose students are attending school away
from home. The living subsidy paid to parents of students attending
school away from home is $160 per month for secondary school
students, and $130 per month for elementary school students.

Mr. Byblow: Exactly what does the $66,000 refer to?
Mr. Marinoske: That is the $160 or the $130 rate paid to

parents to assist them with the costs of room and board for their
students when they are away from home.

Mr. Byblow: How does that figure, which is paid to the
parents, relate to the recovery by the department?

Mr. Marinoske: That figure is paid to all parents, whether or
not their students are living in the dormitory. There are only about
half the students — I think it is less than half the students right now
— who live away from home live in the St. Elias residence. More
are in private accommodation. So the $160 or the $130 are paid to
parents of students who are attending school away from home. The
basic dormitory charge, you could say, was arrived at $270; $160 of
that is subsidized and $110 is charged to the parent.

Mr. Byblow: I guess what I am trying to establish, Mr.
Marinoske, is: in your recovery amounts shown here, do they
include money that is collected from parents on the one hand, who
in turn pay out a dormitory charge?

Mr. Marinoske: Yes.
Mr. Byblow: To put the question bluntly, why is not a different

system in place that shortens that double accounting?
Mr. Marinoske: I think the system was established approx

imately three or four years ago. It was based upon, at that time,
$270 per month as a realistic room and board figure. At that time,
the decision was made in the case of secondary students, to
subsidize parents to the tune of $160 a month. That left the parent
paying $110 to us in the case of the student residence, or, if they
were being charged, say, $270 for private accommodation, they
would also be paying the net difference out of their pocket to the
landlord in a private situation.
, Mr. Byblow: That answers my question.

I have one more question. On page 41, relating to transportation
statistics in public schools. In the case of the transportation figures
provided, there appears to be a decrease in volume of transportation
numbers of 16 percent. but the expeditures per passenger has
increased by 20 percent. Could you relate what has occurred?

You are transporting fewer students; you have increased costs
substantially. What, within the transportation structure, accounts
for that? To put it in the context of what I am trying to find out,
why can transportation costs not be controlled by volume?

Mr. Davie: It is not just a matter of volume. That was the
famous busing year where busing was restricted, particularly in the
Porter Creek area, and no longer were some children picked up
within the two mile limit, who had been previously. I think the
difference there is that when you make that kind of move in a year,
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your individual student transportation rates go up. For one thing,

{J you are picking up fewer students than you did previously,
therefore, the rate per student goes up.

You actually asked if one can identify a rate according to the

fl
number of students. The answer is no, really, because it depends on
where you are picking up the students. For example, it is more
expensive to pick up students from 20 miles and bring them in than
it is to pick up students who are within a five mile radius. It
depends largely where your population of students are. I will ask

fl Mr. Marinoske if that is a correct response to that?
Mr. Marinoske: Yes.
Mr. Byblow: Does your transportation contract, as it exists, not

require the contractor to provide a level of service regardless of the

fl number of pickups or where those pickups are made?
s Mr. Davie: The contract is not quite as tight as (hat- The
contract would, at (he time of entering it, designate (he number of
students we are talking about, the number of buses we are talking[ about, pick-up points and that kind of thing, with some flexibility
within the year. There always is. The contractor in the past has
been fairly flexible in some situations- It is not just a straight
contract to provide transportation for so many dollars.

fl Mr. Byblow: I am having some difficulty understanding you.
In the first instance, we have the expenditure per student. The
numbers of passengers have decreased by 16 percent. Your
transportation cost has increased by 20 percent. Your number of

R kilometres travelled on page 40, have reduced substantially. Why
have we not got some control on costs then?

Mr. Davie: I think there is a misunderstanding. The transporta
tion costs per student show an increase per passenger of 20 percent.
but overall transportation costs were only one percent more in that
year.

Mr. Byblow: You have an increase in expenditure of one
percent?

Mr. Davic: Yes. -

[ Mr. Byblow: Admittedly, it is low, but you have less numbers
of students, less miles travelled, and a 20 percent increase in
passenger cost.

— Mr. Davic: Let me put it this way. If a bus holds 70 people.
and it is always full, then you will show a lesser expenditure per

L. student. If that 70 reduces to an average of 55, you will show a
higher expenditure per student, but you would not show any saving

n in running the bus. I think that is where the question comes in. It is
a matter of loading the bus. You have to look to see whether or not

Li there has been some divergence, or overspending, or that the actual
overall increase in transportation costs, which in a year when other
things were increasing fairly dramatically, was only one percent.

Mr. Byblow: But also, on 41, your total expenditure has
Li increased by eight percent. Perhaps, Mr. Davie, I could review

these figures and we could look later at the discrepancies that

Q
appear to exist.

Mr. Davie: The total expenditure on that page you are referring
to. the $18 million expenditure, has nothing to do with transporta
tion. That merely is the cost of running the school system. and the
bulk of that is in in salaries. The line there which deals with
transportation is the one which refers to over $1 million, and show-s

J a one percent increase, So the eight percent increase at the top is in
the school personnel area,

U
Mr. Byblow: You are quite correct. The eight percent relates to

• the total system, not to the transportation question.
n Mr. Falle: I have one question before we recess.

I want to know if the bus contracts are based on a per person
carried, or route? I think that would clear up a lot of our
questioning.

Mr. Davie: It is based on route.
Mr. Falle: Regardless of the number of students carried.
Mr. Davie: That is right.
Mr. Byblow: I would advise the witnesses that I do not have

any further questions with regard to public schools at this time. I
want to deal specifically with advanced education after the break.
Before we do break, I have one remaining question surrounding the
line of questioning on grants.

We talked about the availability of information relating to

averages per student, averages per grant, and more output
information. Would it he possible to put that into the estimates?

Mr. Davie: I am not sure if I know what you mean by output
information and grants- As you mentioned earlier, I think you mean
a breakdown of the average amounts a student gets. Yes, that is
certainly possible.

Mr. Brewster: We shall now recess until 10:45.

Recess

i, Mr. Penjkett: I would like the thank the vice-chairman, Mr.
Brewster, for guiding things along this morning. I guess we will go
right hack to where we left off with Mr. Byblow.

Mr. Byblow: For the record I want to say, Mr. Chairman, that
my midnight oil was reduced yesterday afternoon with the volumes
of excellent information provided by the department on advanced
education. As a consequence, it has reduced a number of questions
that would have been asked. I do want to express some appreciation
for that.

I think during public schools questioning, I gave notice of several
areas that we were going to be pursuing, and perhaps the first one I
want to pursue is the monitoring of post-secondary movement.
Earlier this morning. Mr. Odin. we began discussion of what
happens to students once they graduate from this system. You
provided some information of the increasing number of high school
graduates. We have information in the annual report, and in the
estimates of the assistance provided to post-secondary students. The
question, very specifically, that you can frame the answer around
is: to what extent do you monitor the movement of post-secondary
students from our system, which has some direct information of the
success of our public school system? In other words, if we have 264
graduates from high school, how many of them appear to be going
into academic post-secondary institutions, how many seem to be
going into trade schools and how many are entering the labour
force? What extent of monitoring is done, and what general patterns
have you uncovered? Of course, this eventually will give rise to the
question of justifying expenditure allocations for post-secondary
training.

Mr. Odin: Maybe I can approach my answer in two sections:
one on the university and technical college level, and one on the
local post-secondary training.

With respect to the people who we supply grants for, and that is
in our annual report — just to refresh your memories, for 1983,
there were 176 Yukon grants provided—, we keep a file on each of
those individuals. Their career is traced, because they have to
reapply for renewal of the grant. We know what sort of standing
they have at the university or technical college, because the amount
of grant they get depends on their standing. We follow those right
through the system, whether they get their degree after four years
and then come back for a fifth year to take their master’s degree, or
what have you.

We follow all of those who receive post-secondary grants right
through their post-secondary career. After they have their qualifica
tions — and we presume they will then get a job — we do not
follow them any further. We do not follow them through their job
cycle: we do not run a job placement system.

For those students who do not go to university or technical
college, or those who go to Yukon College, we do keep ongoing
statistics. I took the liberty, over the break, to ask to have
duplicated some sheets for you. The one on top is for the period of
July to August, 1984. These are running stats which are kept at the
college. I receive a copy of these every month, updated, which
provides certain information, which is fairly obvious. It does
provide a list of those people who have graduated and it also
provides a list of those people who have terminated. Termination
means those people who, for one reason or another, have dropped
out of the program. Sometimes the percentage of terminations, as
opposed to graduations, is not as healthy as we would like it to be,
but it does give us an idea of how successful post-secondary
students are within the Yukon system.

When people graduate from our programs at the college, we have
an informal system with CEIC. I would emphasize that it is
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informal, because the Canadian Employment and Immigration
Commission are the job placement agency. It is their role, a federal
role, for job placements. We do follow through on our students to
see if they have got jobs and where they have been placed, so that
we have some rough and ready calculation, if you like, as to
whether our graduates have been placed in jobs after they have
finished, or whether they have not.

Does that suffice?
iv Mr. Byblow: In general terms, that reassures the concern that
we might be passing students through our system without monitor
ing their progress, and thereby having inadequate information to
make judgments about where we ought 10 allocate expenditure for
those areas.

In the situation of Yukon Campus — or, I suppose, which is now
the amalgamation of the Yukon Vocational and Technical Training
Centre — in the subsequent budget year, your estimales have shown
the amalgamation. In this budget year we have had the separation.
What explanation is there for not having had the amalgamation in
this year under review, since Ihe decision was made prior to the
budget?

Mr. Odin: No, that is not correct, Mr. Byblow. The amalgama
tion took place in March, 1983. The budget was put together long
before the amalagmation took place. The budget was finalized
before I even took this job on, which was the beginning of 1983.
One of the first things we looked at doing was to make a more
effective system, was to amalgamate the old vocational and
technical training centre and Yukon Campus. which was providing
teacher education programs at the time and beginning to get into
first and second year arts programs. For cost effectiveness and for
administrative effectiveness it was felt to be a good idea to
amalgamate it and it was amalgamated in March 1983. but that was
after the main estimates had become a fair accompli.

Mr. Byblow: With respect to the amalgamation, and in
consideration of the first question, which related to monitoring
students passing through a system. I want to enquire about the value
of Yukon Campus. You indicate a number of statistics of students
who take courses there. At the same time, we have a Yukon grant
system for students who attend other post-secondary institutions. In
this recessionary period, which began three years ago, we have
addressed the need for upgrading and retraining students, mostly
adults, as required for the economic activity that is anticipated.
What monitoring and what analysis is being done to test the
usefulness of Yukon Campus? It is academic, it is university
courses. You have 200 people admitted to courses and you have an
expenditure allocation for that. What is the test that the expenditure
is justified for that academic portion here in Yukon?
, Mr. Odin: 1 guess the tests would come from various levels
again. Certainly, one of them is the continuing contact I have with
the deans at USC and with Dr. Ron Neufeldt, who is their
placement director.

Yukon students generally transfer from the Yukon program to
USC. It is a USC program that we are running in Yukon. They
have a reputation for being some of the better students that they
receive. That is one side of it.

The other side of it is that you have to remember that we have
200 odd students enrolled in different courses. Many of those
people are not full-time students, and they are not people who are
flying to finish off a degree in one block. A lot of them are older
people — if I might use that term — who are already at work,
Many of them are women who have had some training, raised a
family and now wish to upgrade their qualifications or finish off a
degree that they broke two or three years ago, or even 10 years ago,
so they are part-time students.

I know, in this present year, we only have 12 full-time students in
that academic program. We monitor the cost-effectiveness of the
situation every year. I renegotiate a contract with UBC every year
for the services they provide to us. We pay for the instructors. We
look at the number of courses we can offer. There is always a thrust
by the deans at USC to offer more courses, There is always
resistance at our end, making it very plain to them that we want a
basic core of courses which will provide useful, general first and
second year arts, BEd., maybe some science programs within the

confines of the population we have and the amount of money we
can afford.

In terms of the contract with USC, for the three contracts I have
been involved with, that has not expanded at all, so we are paying
them the same money this year as we did in the previous two years.

Mr. Byblow: You indicated that you had 12 full-time students.
I assume that this is on the two year BA. program that is offered?

Mr. Odin: Yes.
Mr. Byblow: On page 45, the stats indicate that you have 200

students attending. What breakout do you have of the number of
those 200 students attending who are single course students?

Mr. Odin: I do not have that with me, but I do have those
statistics.

Mr. Byblow: Can you give a rough estimate? You have already
said that there 12 full-time students attending within the confines of
the two-year program, so that meins that there are in the
neighbourhood of 180 other students.

Mr Odin: Taking one or two courses?
Mr. Byblow: Yes.
Mr. Odin: Probably somewhere in the region of 25 percent.

Those university courses are generally held in the late afternoon and
evenings. They are not day programs. We have very few day
programs. the reason being that we have so many part-time students
who have other jobs. They take their courses in the evening.
u Mr. Byblow: You have about a dozen students on a full-time
program. 25 percent of them one and two course students; where is
the remaining 70 percent?

Mr. Odin: Those are ones who are taking three courses or four
courses.

Mr. Byblow: Do you have a knowledge of how many of those
200 students are teachers?

Mr. Odin: No, not off the top of my head, I am sorry.
Mr. Byblow: Is a substantial portion of those single and two

course students?
Mr. Odin: Yes. I would say that a large proportion of the

people that are taking one course or two courses are teachers.
Certainly, spring-summer program, we ran two courses last
summer. They were all teachers who were involved in that. As an
informational item, we did survey all the teachers in the Yukon this
January. We had something like 70 percent return, which is very
good on any survey. Based on that return, we know what son of
programming to put on this summer for the teachers in Yukon. We
are looking at probably running a mini summer school the same
way that USC and U of A run summer schools, because there is a
demand by the teachers and we feel we can fulfill that demand.

fltr. Byblow: Is it a fair assessment to say that the way it is
currently operating, Yukon Campus caters largely to the profession
al teaching staff of Yukon?

Mr. Odin: There again, it depends on how you look at it. In
terms of those people who are finishing off degrees, yes, we are
catering to the professional teaching staff in Yukon. In terms of
younger people, there are more and more young people becoming
interested in taking the first and second year courses in Yukon
rather than going outside, for whatever reason, some of it
monetary. This year we are putting on a serious thrust to recruit
more of our graduates from the Yukon schools. The college has just
finished putting together a 15 minute video, which sells the college,
if you like. They are going to take it out to the schools, so we will
be actively recruiting. We then have another problem. If we recruit
too many, we do not have the capacity to take too many students.
So while we want to keep the program moving along, we do not
want a sudden huge influx, because the capacity, as you well know,
Mr. Byblow, is really quite limited.

Mn Byblow: How would you define, Mr. Odin, the objective
of Yukon Campus? Could you answer that in terms of its historical
evolution. Originally it was established for a different purpose than
what appears to be the purpose today. In light of the line of
questioning, which dealt with who was attending and whose
purpose it is serving, what is the departmental objective of Yukon
Campus?

Mr. Odin: Initially, when it was first instituted, which I believe
was something like four or five years ago, it was instituted as the
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YTEP program, the Yukon teacher education program, and if my

memory serves me correctly, the intent was to train native
Yukoners to become teachers. Part of the reason for thai was that at
that Lime there was a large turn-over in teachers every year. and the

fl
thought was that by training our own teachers in Yukon we would
save a lot of money in terms of relocation costs. The YTEP
program, in and of itself, was quite a successful venture, but with
the changing economic times, two or three years afier it had been

C
implemented, it was realized that there was a surplus of teachers.
not only throughout Canada but in Yukon itself. So the program
was modified and changed from the first two years of a Bachelor of
Education degree to the first two years of an Arts degree. That has
been an evolution change which. I think, has heen accomplished.
The reason we continued with the program was because it was
thought — it is not thought. I think there is firm evidence to
indicate it — that the requirements of the future are generic skills.
The generic skills obtained from a general degree are still saleable

(1 and still transferable to a multitude of jobs, as opposed to a specific
skills picked up in a specific qualification. That is an expert
opinion, it is not my opinion.

It was felt that we would be providing a service, I think we are
providing a service. We have expanded it probably as much as we
can expand it in terms of offering some science courses. so that
students in Yukon can now get the first two years of a BA. degree,
they can get the first year of a science degree, they can get the First
two years of a BEd, 8.5W.. which is transferable to wherever
they want to go.

In terms of monitoring it, we will continue to monitor it very
carefully, and if it appears that sometime in the future it is no
longer viable, then we will be talking about closing it down. I have
meetings coming up within the next few weeks with the UBC
officials to discuss next year’s contract.

At that time we will be examining our statistics, the number of

[J people who have enrolled, what our projections aft for next year,
and a decision will be made at that time as to whether it is going to
continue to be viable. I would predict that, yes, for another year or
two, at least, it will be a viable project.

fl Mr. Byblow: I would love to get into questioning surrounding

5 the anticipated capital expenditure on a new facility, but that is
certainly not the year under review.

The description that you provided of the objective of Yukon

Q Campus indicates that the Yukon Campus is in a state of flux in
terms of its changing purpose. To lead into the estimates, for the
year under review, we have separated Yukon Campus from
advanced education, but in the subsequent year, you have amalgu

U mated the estimates as well as the entire program in the
reorganization that is shown,

Because the change took place after the year under review, which
is clearly an improvement of estimates as shown, I do not intend to

U
delve into any detail of costs surrounding Yukon Campus for the
year under review. I do want to ask: in these estimates, you show
Yukon Campus with two personnel and a very minimum cost. That
is not the true cost of Yukon Campus. In the subsequent year. you
have shown the costs amalgamated with advanced education. What
is the true cost of Yukon Campus, in the year under review?

ti Mr. Odin: In 1963184?
Mr. Byblow: Yukon Campus is shown on page 44 to have a

U
cost of 5356.000. It is located in the facility of the old vocational
school. Is there an estimate you can provide, as opposed to a
specific figure, that would indicate a true cost of providing the
Yukon College Facility, in the year under review, that is determin
able from the estimates available to us?

Mr. Davie: I believe that this is the true cost of Yukon
Li Campus in that particular year. You used the term ‘‘Yukon

College” a moment ago, but that would not be the cost of Yukon

D
College. This is just the campus aspect. That would be the cost:
$356,000. The breakdown goes something like this: the bulk of that
cost is $230,000, which is really the professional and special
services part of the contract with UBC. although we pay salaries

fl
ourselves. That would be $250,000 for professional and special
services, professors, locals, UBC contract, honoraria for special
guest lecturers, advertising for special guest lecturers, advertising

of courses, professional development. Materials and supplies take
about $23,000 of that amount. Other small items, like transporta
tion, communicaUon — in fact, it is the total cost of Yukon Campus
for that year.
, Mr. Byblow: It is the total cost exclusive of the facility itself,
because there is a maintenance cost involved with the space,
electricity, lighting and so on?

Mr. Odin: Except for repairs. Repairs is in that, but you are
right. It is exclusive of such costs.

Mr. Byblow: That portion of it is included in the general
advanced education budget? Okay. Could we look at the advanced
education budget on page 50. We have the indication of a person
year increase by three, but personnel costs increase by $495,000.
Similarly. administration increases are $300,000. What explanation
can be provided for these large increases? Mr. Odin, you provided
extensive information to us yesterday. You need not explain the
conceptual aspect of expanding programming and addressing the
economic requirements that advanced education tried to provide. I
want to understand how we have that large increase in the
administration and personnel with only three more bodies.

Mr. Davie: The basic reason for the change is, as Mr. Odin
referred to when he was outlining how Yukon Campus became
Yukon College. that for almost a year prior to this year the
Department of Advanced Education and Manpower was virtually
non-existent. There was an acting person heading up the depart
ment, there were some vacant positions, and in the fall of the year
1982. we really went all out to try and develop this branch of the
education department because we felt very strongly that we should
not have such a lame duck of a branch at a time when the economy
was so poor and when there was a great need for this. Therefore.
the increase that you see there results from the fact that a number of
senior positions had been vacant but they were filled during the
period of time in which this main estimate was in place. A position
of curriculum development officer was transferred into the branch
administration activity from adult education activity. Also, there
was a return to a ten day fortnight. So, when you take all these
things into count, that is why you see the increase.
a Mr. Byblow: Are you telling me, Mr. Davie, that the large
administrative and personnel increases are due to the filling of
vacant positions?

Mr. Davie: Basically, yes.
Mr. Byblow: As well as three additional personnel to fulfill the

re-organization structure?
Mr. Davie: That is right.
Mr. Byblow: What does the figure on page 51, 2,017, really

represent? It says that is the number of students. My line of
questioning is an attempt to determine the relationship of who those
people are in terms of the courses or the number of courses that they
took. It is similar to the questioning of the 200 who were attending
Yukon Campus. I think Mr. Odin can respond to that.

Mr. Odin: I will try to respond to your question to the best of
my ability. Those were the estimates that were put into the 1983-84
estimates: 2.000 odd students were expected at the technical
training centre, with 176 courses. I have done some research on
that, and in actual fact there were 1,811 students, and there were
118 courses. There is some difficulty in providing this sort of
statistic, in that a course can be anything from three days long to 40
weele€. What is lumped in here is all of the people who have been
through Yukon College in the 1983-84 year, as I say, 1800 odd
people. When we are talking courses in this context, we have that
information broken down ourselves, but in the main estimates they
lump them all together, and we are told that a total of 1800 students
went through. In some ways it gives a misrepresentation, because
one can assume these were full-length courses, and not the three
day courses included as being equal to a 40 week course in this
particular statistic.

Mr. Byblow: To reduce a long line of questioning, could I ask
you, Mr. Odin, if it is possible to provide within the estimates some
break-outs of information relating to the student attendance,
courses, length — similar to the documentation you provided the
committee yesterday afternoon. You can appreciate the figure of
2,017 as almost being meaningless to a legislator looking at an
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increase of $495,000 in administration. It is meaningless. If we had
information relating to the output of the branch, in terms of courses,
duration, numbers of students, it would have so much more
meaning. You were quite able to provide this information yesterday
and this morning, which I compliment you for highly and find very
useful. Can that be provided in the estimates, as well?
,. Mr. Odin: Yes. I do not think I am digressing. We are in the
process of expanding our gathering of statistical information and
converting it to FEEs, full-time equivalents. In future, we would be
quite happy, and I think it would be quite possible, to provide
student statistics for the main estimates in terms of full-time
equivalents which would provide whomever was looking at this
with a better idea of what we were talking about.

Two thousand would probably break down to something like 450
full-lime equivalents. Maybe that is the sort of thing you are talking
about.

Mr. Byblow: Precisely.
Mr. Odin: We can do that, yes.
Mr. Davie: I would just issue a little warning here, which

would not have applied to the same question we were asked about
public school statistics. The main estimate is really a forecast of
intent. Some of the planning for adult courses actually takes place
after the main estimates in terms of when courses start up.

The true assessment of what happened would be after the event.
You could give some indication, of course, in the main estimates,
of what you are aiming for.

Mr. Penikett: Clearly, the summary information could provide
information about the previous year, though,

Mr. Davie: Right. You could include that and that would make
it more clear.

Mr. Bybluw: I guess we are running into somewhat of a time
problem. I would have raised some questions relating to the
statistics, the inconsistency between the annual report and the
estimates. A lot of the information provided by your department,
Mr. Odin, does eliminate the need to emphasize inconsistencies in
the documents, You have provided quite a bit of accurate data,
which we can work from.

I think it would be fair to leave questioning, but I do raise, by
way of notice, the fact that there are still some questions on
recoveries and capital items which we will be dealing with
tomorrow morning, and perhaps Mr. Odin could be present.

Mr. Penlkett: We may. or may not, have time tomorrow
morning. We may have to document some of those kinds of
questions in a letter or something, to see if we could seek a
response that way, because they may be of a kind that one cannot
readily respond to anyway.

Mr. Odin: I want to comment on Mr. Byblow’s statement. I
agree, there are inconsistencies in the statistics. If we had the time
to discuss it further this morning, I think I could have corrected
those for you. We have researched those, and we could have
explained those to you.

Mr. Penlkett: If the committee agrees, we may communicate
those questions in letter form, since you are clearly ready to
respond anyway. That might be the most expeditious way to answer
those questions.

Mr. Ashley has some questions about the recreation branch.
Maybe we will have Mr. Butler join us. While Mr. Butler is coming
in, Mr. Falle has a couple of very very quick questions about the
subject we have just been discussing.
z, Mr. Falk: What I would like to find out is how much it
actually costs us to produce one journeyman through the trades
school system. I do not think you have the figures with you, but if
you could give us those figures when you return: in dollars and
cents, how much it costs to put a person, a young person, from the
beginning to the end; how much it costs to produce a tradesman.

Mr. Penikelt: If you can. You have another question, Mr.
Falle?

Mr. Falle: No.
Mr. Odin: To train a journeyman costs this government

nothing, because the journeyman is paid for by the federal
government, the training allowance is paid for by the federal
government and their in-school training is paid for by the federal

government.
Mr. Falle: They are a budget item for our school year. I want

to know what it costs our government to put that person through.
and you are telling me: nothing.

Mr. Penikett: There may be a long line of questions referring
to this. I guess the question may relate to whether the recoveries
offset the actual expenditures, and perhaps we can put that question
now, but not pursue it at this time. We can try to get an answer
back and we can look at it then.

Mr. Ashley: Mr. Butler, first off I would like to clarify that the
Department of Education had recreation up until November 1983.
That is correct? Okay. That is what we are dealing with. What I
would like to know is, on page 47 of the main estimates, under
community recreation authority and contribution, I would like to
know briefly what kind of a system exists for allocating these
funds. What criteria is used for the establishment of the allocations?

Mr. Butler: Basically, Mr. Ashley, these figures are based on a
base grant of $2,500, plus five dollars per person for the first 5,000
members of the population, and $2.50 per person for populations
over that. That figure has changed in 1984-85 because of the
recreation review, because of the acknowledgement that we may
have to get more dollars to the local level. That formula has now
increased from $2,500 base grant to $7,000, and from five dollars
per person to $8.50 per person.

Mr. Ashley: And the $2.50 remains the same?
Mr. Butler: No, that has been changed to $3.50.
Mr. Ashley: That is for the future; however, we are dealing

only with 1983 data. That basically explains why it is based on
population. What kind of controls and accountability are placed on
these contributions?

Mr. Butler: Basically, two areas. First, the local authority
through the local council submits a budget of intended expenditures
for the year, and then at the end of the year, a financial statement is
given to show that those expenditures were made on recreation in
the approved amounts.

Mr. Ashley: So you audit those statements?
Mr. Butler: Yes.
Mr. Ashley: Do you receive activity reports through the year?
Mr. Butler: Not as much from the local authorities, because,

again, they are considered a level of government, and we are not
requiring as much accountability with them as we do from, for
example. our territorial sports and arts groups, where there is much
more accountability.

Local governments, through the review, wanted less of this ‘‘big
brother’’ monitoring and watching over them. I have to say that
there is less accountability by the local authorities for those dollars.

Mr. Ashley: Going to pages 48 and 49 of the main estimates,
do you have a written criteria for the contributions here? What
system are you using?

Mr. Butler: The criteria has developed to quite an extensive
point, up to now. Before the review, there was less accountability,
less criteria. Now, for example, for the sports governing body
grants you see there, the dollars going to them are based on how
many members they have in their groups, how many affiliate clubs
there are across the territory, how well they are doing in
out-of-Yukon competition, for example. There are more and more
factors being looked at before dollar decisions are made.

Mr. Ashley: And you just continually monitor them through the
year?

Mr. Butler: Yes. The groups submit detailed applications to us
outlining their whole year’s activities. Those are looked at by the
branch, and then referred to the Yukon Recreation Advisory
Committee, which is now made up of a committee, basically, of
peers of the arts, sports and community people to advise the
minister with respect to specific amounts for the groups.

Mr. Ashley: Under Arctic Winter Games here, on recreation
branch costs in grants, $39,000 of 1984, what is that? What are the
recreation branch costs? Please break that down for me. They were
$49,000 in 1982 and $61,000 in 1980. Down at the bottom, they
include the Yukon Lottery Commission grant of $12,000 and the
Lottery Commission grant of $28,000 for those respective years.
What does this mean?
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[ Mr. Butler: People were wondering what (he cost to government executive session.
is to get involved in Arctic Winter Games. The $39,000. Committee adjourned at 11:35 n.m.
specifically, includes $10,000 which goes to the Yukon Sports
Federation to administer the games and prepare the team on the

fl
government’s behalf. About $13,000 goes to trials; about $6,000 to
Arctic Winter Games Team Booklet, which is the nice booklet that
each athlete gets with all their pictures so that their mothers and
fathers can see them and be proud of them. There is $10,000 for
training for the teams that are going to the Arctic Winter Games.

fl As you have noted, the cost has dropped from $49,000 in 1982
and $61,000 in 1980. That is because we have more or less
devolved the responsibility to a volunteer group to make the best
use of funds by running with volunteers, doing a lot of fund raising,

fl with the whole approach being that we get the non-profit sector
involved to create ways of making funds available other than from
government.

Mr. Ashley: Can you explain the costs versus the grants[ business here?
Mr. Butler: The cost, for example, would be (he $10,000 to

the Sports Federation, whereas a grant would be the $10,000 in
training that goes to each territorial sport group to train the team to

U go to the Arctic Winter Games. That would be an example of the
difference there.

Mr. Ashley: Is there a grant from the Yukon Lotteries
Commission included in this as well?

U Mr. Butler: No, that is the other point. As you see, in 1982
and 1980, the lottery commission was involved. In 1984 it was not
necessary.

Mr. Ashley: You did not need the money.[ Mr. Butler: That is correct. No dollars were needed from the
lottery commission that year. The commission does not get into
ongoing funding they just try to seed projects, not maintain them.

Mr. Ashley: Now, on page 56 in the supplementary estimates

U information, I find it very difficult to tie in the amounts on 56 hack
to the amounts on 48 and 49. The supplementary information does
seem rather incomplete. I certainly cannot tie it in. For example, on
48 the Canada Games has $13,000 shown there. I cannot find it on

[J page 56.
Mr. Butler: That 1983 estimate there is actually 1982-83 fiscal

year. That should have been clarified, obviously, hut that was just
to show the cost of Canada Games from year to year. the cost of

fl
preparing the team. That was actually a 1982-83 fiscal year ftem.

Mr. Ashley: There are other ones that I cannot find or do not
know how to find, or add the right figures up to get the right thing.
I think that it could be done in a lot better manner so that we can

U
understand what we are supposed to be understanding.

Mr. Butler: I would agree. I think that if you look at the
1984-85 estimates, it clarifies it a bit better. I could give you details
in writing of what appears to be inconsistencies of that, Mr.
Ashley.

Mr. Ashley: Okay.
Mr. Penikett: Thank you, Mr. Ashley. Mr. Ashley may have

some supplementary questions, Mr. Butler. which I think he may

U
pursue in writing. I think basically we are probably finished with
that item. I thank you.

Mr. Davie, you are going to be joining us again tomorrow
morning in respect to the Porter Creek school question, along with

D
Government Services. I do not know who else you are going to be
bringing with you. Let me assume that not everybody here is going
to be returning, and I would like to, therefore, thank Mr. Odin, and
excuse him; Mr. Butler, and Mr. Marinoske. Escona has been well
served today.

I will permit Mr. Byblow one last question.
Mr. Byblow: (In Ukrranian dialect, ci question posed to Mr.

Marinoske, and responded to by Mr. Davie.)
Mr. Davie: Thank you for the invitation. Where will we meet

you for lunch?
Mr. Penikett: Thank you, Mr. Davie. I think we were quite

impressed by the quality of informatiun, and the readiness to give
it, from all of the witnesses from your department, and we
appreciate that.

Witnesses are excused. The committee will now adjourn to
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EVIDENCE
Wednesday, February 20, 1985

Mr. Penikett: This meeting of the Committee on Public
Accounts will come to order. I want to welcome this morning
witnesses from the Department of Government Services. Mr. Andy
Vantell, the deputy minister, who is back with us again; Mr. Sam
Cawley, director of supply and services; Mr. Bill Davies, who is
having his first appearance here; and, joining us again for yet
another morning, is Mr. Jim Davie, deputy minister of education
and advanced education and manpower.

We are basically going to be dealing with two main issues. Mr.
Vantell, We are going to be dealing with project management, with
specific reference to the Porter Creek Junior Secondary School. We

O will then follow up on items from the 1984 Public Account
Committee Report.

To expedite matters, we thought we would deal with the Porter
Creek school question first. tn that way, we can release Mr. Davie

fl as soon as we can dispense with that item.
Mr. Byblow: The Auditor General’s letter deals, for five pages,

with the capital project, the Porter Creek school. The fundamental
question, to begin an understanding of what took place, would be to

fl call for an explanation of why a three million dollar project ended
up costing eight million dollars. Who is going to tackle that?
e Mr. Penikett: Mr. Vantell or Mr. Davie, who wants to start?
Mr. Vantell?

ri Mr. Vantell: I would like to point out, first of all, that you
[j realize the construction of the project took place prior to the time

that public works became the responsibility of government services.
The knowledge that we have in ,tlation to this project is limited to

fl information that we have been able to retrieve froñi existing records
and correspondence. Bill Davies has done an extensive research of
all the documents and I would suggest that you direct your
questions to him. He might be able to answer them better than I.

ri Mr. Penikett: Okay, Mr. Davies, putting the very general

[j question now, if you like, to seek a global response at this point and
then we can get into more specifics in the supplementary questions
if we can. Mr. Davies?

fl Mr. Davies: I believe a good percentage of the overrun on that
project were caused by what are referred to within the public works
sector as changes in the scope of work.

Mr. Byblow: Let us start dealing with more specifics. You

fl indicate that the changes are, in part or in whole, responsible for the
variance from $3 million to $8 million.

Mr. Penikett: We are having great difficulty hearing here.
Could you speak a little closer to the mikes because otherwise we

fl
will not be able to hear you at all.

Mr. Davies: To go back to that question, I would say that a
large percentage of the overrun was attributed to the changes in the
scope of work from what it was originally understood what the

U
project would consist of through to the development of the project
to the larger facility at the conclusion of the project.

Mr. Byblow: How did those changes come about? Were they
initiated by the Department of Education, by the client department?

U
n3 Mr. Davies: I think I would have to reply positively to that,
because the scope of work, the requirements of the facility, and so
on, in standard practice, are usually defined by the client
department, whereas the Public Works branch is looked at as the

D
designer/constructor.

• Mr. Byblow: To review the development of that project, the
first evidence we have of it are in estimates tabled in 1979 that call
for an anticipated $3,000,000 expenditure. The Auditor General’s

ri letter refers to early 1979 knowledge within the department that the
project, at that point in time, would cost $4.2 million. Mr. Davie,

J perhaps I could put that question to you. Why would the department
not disclose the $4.2 million anticipated cost that was known in
early 1979 when the capital estimates were tabled in the fall of
1979?

earlier. I have had to research the files, and that kind of thing, and I
have done that, in order to try to get some picture of what
happened. I think it is quite true that the scope of the project did
change. I think it changed, from my reading of things, early on.

At one point, it seems to me that the planning that was in place —

and this was prior to either figure you just mentioned — was geared
towards an elementary school. This goes back before 1979. It
seemed, in looking at population trends then, the prediction was
that there was a need for an elementary school. Then a policy
change took place within the Department of Education in terms of
the continuation of the junior high concept. In looking at population
figures, and in looking at development projects — if you will
remember, these years were boom years, and areas along the
highway were identified for housing lots and therefore it was
indicated that families would move there — the planning changed to
be one for a junior high school.

Immediately, somewhere along the line, you have a change which
probably was in the order of almost double the size. Then, of
course, the estimate was tabled.

I think you are quite right in your comment that it was identified
at that point that the project would be more expensive by
somewhere close to another million dollars. Even that estimate,
probably, was wrong at the time, because in planning for a junior
high school, there are some components you have to have which
you do not have in an elementary school. It is clear, when you are
dealing with the age range of students, that you have to have shops,
for example; you have to have science labs; you have to have typing
rooms. All of these throw off quite an amount of additional cost.

Together with that, at some point in the process, as the changes
came in, a need for a bigger gymnasium was identified, again,
because of the higher sports content you get into in a junior highs
chool. Gymnasiums are expensive. They also throw in a need for
other kinds of infrastructure and different kinds of classroom
accommodation.

I realize that that is not it in a nutshell. It is not too specific, but it
gives an indication of the worst changes, along the line, in the order
of magnitude of this project. These changes, I think, also, were
contributed to, in some degree, by a process which was really in its
initiation stages at that time, in as much the school committees
involved in Porter Creek did have a heavy on-going involvement in
making recommendations. Through that process, again, some of the
project did change.

Mr. Byblow: I suppose, in a nutshell, Mr. Davie, the first
appropriation of funds did not resemble, in any way, what the final
project was intended to be. I suppose the concern of legislators is
that with inadequate information, it becomes a very frustrating
exercise to see the re-appropriations appear each year on an
expanded project that was to have been less than half that cost.

About the change that was taking place within the department in
terms of the planning process to meet the needs of the school
system, you refer to the splitting of the grades, and the change from
an elementary school concept to a secondary, or a junior high. My
question on that is: were any other forms of meeting those needs
physically costed out? Was an elementary school costed out? Was a
senior high costed out, with respect to the entire Whitehorse region?
What analysis was done before the go-ahead took place on this $6
million project?

Mr. Davie: Other scenarios were looked at. I do not know if
they were looked at in as comprehensive a fashion as maybe they
should have been. In reviewing files — and I must stress that none
of the main actors in this are present within the department, so that
one has to review files and try to get some understanding of the
process — other scenarios were looked at. For example, additions
to existing schools at that point in time were looked at as a
possibility.

Mr. Byblow: Excuse me, Mr. Davie, were they costed out?
Was there any cost benefit analysis done?

Mr. Davie: I cannot answer that completely. I can only see,
when I review things that other options were looked at. As to the
costing out of these options, I would not know. I think a lot of what
was occurring at that time, a number of years ago, was probably at
a conversational level between people as opposed to the written
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Mr. Davie: I am in the same position that was mentioned
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level between people. There are gaps that one can identify in terms
of a process.

Mr. Hyblow: Mr. Davie, would it be a fair assessment to make
that the project, having changed so massively in 1979, 1980 and
1981. ought to have been re-submitted to the legislature as a new
project?

Mr. Davle: That could he one interpretation. My understanding
is that as the changes came about in this project, additional
appropriations were made. I understand that that is an approach to
the legislature, although it is not a new project approach to the
legislature. I should add to this that at some point, somebody was
Ihinking right, at least in terms of school populations. Had that
school not been built, it is clear that we would have to build other
additions; would have to have an addition at PH. Collins School.
We would probably have needed a junior high school of some kind,
and the population figures of today bail that out. When you look at
the junior high schools we have, they are full. There is no empty
classroom space. In fact, we are reaching a point where that could
be a problem in the foreseeable future if we have a population
increase.

Mr. Byblow: With respect to your comment, Mr. Davie, that
may be so. but the question I must pose is: could the same space
have been provided for less money? That is what we do not seem 10

know.
Mr. Davle: You are asking me a question that I really do not

have the technical ability to answer. I think a general answer to that
would be: in almost every situation, there are variations in cost,
depending on the quality of the product you are trying to produce
and what you have in it. I could not specifically say that, yes,
something could have been built in another way for less money.

Mr. Hybluw: With respect to the recommendations provided by
the Auditor General on page 23, your comments reflect Ihe
procedures that are being worked on with Government Services to
help future projects not to get into this similar situation. What is the
current status, as you understand it, from your department, with
resoect to capital projects and your involvement?

Mr. Davie: We have a very positive view of what has been
happening, especially in the last two years with the Department of
Government Services in terms of the tracking and monitoring of
projects, We feel that — I think we are termed ‘‘the client
department” involved in capital projects — we have a tracking
system. We have internal policies in place which will allow us to
review every stage of the project, We have signing authority which
involves terms for different aspects of the project.

At this point in time, I think it would be very safe to say that the
kind of thing under review with the Porter Creek Junior High
School could not take place. I think Government Services may have
more to add to that, because I know that they are in Ihc process of
producing a manual, for example. They already have processes in
place, but even much more refinement is about to take place in the
future.

Mr. Byblow: Mr. Vantell, could you advise us of the status of
the manual in question?

Mr. Vantell: Yes, we produced a project management proce
dure manual last year. During the summer of 1984, we submitted
that to the Auditor General. A subsequent meeting took place in
October, between the Auditor General and ourselves. Although we
agreed that the manual created quite a bit of improvement to the
existing structure of our work, it was agreed that much more detail
had to be included in the manual.

The Auditor General sent a representative from Ottawa in January
and we came up with a revised procedures manual, which we now
have and will be submitting to the minister for approval. From
there, it will go to the deputy ministers’ review committee. If
management board approves the procedures, it will be distributed to
the various departments and will be implemented.
— Mr. Byblow: You then feel that the procedures manual will be
applicable to all client departments that your branch may do capital
work for?

Mr. Vantell: It will refer to all building construction.
Mr. Byblow: With respect to municipal and community affairs,

where there may be municipal works, municipal and community

affairs have advised us that they have a manual already in place. To
your understanding, how does that manual relate in procedures to
the one that you are going to be putting into place?

Mr. Vantell: I could not answer that question.
Mr. Davie: I believe the reference is to the same document.
Mr. Vantell: tt could be.
Mr. Penlkett: I think it was indicated to us that the community

and transportation manual was based on the earlier draft of the one
that you are developing. Mr. Davies is nodding his head. Let me, if
I may, just ask a couple of general questions based on my own
understanding of this project. Lel me direct them to you, Mr.
Davie, although I invite a response from the other witnesses as
well.

It seems clear when we look at this that what was originally voted
in the legislature was for the creation of an elementary school.
What we ended up with was something quite different: a junior
secondary school. They are two very different things, and there are
questions in my mind about the needs analysis at the time the
elementary school decision was taken. I know that the Auditor
General has recommended a project management procss, which
goes through five steps: a need analysis, predesign, design, the
contracting, and then a review stage. I understand that, to some
extent, these steps may be embodied in the new procedures
developed by government services. Could I ask you though, Mr.
Davie, to what extent, even in an informal way, were those steps
followed? You referred a few moments ago to some chats — I think
that was your word — that went on. I think that since they may not
have been very well documented, these conversations at least seem
to have been very expensive conversations, in terms of their
consequences. To what extent were the procedures that are being
recommended followed, if at all, or do you think that they were
essentially not followed, as we now understand the steps recom
mended by the Auditor General?

Mr. Davle: Interpreting from a lack of written information that
these chats took place — I am presuming that, somebody had to be
talking to somebody — I think that there is no denying, in my view,
from what I have seen, that the steps were not followed like they
would be today.

Mr. Penikett: Let me just followup on that question, Mr.
Davie. In terms of your understanding of the steps that are
recommended today, going through the steps from the needs
analysis, predesign and design, could you briefly give us an
understanding, were you building a new school now, of what your
role in each of those steps would be — not the Government
Services’ role, but the client department’s role.
oi Mr. Davle: The client department, at this point in time, would
develop a project request. In order to develop that project request.
they would have had to have done some research into the need or
use. If it were a school, they would have had to have made
decisions well in advance as to whether it would be an elementary
school or a junior high school. They would have had to have made
very clear decisions in terms of what that school should contain, in
terms of space, equipment and so on.

This would not be done in isolation; it would be done involving
quite a number of people. Even before the project request, it would
involve public works, because public works would be providing
very valuable technical information. Technical information would
be things like sound proofing in a music room and that kind of
thing.

Mr. Penikett: Can I just go back a step to what we might call
the needs analysis. Presumably, that would be founded in the
demographic information that the department has, such as has been
described in the previous days evidence, It would be the evidence
that there is a prediction of an emerging increase in population of a
certain school age, whether it was for elementary or for junior high.
that would cause you to make the request. Is that correct?

Mr. Davie: That would be right. It would be that kind of
analysis. It would involve economic development and people like
that who do research into population trends.

Mr. Penikett: Going into the pre-design stage, you would make
the request for an elementary school, for example, of a certain type
and size — for 500 students, or whatever. Is that when the dialogue
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r would begin with Government Services?
Mr. Davie: No. It would begin before that. Government

Li Services would be helping us to draw up the initial request. There
would be some involvement there. The real involvement would

U
come at the point when the request was actually there and design
plans were being asked for through public works.

There is a very important ingredient that would be in place now,
and which had begun to be in place at the time of this school, and
that is that there is a clear policy in the department now as to the
involvement of school committees and the education council. These
are structures which are in place; therefore, we use them in order to
get their input. They would be very heavily involved in all stages of
the project, in terms of giving advice.

Mr. Penikctt: I would like to invite Mr. Vantell and Mr.
Davies to respond to this next question. Five stages were described,
which had been recommended by the Auditor General with respect
to capital projects. We have the needs analysis, the pre-design, the
design contract and the final stage of the formal review process.

Clearly, the Auditor General has reached certain conclusions
about the project, and made certain recommendations. The
appropriate departments have responded. Could I ask you both if,
following the completion of the construction of this project, if there
was any formal review of the development of this project by either
or both of the departments in question here?

Mr. Vantell: I do not think that system was in place at the
time.

Mr. Davies: I believe what you are referring to is a post-
construction evaluation report, and to the best of my knowledge that
document has not been compiled.

Mr. Penikett: So there has been no such thing in respect to this
project?

Mr. Davies: To the best of my knowledge, no.
Mr. Penikctt: So when you were responding to the Auditor

General’s recommendations, in fact you were not doing it on the
basis of your own review, you were, in fact, simply reactive in that
case.

Mr. Vantell: Yes.

U Mr. Penikelt: Okay. Mr. Davie, was your department involved
in any kind of review, just in terms of questioning your own
procedures about the original need analysis, for example, taking
you back to your point about an elementary school becoming
something else?

Mr. Davie: We did not do a post-construction review, as I
would understand the term “post-construction review’’, which
would be a highly technical thing. Obviously, when you have a new

U school, and it is operating with staff and a principal and students,
we have our own internal mechanisms to make sure that the right
things are in place in that school. So, to that extent we had a mini
review, but it is not a post-construction review. Also, when it was

r 1 brought to our attention, of course, and before we knew that we

(j would be before this committee, we did review all riles that we
could flnd pertaining to this so that we could have some
understanding within the department of how this project had taken
place, but we did not have a post-construction review as such.

Mr. Penikett: Can I ask you, just to pursue that a little bit
further, Mr. Davie, you indicated there was some kind of
assessment to the operation of the school once it was in

ii commission, or in service. From time to time, on the street, and
this is strictly a lay-person’s question, one hears comments about

Li the appropriateness of certain design features in that school. For
example, there is an extremely well stocked photography lab, as I
recall, which is not being used. There are other people who have

I commented about the carpeting, or one thing or another. Have you
L. done, through the school committee or any other device, any kind

of formal assessment of your client response, or your customer

H
response, to the various features, design features that may be in that
school, not in terms of changing that school, but as object lessons
for future projects?

Mr. Davie: To say that there had been a formal evaluation
would be wrong. I recall quite well the night the school was opened
because I was there, and the public was there, and they were being

U toured around the school, and I picked up some of the things thai

you picked up. It depended on which member of the public you
were listening to. Some were very proud of the fact this school had
equipment they did not have when they went to school, others were
saying there was too much in there. The fact is, through the
principal and the school committee for that particular school, we
have an ongoing dialogue. There has not been a lot coming back to
us at all about inadequacies or problems; minor things happen in all
schools. Through that mechanism, which is very much in place
there, the consultation with school committees, we constantly have
a play-back.

Mr. Penikctt: I understand that, Mr. Davie. I am just trying to
focus on the learning experience, or the benefits of experience in
terms of future designs. Apart from the fact that these public
reactions, or public response, might enter the folk wisdom of the
department, there is no formal way of recording that this particular
feature seemed to work out, this particular feature was popular, this
particular feature seemed to be not so popular, public response
seemed to be that this was a luxury item, that perhaps was not
necessary. There is no formal way of doing that, in terms of
building the experience of the department?
, Mr. Davie: There is no formal mechanism which would notate
this in some kind of way for future record, but I think it would be
wrong to say that it does not happen. The school building is a living
thing, therefore changes are made in it constantly. Even a change of
a principal in a school means that some changes take place through
a year. A change in requirements of the curriculum means that
changes would take place, so to that extent, it would be an open
communication for ongoing changes. But there is no formal outline,
or whatever, that might lead to a wiser decision in the future.

Mr. Penikett: In reviewing the files on this, you drew the
conclusion that there have been certain chats at significant stages. Is
it possible, were you asked to, — and I am not asking you to — to
date those events with any precision?

Mr. Davie: There could be a skeletal outline, which would
have dates, but it would be fairly inadequate.

Mr. Byblow: Extending from the discussion with the chairman,
Mr. Davie, in your assessment, and to your knowledge, would it be
fair to say that there may have been over-riding political interfer
ence, or political judgment made in the case of the Porter Creek
school that would have eliminated, or short circuited, things like
the needs assessment analysis, or other aspects of procedure that
were not followed.

Mr. Penikett: I think, Mr. Byblow, you would have to
rephrase that question in order for it to be acceptable. If I may
suggest, an acceptable form of the question might be: were those
key decisions made, in retrospect, by ministers or by deputy
ministers?

Mr. Davie: When you read the administrative file, you read the
decisions made by bureaucrats.

Mr. Penikett: They may be consequences of chats with either
people on the street, or cabinet ministers?

Mr. Davie: It could well be, but that would not be something
you would extract from a file when you research the background of
something.

Obviously, decision-making is also made at other levels, because
it is not quite possible to appropriate additional funds for projects
without going through some kind of process.

Mr. Byblow: I have an additional question for Mr. Vantell. In
light of your over-riding importance in the project management
procedure, does your branch have any provision for training
programs in project management?

Mr. Davies: Perhaps I could respond to that directly. All
employees at the junior management level of public works have
attended a two day project management seminar over the past
winter, which was presented by the project management institute.
Plus, we are involved in other training programs for individuals, as
required.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Davies, could you describe the project
management institute a little bit more?! do not think we have heard
reference to it before.
o Mr. Davies: The project management institute is an organiza
tion in the private sector, is national ancPis involved in research and
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training in the project management field, It was our feeling that
they had something to offer, and as a consequence, a program was
offered for our people.

Mr. Penlkett: Could I ask you if your experience with this
organization indicates that the project management procedures that
they recommend are somewhat in accord or very much in line with
the kind that are recommended by the Auditor General? Or similar?

Mr. Davies: I believe my statement would be that they are quite
compatible.

Mr. Byblow: One last question. In the instance of the new law
building. an outside firm has been retained for the construction and
overseeing of that entire project. Is that a project management
function that the firm will be engaged in?

Mr. Davies: The project management function, in that case,
will remain with the Department of Government Services, but the
construction management, which is one tier down in the overall
operation, will be the responsibility of the construction management
firm.

Mr. Pealketi: I think, unless other members have sup
plementaries on this point, we have covered this ground, and maybe
what I could do is excuse Mr. Davie and thank him for spending so
much of his time with us, and pray that it has not been too
unpleasant an experience. I will excuse Mr. Davie and turn the
floor over to Mr. Brewster.

Mr. Davie is excused
Mr. Brewster: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would like to start

out on a memo that was sent by the Department of Finance, file
4190, which is a response to the Public Accounts Committee from
(he Department of Community and Transportation Services, Depart
ment of Government Services, and Department of Finance. On page
2, we will go back to the project management policies, could you
give me a date when this project management manual will be
approved?

Mr. Davies: I think it will be approximately the end of March
this year.

Mr. Brewster: The end of March?
Mr.
Mr. I notice in your response in the Jetter that it

be completed by April, 1985. Do you figure it will be on

Mr. Davies: Yes,
Mr. Brewster: I would like to go now to the letter from

Department of Government Services, file 7041.
Mr. Penlkett: Do you have that document available, Mr.

Vantell?
Mr. Vantell: I did not hear.
Mr. Brewster: It is a letter from government services, file

7041-4.
Mr. Penikett: If you do not have it in front of you, Mr.

Vantell, we can provide you with a copy.
Mr. Vantell: I do not have that, no.
Mr. Brewster: On the front page. down at the bottom, the

objectives of the Department of Government Services as staled in
the main estimates have not changed, but now clearly reflect its
current activities. Does this mean that the handibus is no longer
with your department?

Mr. Vantell: That is correct. It is now the responsibility of the
Department of Health and Human Resources.

Mr. Brewster: The only other question I would have is under
program objectives. You state that they have not changed, but if
you notice, in 1983-84, there are about six lines of objectives. In
1984-85, there is about a line and a half. Do you not think that is a
considerable change?

Mr. Vantell: They have not been changed.
Mr. Brewster: They have been changed through the fact that

you have moved the handibus. Is this not correct?
Mr. Vantell: That is correct, yes.
Mr. Brewster: Do you now provide safety and security

programs and emergency measures organizations for Yukon?
Mr. Penikett: Is this a new objective, Mr. Vantell?
Mr. Vantell: I did not hear the question.
Mr. Brewster: That is the old one, and you do not have this in

1984-8 5.
Mr. Penikett: There seems to be a change in the objectives as

described in the estimates.
Mr. Vantell: I am not aware of any changes.
Mr. Penikett: Perhaps, for the record, we should refer to both

documents and read them into the record so it is absolutely clear.
Mr. Brewster: The program objectives in the 1983-84 opera

tion and maintenance budget:
‘To maintain all government-owned buildings at their original

construction, or subsequently improved standard,
‘‘To plan, design, construct and inspect all capital building

projects for the Government of Yukon.
‘‘To acquire, allocate and maintain office accommodation for all

government departments throughout Yukon.
‘‘To provide safety and security programs in emergency measure

organizations for the Yukon Territory.
In operation and maintenance for 1984-85, the program objectives

are:
‘‘To construct buildings and work on behalf of the Government of

Yukon.
‘‘To maintain such buildings in accordance with approved

standards reflecting government and community needs.’’
Do you not think there is quite a change in those objectives?
Mr. Cawley: Yes, there have been some revisions to some of

the activities within Government Services. I think what Mr. Vantell
is maintaining and stating is that the main objective of Government
Services, which is to provide services within the government, has
not changed dramatically. There has been some refinement within
Government Services, and it is true that safety and security and
emergency measures had a revision. The emergency measure
component of Government Services has now moved to Community
and Transportation Services,

Mr. Brewster: I will leave that as it is and go onto reservation
services. The operating cost for the year 1983-84 was $27,500 for a
net saving of $29,000. This is only the direct cost, is it not? You
have not charged out anything for lights, for maintenance, for floor
space?

Mr. Cawley: That is correct. We have not costed the aspects of
supply services in that depth for the various components that
comprise supply services. We look at the main thrust of cost, which
is salaries or rental of equipment. The cost to operate the building
have not been attributed to each function within supply services.

Mr. Brewster: It makes it very hard for us when we are trying
to figure out whether the cost of this is cheaper than to turn it over
to private enterprise or keep it in government. When you give us a
saving, you have not projected all the costs out. Business could not
do that. They have to pay for their lights, they have to pay for
people to clean their buildings, or heat. Do you not think there is a
portion of this that should be charged out to this department?

Mr. Cawley: I do not disagree with your request. What I am
trying to point out is that it would be very difficult to attribute true
costs to that aspect of supply services. For an example, we have one
heating cost. We heat the main function of supply services, which
is in the Marwell area, with electrical heating. That heating
provides heat for a warehouse, which has a very high ceiling, which
is a very broad space — a very large area. Then, we heat the
section of the print operation, which is the Queen’s Printer, which
is again a semi-warehouse operation, and then we move into the
office complex of supply services, which looks after purchasing,
asset control, transportation — which is the pool car operation, as
well as the operation for travel arrangements. The Queen’s Printer
administration is in that office complex as well. The heating is
provided to the total building through electricity. To take the square
footage and run that back into the annual cost for heat, I do not
think would give us a realistic true cost for the operation, per square
foot of the administration component. It certainly would give you
an indication of what the square foot costs are, but the variables in
the building that I operate out of are fairly extensive, so square
footage would not he the answer. You would probably have to look
at cubic feet. The transportation reservation component is an
operation provided by one person-year with one desk. The area is
shared by the pool fleet administration component, and that is one

Davies: March or April.
Brewster:
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[ person-year and one desk. The two functions are interchangeable
during absences or breaks in the work load during the day, so ihere
is some crossover of responsibility. That is the basic reason why we
have not tried to attribute any of the heating costs or cleaning costs
— and the only other costs that we bear would be Ihe removal of
garbage — to this small aspect of supply services operation.

Li because of the variables within the building.
, Mr. Brewster: I think ihat you would agree with me though

that actually your net overall saving of $29,000 is not really
correct.

Mr. Cawley: Tha is true.
Mr. Penikett: Could I just ask you as a supplementary. Mr.

Cawley, to emphasize Mr. Brewster’s point. If it is difficult to

fl establish true costs, then you would have similar difficulty in
establishing true savings? Would you agree?

Mr. Cawley: Only if you are looking at net savings.
Mr. Penikett:
Mr. Brewster:

fares go down in
— the seven month period?

Mr. Cawley: The figures on page 3 are anticipated based on
data at the date this document was compiled. This certainly is not a
final stalement of what the fare structures are going to be. It is an
anticipation based on the data received to the dale we compiled the
document. I am not really sure that, in the end analysis, it will hold
true.

Mr. Brewster: In 1983-84. the medical cvacuation was
$700,000 and you have gone through seven months and now you
are down to $299,500.

O Mr. Cawley: I understand that. I do not have a clear indication
as to why this has occurred, or what the difference is.

Mr. Brewster: Why do you have a drop in government applied
rate for hotels from 46 percent in 1983-84 to 44.2 percent in
1984-85, in the percentage there?

Mr. Cawley: Do we have a drop in the rate we are paying?
Mr. Brewster: You have a government applied rate savings of

46 percent on hotels. Then when we come to 1984-65. you have

fl now got it as 44.2 percent. Why did it drop like that?
Mr. Cawley: The government has established through the new

Financial Administration Ac: a clear definition of utilization of
hotels. We are now using a more greatly reduced rate for hotels, or[ to put it in clearer terms, we are using hotels that are less costly
than previously. In the previous year — no that is not correct,
because we have a reduction. I do not know. I have not analysed
that. We saved 47 percent in the previous year. We are now saving

U 44 percent.
Mr. Penlkett: If I may be permitted to observe, Mr. Cawley. it

is interesting to achieve increased saving from $16,600 in the year
under review to $22,000 in April I, 1984 to October 10. 1984. In

n order to increase those savings it was also necessary to dramatically
increase the expenditure by some $20,000.

Mr. Cawley: Yes.
Mr. Brewster: You state at the bottom of the letter that your

increased savings in 1984-85 was due to aggressively going after

excursions. Why were you not doing this 1983-84?
Mr. Cawley: We were not always given sufficient advance

knowledge of travel. The excursion rates have some timeframes on
them. We were not as agressive in our approach to individuals who
are in travel status, or to departments. We were leaning more

Li strongly towards a service relationship with the client departments.
In the current year, we are leaning more aggressively towards a
control to setting up standards and directing individuals on what
they should or should not be doing in relation to their travel status.
That has provided us with a reduction.

Mr. Brewster: Why did you not do the same thing in hotels? If
you look at the hotel rate paid — $36,100 in 1983-84 and in

1984-85, it was $50,000 and that is only for seven months.
J Mr. Cawley: It becomes more difficult to restrict individuals in

their choice of hotel accommodation, It depends on where their
meetings are going to be held and the type of conference they are

attending. To rigidly apply a standard on hotels could increase
J travel costs in relation to ground transportation, so that aspect of

control has not been as rigidly applied as the air factor.
Mr. Penikett: Let me confess, Mr. Cawley, I am still a little

puzzled about the validity of claiming savings which would have
occurred anyway. Let me make this point: I travel outside this
territory, if I am on any kind of business with the Legislature, I
check into a hotel and they ask me where I work; I tell them and
they then automatically give me a government rate. It does not
require an agency, such as you are operating here, to obtain such a
saving. I am sure that is the case for many people who are
Ira veiling.

I am wondering aloud about the validity of claiming some things
which would be available in any case.

Mr. Cawley: Our experience has shown that the savings in
accommodation have not been granted to government employees in
travel status to its fullest extent. As you are probably aware, there
are a number of rate structures that hotels apply to guests who stay
there. On many occasions, govcrnment employees were not granted
the true federal government rate reduction. In a number of
instances, the hotels were booked to capacity, and government
employees had to seek other accommodation at the time they
arrived at their destination, and which was not granted at the
government rate.

Through our process of confirming, in writing, the availability of
space, the individual in travel status has a copy of this written
confirmation, and the hotels provide the proper rate structure and
the appropriate rooms more readily.

Mr. Penikctt: You are essentially using the federal government
rate outside the territory. If a public servant goes to Watson Lake,
one has, in the past, heard complaints that they have been told that
they have to stay in such-and-such a hotel. If that is an expression
of this control mechanism you are talking about?

Mr. Cawley: We have not provided that level of control within
the territory because the community hotels have not all provided
listings of a government rate.

Mr. Penikett: Let me be precise. If you go into a community,
within or without the territory, are they told to stay at hotels which
have a government rate?

Mr. Cawley: This travel section that I operate has not done that
within the territory.

Mr. Peaikett: So, within or without the territory?
Mr. Cawley: We only do it outside the territory.
Mr. Brewster: Maybe I am a little confused here. You book an

airplane ticket. You book the hotel, through your agency, then
when you have done all this work, you turn this over to the travel
agency in town, and he picks up the ten percent from the airplane
company. Is that correct?

Mr. Cawley: That is correct.
Mr. Brewster: I have one more question that C would like to

ask. You state that you look after medical evacuations. Who
actually calls these airplanes or these helicopters out, you or
northern health service?

Mr. Cawley: Northern health services does, because that type
of evacuation is done on weekends, by and large. We have called,
and do call, carriers, when it is within the week. Transportation
looks after all recruitment of small aircraft, which is a separate
function from the reservation aspect of transportation. It is done
twofold, but by and large the northern health service looks after it,
because it is usually on a weekend.

Mr. Brewster: In other words, they bill this back to you then,
do they?

Mr. Cawley: They would bill it back to the Department of
Health and Human Resources.

Mr. Brewster: If they bill it back to them, as I understand it,
you look after the booking of these medical evacuations, is that not
correct?

Mr. Cawley: That is correct, but we do not pay any costs that
are incurred for travel status of the individuals, regardless.

Mr. Brewster: Okay.
Mr. Ashley: Mr. Cawley, I would like to ask you if a

government secretary for anybody from higher up asks the secretary
to call to receive the government rate at a hotel, will they not

All right.
On page 3 of this letter, why did the medical air

1984-85. and government reduced fares go up in

receive that government rate?
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Mr. Penikett: Let me ask you a different question, Mr. Cawley.
If the government rate is not granted at the federal level there is a
procedure to get an adjustment from the hotels which are on record
as offering a government rate. Does your central reservation system
here not have a similar procedure?

Mr. Cawley: I suppose they would. We do it, because there are
various rates applied to the federal government employees, which
we take advantage of. The federal directory has two parts to it: the
white pages and the green pages. The directive that we operate
under is that all travel status shall be incurred in the white pages of
this directory, which is a lesser rate than the green pages; it is
different hotels.

Mr. Penlkett: Let me ask you a different question, Mr.
Cawley, If the government rate is not granted at the federal level
there is a procedure to get an adjustment from the hotels which are
on record as offering a government rate. Does your central
reservation system here not have a similar procedure?
i. Mr. Cawley: Yes we do.

Mr. Penlkett: Have you had any success with such collections?
Mr. Cawley: Yes, we have.
Mr. Penikctt: Could you indicate to what order of magnitude?
Mr. Cawley: They are very limited, because, since we have

been operating the system, the disparities between those rates is
very minimumal, but when it does occur, we challenge the hotel.
When they refuse reservations, we challenge them as well, and
prove that we had confirmed accommodation.

Mr. Penlkett: There is some cost involved in those collections.
Could you indicate whether you have recovered $100 or $500 or
$5,000 or $10,000 in that way, approximately?

Mr. Cawley: I would suggest that the range is between $100
and $5,000. It is not above $5,000, but it is more than $100.

Mr. Penlkett: I just might point out that the legislative office
here has also done the same thing for me on occasion.

Mr. Ashley: On inside territory travel, I believe and correct
me if I am wrong — you send out forms to the hotels and they
apply a government rate, is that correct?

Mr. Cawley: We are just in the process of doing that now. We
have not done it in the past. We are doing a survey to establish a
rate for Yukon employees.

Mr. Ashley: I was under the impression thaL that had always
been done in the past.

Mr. Cawicy: In a very minor sense. We are now in the process
of doing it more extensively.

Mr. Ashley: Have you have set the policies on that yet.
Mr. Cawley: No, because we are still in the process.
Mr. Falle: Mr. Davies, you are in charge of the engineering

department for YTO, is that true?
Mr. Davies: That is correct,
Mr. Falle: Not too long ago, I read in the papers, when we

were about to have our new government building, you gave it out to
a project managing contract. A statement was made in the paper
that we did not have the expertise, nor the engineering ability to do
ii. I think if I were an engineer, I would be quite upset. Is that a
policy matter or what? It is off the subject, but I just wanted to
know what capacity we had in your department.

Mr. Davies: We have quite a capacity%to do projects within the
public works branch. We also do a lot of very small projects, so
when we are going into the larger and more complicated projects,
we are looking at the implementation of the projects by a more
complicated procedure, which has advantages to this government
from time and cost points of view.
u Mr. Penlkett: Is the hotel list of government rates that you
were talking about a moment ago, Mr. Cawley, not circulated to all
government departments?

Mr. Cawley: I believe it is. We do have a circulatinn list.
Mr. Penlkctt: Given that that information is then in line

department’s hands, then is it at least theoretically possible for them
to take advantage of that information?

Mr. Cawley: Yes it is.
Mr. Pcnlkctt: If there are no further questions, then I guess we

will excuse these witnesses. Thank you, Mr. Vantell, Mr. Cawley,
and Mr. Davies, on your first visit here. I will not say I hope to see

you back, because that upsets people, but it has been nice having
you and we appreciate you coming back again and providing us
with the answers. Thank you very much, Mr. Vantell. Witnesses
are excused. We will take a ten minutes recess and then return with
witnesses Irom the Department of Economic Development and
Tourism.

Wit,iesses are excused

Recess

Mr. Penikett: Order. We are entertaining this morning, Mr.
John Ferbey, from the Department of Economic Development and
Tourism. I would ask you to lend your ears, Mr. Ferbey, to Mr.
Falle, who will be leading us. Without further ado, I will turn the
floor over to Mr. Falle.

Mr. Falle: Mr. Ferbey, good morning. Have you the standing
committee’s report?

Mr. Ferbey:
Mr. Penikett:

Fal Ic.

I did not bring it with me.
Perhaps you might say the page number, Mr.

Mr. Falle: Yes. Page number 16. I am going to refer to this
document quite a bit on this.

Mr. Fcrbey: What page please, Mr. Falle?
Mr. FaDe: Page 16, the fundamental principle of human

resource management is to establish clear goals and objectives
against performance, so that performance can be measured. I want
to know, Mr. Ferbey, if your department has done anything to
establish these goals since our last meeting?

Mr. Ferbey: Certainly we have reviewed our objectives, Mr.
RUle, and amended them to reflect what we consider to be more
concise and clear objectives of the department. That was done at the
request of the people who put the estimates together, and it was
being done throughout the government.

Mr. Falle: The last time you appeared before us, Mr. Ferbey,
we were very curious about several areas. One of the areas was, we
found that we thought it would be fundamental for managers to plan
and budget for their activities before commencing a project. You
were not very clear last time whether or not this was being done.
Has the department done anything to improve this?

Mr. Ferbey: That was not being done. At the moment, it is not
being done, but our plans are to put it into effect for the first of
April. We have done a basic management information system,
internally, that hopefully will give us costs of projects and enable
us to set priorities bascd on the kind of information we get back
from that system.

Mr. Falle: Can you give us more information on this sound
project management information system that you refer to?

Mr. Ferbey: I guess it will be defined as a cost-based analysis
of each project we undertake: the number of hours that a researcher
spends, for example, looking at a particular topic that we are asked
to research.

After we have accumulated some of the data, we would hope that
we would be able to determine whether certain kinds of research
that we have been doing are really worth the money. If, for
example, we spent $5,000 in a researcher’s time and supplies, and
not much use is made of that particular study, if we look at it in
comparison to future requests, we should be able to make certain
kinds of decisions about whether it is going to be worth doing the
research.

Mr. Falle: So your basically trying to ensure that the resource
is not wasted on projects for which there is no cost benefit?

Mr. Ferbey: I would hope so.
Mr. Falle: Are there any ways, within the department, to

analyze this?
Mr. Ferbey: At the moment, no, there are not.
Mr. Penikett: Could I ask you about the system you are trying

to put in place as of April I?
Could you elaborate a little bit on the answer you gave Mr. Falle

to the extent to which the system will allow activities to be
quantified so they support the resources requested in the estimates?
. Mr. Ferbey: I am not sure I can answer that question.

Mr. Penlkett: Presumably, when your minister is coming to the
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Legislature to ask for a certain amount of money, that is based on

U information that you, to some extent, provided by your needs. In
order for the Legislature to continue to support those needs, you
will need to justify the expenditures that have been made in a
previous year and consequently assume that there are going to be

E similar expenditures, or greater expenditures or less expenditures in
the coming year. The measure of the product in this function, or the
performance, if you like, is going lobe the justification for whether
it is an activity the Legislature wants to continue to finance.

[1 Mr. Ferbey: I think, yes, we will be able to answer it in certain
L:; areas — requests for information, for example, of a statistical

nature. The information system we are putting in place has a listing
for providing information to the public. The researcher will indicate

r the time he spends answering a question, whether it happens to
come from the public, whether it happens to come from the
government, or whether it happens to come from the opposition.
We will be able to have fairly good records of the resources that
were required to do that particular job.

If it appears to be running over the total of time that we have had
assigned for that duty and responsibility, it. in my view, would be
justification for requesting additional resources.

Mn Peniketi: So the people doing the work have a log of what
they have done, and when you are making representation to the
Legislature in the main estimates, that will be based on the work
experience and therefore, you will be documenting the kind of
resources you need in order 10 continue these kinds of activities,
based on the volumes of work that have been completed’?

Mr. Ferbey: Yes.
Mr. Penikelt: And that will be represented in the 1985-86

U estimates?
Mr. Ferbey:
Mr. Penikett:

included until 1986-87, at least.

D Mr. Ferbcy: Right.
• Mr. Penikett: That is all I have on that.

Mr. Falle: Is this the evaluation program that the Department
of Finance has initiated?

Mr. Pcnikett: This is with respect to recommendation number
10.

Mr. Falle; That is right. Is this the evaluation system that you
are operating under?

U
Mr. Penikett: Could I just remind you of the operative

sentence: ‘ Since the department appeared before the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts in February, 1984, the Department
of Finance has initiated an exercise to create a mechanism for the

r development of a comprehensive government-wide approach to
program evaluation’’. You then said, “In view of the actions

U proposed by the Department of Finance, the Department of
Economic Development and Tourism has deferred any immediate

U
departmental action on the recommendation’’.

Mr. Falle: Basically my question was: is the program that you
are speaking about, the evaluation program, the same program that
the Department of Finance is implementing government-wide for

r evaluation purposes?
Mr. Ferbey: The first program I talked about will tie into the

L evaluation. When performance indicators of our effectiveness are
established under the evaluation program, then we can go back to

r the information that we will have collected under the answer to
I ‘ recommendation 9, and be able to determine whether we got value

for our money. At the present time, the actual evaluation aspects.
Mr. Falle, are still under separate consideration without a tie-in. A
committee has been established since 1 wrote the response lo the

I recommendation, by the Department of Finance, on program
b evaluation, and just this week an individual from our department

has been appointed to that committee on program evaluation to set

U
that whole thing in motion in the government. I would hope that we
will be one of the first departments that will be involved, so that we
can establish performance indicators for certain programs in our
department, and over the next year or year and a half, be able to
evaluate their effectiveness.

fl Mr. Falle: Do you have any idea, or can you give us any
H indication what time you expect this to happen?

Mr. Ferbey: No, I am sorry, I cannot, The lead in program
evaluation is being undertaken through Finance with outside
consultants.

Mr. Falle: So you would not be able to answer when, either?
Mr. Ferbey: I would hope that by the first of April of 1986,

our department would be in a position to have had performance
indicators outlined for some of the programs in our department, so
that during the 1986-87 fiscal year we could evaluate the
effectiveness.

Mr. Falle: Okay. One of the things that sort of make me
wonder, and I have to ask some questions on it, on recommendation
number 10, the last sentence was: ‘‘Once the new re-organization is
functionally , what re-organization are you talking about there?
Are you talking about the re-organization that the government just
went through?

Mr. Ferbey: I was talking about the overall government
re-organization where tourism was included with ourselves, Mr.
Pal Ic.

Mr. Falle: How does this affect your department directly?
Mr. Ferbey: We have had to re-do the administration. There

was double administration, basically; two directors of administra
tion. It is in that area that there have been primary changes, in that
we have to consolidate the responsibilities between the two areas.
The other change is that the small business component that was
under economic research and planning has been moved to Tourism,
as tourism and small business.

Mr. Falle: Are you presently trying to indicate a kind of a
study in your own mind to evaluate whether or not this move has
been beneficial?

Mr. Ferhey: No, we have not looked at that. We have not
finalized the amalgamation. We still have vacant positions. It was
not until mid-January that the directors were appointed, and we still
have a number of vacancies, Mr. Falle, so we are trying to bring
our staff complement to what it should be and move from there. I
would say, on a personal basis, the amalgamation of small business
and tourism will probably be cost beneficial and of value. Often,
when you look at some of our small enterpreneurs in the territory, it
is very difficult to differentiate whether they are tourism related
purely, or in the small business sector. I think dealing with them
from one centre of responsibility will be an advantage.

Mr. Pcnikett: I do not want to venture into supplementary
policy discussion, Mr. Ferbey. Let me just ask you, though: you
have described some changes in the department’s organization. Are
the specific recommendations of the recent government re
organization study, as they impact on you. documented for you, and
are Ihey a matter of public record?

Mr. Ferbey: You mean the way we should have put it together?
Mr. Penikett: No, you have just described some changes that

are going on in the organization of your department. We assume
from your answer to Mr. Fall&s questions that they are the result of
the government-wide re-organization. We are curious as to whether
there is a document which was given to you as the chief
administrator showing how it should be implemented in your own
department.

Mr. Ferbey: We did have a consultant’s report on both the
Department of Tourism and our department, with recommended
changes.

Mr. Penikett: Those relevant sections, are they a matter of
public record?

Mr. Ferhey: I cannot answer that question.
Mn Penikett: Perhaps we could put it as notice. Let me ask

you a couple of quick questions. You indicated that the Department
of Finance has initiated an exercise to create the mechanism for the
development of a comprehensive government-wide approach to
program evaluation. Beyond what you have said before about your
department designating someone to be on the committee, could you
lell us anything more about this exercise as it affects your
department?
:i Mr. Ferbey: Well, from a personal perspective, I think that it
is long overdue. I think we will run into some difficulties
establishing performance indicators under the program evaluation,
but it will provide us with .,, opportunity to look at the

We will not have any records until after 1985-86.
So we do not expect this information to be
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effectiveness of all of our range of programs. It is time consuming
and I think it is going to require more resources.

Mr. Penlkett: Is that the major impact on your department
then? You think that, in the short run, you will require more
resources in order to get a handle on your performance?

Mr. Ferhey: No, I would not want that to come across 10 the
committee at all. I would hope that the major impact on our
department would be a matter of our being able to use public funds
to the best possible advantage. Only by evaluating our programs are
we going to be able to determine how good our use of public money
Is

Mr. Penikett: I think we would agree with that.
You mentioned the government reorganization study, which, I

think you said, was a consultant’s report. You seemed to indicate to
us that you are aware that that recommended certain things. Are
those the changes which happened in your department, or was there
another stage in the process there?

I will explain why I am asking. This keeps coming up throughout
these hearings. We keep hearing evidence of the reorganization and
we are trying to get a better understanding of its impact.

Mr. Ferbey: Before government reorganization was consi
dered, we had initiated a study of the department itself through Peat
Marwick. There was some question of whether we had the most
effective organization within the Department of Economic Develop
ment. Peat Marwick came in and made certain recommendations
because we do have a broad range of responsibilities in the
department. We were ready to embark on the implementation of
these recommendations when government reorganization took
place. In fact, we were dealing with two reports on our department.

Mr. Penikett: Were they both by Peat Marwick?
Mr. Ferbey: Yes, they were, as was the Tourism one.
Mr. Penlkett: Peat Marwick did a study of your department

and recommended certain changes. You were ahoutto make those
changes when Peat Marwick came along with another study which
caused the government to do different changes?

Mr. Ferhey: No, we were able to tie the first one in, with very
minor changes, into the final reorganization, as it was outlined by
Peat Marwick.
‘ Mr. Penlkett: We would hope so, since it was done by the
same consultant. Just to get that straight, Mr. Ferbey, can you just
give me the approximate dates of each of those steps we just went
through there?

Mr. Ferbey: The final study of the Department of Economic
Development was June and July last year, 1984. We started the
department one in January of 1984. Then, the overall government
one came in between and the final reports were June and July.

Mr. Byblow: With respect to the re-organization studies, it
seems to me that in the late fall of 1983 was the first Peat Marwick
study for the tourism and economic development re-organization.

Mr. Ferbey: That was the Tourism one, Mr. Byblow. Yes,
they had an internal one prior to the final re-organization as well.
That was started in the late fall of 1983. The Economic Develop
ment one was not started until the new year.

Mn Penlkett: I just would ask you, Mr. Ferbey, if it is
possible to provide the committee with the specific recommenda
tions as they affect your department coming out of both these
studies. It would be a matter of some interest to us if they can he
provided. I ask you to take that question as notice.

Mr. Falle: On page 19, recommendation number 10: ‘‘The
department should include in its estimates documents, wherever
possible, planning activities supported by information performance
indicators justifying its request for funding in order to create a basis
for future accountability’’. On this main recommendation, Mr.
Ferbey, what has been done in your department?

Mr Ferbey: We basically have not moved in that area, other
than participating in the committee that finance has set up to do the
program evaluation outlined throughout the government, Mr. Falle.

Mr Falle: So you have not done anything on this recommenda
tion so far?

Mr. Ferbey: No.
Mr. Falle: In your letter, recommendation number II, you

have supplied us with, Mr. Ferbey, this was a very interesting

statement I read from your department. Could you tell me if you
followed this statement through, and your department followed the
statement through, how did the Yukon Data Book get passed?

Mr. Penikett: Ls the question clear to you, Mr. Ferbey?
Mr. Ferbey: Yes, I think so, and I understand it. I suppose the

point that one has to make is that the Yukon Data Book was a
first-time effort, and we recognize that there might be inadequacies,
or there may be errors, certainly. I have to apologize publicly to
Mr. Brewster, there were errors made. We do not know whether in
fact some of the errors were a result of printing errors we missed.
Some of the data has to be up-dated, and because this is an ongoing
effort, we are trying now to ensure that there is a broader update on
provision of that information, Mr. Falle.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Ferbey has hit a nerve here.
Mr. Ashley: In this data book, the statements made on mining

and agriculture were, to me, extremely negative and that data book
is something which is supposed to invite people to come into
Yukon. To me, the worst statements that could ever have been
made were made in that book. I would put it to you that you should
have someone update that thing in a positive light, rather than a
negative light.

I believe the reason for it was to encourage people to come here
and to look at investing in Yukon. Particularly in the mining field,
you would not have found a person who would have come here if
they were to have read that book, if that is all that they judged on.
And all the farmers may as well pack up and go home.

Mr. Ferbey: With respect to agriculture, we used the last
information that came as a result of Agriculture Canada’s official
information on it. I gather, since it has been brought to our
attention, that it is going to be revamped in a more positive sense.

I must say that we sent out the data book to every department in
our government that had the direct responsibility for these areas.
We made whatever revisions that were suggested. In the mining
sector, that is our responsibility and the lack of a positive approach
certainly is totally the responsibility of our department and we will
attempt to improve that.

The other one will go back to all the departments. Hopefully, we
will get the most up to date, positive information that is available. I
think copies have been sent to all of the MLAs as well, asking for
their input into revisions and updating.

Mr. Ashley: Placer mining, in particular, is a has-been industry
as far as that book is concerned. It is something that I would draw
your attention to. We are trying to update that industry, but at the
same time, it is one of our major industries. I believe it brought in
$40,000,000 worth of business into Yukon last year. If it is not the
only, it is one of the major, things we do have going here. If you
read that book, it would be pretty hard to get anybody to invest in
Yukon in that regard.

Mn Ferbey: Your comments are noted.
Mr. Brewster: I would like to follow a little bit along that line.

I presume that your department was aware that we have had a man
studying agriculture. He has made arrangements with people all
over Yukon; he has exact, up to date data, much better than
Agriculture Canada, which is probably from the old agriculture
farm, which has been closed down for 20 some years. Was this man
ever consulted?
a Mr. Ferbey: I cannot say that the man was consulted, but
certainly all the information was sent to the department the man
works in with the request that the material be reviewed, and
amended, and returned to our department with the up-to-date
information, Mr. Brewster.

Mr. Falle: What I am trying to stress to Mr. Ferbey is that the
recommendation number II does not specifically deal with the
Yukon Data Book. It deals with public documents, and the accurate
information within. The data book happened to be one that I took
great exception to. I did not like it in a way. It went against what
our ministers said, against what our government is talking about,
and just painted a very bleak picture of the Yukon in several ways.
In these public documents, I want to stress the importance that you
do scrutinize them before publication. That is where I am coming
from on that, and I would hope that recommendation number II is
carefully observed.
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Mr. Byblow: Mr. Ferbey, the quality of the printing is excellent.
Mr. Peniketi: I want to go back lo where we were last year, in

[ terms of the performance indicators. Last year, as you recall, we
enjoyed a conversiaion, you and I, about the management of[ researchers, Even given ihe small numbers involved, the normal
procedure, in my experience, of giving researchers a certain amount
of time to perform a task, those time allocations normally based on
the manager’s assessment of the importance of the task, or the
urgency of the task. At the time last year. you indicated that there

L was no such system even as informal as thai in place. This year you
have indicated that a new system of performance indicators is not
going to be in place for some lime. You have related it specifically
to the program evaluation exercise, which is related but notr identical. Since, as you will recall, Mr. Ferbey. we were most

Li concerned last year as you have told us today, with the economy
and efficiency and effectiveness of the functions performed by your
department, and you, as ihe manager responsible. the mosir concerned person, can you iell us anything about whal has

L happened in the interim period between last year’s evidence and ihe
time hence, when the new system will be in place. or ihe changes
you see coming in as a result of the studies that finance is doing;
that is, in terms of the way you are managing ii this now, and in

L terms of the year under review, what has changed about the way
that work is done?

You may have trouble remembering the original question when I

fl am finished.

L Mr. Ferbey: No, I think thai you were suggesting that we may
not have been priorizing time allocations of researchers based on
the subjects to he researched.

fl Mr. Penikett: I hate the word ‘‘priorizcd’’. I think ‘‘budgetting

U time” would be more my concern.
Mr. Ferbey: In an informal manner, ever since I appeared

before the committee last year. we have attempted to informally

Cl budget the time of researchers with respect to particular research
projects. I must say, thought, at times it has been based on a
priority of a particular project. if it has been given top priority, and,
sort of, unlimited resources, one that I can think of is that we have

f9 done a fair amount of work on Cyprus Anvil in that way.
Mr. Penikett: I undersiand you have done some informal

budgetting of time, and I understand that in a case like Cyprus
Anvil where events changes from month to monih, or even week to

fl week, you may have had to respond in a crisis management way.
You indicated earlier that you had had some problems in terms of
managing the time of your staff because of public requests. or
opposition requests, or requests that were nol predictable, even
though the pattern of those kinds of research needs mighi happen
over time.

Is that the hardest pan of budgetting your researchers’ time?
Mr. Ferbey: No, I think pan of budgetting researchers’ lime is

tied up with the capability of the researcher as well. We do not have

U resources that cover the broadest perspective of subjects that we
deal with. We have generalists who may have some minor
specialization in certain areas, and the kind of time that has to be[ budgetted in their specialized area is minimal in comparison to a
topic that they may not he terribly aware of. I think it is one of the
things that straps us in some instances. It may take longer than it
should if it was an individual with broader knowledge in that area.

[J
Mr. Penikett: I take your point. if you are dealing with the

problem of Cyprus Anvil, what you really need to take a look at the
problem is some hard-headed economist but you might have a
generalist instead. The generalist might take twice as long to do the

Q
work as someone whose professional skills were in the precise area?

Mr. Ferbey: Yes.
it Mr. Penikett: Given that we are dealing with economic
development, and given that the economic crisis is continuing in

ri Yukon, that must put a lot of pressure on your department. What
skills do you have in your department, among the researchers, in

Li terms of the economic skills, economic literacy, let me put it that
way?

Mr. Ferbey: The director of policy, planning and research has
a background in planning as a major, and economics as a minor.
There are no actual economic researchers in the branch at the

moment. With resignations and transfers recently, positions are
advertised. Our first economist is coming on staff the 4th of March.

Mr. Penikett: You at present have no economists, no person
with a graduate degree in economics?

Mr. Ferhey: Not in economic research and planning. In energy
and mines, we have a director who is a graduate in economics.

Mr. Penikett: Other members of the committee may have some
questions, but let me just touch on one other point that you made in
your January 16th letter, Mr. Ferbey, which is in respect to the
ecometric model that we spent some time talking about. Mr. Falle
might have some supplementaries. You indicaled in your letter, and
I may quote here, ‘‘We do not have the personnel to devote time to
exploring the fullest potential of this thoughtfully-developed mod
el’’. Could I ask you if you have any plans to do this, and what
kind of skills would be required 10 do this that you do not presently
have in your shop, and whether there is any plan to change this
situation, or to be able to utilize the capacity of this model.
hopefully?

Mr. Fcrbey: I think ihat is no problem. The statistical services
person. Glen Grant, who put it iogether, is staffed up now with the
exception of one individual. They are in a position to be able to use
it. One would expect when policy, planning and research are staffed
up. ihey will also be able louse it. I think that we will be in a much
better position.

Mr. Penikett: Since January 16th when you wrote, “Our only
regret is that with the limited resources we do not have the
personnel to devote time to exploiting the fullest potential of this
model’’, you are saying that is now changing, or has changed?

Mr. Ferbey: It is changing, yes.
Mr. Penikett-. At what point do you think you might be

exploiting the fullest potential?
Mr. Ferhey: I cannot give you a date. I could probably say

over the next six to eight months. When you get new staff who do
not have a feel for the north, and most of them are outside hires
because we were not able to hire locally, it is going to take that
long for them to become acquainted with the model, with our
situation here and be effective in its use.

Mr. Penikett: We may want to pursue that again next year.
Mr. Falle: I would like to follow up on Mr. Penikeit’s

question. The type of personnel you are looking for to handle this
new machine, what does that person have 10 have for qualifica
tions?

Mr. Ferbey: I do not think it is a matter of one individual.
Hopefully a number of individuals in the department are going to be
able to use the model. We are not limiting it to one individual, but
it has to be an individual with some understanding of basic
economic principles, multiplier effects in our economy. how they
relate to the mining sector, how they relate to the tourism sector,
spin-off benefits, this son of thing.

Mr. Falle: You made a very interesting statement. A person
from the outside would have to familiarize himself, or herself, with
the Yukon. I put to you Ihe question that there are an awful lot of
people in the Yukon who are familiar with the Yukon and maybe
familiarizing themselves with this model might be a better way to
go. I just hope that we get some kind of accurate forecasting, and
whatever has to be done in the future, I hope you will follow up
with it.

Mr. Ferbey: I would like to comment. Any vacancies we have
had in the department recently, — there has been some delay in
filling them — we have run them locally before ever considering
running them outside, and when there have not been certifiable
candidates, as deiermined by the Public Service Commission, we
have had to do the advertising outside. I agree with you; if there are
local people who have the qualifications and experience required, I
would be the first one to hire them, Mr. Falle,

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Falle will be out at lunch time looking for an
economic planner specializing in computer models.

I have not been precise enough in my questions — none of us
have — in terms of recommendation number 10. Let me read it to
you again: “The department should include in its estimates
document wherever possible, planned activities, supported by
performance indicators, justifying its requests for funds in order to
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creaie a base for future accountability’’.
You have indicated to us that you do not expect, until the

estimates of 1986-87, to be able to fully meet this recommendation
and you tied your inabilily to do that to the time it will lake to
complete the performance indicators, or evaluation thing, which
Finance is initiating.

In respect to the estimates that we shall next see this spring, will
the information that has previously been contained in (he estimates
be improved, in some respect or in any respect, in regards to
performance indicators and measuring the product of your shop?

Mr. Ferbey: I would have to say that it would probably be (he
same, Mr. Penikett.

Mr. Falle: Regarding statistical information and dau, Mr.
Ferbey, there is a limited capacity, I understand, in the department
to get it all. Have you any idea when the statistical data base data
will be improved?

Mr. Ferbey: The statistical services people have three new staff
members who are contract people under one of the programs for
norther oil and gas. It is a three-year term. We are hopeful that over
that three years a basic data base for the Yukon will have been
established; home grown, Yukon done. They are working on Yukon
economic accounts at the present lime with Statistics Canada, which
is. I guess, one of the base tools thai political people, bureaucrats,
and the like, use in the areas of forecasting, projections and
planning. We have never had economic accounts for the two
northern terntones, so Mr. Grant and his staff are embarking on
one of the sort of base areas that are going to be required.

Mr. FalIc: You said that you anticipate this to happen within
the next fiscal year, or year and a half? Two years?

Mr. Ferbcy: No, I said that we should have the base in place
within the lhree year period of their contracts.

Mr. Penlkett: At that point we will have the tools, but it
remains a question of whether we will have on staff the people with
the skills to use those tools. That may still be an open question, Mr.
Ferbey?

Mr. Ferbey: That might be an open question, because they are
contract. But if we are effective in doing our performance
indicators, and detailing the kind of work we do, the potential for
obtaining those resources should be able to be juslified, and not
encounter any difficulties, I think this is where we are moving
lowards.

Mr. Penikeit: Mr. Ferbey, our time has expired. I think we
have asked all the questions we wanted to. I want to thank you for
being here with us this morning. I appreciate (he frankness with
which you have responded. Witness is excused. The meeting is now
adjourned into executive session.

Witness excused

The Committee adjourned at 11,30 am.
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EVIDENCE
Thursday, February 21, 1985

Mr. Penikelt: Meeting number eight, sixth silting, formal
hearings, Public Accounts Committee is called to order.

fl
We have a whole bunch of things we are trying to do this

morning.
Mr. Booth, we are wanting to talk to you about follow-up

recommendations for the 1984 report. Hopefully, we can move[ expeditiously on this question. For that purpose. I am going to ask
you to submit to the tender mercies of Mr. Falle.

Mr. Falle: Good morning. Mr. Booth.
At the formal hearings last February, the board advised the

committee that performance was measured in terms of the speed in[ which the claims were adjudicated. This comes from Hansard,
February 10, page 4.2. It slates thai statistics were kept.

Are these statistics not extracted from the files to provide the
information included in schedule A, B, C and D of the 1983 annual
report?

Mr. Booth: Yes, they are. They are extracted manually.
Mr. Falle: Since the file claim shows the dale the files were

opened and the date they were closed, you have a physical way of

fl dating when they are opened and when they are closed?
Mr. Booth: Yes, we do.

n Effective January, 1984, we put on the word processor the open
date and the amount of earnings, the month of occurrence, the

U nature of industry, part of the body injured, whether there was a
pension award or physical impairment rating, the date it was closed,
the date it is re-opened, the total loss days, and if it is medical aid
claim only.

fl Mr. Falle: Does this not indicate the time taken to adjudicate

[H the claim?
Mr. Booth: It does, from the date it is opened till the date it is

closed, Mr. Falle. yes.

{J Mr. Falle: How many types of claims does the board have?
Mr. Booth: How many types?
Mr. Folk: Yes. I would imagine that on, I think it is, schedule

E, where we have different types of claims on parts of the body
where we get hurt, I think that is probably one type of claim, is it
not?

Mr. Booth: That is correct.
Mr. Falle: Yes. I am referring to permanent injury types, and I

just want to know what types of basic categories you put the claims
into.

Mr. Booth: In the categories of the parts of the body, at the
present time.

U
Mr. Falle: Would it not be possible to log the time taken for

adjudicating each type of claim?
Mr. Booth: Yes, we can since 1984. because we are now

recording the open date and the closing date.

L
Mr. Falle: Basically what we have been asking for is some kind

of an indication, Mr. Booth, of how long it takes for your board to
adjudicate a certain claim. You seem to have all the information
here. Could you put it together for us?

U
n, Mr. Booth: The only problem is that, again, there are so many
variables in an individual treatment, that we often wonder if that
really would give you any factual adjudication time.

Each person’s type of injury has a significant impact in how
serious that injury is. Each person’s healing is different. As I say,
we can tell by recording the loss of time days on each claim, to give

L you more significant figures, depending on how long it has been in
adjudication.

Mr. Falle: If you have an ankle injury, for instance, a hack
injury, wrist injury or elbow injury, there must be some kind of
coordination. If you have 100 of them, you should be able to find
out what the average is. If it goes over, it does not matter, but you

D
should be able to come up with some kind of statistic.

Mr. Booth: Certainly. Yes, we can do that.
Mr. Falle: The board advised the committee that a review had

been untaken of active files to determine the time taken to process
claims. Mr. Booth, I want to try to get you and your board to give
us some kind of indication on how long it takes for certain injuries
and to give us a ratio among different types of injuries, such as if it
is an ankle, or if it is a back. What is the longest a back takes? That
is one of the questions I want to ask,

Mr. Booth: It depends on the severity of the accident. Thai is
the main consideration. In the past, the medical profession’s regular
treatment was six weeks’ bed rest. In the past four or five years.
this has changed completely, where the medical profession is now
saying that they should be back to work in three days, that they
should be active and that will speed up recovery.

Mr. Falle: What is meant by the term physical and permanent
rating schedules’’?

Mr. Booth: That is when the treatment is reached without
finality and the worker has a remaining disability which will now be
permanent. The medical profession then give us the degree of the
disability as per the rating schcdule. It is laid down in percentage
terms.

Mr. Falle:
for each type

Mr. Booth:
profession feels
But again, that
everyone. As you are aware, what may take me two weeks to
recover from a knee injury. may take somebody else six weeks.
Each person has a different healing capacity, according to the
medical profession.

Mr. Falle: Can not the average time taken to process the type
of disability be shown as a measurement of performance against the
standard?

Mr. Booth: Yes, it could. Once it reaches that period of time,
as per the permanence schedule, the claim is referred to our medical
consultant, who reviews it to see whether the person has reached a
permanent stage, and if a decision can be made on the permanent
physical impairment.

Mr. Falle: For all other claims proceeded on by the board,
could not the average time taken to process these claims be used as
a standard for the following years. to provide comparison informa
tion for us?

Mr. Booth: Yes.
Mr. Folk: Schedule A indicates that you had 59 claims in

1983. Could this information not be graphically compared, maybe a
bar graph or something, to allow us to have some comparison say,
within the last four or five or ten years, to be able to show a trend?

Mr. Booth: Yes, they could be compared, as I say. As I am
trying to point out, I do not know what factual information that will
give you because of the fact an individual can take longer to heal.
As mentioned in my report, the geographical location, the time it
takes to get in to see a specialist — because once you reach a
permanent disability stage, you have a serious injury, and therefore
you have to have treatment hy specialists, whether they be
orthopaedic specialists. As you are aware, there are not resident
specialists in the Yukon, and therefore they have to be referred to
the outside. It can take sometimes two months to get an
appointment with specialists. This, again. would delay it, whereas
if it is a minor injury, then you are getting the treatment here. Yet
he could have the same injury, the same type of accident, the same
back problem, but it would be not the same back problem; a
different degree of disability. So if you were comparing one to the
other, it would not. I am trying to say, give you the actual
comparison, because it would he unfair.

Mr. Penikett: Would a summary of the time-lost days arising
from claims be useful to indicate in the annual report?

Mr. Booth: As I mentioned, we have started to record those, as
of January I of 1984, so that next year we can compare them.

Mr. Penikett: Let me go back to the main point in terms of the
performance indicators. I think we are missing a point when we talk
about the treatment time or the recovery time for your clients. That
is obviously an important measure of the performance of the board,
but the more important one, I think, is the question we were
originally dealing with of the workload, or how your employees

Does not the schedule, in effect, establish a standard
of disability referred to in the schedule?

It does give a period of time that the medical
where it should have reached a permanent stage.
depends on the individual. It does not apply to
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were dealing with claims.
Essentially, the kind of arguments you are making about why you

cannot do this, and why this is difficult because of the individual
nature of the cases, the individual attention and so forth, were
essentially the same arguments made to us by Human Resources
some years ago when we were asking for the same kind of
indicators, or performance measures, in respect to their caseload. I
think you would agree that this is. in some ways, similar. Someone
may have an economic or social problem which continues for quite
a long time.

Mr. Booth: Correct.
Mr. Penikett: You can perceive, over a period of time, on

average, that a certain kind of client requires a certain amount of
your time from employees, whether it be a social worker or a case
worker in Workers’ Compensation. Correct?

Mr. Booth: Right.
Mr. Penikett: Human Resources now concedes that it is also

possible to measure the degree of difficulty of the different kinds of
social work cases. I would assume that it would also be the case in
Workers’ Compensation cases.

Mr. Booth: Yes.
Mr. Penlkett: If you concede those two points, and given thai

you already have the data base, which you clearly indicated, I
cannol see why you cannot give some kind of performance
indicators,

Mr. Booth: I am not saying that we cannot do it. We certainly
can do it.

Mr. Penlkett: But without any great cost, which is the final
argument you have against doing it.

Human Resources originally came to us and said, essentially, that
they could not do the same thing. They have subsequently found
that they can. I would recommend to you the study they have
employed to look at how they can do it efficiently and effectively. I
submit, even though your employees are highly vhlued workers,
and I know some of (hem personally and have worked with them, I
do not believe that, as small as your shop may be, you have an
adequate method of measuring their performance, or evaluating
their performance, unless you have these objective indicators.
Would you agree with that?

Mr. Booth: I have no problems in that.
Mr. Falle: I just want to confirm, Mr. Booth, that you did state

that you would undertake to give us some comparisons from year to
year.

Mr. Booth: Yes, we will.
Mr. Penlkett: Is there any last comment you would like to

make. Mr. Booth?
,. Mr. Booth: No. other than to say that I would certainly check
the human resources performance indicators. The only concern thai
I have is that once you start putting into place performance
indicators, I think you take away that individual concern and
service from the claimant, and I hope that does not happen That is
my only concern.

Mr. Penlkctt: There is absolutely no necessity for that.
Mr. Falle: Mr. Booth, I understand what you are trying to say.

If a person has a broken leg, and another person has a broken leg,
the time healing does not necessarily have to be the same. But over
an average, they should give you some kind of indication, One of
the things I wanted to come back to. just for a second, is, I imagine
from the time you open a file — you indicated in Hansard — that
the file is opened when the case is brought to your attention and
closed only when the case is closed. I would suggest to you that the
time that file is open, all your people that do your work are not
spending full time on that single file.

Mr. Booth: No,
Mr. Penlkett: I am not absolutely sure that it has been formally

tabled, or if it is a public document, Mr. Booth. You may want to
enquire about something called social case work time allocation
indicators in the Department of Human Resources, which is a
summary of studies they have done.

Thank you Mr. Booth. Witness is excused.
Witness excused
Mr. Penikett The committee will take an informal recess for a

minute or two to see if our next witness is available. If it is, we will
move right into that, which is thc Public Service Commission. H

Recess

Mr. Penikett: We will nowr proceed with the Public Service
Commission and welcome as witnesses Ms Geri Walshe, Dorothy
Drummond and Carey Conway.

We hopefully will not take too much of your time this morning.
Basically, we just want to follow up recommendations from last
year’s report. which will be in the hands of Mr. Brewster,

Mr. Brewster: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We will deal mainly
with this document here, which you have sent us. There is no file
number on it. Do you have the document?

Mr. Penikett: That is, for the record, the response of the
department to the recommendations.

Mr. Brewster: On recommendation number one, have these
procedures been developed as of yet?

Ms Walshe: I gather that they are being worked on at the
moment.

Mr. Brewster: Could you tell us roughly when they will be
ready to be implemented? What dates?

Ms Walshe: I am at something of a disadvantage here. These
particular procedures are the responsibility of Ms Pat Cumming.
who unfortunately, was unable to be here today. So I cannot answer
any more completely than that, I ant afraid. I understand that she is
working on them and it is the intent to implement them in the spring
of this year, but exactly where they are, I cannot say any more than
that.

Mr. Brewster: Do you think the department could possibly
send us a letter? Thank you. We will go down to recommendation
number two. In the last paragraph, do you mean that the
information will be included in tite 1985-86 estimates?

Ms Walshe: That depends on what happens with the imple
mentation of our computerized human resource information system.
I think that is what Mr. Besier was referring to in that last
comment, which indicates that we would also be able to pick up, at
a later date, counts of how many people were terminated and then
re-employed after a six month period. It is very difficult for us to
collect that information at the moment, because it all has to be done
manually. We are looking at the moment to put in a position control
system. Hopefully that will be in line September or October of this
year. and as soon as it is in, we will be able to provide this sort of
information that you are looking at here in considerable detail.

Mr. Brewster: We will now go to the next page, recommenda
tion number three. In this one your response indicates it is difficult
to get reliable indicators for central agencies. We suggested a
number of different areas that we thought would not be that hard to
get indicators for. Do you agree with that, or do you think it is
impossible?

Ms Walshe: We have tried an experiment in some small areas
in the department, to see what sort of information can be picked up
and how readily and so on. I believe Mr. Besier’s response here is
that the government generally is looking at developing perfonnance
indicators through a system of program evaluation and that the
commission would be part of that government-wide program, and
would look largely at developing performance indicators in that
context. Outside of the small areas that we have looked at in the
PSC. I think that this response still stands.

Mr. Brewster: I might mention that Health and Human
Resources indicated that they could not do this, yet they came along
with a very comprehensive book with their indicators. From the
response we received from them, they seemed to think it was a
good idea that they had done that.

I have another question. I noticed a television ad, ‘‘Northern
Careers’’. Is this done by us or the federal government.

Ms Waishe: I have no idea. I would think that it is the federal
government.

Mr. Conway: Yes, it is a federal government program.
Mr. Brewster: We do not have any input into that at all?
Mr. Conway: Our Public Service Commission is involved,

frequently, in placing northern careers participants. When the
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fl
federal governmetn is unable to find a career assignmetM for these
individuals within the local federal service, they conact us and we
rind them a place. If the individual is interested in forestry. there is
a federal program here and they are busy with haL If the

fl
individual, who is studying resource management, is looking for
work with small and large game hiologisls, they are placed with
their own renewable resources people.

The program is federally funded. We only help by providing
oppofluni(ies for people to study.

[9 Mr. Brewster: My main concern there is that if we can spend
money like thaL to bring people in. why are we not training the
people who were born and raised in Yukon?

Mr. Conway: The northern careen program is for individuals[ north of 60.
Mr. Brewster: I suggest that they should change the advertise

men(. I am an average person, and when I hear that on Ihe radio. H
sounds like they

Mr. Penlkett:

L Mr. Brewster: A comment, yes.
Mr. Penikett: Mayhe I could ask a bH of a rude question. We

seem to hear continual references this year to this governmen(-wide

r project relating to program evaluation. Could I ask (o what extent

[J the fact (hat (here has been a governmenl-wide program ini(iated
has been a reason no( to proceed independently with one of your
own?

fl Ms Walshe: That is a very difficult question. You are really
putting me on the spot, here. I do not know. I would assume tha( it
would have been a factor. When the government does develop its
service-wide program evaluanon program, presumably there would

fl be criteria which would be applicable to all departments, and
certain measures which would be consistently applied, no mat(er
what the department or (he agency was.

I imagine that departments may be reluctan to es(ablish a set of

fl systems which they may then have to amend later on to make (hem
consistent with the overall approach.

Mr. Penikett: There is nothing that (he Public Service Commis
sion has done tha( might be a model for (he government-wide

U program?
Mr. Conway: Only in as much as we have undertaken projec

management training for, first of all, the construction area, and now
the administrative area. Certainly, a major component of the
training that is being offered, government-wide, to all the depart
ments includes that whole aspect of moniwring the program, and

Li ensuring that projects are brought in on time, on budget and so on.
That, in itself, is a type of program evaluation on an ongoing

basis.

L Mr. Penikett: I should allow Mr. Brews(er to just record (he
observation that this commHtee has been given somewhat inflaled
expectations abou( (his government-wide program evaluation. I
guess we are expecung enormous things from it. and not just great
things.

Are there any other questions on this point? Mr. Brewster, are
you satisfied?

r Mr. Brewster: Yes.

i 1 Mr. Penikett: Could I just ask one last question? One of the
other things we have heard about repeatedly in this last couple of
weeks has been the government-wide re-organization. Could you

U
just indicate w us. particularly as H relates to the year under review.
what role did the Public Service Commission play in initiating this
re-organization?

Ms Walsh: The governmen( re-organization was a recom

H
mendation (hat came out of the task force some time ago (ha( was
looking at government productiviy. Management board requested
that there be a review of the government organization. The Public
Service Commission’s involvement was really limited to the
chairman of the Public Service Commission being a member of the

H steering committee that was established to look at the terms of
reference for the hiring of the consulting companies, then to select
the consulting company and then, in effect, to monitor the project
in terms of making sure the consultants brought in their report on
time, and within budget — that sort of thing. The recommendations
from the consultants went directly to Cabinet.

Mr. Penikett: I take it you were more directly involved in the
joh evaluation project?

Ms Walshe: The job evaluation project is a totally different
subject.

Mr. Penikett: But you were more directly involved in it?
Ms Walshc: Oh, absolutely, yes. We ini(iated that one.
Mr. Penikett: Any other questions? No questions.
I would like to thank the witnesses, Ms Walshe. Ms Dmmmond

and Mr. Conway. We appreciate you (aking the lime to be here this
morning. Sorry we had to draw you away from whatever fun you
were al in your offices. Hope it has not been too unpleasant. Thank
you.

The commiltee will take a short recess again. We are going to be
entertaining some people from health and human resources.

Recess

Mr. Penikett: We will have the meeting come back to order. I
regrel, Mr. Davidson. I will have to inform you that are required to
address the House uncovered — I (hink is the expression.

We are having a brief discussion here this morning, we hope.
with Mr. Bill Klassen and Mr. Alan Davidson. who are deputy
minister and direcwr of health services, respectively. We hope that
we will not lake very much time, but Id me explain wha it is thai
we are after.

As you know, every year the commi(tee looks al a couple of
departments or a couple of issues in the government, which we do
independently of any reference from the Auditor General, or any
other direcuon from the House.

This year we were looking at government revenues, We spent
mos( of our time, naturally enough, on the subject with (he
Deparment of Finance: however, there were two areas where the
Department of Finance begged off. One of them was the question of
property and school taxes; the other one was the area of Yukon
health care insurance premiums. That is what we want to talk about
this morning. I want to have Mr. Ashley ask you a couple of
questions.

Mr. Ashley: Mr. Klassen, I would like to ask you, in line with
the Yukon health care insurance plan. if you could give me a
description of the procedures you use for the general recording and
collecting of the premiums?

Mr. Klassen: I will probably defer on most of that to Mr.
Davidson. You are probably aware that the premium for a family is
$27.50. and for a single individual, it is $20.00. The individuals
have (0 be registered in the health care insurance plan. You are
probably also aware that we have been going through a re
regislration process. You have probably all received your new blue
cards in the mail.

I will ask Mr. Davidson to go into the detail of the process itself.
Mr. Davidson: Essentially, this is an accounting system.

Really, what we do is set up accounts with people we call
subscribers, and another way of identifying them is as heads of
households. Essentially what they are is persons who have
dependents, and these dependen(s could be dependents in one of
two ways. One would be a dependent for income tax purposes, by
virtue of being below the age of majority, or because of disability.
Or alternatively, simply someone who is in a care relationship with
another person. The subscribers themselves, with how ever many
dependents they might have at(ached to them, are captured for
premium purposes in one of two ways. The principle way is through
employer groups. The mechanism here is that every employer in (he
(erritory is obligated under the Health Cure Insurance Plan Art to
report to the health care insurance plan all members on their
payroll. Together with this report of all persons who are on their
payroll, they also provide forms to health care insurance plan
indicaung whether or not these persons are otherwise covered. A
normal example, of course, would be someone who is already a
dependent of another subscriber, in which case the employer gels a
form attesting (0 that from that employee, and they then are no(
obligated to remitting the premium on behalf of that individual
because they have a dependent as opposed to subscriber status. In
any event, from this flow of paper from the employers, we are able

are trying to bring people into (he north.
I think that was probably a comment.
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to identify who ought in be subscribers on thai particular
employer’s payroll. On the basis of that, the computers then
esiablish remittance siatements for chose employers, which go out
identifying the premium obligation for the subscribers on their
payroll. The employers then remit against those remittance state
ments premiums for the subscribers who are on their payroll. There
is a reconciliation processe. employees come on and off (he payroll,
or as their status may change from that of a subscriber io a
dependent because of changes in family constellation, or however
thai may work.

Everything else is residual. Anyone who is not caughi in this
way, through employer payroll remiuance. is placed on what we
call open accounts, which means (hey relate to the health care plan
as an individual as opposed to remitting to us through an employer
group. These individuals are obligated to remit their premiums
directly to the health care insurance plan, and they receive the
statements periodically from the health care insurance plan,
indicating (heir premium liabiliiy. They are issued with a liitle
book, something like a bank book, where their obligations and
remiitances are recorded. People cross back and forth between these
Iwo statuses, because a person may be on individual accouni for a
period of lime, and become employed by an employer group, and
be put on a group, and when (hey leave employment, go back to
individual accounts. Their staius shifts back and forth. Is this the
kind of information you want?

Mr. Ashley: Yes, that is correct. You have given us a pretty
good description of the steps throughout the operaiing plan. You
mcniioned that there is a major revision that you are doing. I would
like 10 know what your objectives for that are, and the current status
of that?

Mr. DavIdson: We have nearly completed the major projeci. It
is actually a registration process and it certainly bears a relationship
10 premiums, but it was not set up to address the issue of premiums.

Every individual who is eligible for coverage under the health
care plan for hospital benefits and medical benefits is supposed to
be registered. The statutes require registration wiih the healih care
insurance plan. Of course, we did have a file of these registrants,
which include not only subscribers for premium purposes, but also
all members of the plan, so all dependents are within that file as
well.

That file, as it was built up. historically, had a great many
difficulties. There were a lot of errors and omissions. There were
also administrative and computer problems with (he way in which
that file was operated. What we are trying to address at this stage is
the registration file, to ensure thai the information we have on that
file reflects only those Yukoners who are eligible for health care
coverage, and in respect to those Yukoners, we have correct
information — that is, that the names, ages and place of residences
is, in fact, correct.

This does bear a relationship to premiums. It is rather one step
removed, The relationship that compares to premiums is that if we
have a more adequate address tile, or place of residence file, in
particular, it makes it much easier for us to collect premiums
because we are better able to find the individuals who owe us
money. It is that kind of relationship, as opposed to a direct one, on
premium collection.

Mr. Ashley: Has this program come within the estimated costs.
from when you first estimated it?

Mr. Davidson: In fact, the project, to this stage, is under the
original cost estimate, with one exception. The original budgetting
for the project did not include a number of forms which we needed
to facilitate its implementation, so there was a management board
submission which went up about six months ago requesting some
additional administrative funds for the purpose of forms revision.
Pan of that was not within the original proposal.

The total amount, I believe, was in the order of $43,000, and that
covers the additional incremental cost, not only for the re
registration itself, but also the operations for roughly another year.
because of (he inventory of forms and materials that were acquired
with those funds.

Mr. Ashley: I believe you said that it was almost completed.
Can you give us a date?

Mr. Davidson: The cards are being issued now. Most people
will be in receipt of them, although there are some still yet to go
out. We will be running the old registration system in parallel with
the new one. honouring the old healih care insurance cards, until
the end of March of this year. The acusal full turnover date, with
implementation of all elements of the new registration system, is
April 1st.

Mr. Ashley: April I. 1985?
Mr. Davidson: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: I have just a quick question aboui this, Mr.

Davidson. Occasionally one has heard complaints around (own
about the cards. Have you had very many complainis in your office
ahout (he accuracy of information on them, and so forth?

Mr. Davidson: Actually, very few. There were some, number
ing perhas a dozen, who requested information on the cards be
changed. The principle cause of this was when we sent out the
re-registration packages. we asked people to verify that the
information as it was printed off the computer in those packages
was correct. A significani number of people simply signed the
re-registration package. withoui correcting the information. What
happened was that the information that was already erroneous was
re-printed on the card, because persons did not realize that they
were supposed to amend it if it was in error. All cases, with the
excepiion of five that have come to my attention, respecting
Destruction Bay. have been of that type. In the case of Destruction
Bay. there was some kind of as yet unexplained problem with the
way in which the programming was done for the printer and a
number of the cards went out with the community name partly
scrambled, or abbreviated, or this kind of thing.

Mr. Penikett: In my case, the old information was correct. I
filled out the form very carefully, and there were only two errors in
my card: the spelling of my name and my age. But I have not
complained because I kind of like being two years younger — not
really. I was just wondering if there have been many complaints of
thai kind.

Mr. Davidson: No, as I say, to date the number is roughly a
dozen, and they are things that can actually be very easily
corrected. We are planning with public affairs an advertisement to
that effect, because since it is all on the computers, and the labels
can be generated very readily off the computer, anyone who has any
problems with what is on their card, if they call us, on the same day
we can key in the changes into the computer, and within a week a
new label should be out in the mail. The new label can be overlain
on the old, and then the situatioit will have been rectified.

Mr. Penikelt: Mr. Brewster, did you want to say anything?
Mr. Brewster: No.

2 Mr. Ashley: I would like io get into the net costs. The net costs
of programs seem to be dramatically increasing. Certainly, in
1981-82. the net costs were $779,000. In 1983-84. they are
$1,519,000. This is double in threc years. Can you explain why.

Mr. Davidson: I have to apolgize. because the numbers are not
even familiar io me.

Mr. Penikett: Could we just stop you there. This is important,
because they are from your records. We are looking at your
information — this is from the estimates and the accounts. In
1981-82, the contributions from national health and welfare were
$891,000. The premiums were $2,257,000. The costs were
$3,939,000. For the next year. prcmiums were $2.65 1,000. The
costs were $4,712,000. For the year under review, the premiums
were $2,315,000 and the costs wcre $4,796,000.

Mr. Davidson: The numbers you cited are ones that I am
familiar with. I was not sure how the numbers Mr. Ashley had
presented were related.

Mr. Pcnikett: These are the net costs that we did from those
numbers.

Mr. Davidson: I see. It is the difference from the total revenue
to the operation of the plan.

Actually, that is fairly easy to explain. There are two principal
factors at work here. One is price and the other is volume. If we
take a look at the actual administrative costs of the health care plan,
they have grown by a very very small amount. Administration has
stayed between three and four percent of the total cost of the
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program, or less (han that amount.
The burgeoning cost relates to the provision of medical services.

U It is what we are actually being billed by (he doctors. This is where
the major increase is coming from. There are two things here. One.[ of course, is the fees being billed. The other is the volume of
services, both of which have grown lairly dramalically.

There is another issue here (hat is worth pausing on. Ii is Aol just
that the price or the fee that a physician is able to charge for a
particular service has increased. That has increased. but, more
fundamentally. it is the nature of (he kind of service that the

L physicians are providing thai has changed fairly dramatically, so
that what we have seen and what we can document is a significant

r shift from simpler kinds of procedures to more complex ones.
There are a lot of factors involved here. Chief among them are

L things like medical technology and developments, surgical and
otherwise. If I could take an example. withoul consuming too much

U
of the committee’s time, within our own contexi. many patients in
Whitehorse General Hospital are now receiving, certainly, far more
diagnostic work as a result of any admission, or even as an
out-patient. Within the hospital, if they undergo major surgery, the

L
chances are quite good that they might be on programs (hat include
the use of intravenous therapy, and so on.

All of these are actually direct add-on costs. What is being
provided is significantly more sophisticated.

I think there is a comment thai has to be made here. There is
• certainly some question about whether or not the efficacy of the

L treatment is enhanced by the degree to which the costs are
escalating. Thai is an issue everywhere in (he country, because this
is a feature of the development of medical technology and (he

fl sophistication of procedures that are being undertaken.
That is really in essence what we are seeing here. Equally, on the

out of (erriton’ side, there has been a major impact as well.
Largely, rather than from a volume paint of view, from a price
point of view: the escalation in physician’s fee. and again, the

J sophistication of the medical acts that are being performed.
Mr. Penikett: Although we are dealing with revenue here. Mr.

Davidson. presumably you are trying to control these costs?

Q Mr. Davidson: Unquestionably. There are a number of
strategies we have in place to try to contain those costs.

Mr. Penlkett: Let me ask you about one of those strategies. I
had a complaint this morning from someone who, at this hospital in
town, had surgery yesterday and is essentially being told to leave

[ j today. ts that the kind of thing that we are doing to try to control
costs?

Mr. Davidson: Yes, indeed it is. The average length of stay in

L the hospital
Mr. Pcnikett this did not please the person very much.
Mr. Davidson: The average length of stay has dropped from

the order of 7.5 to 8.3 days down to below five days at Whitehorse

U General Hospital. That is over a period of less than three years.
Mr. Penikett: Mr. Ashley?
Mr. Ashley: In the same vein, buL it actually has to do with

National Health and Welfare, how was their proportion worked out?
I see it has remained fairly constant. It goes up a couple of

percentage points maybe, but nothing compared to what our real
costs are.

Mr. Davidson: The National Health and Welfare transfer was

U
regulated until recently under the fiscal transfer established program
financing act. That act was replaced by the Canada Health Act.
roughly a year ago, by the parliament of Canada. Within it is a
formula which establishes what the transfer payments to provinces
and territories will be. It is a very complicated formula, but its
principle elements turn on growth in the gross national product and
population. That explains why there has been very little growth in
terms of the funding. because Canada’s GNP has been fairly flat
over the last several years. In terms of the Yukon, we have seen
some negative population growth. In consequence, the fiscal

J transfer from Canada has been holding basically constant. At one
paint, we may in fact start losing money because of the loss of
population from the territory.

Mr. Ashley: Have you tried to re-negotiate it, or is it a ten year
term, or what is happening?

Mr. Davidson: The agreement itself was the result of five years
of fairly protractive negotiations between the provinces and the
federal government, as part of the fiscal framework re-negotiation
thai was undertaken in the early 70’s. I doubt very much if those
cost-shared arrangements are likely to be re-opened in the near
fuiure. They are also enshrined, of course, in federal statutes, under
(he Canada Heals/i Act. They are rather difficult to change.

Mr. Penikctt: Further on that. Mr. Davidson, you talked about
doctors’ fees having gone up, as well as the tendency towards
high-tech, high-cost medicine. Do you have a collective agreement
with the doctors, or something akin to a collective agreement?

Mr- Davidson: Yes, indeed. The fees are negotiated between
(his government and the Yukon Medical Association.

Mr. Penikett: Were they stibject to the six and five rule?
Mr. Davidson: Yes, they were.
Mr. Penikett: Are those fee increases in line with those

standards, even though the doctors’ volumes may have gone up. the
fees per visit, or whatever they are based on, was governed by the
six and five rule?

Mr. Davidson: That is conect. That is why the principal impact
has been volume and the mix of services, as opposed to the price
for discrete services, which has been constrained within the general
guidelines.

Mr. Ashley: Revenue from premiums show, in the territorial
accounts on page 51. $2,549,224. The Yukon Health Care
Insurance Plan Annual Report. on page 31. show $2.3 15.323. Can
you explain that?

Mr. Davidson: No I cantiot.
Mr. Ashley: Will you get hack to us with it?
Mr. Klassen: Yes. we will provide you with an answer to that.
Mr. Ashley: Can you state the amount of premiums receivable

at March 31, 1984’!
Mr. Davidson: I am sorry. I do not understand the question.

The amouni that we actually received, or the amount that was
outstanding? What the arrears amounted to?

Mr. Ashley: Firstly, I would like to have you explain how you
determine your rates, and then I will get back to that question.

Mr. Davidson: The rates are set by order-in-council. The basic
mechanisms here are that the Department of Health and Human
Resources, in conjunction with the Department of Finance, take a
look at the costs of the health tare plan, and the predicted revenues
and recoveries — that is, the existing rates and the amount of
money we are expecting under established program financing and so
on. The effort is made, in terms of the advice that is given to
management board respecting these rates, to try to keep ihe
premiums at roughly half the cost of the delivery of (he program.

The reason for this is histoiic. When Yukon joined the federal
Medical Care Act in 1972, the federal government was prepared to
pay 50 percent of the cost of delivering the program. When the
premiums were put in place here as a funding mechanism for health
care insurance and they were obviously targeted at recouping the
other 50 percent.

As matters stand, at the moment, the transfers from Canada in
various forms, amount to somewhat less than 50 percent of the total
cost, given the escalation of the costs, and the containment by
Canada under the established Program Financing Act, of the
amount of money they are prepared to transfer.

We have not tried to increase premiums to cover that gap, so
what we have, typically, in any given year, is a five to seven
percent gap, that is covered out of general revenues of the territorial
government.

These, of course. are decisions that are made by management
board and cabinet. What we do is provide the financial projeciions
as to what various rates would do. in our estimation, to the revenue
picture. Then, the government elects which of those regimes it
would like to implement.

Mr. Ashley: They make the policy decisions then?
Mr. Davidson: Yes.
Mr. Ashley: How often do you carry out a review?
Mr. Davidson: The review is done at least annually. In the past

there have been more frequent kinds of review, largely triggered by
the Department of Finance, because typically, they are more on top
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of this than we are, tracking in the government’s overall revenue
picture. It has happened that the Department of Finance has
triggered reviews on their own, suggesting that there ought to be an
increase, or interim increase, or that kind of thing.

Mr. Penlkett: You should know that they told us to talk to you
about this.

Mr. Ashley: Another question is basically the one I asked
before. Can you tell us what the premiums receivable at March 31.
1984 were?

Mr. Davidson: Are you asking what we actually received, what
we collected?

Mr. Ashley: No, the receivable amount; what is actually owing
to you?

Mr. Penikelt: Do you know what the total receivable was?
Mr. Davidson: Actually. I do not. There are several reasons for

this. At March 31 in particular, it is difficult to give a reasonable
estimate, let alone a hard amount. The way in which the premium
liability is calculated and tracked by us, is by keeping track of
subscribers, family subscribers at one rate and individual subscri
bers at the other, on a monthly basis. So it is simple multiplication,
the number of family subscribers against the prevailing rate, and the
number of individual subscribers against their prevailing rate, and
the total thereof. Over a 12 month period, it is simply times 12, and
that is the calculation. The number of those subscribers changes.
and changes significantly, so this is really something of a fiction, to
try and calculate what the total premium liability is. It is further
complicated by the fact that at our year end, when we are trying to
collect all the potential outstanding revenue from subscribers, and
we are going through re-billing processes and that sort of thing to
try and collect this amount of money, it is at that time that we are
apprised of subscribers who are no longer here, together with their
dependents. Some of them, unknown to the plan, were no longer
here for good portions of the 12 month period. Their obligation was
actually fictional rather than real. We did not know that they ought
not to be paying premiums because they were no longer resident of
the Yukon until after year end. The attempt to locate them and
collect on this money takes place at year end. It is normally the end
of April, anyway, before we readjust the files and take out
subscribers who ought not to have been in them because of having
relocated. So. what happens at year end is we often show a liability
on paper of something in the order of $1 million. After we have
done the billings and tried to track the people, that liability falls
back to the order of about $200,000, because a good part of the
liability was only on paper because the people were not here and not
actually obligated to pay. That was something the plan did not
know. It is very difficult to come to grips with this. What I have
done, and what we do fairly regularly, is take a look at how the
plan is performing on this score. I do have figures for period seven
of this year. I would be quite happy to provide those if they would
be of interest to the committee.
. Mr. Penlkett: We have a time problem, Mr. Davidson. and
perhaps you could table them. Is that possible?

Mr. Davidson: It is. They are in hand written form. I will have
them typed and tabled.

Mr. Ashley: At what point in time can you give us what the
actual premium receivables were at March 31? At some point, you
should be able to do that, such as at the end of April?

Mr. Davidson: We have attempted to do this. Virtually every
year, during the budget debates, this question has been raised.
Every year we have provided a figure in that context, because it has
been raised as a question. With the kind of caveats I have attached,
that there are questions about the extent to which these obligations
are real and that we still have some persons showing who owe us
money who, in fact, do not. That remains something of a problem.

Mr. Ashley: At some point in the year you must have it cleaned
up so you know what you made in 1984, or what was actually
owing in 1984, or in the previous year?

Mr. Davidson: Certainly we always know what we have made,
and that is always kept track of. The big difficulty is knowing that
we have recorded correctly all of what ought to have been paid, and
that certainly is a problem. I may add here that we do not have a
fully integrated accounts receivable on premiums. The premium

collection system is essentially manual, and all of this is tracked in
hand-maintained ledger books, which you will find behind the
counter in health services branch. That is part of the reason for this
kind of problem. The next phase of the computer project the health
services branch is involved in is getting all of the receivables on the
computer system, and integrated with the government’s general
ledger. They currently are not. This receivables operates totally
autonomously on manually maintained ledger books. The registra
tion system had to be overhauled lust, so that we were sure we had
a proper file of who was actually here and ought to be remitting.
The next phase of the project is to develop this fully computerized
premium system, which will give standing balances at any given
point, in which we would have some considerable degree of
confidence. We are not at that stage yet, unfortunately, with the
manual system that is in place.

Mr. Ashley: How long do you think it is going to take to get to
that stage?

Mr. Davidson: The work is already underway. The preliminary
analysis of that new system has been done by systems. They have
now got an RFP out for a firm to do the work, with the expectation
that by this autumn, in any event, that work will be done. It was
originally targeted for implementation this April 1st, but because of
staffing problems, principally in computing and systems, they have
not been able to carry the project on. It is now going out to private
consultants to be done by the private sector.

Mr. Penikett: How long does it take you to close your books
now, with the manual system?
, Mr. Davidson: None of those books have ever been closed. It
has been maintained on every petson who has been resident of
Yukon.

Mr. Penikelt: I mean in terms of year-end. You talked about
the receivables of what maybe a SI million, but are shrunk down to
$200,000. What kind of time period does it take to cover that final
calculation?

Mr. Davidson: It is usually the end of April or early May, by
the time everything is back.

Mr. Penikett: So it is a couple of months.
Mr. Ashley: On the amount of premiums you write off as

uncollectable, during 1983-84. can you tell me what that amount
was, aside from that $200,000?

Mr. Davidson: We have never written anything off on pre
miums. The only time adjustments are made on the liability side is
if we have reason to believe that the person had left and did not
have an obligation to pay. If it was established that any person was
here, their obligation for premiums has been maintained back to
1972. None of it has ever been written off. For this reason, people
will find, much to their aggravation, that we will send out invoices
to them at year-end indicating that they owe $3.10, or something of
that sort. That obligation may date hack to 1972, but it is never
written off and we are still trying to collect it.

Mr. Ashley: Do you have a procedure for writing something
off?

Mr. Davidson: No, there is no write-off procedure, other than
the one I have identified. If the account was there erroneously
because the person ought not to be paying by virtue of the fact that
he was not here, that then is removed from the books. Otherwise,
no.

Mr. Penikett: Could you provide an amount of the premiums
receivable? Could that amount be included in the government’s
financial statements at March 31, even though you know it is
contingent?

Mr. Davidson: Yes,
Mr. Ashley: Can you

was provided during the
Mr. Davidson: Yes, I can. First, I have some comments. There

are really three forms of premiums assistance that are set up under
the regulations. One is eligibility for full premium assistance,
which means that we waive the premium entirely for that
subscriber. The second is partial premium assistance, where the
waiver is 50 percent of the prevailing rate for that subscriber. The
third is a universal waiver for senior citizens where the premium is

[1
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it could be.
tell us to what extent premium assistance
year? U

U
Uwaived entirely
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U
The health care card is actually a credit card. You may call it

what you like. We pay $27.50 a month to have this credit card, but
we have absolutely no idea of the cost for a visit to the doctor or the
hospital. When you go to the doctor’s office, he wheels it through

D
his little machine and you are signing a blank cheque. You sign it
and he fills in what he or she basically wants. The patient has
absolutely no idea what it costs. That is the end of it. You do not

see it and the patient does not see it. I would suggest that if you
want to make people aware of the actual costs, they should get a
copy of the bill and endorse it only when it has been filled out. In
this way, they will be aware of the financial burden your visit to the
doctor has put on the taxpayer. I would suggest that there may be a
saving there, if people were aware of the hospital costs.

Mr. Penikett: That was not really a question.
Mr. Falle: No. just a suggestion. I get them in every now and

Mr. Ashley: You can give us these numbers in writing?
Mr. Davidson: Yes. I can.
Mr. Ashley: Can you tell me how frequently you have

employer’s records examined by inspectors appointed under the

r regulations?
Mr. Davidson: I cannot give you further statistics here. We

U could do that under advisement. The relationship is frequently not
one of inspection in the sense of going out and seizing books or that

U
kind of thing. More typically what happens is when there is a
question of the accuracy of either what is being remitted, or what is
being documented hy the employer, there is telephone contact with
those employers, which is regular. Most employer groups are in

U
touch with our registration and premiums unit at least on a monthly
basis, to sort out reconciliation problems, problems of back-up of
forms, that kind of thing. Actual formal inspections occur very
rarely, and they occur only where there is some evidence that the
employer is either defrauding the health care plan, or defrauding his

G employees by failing to remit money that he has collected from
them or that kind of thing. They are quite occasional, in terms of
going out and actually going through all the books.

Mr. Ashley: How do you actually know if all the premiums are

O collected?
Mr. Davidson: The principle mechanism here is that for any

subscriber in the health care plan an account is set up for them.
They are either invoiced directly or through their employer. Anyone
who is receiving benefits under the health care plan, is within it.

L and we have an account for them, so we follow their financial
obligations that way.

- Mr. Ashley: How do you estimate your premium revenues?

U How do you actually do your estimates on that?
Mr. Davidson: We take the current subscribers we have in the

various categories, which are printed off regularly so we know how
many of these we have, how many are single, how many are

L family, and so on. We estimate what is likely to happen in terms of
the numbers of those subscribers, based on the population
projections that economic research and planning generate through
the government, more broadly. We make an attempt to estimate[ how many people, more or less, are likely to be eligible for
premium assistance, because of the economic circumstances. On
that basis, once those kinds of things are factored in, it is simply a
multiplication exercise against the number of subscribers and the
rate. This can only be done after we have got management board

ii indication of what the rate will be. It is that kind of exercise.
Mr. Ashley: Thank you, Mr. Davidson.
Mr. Penikelt: I have one other supplementary question I would

n

like to ask, Mr. Davidson. I previously asked you if the amount
receivable at year end could be included in the government
accounts. There is an amount in there now, Could you tell me what
that number represents?

U
Mr. Davidson: I would prefer to have a look at it and make

sure the answer was correct.
Mr. Penikett: In view of what you have told us about a

computer discrepancy between conceivably a $1 million paper

U
receivables and $200,000 actual receivables, and know, from what
you said, no absolute certainty that there are not some marginal
receivables in there, depending on when people left the territory,
from an accounting point of view, it is interesting to know what that
number means. You have taken that question as notice?
,i Mr. Falle: Mr. Davidson, earlier in Mr. Ashley’s question, you
stated that in order to save money, the plan was trying to have
people spend less time in the hospitals and to cut costs as much as

r they can because of the cost factor rising so dramatically. Some of
the reasons you stated were the doctors’ fees and the hospital fees,

U Specialized services was one of the major reasons for the increased
costs.

again.
Mr. Penikett: I will not ask you to respond 10 that, unless you

are enthusiastic to do so.
Mr. Davidson: It is something that has been raised previously

and there are some valid reasons for putting that sort of system into
place, but there are also costs in that as well. If we start having to
give people a monthly account of what they cost the system, that
has administrative costs.

Mr. Penikett: Some jurisdictions do it, is that not correct?
Mr. Davidson: I am not certain.
Mr. Penikett: I think Ontario gives you a bill.
Mr. Davidson: The two principle examples are Ontario and

Alberta. It is something that the health care plan is looking at doing
here. The issuance of statements is fraught with certain kinds of
dangers. The classic danger is in the access of information to, say,
a spouse, of those services that their spouse may have received that
they may not know of, thereby violating the rights of that spouse,
or children. This is the kind of thing.

The evaluation that has been done in Alberta and Ontario of this
kind of technique has not indicated that it has been very successful.
as a cost control measure either, as the people are not directly
paying that account; its magnitude does not seem to distress them
unduely.

Mr. Penikett: The new card in force does not have the
embossed or raised numbers anyway, so you could not use it in a
credit card way, could you’!

Mr. Davidson: No.
Mr. Penikctt: Could I just ask you one other question, on that

subject. Is is not possible, given that you negotiate with the doctors
a certain fee schedule to make that fee schedule very public, and
achieve the same effect as Mr. Falle is talking about, so that people
know when they go to a doctor for what they may regard as a
routine visit, it is costing the community a certain amount?

Mr. Davidson: Yes, indeed, that is possible. We did make
some effort a short time ago. We put a number of pieces into the
paper, including some advertisements, giving sample prices at
current fees: what was the cost of a gall bladder, or what is the cost
to go to the office, that sort of thing.

Mr. Penikett: Ontario has posters in the waiting rooms, I am
informed, advising people what the basic services of doctors cost.

Mr. Davidson: That may be. I am not aware of it.
Mr. Penikeft: Other questions? Okay. Thank uou very much

Mr. Davidson, Mr. Klassen. Unless you have any last words we
will excuse you now.

Mr. Klassen: Thank you. We wil be providing you with that
information, as soon as we can get it together.

Mr. Penikett: We appreciate you taking time off from your
day.

Witnesses excused
Mr. Penikett: The committee will take a recess for a five

minute fast coffee break.

Rece.cs

Mr. Peniketi: I apologize for the chairman’s tardiness. I had a
constituent calling me about a matter of high principle: money.

What we want to do this morning, if I can explain. Mr. Kent, in
the course of welcoming you back as deputy minister, and Mr.
Knight as director of lands and housing, and Mr. Mel Smith,
manager of property assessments, is to complete a subject that we
did not originally intend talking to you about. That is revenue. As
you know, we do, every year, look at a couple of issues, or a
couple of departments, as a review for the committee without
reference from the Auditor General, without reference from the
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legislature. This year, one of the two things we have been looking
into is revenue. We spent a lot of time with finance, and we have
just completed a short section with health and human resources.
The two areas that finance did not want to get into lengthy
discussion were about property taxes and school (ax revenue, and
health care insurance premiums. That is why we had to come back
to talk to you a little about chat.

Hopefully, we will not cake too much time. Let me see ill can
direct the questions quite quickly to you. Mr. Kent, if you would
like to refer them to Mr. Smith or Mr. Knight, just indicate that and
we will Iry to go through this fairly quickly.

Could I just, first of all, get an outline from you of the respective
responsibilities of the Departments of Finance and Municipal and
Community Affairs, with regard to the assessment, levy and
collection of school and property taxes?

Mr. Kent: A simple answer to that is that the Department of
Community and Transportation Services performs the assessments
on properties. That list of properies and assessment is sent to
Finance. That is the end of our role. They are responsible for
collecting the taxes and dealing with outstanding taxes that have not
been paid.

Mr. Penikett: How does the department ensure that all
properties in Yukon have been assessed?

Mr. Kent: There is no absolute certainty that you have every
property. For example, any kind of leases or land dispositions that
are made by the federal government, or ourselves, are sent down to
Mr. Smith. All building permits are sent down to Mr. Smith. Then
there are inspections and observations as they make their field
inspections.

Mr. Penikett: That is clear.
In respect of land dispositions, or quasi dispositions of land under

the Quartz Mining Act and the Placer Mining Act, conceivably,
from time to time, even way out in the bush, you can have quite
substantial properties erected. Are you automatically advised of
those, when claims are staked, or development work is done on
claims?

Mr. Smith: No, sir.
Mr. Penikett: Are you satisfied that you are able to identify

those properties? How are they identified to you?
Mr. Smith: Mineral claims are exempted by the legislation

under which we operate, so we are not concerned with that. The
only concern we have is the assessment of placer mines, if you like,
or quartz mines.

Mr. Penikett: I was not talking about the land assessment; I
was talking about the improvements on the land.

Mr. Smith: The only way we find them is by going out and
inspecting.

Mr. Penikett: How do you find out they are even there?
Mr. Smith: We simply drive down all the roads.
Mr. Penikelt: There may be some places that are off the road,

and unless they are close to some road, you may not find them?
Mr. Smith: We do obtain all the information we can from any

of the federal mining inspectors.
Mr. Penikett: In addition to the land transactions and the

building permits, you also have mining inspectors identifying
properties to you?

Mr. Smith: Yes, we will go and ask the mining inspector who
is working in the area where they are located.

Mr. Penikett: There are certain kinds of improvements on
mining properties, for example, which, in other jurisdictions, are
called capital equipment, rather than improvements to the land.
They may be semi-portable but they are not transportation of large
kinds of mining equipment, even semi-portable mills, for example.
That kind of thing. Have you assessed those, or are they basically
exempt from this?

Mr. Smith: We have not assessed them.
Mr. Penikett: Do you have any idea whether there is a lot of

that property or whether it is a small problem here.
Mr. Smith; From our observation, there would be very little

fixed machinery, if you like, that we would consider assessable. At
this time, we do not assess it.

Mr. Penlkett: Basically, as a matter of policy, it is exempt?

Mr Smith: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Are there any criteria from which certain

properties have to be assessed?
Mr. Smith: I am not sure I understand your question.
Mr. Penikeu: I am asking you a question I already know the

answer to. I am referring to the assessment manual. You are using
Alberta’s assessment manual, right?

Mr. Smith: Yes. There is a regulation which states that we
shall use the Alberta assessment manual.

Mr. Penikett: From time to time, we citizen representatives
hear complaints about the procedures or criteria in that manual. Is
the department happy with it right now, or is it under review in any
way?

Mr. Smith: Basically we are happy although we will be
adopting a new manual this year. That is simply because Alberta
has put out a new manual.

Mr. Penikett: So this will be a new Alberta manual?
Mr. Smith: Yes, it is. It just simply updates construction costs

to more current ones.
Mr. Penikett: Okay. Let me ask you this and in view of what

Mr. Kent said, you may not see it as your responsibility, but let me
ask you; do you ensure that all assessed properties have been taxed?

Mr. Smith: No, sir.
Mr. Penikett: Can you just briefly tell us what is the member

composition of the assessment review board, assessment appeal
board, and give us something about the years under review,
1982-83, 1983-84. how many appeals to this board were made,
approximately?

Mr. Smith: In 1983-84 I believe there were five assessment
review boards established, and they heard a total of about 250
complaints.

Mr. Penikett: What percentage of those were successful?
Mr. Smith: Off the top of my head, I would say one third.
Mr. Penlkett: Okay.
Mr. Smith: From the assessment review board to the assess

ment appeal board, there were approximately ten appeals.
Mr. Penikctt: How often are properties re-assessed, Mr.

Smith?
Mr. Smith: Every year, in theory, but as you can appreciate.

we cannot inspect every property every year. We make the attempt
to visit and re-inspect every property within a five year cycle.

Mr Penikett: So in theory it is every year. but in fact it is
something closer to five. Mr. Kent?

Mr. Kent: No. Re-assessments are often made annually, not on
the basis of inspections, but on the basis of market and sale
information.

Mr. Penikett: Okay, I may want to return to that point. Is it a
third of the re-assessments that are based on field visits, Mr. Smith.
judging from what you have previously said? What percentage of
the re-assessments are based on field information as opposed to the
market information referred to by Mr. Kent?

Mr. Kent: A hundred percent. The inspector takes five years to
do the complete cycle of visiting every property.

Mr. Penikett: So, once every five years the assessment is based
on a field visit?

Mr. Smith: There could be exceptions to that- A piece of
property such as one where a building is being constructed on it
when we inspect it in the fall of one year — it may only be half
built — that is marked progressive and it is inspected again the next
year. If it is still not completed, it is inspected again the year after
that, until it is completed.

Mr. Penikett: Is that the only type of situation in which
adjustments in the assessment are basically made?

Mr. Smith: No. We also receive a copy of all building permits
from all municipal jurisdictions and the territorial government.
Each one of those is inspected in the year that the permit is issued.
If construction has not started yet then that property is marked
progressive and inspected the next year.

Mr. Penikett: You will be acquainted with these terms. Mr.
Smith. I want to ask you what is the extent of the abatement and
remission of property and school taxes, and who gives the approval
and what is the number and the amount of abatement and remissions
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U
in 1983-84? Plain folk would understand that to be adjustments and
cancellations, rather than the technical terms.
, Mr. Smith: I am not able to answer that question.

Mr. Penikett: Is it information that you have available in the
department?

Mr. Smith: No, I believe that would be available in the
U Department of Finance.

Mr. Penikett: And you are not routinely apprised of that in any
way?

Mr. Smith: No.
Mr. Penlkett: The assessment stands even if the taxes on a

property are cancelled or are adjusted?
Mr. Smith: That is correct. It is my understanding, though,

[1 that abatement of school tax only takes place if the municipality or
the taxing authority somehow abates general tax.

Mr. Penlkett: When I was a city councillor years ago, they
actually used to do it to the school tax, even though it was not their
revenue, but that is (he territorial revenue, basically.

Mr. Smith: Yes,
Mr. Penikett: I think we were provided with a sheet of paper

which talks about the delinquent taxes. I guess that came from

U finance. It says that, of the 4,502 property tax accounts. 809 had
outstanding balances of between and one and 560.000. which is
about 18 percent. To be blunt, that is basically not your problem.

Mr. Smith: That is correct.

P Mr. Penikett: You have indicated that new assessments took
place in Names Junction, Watson Lake and Faro in 1984. is that
correct?

Mr. Smith: Yes, that is correct.
Mr. Penikett: I remember reading in The Whilehorse Siar of

April 9, 1984, about over-assessment occurring and I would be
interested in hearing your comments on that. Do you remember
that?

Mr. Smith: No. I do not.
Mr. Penikett: I was recently in Watson Lake talking to some of

the municipal officials who were of the view’ — two things. I seem
to recall — that some public properties had been under-assessed,

r and therefore, under-valued, and that some of the private properties

L were over-valued in view of their location, age and so forth. They
were hiring an appraiser to take a second look at the problem.

Can you tell me something about the different formulas that might

p be used in respect to that community, for example, of a public

L building and a private building of similar size and similar age.
Could you just indicate something about that?

Mr. Smith: We are having a bit of a problem in that area. It
stems primarily from the fact that the A;aerta assessment manual
does not include assessment rates for public buildings. Usually,

1.—. public buildings are a little more elaborate and cost a little more to
build than private ones, generally speaking.

[J
Mr. Penikett: There is one there that, I think, has been

assessed at $400,000, which the local people believe would cost a
lot more to replace than that.
n Is that the kind of problem you are talking about?

U
Mr. Smith: That particular one I do not think there is anything

very much wrong with it. Currently, my staff are looking into this
quite a bit deeper, and we are finding that by using other building
costing manuals that do have rates for public buildings, hospitals

rl and schools, which are kind of special purpose buildings, we find

U‘ that we have been under-valuing these properties in many cases.
The problem really did not come to light prior to all of these
communities collecting their own taxes. In other words, the

r territorial government, which owns most of these buildings, was
simply not paying taxes to itself. It has only become a problem in

L recent times, except in the City of Whitehorse, Dawson and Faro.
Those communities looked at those types of buildings two or three

U
years ago and made sure that you were in the correct areas of
assessment.

Mr. Penlkett: Has that caused you at all to re-consider the
usefulness of the Alberta manual?

Mr. Smith: It has, only in the area of this type of building.
Mr. Penlkett: What are you doing? Are you considering

amendments to it, or does the new version take this problem into

account?
Mr. Smith: We are simply trying, by the use of these other

manuals that have these, to come up with a percentage factor that
we would apply to the Alberta manual to cover these kinds of
buildings.

Mr. Penikett: So if
new regulation which
assessment manual is
documents?

Mr. Smith: No. sir. I think the legislation says that we have to
assess buildings at Whitehorse replacement costs, so the regulation
could not undermine the legislation. We would simply be hoping
that our continued research will identify a fixed percentage, and
maybe the Alberta manual only brings this building to 50 percent of
Whitehorse replacement cost, and we have to add 50 percent to get
the correct figure.

Mr. Penikett: I see, yes. As I understand it. a study is
currently being done on the assessment and taxation system. Could
you indicate something about what is the purpose of this study and
its current status?

Mr. Kent: I know of no such study, sir.
Mr. Penikett: Oh. Maybe we should not have told you. I am

only kidding. We had it indicated to us somewhere that there was
something like that going on.

Mr. Smith: Mr. Chairman. I think I know what is meant by
that. The Department of Finance are currently doing a study on
their tax billing system and tax collecting system, in the light of
more computer adaptation to that. That brings in the assessment
function, which may be put all on one system, if you like, the
assessment and tax would be one program. I think that might be
what you are referring to.

Mr. Penikett: And you are aware of that?
Mr. Smith: Yes.
Mr. Penikett: Do you have any idea of how far along it is,

from your point of view, Mi. Smith?
Mr. Smith: It is only at the proposal stages, from my

understanding.
Mr. Penikett: I am sorry to have been so abrupt this morning,

but we have a real time problem. If I have seemed a little pushy, it
is because of the time problem. Let me just see if any other
members of the committee have any questions on this score. Okay.
Mr. Brewster has one on another subject, as Mr. Byblow does;
anyone else on property assessment?

Let me leave that then, if I may, Mr. Kent. I think Mr. Brewster
has a question which relates to an answer you provided to the
committee in writing from the previous round. If I can permit him
to put the question, and if you are not able to answer it now, we
will accept an undertaking to do it another way. Mr. Brewster?

Mr. Brewster: I notice, on your breakdown in this letter, you
wrote that there were additional costs associated with wages and
overtime that has not been chatged out against the cost of that well.
Is this correct?

Mr. Knight: The staff time referred to in the memo was staff
time which was appropriated over a number of different projects or
undertakings in the community at that particular point in time. It is
virtually impossible to really identify specifically what could be
appropriated to the well project. It was not a significant amount, in
terms of the amount of staff time.

Mr. Brewster: I do not see where you have rooms or meals or
anything like that charged against that well in Beaver Creek.

Mr. Knight: That would be included in the $6,241 for ancillary
material, labour, and so on.

Mr. Brewster: That is included?
Mr. Knight: That is correct.
Mr. Brewster: In the last paragraph on the first page, in what

year would those replacements have been made for those new units
you were going to put in. Would it have been the next budget year?

Mr. Knight: I believe they would have been scheduled for
replacement in 1983-84.

Mr. Brewster: What would you have ordinarily done with the
old heaters that had been replaced?

Mr. Knight: I would imagine that if there was no economic

you succeed in
will say, in

the manual of

doing that there will be a
effect, that the Alberta
record plus some other



8:10 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITtEE February 21, 1985

value to them, they would have been scrapped.
Mr. Penlkctt: With remarkable precision. Mr. Byblow is going

to now ask you a question about the manual.
Mr. Byblow: When you were appeared before the committee

last week, we talked about the project management procedures
manual that you provided to the committee. You indicated thai that
was going to be the procedures that your branch was going to
follow in your projects. Since then, we have had several oiher
branches appear before the committee. The Government Services
manual, which is to be coming out shortly, appears to be the
manual that is desirable for all government branches to use, Whai
undertaking can you give us that you will review your manual in
light of ihe Government Services manual thai is to be out within the
month? fl

Mr. Kent: I will do so. sir. 1)
Mr. Byblow: Very briefly, Mr. Kent, is your department

undergoing any reorganization changes now in light of the overall
government reorganization that we have been hearing about over
the hearings that has taken place over the last year?

Mr. Kent: Was my depariment involved in that reorganization?
Mr. Byblow: Is it now involved in any further reorganization?
Mr. Kent; No, we are just implementing the changes that were

put in place five months ago.
Mr. Penikett: Thank you. Mr. Kent and Mr. Knight and Mr.

Smith. I apologize for having asked you back, but we did want to
complete this question of revenue. The witnesses are excused.
unless they have any last words.

I do formally make comment about the speed and efficiency with
which we received transcripts of the hearings this year. I think it
has been a remarkable achievement for Mr. Robertson, Lois
Cameron. and the rest of the crew. We are very grateful for that.

I also want to remark that this may be (he last appearance at (he
table of the committee of Mr. Raymond Dubois. Deputy Auditor
General. I hope that will not be the case. In case ft is. I want to
make sure that this committee extends its appreciation and thanks,
as we do to the other members of the Auditor General’s office, who
may be back with us.

With thai. unless you have any parting words. Mr. Kent. we will
excuse you.

Mr. Kent: Thank you very much, sir.
Mr. Penlkett: Committee will stand adjourned into executive

session.

Committee adjourned at 11:30 a.m
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APPENDIX 1

Responses from Departments

— Department of Finance

— Public Service Commission

— Department of Economic Development

— Department of Community and Transportation Services

— Public Affairs Bureau (Executive Council Office)

— Department of Finance

— Department of Justice

— Department of Renewable Resources

— Department of Government Services

— Department of Justice

— Department of Health and Human Resources

— Workers Compensation Board
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The government does not agree with the foregoing quotations from the

1984 report. The Department of Finance should not have ultimate

responsibility for the accuracy of departmental responses to the
r

Auditor General. All departments are responsible to their

respective Ministers and ultimately to the Management Board and the

Cabinet for the responses to the Auditor General, as in other

matters. A speciai role for the Department of Finance in the chain

of corrrnand would dilute ministerial authority, centralize power in 1]
the hands of a service agency, and create confusion for program U
managers.
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• Public Accounts Corrrnittee Recorrrnendation
(outstanding from 1933)

Transfer of responsibility and funds — Finance

The government should obtain lcgislative
approval for a transfer of responsibilities and
funds from one department to another.

The Department of Finance responded that “Authority to do so has
been incorporated into the new Financial Administration Act.”

Departmental Response

The new Financial Administration Act establishes the rules governing
the transfer of funds, including transfers from one department to
another. Sections 22(1) and 22(2) of the new Act provide as
fo I lows

22. (1) The Management Board may by directive control or
limit payments from votes, and for that purpose it

may by directive

(a) identify allotments, programs or projects
within a vote, and distribute money among
programs and projects,

(b) transfer money between allotments, programs
or projects within a vote,

(c) distribute money among activities within a
program or project, or authorize a public
officer to do so, and

(d) transfer money between activities within a
program or project, or authorize a public
officer to do so.
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31. (3) The Management Board may

public officers to sign
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3 give effect to these powers, the Management Board has issued the

igning Authority Directive (attached) which came into effect on

une 26, !984. New contract regulations are still in preparation

ut are expected to be ready for implementation early in 19S5.
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PUBLIC SERVICE CO\tHSSI

1984 PURL 1C ACCOUNTS WMITTEE REPORT

During the !lov 198L Public Accounts Ccnmittee hearings, the Cccnnittee
made four (4) reccrnnendations pertaining to the Public Service
Cmmission. As well, the Carmittee made several observations.

I. Recarmendatia-i

The CaTmi ssi on should establish procedures as soon as possible
to monitor the practices and procedures exercised by departments
through delegated authority to hire casual euployees.

Response

In each instance when the hiring of casual enployees is delegated
to a line department, a written authorization is dran up and
signed by a Public Service Cmmission officer and an officer
in the line department. The authorization sets out the respon
sibilities of both parties and the procedures which nus: be followed.
Procedures to monitor will be developed in early 1985 and irplemented
by April 1985.

2. Recaimendation

The Carnission should disclose in public documents the total
number of casual hires, the number of casual appointments made
by departments through delegated authority, and the number of
appointments terminated after six months and then re—engaged.

Response

The total number of casual hires have been disclosed in the
Yukon Government’s annual report and operations and maintenance
main estimates for a number of years.

A record of all casuals hired, by departments, is being kept
by the Public Service Cannission. We will go through that manual
to extract the nurSer of casuals hired through delegated authority
and include that figure in the future main estimates.

It must be remontered that the figures list numbers of casuals
hired rather than individuals hired. Thus there is duplication
since the san-c person may be hired two or three times and each
hiring action is countec. Inc only way to count the number os
appointments terminated after six months and the re—engaged is
to actually review each person’s file.

It is expected that this information will be available and will
be included in future main estimates.



n
Li

3. Recarmendation

The Catrnission should include in its Estimates information,
tierever possible, planned activities supported by prfoniunce U
indicators justifying its request for funds ir, order to create
a base for future accountability.

Response

We intend to address the problem of performance indicators sanetime fl
in 1985 as part of the government wide project to develop performance U
indicators and a system of program evaluaticc. This will require
the services of a specialist, either sareone already enployed
with this government or fran outside of government, to provide
a training course to Public Service Crnnission managers and develop
indicators. It is extremely difficult to develop reliable indicators
for central agencies. Nevertheless, we are carritted to do tiat
can be achieved in this regard.

______________

ci
4. Recaimendation

The Ccnmission should disclose in public documents the full cost
of its Training and Development Program, including the cost of
educational leave and the number of enployees taking that leave.

Response

The Cmmission will provide this information in its main estimates.

Other Concerns Expressed by Public Accounts Cmrnittee

I. The Carnittee will foll’ up on the revision and ilementation
of the new classification plan.

Monthly bulletins have been issued to all government errployees, {]except teachers, to keep them advised of the progress of the
job evaluation study. The scope of the study has been expanded
to include both bargaining unit and management plan personnel.. U
The job questionnaires are nc virtually all in. The job evaluation
crmittee has been formed and is meeting now to evaluate approx
imately fifry (50) benchmark positions agains: xtich all the
remaining jobs will be evaluated.

The original schedule which visualizes the imlamentation of
the new plan by April 1, 1985 is being adhered to.

2. The Ccctmittee requests the Carmission to report back to the Ccrrmittee Pthe extent to which revisions to the classification plan reflect
affirmative action goals.

U
ii



It is too early yet to state to ttat extent the new classification
plan can meet affinmtive action goals. There is no doubt however
that the new plan will be designed to provide for:
— career opportunities for envloyees:
— enhanced job access for local residents;
— greater reccnition of skill level rather than the means

or environment withir.tich that skill sattained.

Once the plan has been developed and approved, infonition regarding
the plan will be provided to all enployees. The same information
can be provided to the Ccmittee if it so desires.
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Department of Economic Development F ED 2000—REP—i

Box 2703, Whitehorse. Yukon, ViA 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Tetex 036-8-260

January 16, 1985. U
U
U

MEMORANDUNTO: Missy Foliweii, (A—9)
Clerk, Public Accounts Cozimittee.

FROM: John Ferbey, (F—I)
Deputy Minister,
Economic Development and Tourism.

REFERENCE: 1984 Public Accounts Committee Report.

Further to your letter dated October 16, attached please find my
comments respecting the action taken or planned on the recommendations
in the Report pertaining to this Department, viz, nine through eleven.

Should you or the Committee require any clarification of my comments,
please contact me.

- /// .i /; U
/ ..- 1-. -

John Ferbey,
Deputy Minister.

Attach.



RECOt’ThNDATION9

As indicated to the Standing Committee on February IL, l84, the Department
of Economic Development contacted the other eleven provincial and territorial
jurisdictions in Canada to determine what measures, if any, were utilized
for project management in the area of economic and socio—etonomic research
and analysis. Only two jurisdictions, viz. Manitoba and British Columbia
(on a pilot basis only) have implemented project management mechanisms. A
review of the mechanisms from the two provinces was undertaken and it was
determined that both systems were far too sophisticated tot our requirements.
However, the systems did provide the basic framework for the development of
a management information system for the Department of Economic Development
(and Tourism)

This basic framework has been refined and has been reviewed by a variety of
government agencies, e.g. internal audit, to ensure that the quantification
and costing parameters are in keeping with government accounting practices.
The framework has also been informally reviewed by a private sector consult
ing firm and we have been advised that it is a sound basic project management
information system.

It is the intention of the department to implement the system effective
April 1, 1985.
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RECOn€NDATI0N 10

The Department of Economic Development (and Tourism) has not taken any
action cii this particular recommendation. Since the Department appeared
before the Standing Committee on Public Accounts in February, 1984, the
Dcpartment of Finance has initiated an exercise to create a mechanism for
the development of a comprehensive, government—wide approach to programme
evaluation. In view of the actions proposed by the Department of Finance,
the Department of Economic Development (and Tourism) has deferred any
immediate departmental action on the recommendation. Once the Department
of Finance has defined a government—wide process for departments to follow
in developing and implementing a programme evaluation plan, provision will
be made by this department to initiate the process internally. The Depart
ment of Economic Development (and Tourism) is, howcver, prepared to act as
a ‘volunteer” department when the process is carried out on a pilot basis.
In preparation for involvement in programme evaluation, the Department will
begin work on performance indicators once the new organization is function
ing smoothly.

B
U
B
El
a
El
U

a

Li



RECOVIENDAT ION 11

The Department of Economic Development (and Tourism) has reviewed its
data gathering and data dissemination procedures particularly as these
effect public documents. Every effort has been made to ensure that
in future, the data which appears in one public documec is consistent
with that found in any other public document. In addition, the
accuracy and clarity of the information will receive careful scrutiny
before publication.
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Department ot Economic Development & Tourism Our File ED—2000REF1
Your File

Box 2703, Whilehorse, Yukon, Y1A 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260

Ii
January 16, 1965.

0
EMOPANDUN TO: Missy Follwell

Clerk to Committee on Public Accounts.

FROM: John Ferbey, (F—l) U
Deputy Minister,
Economic Development and Tourism.

REFERENCE: 1984 Public Accounts Conitcee Report
Yukon Econometric Nodal.

U
With reference to the Committee’s request for an indication of our level
of satisfaction with the Yukon Econometric Model, I offer the following:

— the total cost for the econometric model was $40,000 and under
fundina arrangements of the Yukon River Basin Study, YTG share was
52,000. This arrangement was much to our satisfaction aiven we
have possession of the model.

— The model has been updated with newly acquired data from a joint U
project we are involved in with Statistics Canada (Economic
Accounts for Yukon and Northwest Territories). This update makes
the model both more accurate and timely.

— a major research project titled “Econocic Growth in Yukon, 1983 to
2003” was undertaken——a copy of this has been circulated to the
Public Accounts Committee. This work was based directly on the
model and has proven to be a useful long—term planning tool.

— research on the placer mining industry undertaken by our depart— Ument utilized this model extensively to develop multipliers and
indicators of impact of the placer mining industry. Performance
has been consistent and reliable,

Overall, during the short life of this econonic analysis tool, we have
used it for impact analysis and forecasting. Considering our investment
of $2,000, I feel YTG has acquired an exceptionally high quality analytical
tool for a nominal expenditure. We are pleased with the performance of our
econometric modal and the uses to which we have applied it.

U



Missy Folwell, January 16, 1V33.
Clerk to Committee on Public Accounts.

Page 2 —

Our only regret is that with limited resources we do not have the
personnel to devote time to exp1oitng the fullest potential of this
thoughtfullydeveloped econometric model. A model involving over
one hundred equations and identities (many of which are simultaneous)
require a time investment to become completely familiar with that
unfortunately we cannot afford ourselves. Having said this, I feel we
have overall used the itodel most effectively and efficiently within our
present resource constraints.

Thank you.

/4%.
John Ferbey,
Deputy Minister,
Department of Economic
Development & Tourism.
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Depahment of Community Our File 2 842—31
and Transportation Services Your File.

Box 2703. Whiteborse, Yukon, ViA 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260

1985 01 21 0
Ms. Missy Follwell IiClerk to Public Accounts Committee
Yukon Legislative Assembly
Box 2703
Whi tehorse, Yukon
Y1A 2C6

Dear Ms. Foliwell: U
In the 1984 Report, the Public Accounts Committee had three
concerns respecting the Department of Community and Transportation UServices. The responses to these concerns are identified below.

1. Letter of 1984.03.13 from you to Mr. Larry Blackman
respecting “Long—Term Planning’.

“The Department designs and constructs roads to the
standard approved by Management Board in the Capital UPlan, which standards are based on Roads and
Transportation Association of Canada (RTAC) standards
for “Geometric Design Standards for Canadian Roads and
Streets”. The Department has established a 20 year
program of capital works which will bring all roads now
maintained by the Department to the stated standards at
the time of construction. The plan is based on
available data and the knowledge of existing conditions
including classification, projected traffic volumes,
accident statistics and maintenance costs as measured
against standards approved in the Capital Plan.

The degree of accuracy of projections decreases directly
with time from year one (1984/85). Years 6 to 20 are
in relatively rough form, that is in working paper
form. Years of data collection and documentation are
required to produce a formal document; other than annual
extension of the 5 year program.

It is our opinion that the program meets the basic
“guidelines” stated by the Committee in their letter of
March 13, 1984 as listed in items 1 chru 5 and 7. Item
6 is rather hypothetical and cannot effectively he a
part of the operating plan. Any new road proposed for
addition to the system must be assessed on the basis of
justi fi cati on and government policy. Such additions to
the system would be financed by either rescheduling
planned work or by the provision of additional funds.
The decision to proceed would be based on information
available at the time, government policy and objectives.”
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2. Long Term Planning — Gathering of Information for a data
base and development of an action plan for effective planning
and control of capital construction and maintenance
acti vi Lies.

“The Department is collecting data required for planning
and programming system improvements. A technician is
now on staff whose principal responsibility is upgrading
collection and developing analysis programs for planning
data.”

3. Determination of Applicability of Project Management
Processes developed by Government Services to projects
undertaken by this Department and following them as far as
possi ble.

“The response to this recommendation will be dealt with
collectively by Finance, Government Services and
Community and Transportation Services.”

In the Auditor General’s Report on “any other matter” for the
year ended March 31, 1983 the following recommendations were made.

1. Road Equipment Replacement Account/Fund (Three Recommenda—
ti ons)

Three recommendations were made respecting the operations of
the Road Equipment Replacement Account/Fund.

The Government of Yukon’s comments indicated that the account
had operated as a special reserve account, the
recommendations had called for a fundamental change, and
that the new Financial Administration Act that was to come
into effect on April 1, 1986 would formalize the revolving
fund.

“The Financial Admi ni strati on Act, effective 1 Apri 1
1984, that is currently in effect established the Road
Equipment Replacement Fund as a revolving fund.
Appropriate expenditure controls are in effect. Should
revisions to the operation of the Fund be required,
these will be known after the fund has been allowed to
operate for a period of time.”

2. The Department should submit its land development costing
policies immediately to the Government for approval.

“The costing policies were submitted to the Government
and approved by Cabinet document 84—09—2 dated March
01, 1984.”
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3. The Department should ensure that the land development costs Uinventory is completed by March 31, 1984.

“The Department, in its comments, indicated that it was
impossible to meet this time frame and agreed to meet
the March 31, 1985 deadline. The required work will be
complete by the March 31, 1985 deadline.”

4. The Capital Estimates of the Department should disclose the
proper funding requirement for land development cost
expenditures in any fiscal year. U

“The Department, in the 1985/86 Capital Estimates, has
disclosed recoveries expected through land sales for
the year thereby disclosing the proper funding
requirement.”

5. The cost of the land development inventory, when determined Uby the Department, should be disclosed in the Capital
Estimates.

“The Department is working on this area of the inventory
in conjunction with item (3) above. In this vein, the
project will be completed by March 31, 1985 for
di sclosure.”

6. The development cost of land for sale should be disclosed as
an asset of the Government. fl

“Once all land development costs have been accurately
determined in March. 1985, it is the Department’s
intention to disclose the cost as an asset of the
Government of Yukon.”

7. The Department of Finance should closely monitor progress on
establishing the land development costs inventory.

“The Department of Finance has been advi sed on a regu ar
basis of progress being made on the land inventory.”

8. Assistance to municipalities for all capital projects should
be covered by formal agreements with appropriate terms and
conditions.

“The Department has instituted a simple form agreement
for the provision of assistance to municipalities for
all capital projects. This procedure has been in
effect since April 1984.” 0

[3
U
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9. Municipal Service Grants — A procedure should be established
to ensure that Regulations are being drafted or revised
concurrent with legislative changes.

“Detailed regulations for municipal services and grants
were prepared and came into effect April 13, 1986.”

10. The basis for computing C.M.R.’s and any limitations on
rental increases arising from Collective Bargaining
Agreements should be clearly described in public documents.

“The Corporation gave an undertaking that this
information would be disclosed commencing with the
1984/85 fiscal year. This was not done in 1984/85.
The concept of C.N.R. is no longer utilized but the
market rate concept is utilized. The information will
be disclosed in the 1985/86 Main Estimates and will
reflect prior year or the most current information
available.’’

11. C.M.R. ‘s established for locations other than Whitehorse
should also be based on independant appraisals of the housing
market at locations where it is possible to do so.

“This recommendation has and will continue to be
performed at market rates.”

12. The formula used to establish C.N.R.’s in locations other
than Whitehorse should be reviewed annually.

“This recommendation is no longer relevant with the
change to market rates.”

13. The financial impact of rent restrictions on the Staff
Accommodation Program arising from Collective Bargaining
Agreements should be quantified.

“The Corporation is prepared to disclose thi.s
information in the supplementary information to the
Main Estimates and the annual financial statements
commencing with the 1985/86 fiscal year. The
information provided will be as current as possible,
but may be as much as one year in arrears, dependant
upon the collective bargaining process.”

1%. The Corporation should issue notices of rental increases as
soon as C.M.R.’s are established.

“Government’s comments for this recommendation still
stand today.”
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15. The Corporation should amend the rental agreements with

employees so that they are consistent with Collective
Bargaining Agreements, which in effect have been ratified by
employees.

“Government’s comments for this recommendation still flstand today.”

trust the above comments meet the concerns of the Public
Accounts Commi ttee.

Yours truly U
‘cz:z::_.- .>..

C

Peter Kent U
B
U
0
U

U
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F
L

r
L

C



U UL±JJU
Executive Council Office Our Fle
Box 2703. Whitehorse. Yukon Y1A 2C6 you- F:e
(403) 667-5611 T€ex 036-8-250

January 22, 1985

MEMO TO: A-9
-

Patrick Michael
Acting Clerk to Public Accounts Committee

FROM: Dennis Senger
Chief Public Affairs Bureau
A-B

RE: RESPONSE TO PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE

My apologies in the brief delay in getting back to you.

Could you please advise the committee that several alternatives were
examined over the 1983—84 fiscal year to determine the ways and means
by which unit cost data could be determined.

Arriving at unit cost data is a particular challenge because of the
unique nature in which the bureau operates within the government.
very little of its actual activity is ever traced back to, or credited
to, the activities of the bureau staff.

We have now chosen to develop a reporting system similar to that used
by advertising agencies, accountants and law firms as a means of billing
clients.

The bureau will implement, effective April 1, 1985, a reporting system
similar to those used by advertising agencies, accountants and law firms
as a basis for billing their clients. Unit cost data generated by the
system is expected to be available for inclusion in the 1986—87 esti
mates.

Dennis Senger
Chief
Public Affairs Bureau

1-’667—5431
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Department of Finance Our File; 4 1 90-3- 1
Box 2703, Whitehorse, Yukon ViA 2C6 Your File:
(403) 667-5811 Te!ex 036-8-260

1985 01 22 0
U

MEMDRANDUM TO: Pat Michael, Deputy Minister
LegislativeAssemblyOffice B

ATTENTIa’1: Missy FolIwell
Clerk Assistant

SUBJECT: RESPO’JSE TO THE PUBLIC A(XXXNTS (tM’wiITTEE U
• Department of Comunity

and Transportation Services

o Department of Government Services

• Department of Finance

It was reconmended by the Audit Corrrnittee and agreed by
the Management Board that the responses to four items in the
Public Accounts Conmittee Report for 1984 should be prepared
jointly by the above-mentioned departments. The responses have
now been agreed upon by the departments concerned, and these
are attached.

/7!
)JV /

F. B. Fingland UDeputy Minister

FBF/hw U
At tachment

U
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JiMJNITY AND TRANSPORTATIa’1 SERVICES

c Public Accounts Conmittee Reconmendation

(outstanding from 1984; arising from 1983)

Project Management Processes

The Department of Municipal

Affairs should determine the

the project management proces

the Department of Governme

projects undertaken by the

Municipal and Ccrununity Affairs

as far as possible.

• Response

The department has prepared the procedures attached as Appendix ‘A’

regarding project management for all municipal engineering,

municipal administration and lands projects.

DEPARThEPTf OF GOVERN”AENT SERVICES

• Public Accounts Conmittee Recoamendation

Construction Program Co-ordination - Public

Works (now Government Services)

The Department of Highways and Public Works

should be responsible for the co-ordination of

the government’s construction program.

The Department of Government Services advises that it is now

responsible for the co—ordination of all government building

construction programs. The Departments of Highways and

Transportation, and Municipal and Conmunity Affairs also have

construction programs for road and municipal works respectively.

With this fragmentation, there does not appear to be a central

authority with knowledge of the government’s overall construction
program and plans for long-term expenditures.

and Comnunity

applicability of

ses developed by

nt Services to

Department of

and follow them
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It would, therefore, be appropriate for the Department of Government

Services to clarify this matter with the Department of Finance and
report back to the Conmittee on it.

B
[1

U
• Response

The co-ordination of t

responsibility of the

directive governing

responsibilities in th

not a matter for clan

first instance, the

department should flow

the Minister to the

fundamental requiremen

Management Board.

he government’s cons

Management Board

interdepartmental

is regard is currently

fication by the Depart

accountability and

from the department

Management Board.

t should be subject

truction program is the

and a government-wide

relationships and

being developed. It is

ment of Finance. In the

responsibility of each

to its Minister and from

Any variation of this

to the direction of the

The department shou

Management Policies

Auditor General for

approved by Management

Id submit its Project

and Procedures to the

review and ccmnent once

Board.

• Response

The project management procedures were submitted to the Auditor
General for review and conment during the surrrner of 1984. A
subsequent meeting took place on October 29, 1984 between three
representatives of the Auditor General, the Director of Public Works
and the Deputy Minister. It was agreed that, although the present
procedures are an improvement, much more detail is required. It was
agreed that a final policy manual could be completed by April, 1985.
This will be designed to dovetail with the proposed new government-

wide directive currently being developed for Management Board
approval on the responsibilities of the Department of Government
Services and its client departments.

o Public Accounts Cornnittee 1984 Recorrrnendation

(arising from 1983)

Project Management Policies and Procedures

0
U
U
U
U
U
U
0
U
0
U
U
U
U
ci
U
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• Public Accounts

(outstanding

Corrrnittee Reconmendation

from 1981)

a Response

Construction Program Co-ordination - Public Works

(now Government Services)

The Department of Highways and Publié Works

should be responsible for the co-ordination of

the government’s construction program.

It would,

Depar tment

this matter

report back

The Department of Government Services advises

that it is now responsible for the co—ordination

of all government building construction

programs. The Department of Highways and
Transportation, and Municipal and Comnunity
Affairs also have construction programs for
roads and municipal works respectively. With

this fragmentation, there does not appear to be

a central authority with knowledge of the
government’s overall construction program and

plans for long-term expenditures.

therefore, be appropriate for the

of Government Services to clarify

with the Department of Finance and

to the Cocrmittee on it.

See response to Construction Program Co-ordination - Public Works.
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Department of Justice Our Fi[e
Box 2703, Whitehorse,Yukon ViA 206 Your F[e U(403) 667-5811 T&ex 036-8-260
OFflOE OF THE DEPUTY MIMSTER

U
1985 01 23

U
MEMORANDUM

TO: Pat Michael U
Acting Clerk to
Public Accounts Committee

FROM: W.E. Byers, Q.C.
Deputy Minister
Justice

RE: Response to Public Accounts Committee

I thank you for your memorandum of the 16th instant.

Attached please find the responses you are seeking and you
will note that they were prepared for me by Mr. Duncan
on November 7, 1984. These were forwarded to Mr. Sewell
in November and I am at a loss to explain why they have
gone missing.

Please accept our apologies and if for any reason the
enclosed responses are insufficient or inadequate let me

U
U
U
U
U
U
U

know immediatelv<

Deputy er

End.



Government of Yukon
Box 2703. WHITEHORSE, YUKON YIA 2C6 TELEPHONE 403-557.5B11 TELEX 035-8-260

7cL—1

OUR FILEADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
‘ n

/
84 11 07 /

/ V ‘

TO: 3—1 (W. E. B7e38,Q.C.)
‘‘‘. - -

FROM: 3—3

RE; Respotsea — Public Accounts Cocznittee Report
May 1984 — Outstanding Recxnendations

As per Mr. Person1s counicatian of 31j 10 26, attached hereto are brief responaec
for the Dcpartent of Justice.

As outlined in the above—tentioned memo, the responses are to be forwarded to
Terry Sewell of the Department of Finance by 64 11 16.

/
T. F. Duncan, -

Judicial Adujinistrator.

Attachcnt

TFD/ptp
-

YUKON - HOME OF THE KLONDIKE’



U
DEPARflNT OF JUSTICE

RESPONSE TO QUERIES — ThE STANDING COi’NITTEE ON PUBLiC ACCOUNTS

9. ThTON COURTWOFJIRS — JUSTICE U
At the Spring Session of the Legislature, the then Minister,

the Honourable C. L. Ashley, advised the House that the question of including the
Yukon Courtworkers service in the Legal Aid program had been investigated and
rejected.

A committee, established by the Minister to advise him on the future operation Bof the Legal Aid program and which resulted in the eventual passage of the Legal
Services Society Act, strongly advised against the recozzendation.

That committee was composed of four members of the local Bar, one official
from Government of Yukon and one official from the Federal Department of Justice
and did contact the comparable organizations in neighhciring jurisdictions, in
particular British Columbia. A strongly negative reaction was expressed by them
to the proposal which was in keeping with the consensus of the committee itself.
Perhaps, because it saw its independence threatened, the Yukon Courtworkers thea—
selves were not in favour of the proposal either and so informed the Chairman.

In view of this, the Minister determined that the items should continue to be
identified as separate items in the Justice Estimates tabled at the 1984 Spring
Session. He was satisfied that, although the two functions were complimentary,
there was no overlap. He was also cognizant of the fact that the Yukon Courtworkers
is funded by Government of Yukon, but operates in a clearly independent mode. It
would be very difficult to maintain this image if it had a common administration
with a purely goveinment—operated programme.

12. PRODUCTiON OF DOCW€NTS — JUSTICE

As was reported by Mr. Duncan i.e. the Public Accounts Committee, Yukon was
cooperating with the Canadian Centre for Just3ce Statistcs in the collection of
data for the production of uniform national statistics. At the time, a project
caseload — Level 1, a component of. National Criminal Corc Statistics, was underway.

The first report has just been approved for issue az I attach an extract from
that for the Comnittee’s perusal.

Following on that, the Provinces of Quebec, Sasl:atchwan and British Columbia
are engaged in a pilot project — worl<load mcasures project — court management studies.
The project will be seeking to provide indicators in three areas:

a) Caseloads
b) Staff resources and costs
c) Courtroom resources Uand will be available to all other jurisdictions.

U
U
U
U



PROJECT OBJECTIVES

—2—

The objective of the project is to develop court workload measures which will
assist those involved in court management to:

(1) Evaluatetheir own services in terms of quality, efficiency and costs.
This information may be of use in assisting managers to equitably allocate
resources.

(2) Compare their services, caseloads and costs to those in other
jurisdictions; by sharing such information, each province is able to learn
fran the experience of the othecs. This also provides each jurisdiction
with the option of selecting approaches wtiich have produced desirable
results, and conversely, rejecting those which may not prove useful.

(3) Monitor the demands placed on the courts. In addition to providing
decision makers with timely and accurate descriptive information on court
operations, monitoring changes in demands for court service will assist in
making decisions on the allocation of court resources.

(4) Measure
changes
better
changes.

the impact of proposed legislation. By
in legislation, or in the community being
able to take appropriate measures and

measuring
serviced,
respond

the impact ot
the courts are

to anticipated

(5) Forecast future court
etc. The medium and
Sound historical data
in forecasting future

requirements relating to resources, manpower, costs,
long term planning activities include forecasting.

which is comparable between jurisdictions can assist
court resoUrce requirements.
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kTJTE: The data discussed in the remainder of the report deals with caseload
data that was reported to the Centre for the period, January—December
1983. Tables displaying Provincial Court data by Statute Type and UDisposition for January—December 1983 can be round in the Appendix.

III. CONVICTIONS A4 ACQUITTALS U
Convictions ani acquittals provide an interestirç disposition category to
examine because this category generally represents criminal charges that
have proceeded further through the trial process. In many instances,
these charges have consumed more court resources than charges receiving
other dispositions.

Criminal [ode charges should be examined separately fra the other
statute categories because there is no option to dispose of these charges
by voluntary payment of fine.

In the Provincial and Territorial Courts of seven jurisdictions (P.E.I,
N.S., ONT., SASK., B.C., YUKON and N.W.TJ, the percentage of Criminal
Code charges that resulted in a conviction or acquittal during 1983,
ranged from 55% and 54% in British Columbia and Ontario, respectively, to
89% in Prince Edward island. The lower percentages in Ontario and
British Columbia may be attributed to the rather large number of charges
that were stayed and withdrawn in these provinces. Table 5 displays the
convictions, acquittals and total charges disposed for all Statute Types
in Provincial and Territorial Courts in these seven jurisdictions for
1985. Of the total number of charges that proceeded by either a
conviction or an acquittal, in the above mentioned jurisdictions, the
proportion of Criminal Code charges resulting in a conviction was
Qreather than 90% in all provinces except British Colunbia, where it was
approxamately 83%.

The offences under the statute types: Other Federal Statutes, Provincial
Statutes and Municipal By—L&ws are of a hybrid nature because the more
serious offences require a court appearance Thereas the less serious
offences may be disposed by a voluntary payment of fine. Thus, the
number of voluntary payments of fine are added to the number of
convictions so that the total number of convactaons can be calculated.

In the Provincial and Territorial Courts of six jurisdictions (P.E.I.,
N.S., ONT., SASK., YUKON and N.W.T.) the percentage of Other Federal
Statute charges that resulted in a conviction or an acquittal during
1983, ranged from 74% in the Northwest Territories to 97% in Prince
Edward Island. British Columbia is excluded from the calculations
because voluntary payments of fine data are not a’aiiable for this
province. The percentage of Provincial Statute charges that resulted in
a conviction or an acquittal during 1985, ranged from 91% in Saskatchewan
to 99% in Prince Edward Island. For Municipal By—Law charges, the range
is from 70% in Ontario to 97% in the Northwest Territories. Note that
for Prince Fdward Island, the voluntary payment of fines for breaches of
Municipal By—Laws are not counted in caseload data. Such yrnents will
be recorded if made pursuant to a summons. Of the total number of
charges that proceeded by either a conviction or an acquittal, in the
above mentioned jurisdictions, the proportion of chargcs resulting in a
conviction was greater than 95% in all provinces for Other Federal
Statutes, Provincial Statutes and Municipal By—Laws.

U
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Table 5. Convictions and Acquittals in Provincial and Territorial Courts in 19831

ci
ci

[
[
11
11
U
U
U
11

DURISDICTION
STATUTE DISPOSITION

P.E.I.2 N.S.2 aNT.4 SASK. B.C.5 YUKON N.W.T.
3

Convicted 2,040 11,201 165,902 33,011 52,383 1,409 4,024
Acquitted 47 1,253 17,511 1,766 10,420 144 251

CR IN I .NAL
EEOC Total charges

disposed 2,351 20,788 337,361 45,554 116,562 2,167 5,491

Convicted 1,405 2,496 66,382 3,105 8,913 207 291
UHER Acquitted 5 102 1,547 90 789 10 13
FEDERAL
STATUTES Total charges

disposed 1,451 3,012 85,697 3,818 15,169 252 410

• Convicted 9,592 44,201 1,583,189 51,398 47,956 4,771 2,886
Acquitted 25 451 35,479 422 5,243 11 31

PROVINCIAL
STATUTES Total charges

disposed 9,680 46,262 1,712,679 57,029 71,149 4,903 3,153

Convicted 5 1,280 1,320,644 14,621 4,916 1,070 598
Acquitted — 61 -6,228 516 1,017 23 7

LNICIPAL
BY—LAWS Total cha roes

disposed 5 1,533 1,888,848 15,922 9,408 1,517 622

1.

/

Convicted includes voluntary payment- of fines for Other Federal Statutes, Provincial
Statutes, and Municipal By—Laws.

Prince Edward Islar and Nova Scotia did not report for the period, January — March 1983.

The voluntary paywent of fine for breaches of Municipal By—ia are transacted throuch
the clerk of the municipality and are therefore not counted in the caseload data. Such
payments will be recorded if made pursuant to a summons.

For the province of Ontario: Ottawa Carleton did not report for the period Duly —

September 1983 and December 1983, and Peel did not report for the period March 1983.
For the province of Ontario, a charge is considered to be disposed of as each individual
charge i disposed of.

For the province of British Columbia, the Court Management Information system records
multiple counts of a charge as one charce. For example, three counts of break arid enter
in a single incident would be recorded as ce charge of break and enter.

Voluntary paynent of fine data are not avaaable.

011

0
U5.

J.
9
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Department ol Renewable Resources Our Frie 6000—20

Your Fi[c
Box 2703. Whilehorse. Yukon Y1A 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260

1985 January 23

MEMORANDUM

TO: Patrick L. Michael
Acting Clerk to Public Accounts Committee
Yukon Legislative Assembly Office

RE: Pub1ic Accounts Cocmittee

Attached is this department’s response to the Public Accounts
Committee’s comment on Performance Measurement.

This response was submitted to the Audit Commitcee and received
the approval of Management hearth

If you have any questions do not hesitate co contact me.

Youc truly

Tim McTiernan
Acting Deputy Minister

TMc lhk:wm

At t a c hme n t s



DEPARTMENT OF FENEWABLE RESOURCES

Reply to Public Atcounts Committee

Committee Comment

13. Performance Measurement — Renewable Resources

The Department should define its objectives in terms of the activities
for which funding is being requested so that, wherever possible,
performance can be measured against these objectives.

The Department of Renewable Resources advised in writing that Management
Consultants have been engaged to review the mandate of the Departnen:, its
goals and organization structure. The review is to be completed by March
31, 1984. The Committee expects its recommendation to be fully addressed
in the 1985/86 Estimates.

Response:

1. Peat, M’arwick and Partners have completed their study of our department.
Attached is a copy of the suggested organizaticn structure. (Appendix A)
Recruitment, as required to coa:ly with the new organization structure
is complete.

2. budget procedures for the department were revised for the 85/86 fiscal
year. (Appendix B)

Objectives were defined and structured heirarchially for every level
of program and activity from de:artment—wide to project specific.
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Department of Government Services Our File 7041-4
Box 2703 Wnltehorse,Yukon Y1A 206 Your File
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260

O’RCE OF Tr DEPJrY MIMSTER
-

[
1985 01 25 fl
Public Accounts Committee,
Yukon Lecislative Assembly,
Box 2703,
Whitehorse, Yukon Y1A 2C6

Attention: Patrick Michael, Actinq Clerk to Public Accounts Committee

Dear Sirs:

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMmITTEE REQUESTS

Further to your memo of January 16, 1995, the following is submitted.
It is our understandin that the balance of the items for response
by Government Services have been forwardea to you by the Department
of Finance.

Re P. 29, Item 1 and 2 — Revision of Objectives U
The objectives of the Department of Government Services as stated in
the main estimates have not been changed but now clearly reflect its
current activities.

U
U
U
I

1

U
U
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RP 39—Government Reservation Office

The coordination of government travel through Government ServicesReservations Section ensures consistent corpliance to Governmenttravel regulations. This agency controls travel for medicalevacuation, non—government personnel, government agencies andemployees. All travel is done within prescribed policies and by themost economical method available. Prior to 1981 and theimplementation of the Central Transportation Agency, travel warrentswere issued by various departments throughout the government.Decentralized transportation procedures produced inconsistentapplication of government travel regulations and/or the use ofexcursion rates. In the 1960/81 fiscal year, government travelamounted to $937,901. The use of excursion fares during this periodamounted to $9,000; this represents less than one percent of the totalexpenditure.

Reservations Office Activities for Fiscal Year 1963/8%

April 1, 1983 to March 31, 1984, 2100 travel related transactions

Financial Breakdown

Regular Fare Structure $1,159,400
Actual Fares Paid 1,119,500

Net Savings $39,9003.6 of total are excursion related

Regular Hotel Rates $ 52,700
Hotel Rates Paid 36,100

Government applied rate savings $16,60046th of hotel were paid at government rate

GROSS SAVINGS $56,500

Operating costs of Reservations Office

Salaries & Benefits $ 21,600
Eouipment Rental

. 5,700

Total expenditure $27,500

NET OVERALL SAVINGS $29,000

NOTE: Government related airfare $ 419,400
Medical Evacuation Airfare S 700.100

TOTAL $1,119,500



U
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Reservation Office Activities for Fiscal Year 1984/85 fl
April 1, 1984 to October 10, 1984

Regular Fare Structure $ 700,000 0
Actual Fares Paid 653,000

Net Savings $47,000
Representing 7.27 of total fares
paid at excursion rate

Regular Hotel Rate $ 72,100
Hotels paid at Gov’t rate 50,000

Rate Savings 22,100 0Representing %4.27 of hotels paid
at government rates

GROSS SAVINGS $69,100

Operating Costs of Reservation Office to Period 7 0
Salaries and Benefits S 12,325
Equipment Rental . 2,826

Total Expenses $15,151

NET SAVINGS YTD $53,949 U
NET SAVING PRO—RATED TO YEAR END: $92,500
(53,949/7 x 12)

NOTE: Government related airfare $353,500
Medical Evacuation Airfare 299,500

TOTAL $653,000

The use of excursion fares is being aggressively applied by the travel
office. resulting in a marked increase in the net savings for the
1984/85 fiscal year. The use of the central travel agency ensures the
consistent application of government policies and procedures. The
central agency ensures that an aggressive approach to market
availaDility or reduced airrare and notel accommodation is taken
advantage of.

You—s -u1

U
Sam cawley,
A/Deputy Minister.

U
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Department of Justice

Our FiLe 3200—1Box 2703, Whitehorse, Yukon ViA 2C6 Your Ie
(403) 667-5811 Telex 035-8-260

1985 01 28

MEMORANDUM:

TO: Patrick L. Michael
Acting Clerk to the

-

Public Accounts Committee

FROM: Patricia A. Harvey T—1
Assistant Deputy Minister

RE: Public Accounts Committee Recommendations

In response to your letter of January 16, the following is thestatus of the three recommendations concerning the Consumer andCorporate Affairs Branch of the Department of Justice. Inaddition, an updated response is given regarding the Committee’srecommendation on the transfer of OH&S function to the Workers’Compensation Board.

1. ‘The occupational health and safety officer should betransferred from the Department of Consumer and CorporateAffairs to the Workers’ Compensation Board.i’

The Yukon Government has reviewed this recomrLendation anddetermined that the present location of the occupational healthand safety officers with the Consumer and Corporate AffairsBranch is the most appropriate.

The majority of jurisdictions in Canada have affected aseparation by establishing separate health and safety units,usually within Departments of Labour. This separation has beennecessitated because the two distinct, unrelated and oftenconflicting mandates cause a lack of direction which in turnresults in poor overall service for the following reasons:

a) While Boards nay effect limited reductions in injuriesthrough intelligent administration of their insurancefunction, it has been found that accident reduction is basedon principles far removed from insurance. Attempts tocombine the principles of insurance administration with theprinciples of accident prevention have failed in alljurisdictions.



c) Many Boards were accused, usually
injury reduction efforts solely at
assumption that since the employe
overly influence Board decisions.
were largely unfounded, they pers
conflicts until the separation of

incorrectly, of directing
the workers, based on the

r foots the bill” he can
While these allegations

isted and led to numerous
functions was affected.

d) Boards, in keeping with their insurance mandate, were
concerning themselves only with the prevention of injuries
and therefore provided a limited service to employers,
employees and society generally. The cost of injuries, while
very substantial, is minor when compared to total accident
costs. The separations allowed prevention personnel to
direct their efforts to reducing all accidents.

The Government of
design of programs,
accident prevention
effort shDuld be
without interruption

Yukon has made substantial efforts in the
legislation and, most importantly, of a basic

philosophy over the past months. Every
made to ensure that this progress continues

B
B

2. ‘The department (Consumer and Corporate Affairs) should
review all legislation under its administration on a
systematic basis identify provisions therein that are not
enforceable, and recommend legislative amendments to the
government.

Consumer and Corporate Affairs
process of systematic •review
administration. It is expected
from five to seven years as
legislation are involved.
addressed as each statute is

Branch presently has underway a
of all legislation under its

that the entire review will take
in excess of fifty pieces of

The issue of enforceability will be
reviewed

3. ‘The department
establish unit
activities where

(Consumer and Corporate
cost performance indica
statistical information is

Affairs)
tors for
available.

Unit cost indicators are regarded to be of limited value in the
lower volume activities of the Consumer and Corporate Affairs
Branch. Instead of this approach, the Branch has chosen to focus
on work flow review, development of procedures and examination of
data systems.

—2—

b) It was found that the potential for compromising claims
decisions, based on information resulting from accident
investigations conducted by in—house personnel, was far too
great and led to numerous employer/employee Board conflicts.

U

U
U
U
U
p
Li

U
U

U
U
U
U
U
U
U

should
those

U
U
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The department will also be examining evaluation approaches in
conjunction with the overall Government of Yukon thrust in this
area.

To date, work flow studies have been carried out and procedure
manuals developed for the administration unit and Consumer
Services. A systems review is presently underway on the existing
data base which is expected to lead to the development of a more
up—to—date and comprehensive system. As noted in the depart
ment’s 84—03—22 memo to the Committee, initial implementation is
scheduled for later in 1985. Effective January 1st, Labour
Services has implemented a program compiling a further data base
to measure work flow and establish parameters to measure unit
ocr tbrrrance.

4 *1, department (Consumer and Corporate Affairs) should
establish performance standards for inspections and
investigations, depending on their complexity, and measure
the performance of the Occupational Uealth and Safety
Officers against them’

The Labour Services Section has developed the basis for measuring
performance standards for inspections and investigations. The
system is now operational and data is accumulating on the
performance of the unit. As has been stressed in previous
communications to the Committee, the duties of the officers are
significantly different from provincial counterparts. Thus,
direct comparisons are not valid.

The major duties undertaken by the occupational health and safety
officers may be classed as: a) inspections; b) investigations;
c) instructions; d) consultation; f) administration; g) cert
ification. Activities, based on critical need, are scheduled on
a weekly basis and drawn from a list of worksites documented
earlier this year. Class “A” hazard worksites require a minimum
of .2 services per year while Class “B” and “C” worksites should
be serviced annually. This is not a strict criteria as many
worksites may, and often do require more service.

Activities have been balanced between inspections,
and instructing. It has been found that qiven the
stage of occupational health and safety servi
inspections do form a larger proportion of these
will continue to do so for several years.

The actual efficiency
criteria which are moni
Labour Services. These
to actual activities; b

consultations
developmental

ces in Yukon
services and

of the officers is based on a number of
tored and reviewed by the Administrator of

include: a) the performance of scheduled
the priorities given to assessed

/4
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critical need; c) the balance struck between inspections,
consultational and instructing; d) response time to unexpected
incidences; e) the level of documentation provided in reports.
While some of these criteria will be reflected in the activity U
level as reported through the units statistics, other measures
will remain qualitative in nature.

It must be stressed that the duties of these officers are part of
an integrated accident reduction program developed by the branch.
It is a dynamic environment wherein the emphasis will shift to
meet new and unexpected demands. An example of this would be the
number of inquiries conc2rning dangerous substances. These
unexpected and time consuming demands have been -responded to
through a shifting of the units mix of duties.

The primary focus of the program, educating employers, employees
and the general public on occupational health and safety matters
in turn creates additional demand. As people become more aware
of the importance of safety, the number of inquiries and requests
for inspections has increased. U
The occupational Health and Safety unit has demonstrated
measurable results in risk reduction. Visible proof of this is
shown by the reduction in Workers’ Compensation Board assessment
rates for 1985.

I trust this additional information is satisfactory to the UCommittee.

-

Patricia A. Harvey .— UAssistant Deputy Minister
Department of Justice

U
U
U
U
U
U
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Department of Health and our FI: 1800—7
Human Resources Your File.
Box 2703) Whitehcrse,Yukon ‘(IA 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260 85/02/07

LL J

1 5.

Missy Follwell
Clerk Assistant
Yukon Legislative Assembly

A- 9

RE: PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMNITTEE

Dear Ms. Foliwell:

In response to your request for comment on action to comply with
the Public Accounts Committee recommendation respecting social
worker performance indicators (1982 Report), I am pleased to
advise the Committee that time allocation performance indicators
of social case work practice have been developed within the
department following completion of a comprehensive work flow
study and selective time studies late in 198%. In the near
future, I will be able to provide the Public Accounts Committee
with a summary report on this project. The time allocation
indicators address social case work activities during the actual
year subject to evaluation, that is calendar year 1984.

While the Department is quite prepared to share the report of our
findings and discuss its contents with the Committee, this
information will not be reflected in the 1985—86 Main Estimates,
although a format compatible with the program activity statistics
already provided in the main estimates has been utilized. While
our results are, we believe, reasonably sound due to the rigor of
the research and statistical analysis procedures employed, they
are only valid for the period addressed by the work flow and time
studies. The length of explanatory narrative necessary to ensure
that the indicators are clearly understood is such that we- have
determined, in consultation with the Department of Finance, that
these point—in—time indicators of social case work practice are
not appropriate for inclusion in the main estimates summary
format.

Through the latter stages of the work flow study, a number of
major legislative, program delivery and organizational factors
evolved, significantly changing the framework within which our
social workers function and the spocific tasks they perform in
managing their case work. Committee members will be familiar with
the new Children’s Act and the new federal Young Offenders Act
for example, as major initiatives which have impacted social
worker responsibilities and activities.
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As the Committee will note in the description of findings in the
summary report, to follow, the Department has nonetheless already [Ibeen able to utilize the study results to re—examine staffing
levels in certain program areas and realign priorities and
procedures in others.

In my view, the Department has now satisfied the spirit and
intent of the 1982 recommendation of the Public Accounts
Committee. I am available to discuss the summary report on time
allocation performance indicators of social case work with the
Committee should this be desired.

The continuing interest of the Committee in quantifying social
case work practices has been appreciated. Thank you.

Yours truly, U

UWJK:lw

U
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SUITE 300-4110 4TH AVENUE FILE NUMBER 3500—27
WHITEHORSE, YUKON ViA 4N7
TEL (403) 667-5645 TELEX: 036-6-260 i r

February 18. 1985

ME MORAN DUN

TO: Ms. Missy Foliwell
Clerk to the Standing Committee

— on Public Accounts

This is further to your telephone call February 11, 1985, regarding
Recommendation No. 7 of the Public Accounts Committee Report which reads:
“The Board should develop a performance measurement system including
comparisons with previous years of the time taken to process claims and
of changes in the rates of accidents which would be summarized in the
Board’s Annual Report.”

Again, we would like to state that the establishment of performance indicators
and standards for claims is complex and indeed nearly impossible.

As stated before, the Board does have in place a system whereby supervisors,
the Claims Review Committee, arid the members of the Board, review claims
and assessment files at randor to ensure that the staff is performing the
quality of work necessary to adjudicate the files in time and with quality
service. Further, when dealing with claims you are dealing with an individual
and each case can take longer in the healing process than others. We also
have in place policies for physiotherapy treatment, for back claims where after
a certain period these files are reviewed by our Medical Consultant to ensure
two things:

(1) that the claimant is receiving adequate treatment for his injury, and
(2) that he is not on compensation longer than required because of not

receiving proper medical care.

We feel that with the small volume of claims we are still able to give personalized
service to our claimants and to establish performance measurement system would
be very costly, as a consultant would have to be brought in to put the system
into place. We feel if this occurs then we will lose the personalized service
that we can now give.

I hope this further explanation 5 sati sfactory and meets your concerns.

B. Booth
Chairman

B B / F: r
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October 22, 1984
I,.

U
Ms. Missy Follwell
Clerk to Committee
Yukon Legislative Assembly
Box 2703
rnitehorse Yukon
Y1A 2C6 U
Dear Ms. Foliwell:

In reply to your letter dated October 15, 1984 in regards to U
the Public Accounts Committee Report of 1984.

5. PECOYjMENDATION fl
The Board should include in its Annual Report a description of
the various classes and disclose the specific industries within
each class, the assessment rates of each class for that year
and for the previous years, and details, by class, of those
actual assessable payrolls compared to those of the prior year
and to those estimated.

COMNT

We are pleased to report that the Board has included in the Annual
Report for 1983 a description of the various classes and the
industries within the classes, the assessnent rates, assessable
payrolls and the previous figures for comparison.

6. PECON!NDATION

UThe occupational health and safety officer should be transferred
from the Department of Consumer and Corporate Affairs to the
Workers’ Compensation Board. U
COMMENT

1
The Government is presently reviewing all aspects of Occupational U
Health and Safety and drafting new legislation on the subject to
replace the Accident Prevention Regulations pursuant to Workers’
Compensation Act.

U

SUITE 300-41104TH AVENUE
WHITEHORSE, YUKON ViA 4N7
TEL: (403) 667-5645 TELEX: 036-8-260
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7. RECOMMENDATION

The Board should develop a perfonnance measurement systemincluding comparisions with previous years of the time takento process claims and of changes in the rates of accidentswhich would be summarized in the Board’s Annual Report.

COMMENT

The establishment of performance indicators and standards forclaims is indeed a complex subject. It is obvious fromdiscussions with other jurisdictions that it is nearly impossible.

It is in the area of quantitative measurement that numerousexternal variables begin to impinge upon the setting of meaningfulperformance standards. Variables include: Caseload size,availability of medical services, assessment and trainingfacilities, medical specialists and the geographical distributionof the caseload.

The only method available is regular case (claim file inspections)reviews, annual performance reviews. Regular meetings with staffand claimants are consistently the most effective means ofassessing the quality of work performed by the Workers’ Compensation Board staff. It therefore is not possible to develop aperformance measurement of the time taken to process claims withcomparisons.

8. RECOMMENDATION

The Board should disclose in its financial statements theallowance for doubtful accounts and the actual write—offs forthe year.

COMMENT

The Board have disclosed in the Financial Statements for 1983the allowance for doubtful accounts and the actual write—offsfor the year.

Yours truly,

B. Booth
Chairman

BB /mm

cc: W.E. Byers, Q.C.
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AUDITOR GENERAL OF CANADA VERIRCATEUR GENERAL DU CANADA

January 30, 1985

The Honourable Don Taylor, M.L.A.
Speaker of the Yukon Legislative Assembly
box 2703
Whitehorse, Y.T.

Dear Mr. Taylor:

I herewith transmit a report to be laid before the Council in
accordance with the provistons of section 26(4) of the Yukon Ac:, R.S.C. 1970,
c. Y-2.

The report deals with “any other matter” arising from my examination
of the accounts and financial statements of the Government of the Yukon
Territory and the Yukon Housing Corporation for the year ended March 31, 1984
that, in my opinion, should be brought to the attention of the Council.

Cordially yours, .

— / / 47)/ / /
, /:

—

kenneth M. Dye, FC.A.
Auditor General of Canada

ench
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REPORT ON “ANY OTHER MArFER n
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1984 U

I have completed the audit of the accounts and financial statements of the
Government of the Yukon Territory for the year ended March 31, 1984. The purpose
of my examination was to allow ma to express an opinion on the financial statements
and to report to the Council of the Yukon Territory in accordance with the Yukon Act.
These requirements were met in my report to Council of October 5, 1984 in respect of 4
the fiscal year ended March 31, 1984.

I have also examined the financial statements of the Yukon Housing
Corporation and the Yukon Liquor Corporation for the year ended March 31, 1984 and
the Compensation Fund (Yukon Territory) for the year ended December 31, 1933 and
have reported thereon to the Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, and, in the case of
the Yukon Liquor Corporation to the Executive Council Member responsible, as
required by their respective Acts. Copies of these financial statements and reports
thereon will be included in the Territorial Accounts.

My examinations included reviews of certain of the operating, legislative
financial control systems and such tests as were considered necessary in the
circumstances. The staff of the Audit Office was given full access to all vouchers,
records and files relating to the accounts of all departments and agencies of the
Government and was provided with all the information and explanations required. I
would like to express my appreciation to the Territorial Treasurer and staff of the
government departments and agencies for the co-operation extended to my officers
during the audit.

During the yeur the Public Accounts Committee of the Yukon Legislative UAssembly held its fifth series of formal meetings during the period from February 7 to
16, 1984. In accordance with procedures adopted by the Committee, senior officers of
my Office attended these meetings to provide assistance to the Committee. The Fifth
Report of the Committee was tabled in the Assembly on May 3, 1984, The Fifth
Report contained 13 recommendations and included follow-up on both the status of
implementation of prior years’ recommendations and a status report on my 1933
Report on “any other matter”.

The Yukon Act further provides for the Auditor General to call attention
to any other matter falling within the scope of his examination that, in his opinion,
should be brought to the attention of Council. Accordingly, I would like to bring to
your attention the following matters which have been discussed with the Government
Leader. The Report includes the Government’s comments against the related
recommendations. Also included are matters related to the Yukon Housing
Corporation together with the Corporation’s comments against the related
recommendations.

U
0
U
U
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1. Year—end Closing

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

When making year end audit plans and arrangements we have stressed the
need for the Department of Finance to have draft final financial statements and
supporting schedules available to us before starting the year end audit work. This
facilitates the effective planning and execution of the audit and enables us to report
on a timely basis to allow tabling of the Territorial Accounts within the statutory
deadline.

Unfortunafely, other priorities in the Department of Finance this year, had
a negative imoact on the control of the year-end closing procedures and the timely
preparation or the rinal dratt tinancial statements. For example, certain scnedu!es
were not available until half way through our year end field audit in June 1964 and
delayed completion of our work. Operating rant, EPF contribution ar.d income tax
adjustments were not finalized until the last week of our field audit although the
information for making the adjustments was available in April 1984. Furthermore, a
number of material audit adjustments, including improper cheque cut-off, which has
been a problem area at the previous two year ends, had to be made before we could
complete our audit. Restated comparative figures for 1933 were not sent to us until
the end of September 1981. A second visit was necessary in the week ended
October 5, 1934 to complete our field work and finalize the financial statements.

In order to permit timely tabling of the Territorial Accounts and 2110W us
to carry out an effective audit, it is essential that year-end closing procedures and
preparation of financial statements be given the necessary priority so that we can
fulfil our responsibilities on a timely basis.

Recommendation

1. Target dates for completion of
the various phases of the year—
end closing and preparation of
schedules and draft financial
statements should be established
and monitored by a senior
officer, independent of the
accounting function.

Government’s Corn ments

1. Target dates for completion of
all phases of the year-end
closing are established each ycar
by Finance. These are contained
in the year-end instruction
manual printed by Finance and
sent to all departments prior to
each fiscal year-end. The
manual is also made available to
the Auditor General’s staff each
year. The year-end closing is
monitored by a senior officer of
Finance in consultation with the
office of the Internal Auditor.
In view of the highly technical
nature of the process of closing,
it is not practical to have a
monitoring officer independeni
of Finance.
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The year—end closing of fiscal
1953—84 was no exception to
these established procedures- As
in previous years, all personal
leave was suspended and there
were no “other priorities” in
Finance during the closing period
that interfered with the process. fl
Despite a two-week delay in Li
closing the computer master—
files, it is documented that the
preparation of draft financial
statements was accomplished in
time for the field audit that
commenced on June 11, 1984, as
planned. Although the manual
typing of some of the schedules
continued during the field audit,
all the pertinent information was
available in the computer print
out format. With reference to
the EPP, operating rant, and
income tax firires, the finaliza
tion of the adjustments was
delayed although the information
was available earlier. However,
as indicated in the preamble to
this recommendation, these
adjustments were completed
before the conclusion of the
field audit which was not
delayed heyond its planned
dates.

With respect to the material
audit adjustments including the
cheque cut-off, these are the
outcome of the audit findings
and cannot be captured before
the audit is conducted. The
second visit undertaken by the
auditors was basically to
complete the audit of Yukon
Housing Corporation which was U
behind schedule, and over which
the Department of Finance had
no control.

Pacts indicate that the field r
audit was successfully conducted
and completed on June 29, 1984,

U
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as planned. There was no indica
tion given of any delays at the
conclusion of the audit or in the
subsequent four months during
which the Territorial Accounts
were being finalized.

It is our understanding that the
normal auditor-client relation
ship is one in which the auditor
should prepare and present to
the client a proposed audit
schedule. The purpose of this is
to enable the client to plan
properly for the audit and to
organize the necessary staff. A
schedule of this kind for fiscal
1983—84 was requested in
conversation with the Auditor
General’s staff but nothing
materialized. Sinee a timetable
of this kind is essential for the
orderly completion of the annual
audit, it is hoped that one will be
provided in future years.

2. Appropriations Ovérexpended and Aporopriation Acts

Under the Financial Administration Act in force to March 31, 1984,
overexpenditures of appropriations were deemed to be interim appropriations for
which supplementary aopropriation approval would be sought from Council during the
following fiscal year. The new Financial Administration Act, proclaimed effective
April 1, 1984, contained no such automatic appropriation provision. The following
appropriations were overexpended at March 31, 1984:

Operations and Maintenance

Vote 16 Government Services S 30,592

Capital Expenditures

Vote 2 Highways and Transportation 578,178

Vote 9 Executive Council Office 960

The amounts over-expended have been ider.tified within the Territorial
Accounts in the Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures and Unexpended Balances.
In accordance with provisions of the Financial Administration Act in effect prior to



the major revisions to the Act, effective April 1, 1984, the over-expenditures would
have been deemed to be an interim appropriation to be submitted as a supplementary
appropriation for approval by Council during the year ended March 31, 1985. However,
the Department of Finance believes that there has been no overexpenditure of
appropriations for 1983-84 since funds appropriated to a department for both capital
and operation and maintenance expenditures do not constitute separate appropriations
but represent one appropriation for each department from which total expenditures
(both capital and operations and maintenance) could be made. On the basis of this
interpretation no overex-penditures did arise as, in each case, the total departmental
appropriation was sufficient to cover total departmental expenditures. However, the
Department’s position is not consistent with 1983—84 Supplementary Estimates No’s 1
and 2 which supported the Fourth and Fifth Appropriation Acts, 1983—81. These
Supplementary Estimates included separate summaries of capital and operation and
maintenance expenditures which provided revised vote totals for each department and
agency. The details, broken down between capital and operation and maintenance
expenditures, were included in Schedule B to each of the above Acts. Although the
amounts were not voted on by the Legislature, Section 3(2) of each Act states
categorically that the sums appearing in Schedule B are the total sums that have been
appropriated. Each sum listed must, therefore, be deemed as a separate appropriation
or item. The amounts overexpended in the above—mentioned appropriations would,
therefore, require an authorizing vote to comply with the requirements of
Section 38(2) of the current FAA but no additional funding would be required. This
would be provided through transfers between votes of the departments concerned.

Schedule A to the Fifth Appropriation Act,

________

net requirement of 8997,000 comprising sums required
previously appropriated but not required of 86,418,000.
requirement was identified in Section 2(1) of that Act,
on a net basis which had the effect of authorizing transfers between votes.
Schedule “A” made no reference to other transfers of funds between votes in the
amount of S933,000 since they related to responsibilities transferred from one
department to another and did not require additional funding. A similar situation
occurred in respect of the Fourth Appropriation Act 198384, 1983 c. 21, when
Schedule A made no reference to funds transferred of 81,425,000. These types of
transfers should also be identified in Schedule A to provide a complete reconciliation
with the details listed in Schedule B.

1983—84, 1984 c.8, identified a
of 57,415,000 offset by sums

Although the gross
the Legislature voted the funds

Recommendation Government’s Corn ments

1. Schedule A should include funds
transferred between votes in
respect of responsibilities
transferred from one department

I. It is recognized that the
Appropriation Acts could be
presented more clearly and a
move in this direction has been
made in the Fourth Appropria
tion Act 1984-85.

However, as indicated in the
preamble to this recommenda
tion, it is the position of the
Department of Finance that no
overexpenditure of appropria
tions for 1983—84 occurred.
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Recognizing that the automatic
interim appropriation provision
in the old Financial Administra
tion Act would no longer be in
effect after March 31, 1984,
contingency financing was
included in the Fifth Appropria
tion Act 1983—34. This was
made known to the Legislative
Assembly when the bill went
through the House. It should not
be necessary to place the same
appropriation before the
Legislature twice.

The preamble to this recom
mendation states further that
each sum listed in Appendix B of
the Appropriation Act must be
deemed as a separate appropria
tion or item. It is not clear that
this is the case. It is equally
arguable that setion 2W) of the
Act authorizes additional
expenditures for each depart
ment up to the limits set out in
Appendix A, and these amounts
provided financing in excess of
departmental expenditures in
every case.

Section 18(2) of the current FAA provides that a vote does not authorize
any payment to be made in excess of the amount specified in the vote except for year
end payments which, as provided by Section 33, are to be made from a vote for that
fiscal year. it is not abundantly clear from these Sections what hapens if the
payments exceed the amount specified in the vote. To overcome this problem a
contingency provision of $1,292,000 was included in the amounts approoriated by the
Fifth Appropriation Act. However, instead of having a separate vote for this item in
Schedule A to that Act, the amount was allocated to each vote. Had this amount been
the subject of a separate vote, under the control a: Management Board, which clearly
identified what it was for, how it was to be used and accounted for, the problem with
the appropriations overexpended could have been avoided. This approach would also
have provided a better control of year end expenditures.



Recommendation

2. A separate vote to cover any
contingency provision should be
included in Schedule A of the
related Appropriation Act and
placed under the control of
Management Board.

Government’s Comments

2. A separate vote to cover
contingencies under the control
of the Management Board is
clearly an alternative to the
course of action adopted in the
Fifth Appropriation Act 1983—84.
At this stage, however, the
Gvvernment would prefer not to
proceed with a separate
contingency vote. It would be
cumbersome to administer and
may not be necessary with a
fully automated commitment
control system for which
planning is currently underway.

We have observed in previous years on the in proper certification under
Sections 19 and 20 of the Financial Administration Act when processing accounts for
payment. This continues to be a problem area. We noted many instances in 1933-84
when contract progress payments made by the Public Works Branch of the Department
or Goier”nent Se”vices ve”e cert t cc o ott1cers e’L”er, v1 no delegaion o
authority, or, who had exceeded the limit delegated to them. Violation or signmg
authorities was also noted in payments by other government departments. Proper
certification of expenditures under Sectior.s 19 and 20 of the Financial Administration
Act is an important control element when processing accour.ts for payment. Control is
seriously weakened if the authority is exercised improperly.

Recommendation

1. Action should be taken to ensure
that payments are not processed
without proper signing

Government’s Comments

Problems of certification in
frevious years, including the
certification of contract
progress payments, emanated
from lack of clarity in the
Directives and lack of training
of the financial staff.

The Signing Authorities
Directive issued pu:suant to the
new Financial Administration
Act identifies all financial
signing authorities, their limits,
and the process of delegation.
Amended control procedures for
the processing of contract
progress payments are already in
place and the Department of

ci
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Finance has initiated training
programs for the financial staff

- of all departments to ensure that
all payments are processed in
compliance with the Directive.

4. Commitment Control

The Financial Adminitration Act, assented to on November 3, 1983, has
been proclaimed in force with effect from April 1, 1984. Section 18 states that:

(1) No payment shall be made at any time from the Consolidated
Revenue Fund for any purpose unless a provision of this or another Act
authorizes the payment to be made for that purpose at that time.

(2) A vote does not authorize any payment to be made in excess of the
amount specified in the vote.., except as provided by sections 26 and 38,
after the end of the fiscal year to which the vote applies.

Section 29 further provides that:

(1) Every public officer shall keeo records of corn mitments for the
expenditures chargeable to each vote or tuna tor which ne has been
assigned resonsib!lity under paragraph 22(2)(b).

A review of existing commitment systems maintained by departments
indicated that:

o salaries, wages, and employee fringe benefits were not being
committed;

• not all purchase orders and contracts were being entered into the
commitment system;

o commitment records were not being maintained for all programs; and

a departments were not being informed of commitments made on major
capital projects, managed on their behalf by the Public Works Branch
of the Department of Government Services.

Commitment :ecords, if maintained properly, provide departments with the
information necessary to stay within the funds appropriated under their votcs. We
understand that the Department of Finance is in the process of developing a
computerized com mitment/expenditure system.



Recom mendation

The Department of Finance in
developing the new system,
should take into consideration
the deficiencies referred to
above.

—9—

Government’s Comments

The Financial Administration
Act proclaimed in effect from
April 1, 1984, has no bearing on
the fiscal year ended March 31,
1984. The examination of that
fiscal year and any comments
thereon should be in relation to
the statute in force during that
fiscal year.

Sections 18, 26 and 38 of the
new Financial Administration
Act deal with “Payments”, and
these sections do not apply
specifically to the subject of
Commitment Control.

Section 29 of the Act, which
deals with “Commitments”,
clearly states that the responsi
bility for records of commit
ments lies with the public
officers responsible for each
vote or fund. Specific obsen’a—
tions with regard to this
responsibility should be cited
under the appronriate depart
ment.

The main thrust of the recom
mendation appears to be aimed
primarily at the development of
new commitment control
systems. It is agreed that
current deficiencies should be
taken into account in developing
new systems of commitment
control.

‘0,
U

5. AccounLing Policy - Employee Pay and Termination Benefits

The accounting policy is to record employee pay, except for teachers
salaries, on an accrual basis. The accounting policy with respect to teachers’ salaries,
which are earned over the ten-month school year but paid on a twelve-month basis, is
to record them when paid. No liability is recognized at the year end for the earned
but unpaid teachers’ salaries. This polcy is inconsistent with the accounting policy for
government expenditures including salaries of other employees, which are recorded on
an accrual basis.

U
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Recommendation

1. The accounting policy with
respect to teachers’ salaries
should be to record the in on an
accrual basis, the same as for
other government expenditures.

Government’s Comments

1. We agree with this recom
mendation. Earned but unpaid
salaries of the teachers will be
recorded on an accrual basis at
the end of the fiscal year
starting with 1984—85.

Under the terms of each Collective Bargaining Agreement, employees are
eligible for payment of certain termination benefits and for unused vacation and sick
leave. Payments for termination benefits are based on length of service and salary at
the date of termination. Any payments for unused portions of vacation and sick leave
at the date of termination are also based on the salary at that date. The calculations
are based on personnel records maintained by the. Public Service Commission, and on
leave and attendance records maintained by other government departments. The
accounting oolicy is to record such payments on a cash basis and not recognize any
liability for unused portions of vacation and sick leave and termination benefits earned
by employees at the end of the fiscal year.

The Financial Administration Act provides for use of the accrual basis of
accounting for all government expenditures. Recognition of an accrued liability for

employee leave and termination benefits is necessary so that the Government’s
financial statements can more properly reflect the Government’s fir.ancial position.

For this purpose, we have had a number of meetings with the Department of Finance
and the Public Service Corn mission on tbis subject in the past two years. Last year,

problems were being experienced with reconciling the leave and atter.dance records
and in determining an appropriate basis for making the accrual. The Leave and
attendance records of other government departments were being audited by the Public
Service Commission during the year . The work was incomplete at the year-end. We
have been advised that it should be feasible to complete this work and to determine an

appropriate basis for making the accrual by March 31, 1985.

Recom mcndation

2. The Departmcnt of Finance
should ensure that an accounting
policy for the accrual of
employee leave and termination
benefits is established and
operative by March 31, 1985.

6. Manuals and Procedures

Government’s Comments

2. We agree with this recom
mendation in principle. The
implementation cf the ongoing
accrual, however, is quite
complex and involves all
departments. While every effort
will be made to implement this
recommendation, it is not
possible to make a commitment
that it will be denc by March 31,
1985.

The Finance Operating Manual contains accounting policies and procedures
on various operating activities of the Government and should be kept up to date. The



Deoartment has no orocedure for reviewing and updating the Manual with the result
that no updating has occurred since the Manual was issued in 1979. Since that time,
there have been many significant changes in accounting procedures, particularly for
payroll and general disbursements. For example, the general disbursement section of
the Manual contains out of date procedures on batch processing, accounts payable
processing, cheque signing and control. Furthermore, this section does not include
policies and procedures to deal with long outstanding cheques, undelivered cheques and
approval of bank reronciliations. If new control policies and procedures are
implemented, or revis’ed from time to time, a review and update procedure for the
Manual would provide the means for incorporation into the Manual.

Recommendations

I. Procedures should be established
to systematically review and
update the Manual.

2. Policies and procedures dealing
with the revised payroU and
disbursement system, long
outstanding cheques and
approval of bank reconciliations
should be incorporated into the
Manual as soon as possible.

Government’s Comments

1. Updating the Financial
Administration Manual has been
deferred pending introduction of
a new Financial Administration
Act and the related regulations
and directives. This will

priority until
computerized

Changes in
operating

meanwhile,
a complete
merely an
is required.

It is arced, however, that a new
manual should be issued and
procedures for a systematic
review and update be developed
at the appropriate time.

2. Procedures dealing with payroll
and disbursement, outstanding
cheque reconciliation, and bank
reconciliation approval will be
included in the Manual when it is
rewritten. It is recognized that,
in addition, individual manuals
are needed for specific
computerized syotems and some
progress is contemplated in this
area in the coming year.

U
1l

. U
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U
continue as a low
completion of
financial systems.
the financial
procedures, in the
have been such that
rewrite and not
update of the manual

U
U
C

U
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION

7. Engineering Services Agreement

Construction and engineering costs for Federal highway projects are
recoverable from DIAND under an Engincering Services Agreement- This Agreement
provides for accountable advances to be made to the Government. Because of the
administrative complexity of obtaining individual project approval for each advance,
no accountable advances were received during the year.

Costs recoverable under the Agreement in 1983-84 amounted to $6,577,000
including an accrual of $1,171,000 for expenditures incurred from February 1 to March
31, 1984. Two progress claims were submitted to DIAND and paid during the year.
The first covered expenditures of $1,965,000 incurred from April 1, 1983 to July 20,
1983, paid on December 2, 1983. The second covered expenditures of $3,441,000
incurred from July 21, 1983 to January 31, 1984, paid on March 21, 1984. The
expenditures, until paid by DIAND, were in effect being financed by the Yukon
Consolidated Revenue Fund for extended periods of time. This has a limiting effect on
the Governments cash flow and working capital.

Recom mendation Government’s Con m ents

1. Accountable advances should be i. It is the Department’s intention
obtained from DIAND or biUings to take full advantage of the
should be made on a monthly advance provisions of all
basis. agreements.

8. Road Equipment Replacement Account/Fund

The operations of the Road Equipment Replacement Account/Fund have
been referred to previously in our management letters, the most recent being
December 7, 1983, and in our Reports to Council most recently for the year ended
March 31, 1983. Charges for the use of road equipment, including an implicit
depreciation factor, are reflected as expenditures of user departments and are
credited to the Account together with any proceeds from the sale of equipment. The
Account is charged with operating expenditures and purchases of replacement
equipment when incurred. We had recommended inter-alia that the Account be
operated in the same way as other revolving funds of the Government. The
Government, in responding to our recommendations, mentioned that the Account had
operated as a special reserve account since its inception and that it should be allowed
to operate under the new Financial Administration Act as a partial revclving fund for
a reasonabie ocr od ot time cc o”e Taking egislal e c-anges The ccour becane a
Fund effective April 1, 1981.

Our audit of the operations of the Account disclosed the following matter.

Expcnditures without propcr authority. In accordance with the pOlicies
established for the operations of the Acccunt, the balance in the Account at any time
shouid be a credit balance. The balance is equivalent to the implicit depreciation
factor recovered in the charge-out rates established for use of the equipment and may
be used to acquire replacement equipment.
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Expenditures charged to the Account in two consecutive accounting periods

resulted in the Account being overexpended in those periods by $452,000 and $486,000
respectiviy.A1though corrected in subsequent periods, the Department, during the
period in question, was approving expenditures for payment even though funds were
not available in the Account to meet those expenditures.

Recom mendation Covernment’s Corn ments

1. The Department should not 1. The Department operated prior
approve payments in excess of to April 1, 1984 on the
funds available, understanding that a deficit in

mid-year was alloed; that is,
yeai-end balance was the
operating criterion. This
practice has been changed under
the new Financial Adininistra—
tion Act.

9. Dust Palliatives Revolving Fund

The Dust Palliatives Revolving Fund was established in 1974 by the 5th
Appropriation Ordinance, 1973-74. The amount charged to the Fund at any time is not
to exceed an authorized limit of $1.2 million. In addition, under the new Financial
Administration Act, which became effective April 1, 1931, the value of the inventory
is not to exceed the authorized limit.

The balance of expenditures charged to the Fund at March 31, 1084 was
$1,442,000 (1983 — 3685,000). It was represented by inventories of 31,913,000 (1933 —

$890,000) less accounts payable of 3471,000 (19S3 — $205,000). The amount charged to
the Fund exceeded the authorized limit by $242,000 at the year end. The value of the
inventories on hand at the year end also would have exceeded the authorized limit by
$713,000, had the new Financial Administration Act been effective during the year.
This situation arose from placing an order with a supplier of calcium chloride in
January 1984 in the amount of $1,681,000 without regard to the authorized limit of the
Fund. The order was roughly equivalent to twelve months consumption of calcium
chloride. We have been informed that subsequent to the year end the limit of the Fund
has been increased to $2 million.

Recommendations Government’s Comments

1. The Department should establish 1. Calcium chloride is not stocked
maximum and minimum levels for use as are most stores items
for storing and reordering and therefore maximum and
calcium chloride, minimum stocking levels do not

apply.

2, The Department should establish 2. The Fund has been established at
procedures to ensure that the $2,000,000 in the Financial
Fund limit is not exceeded at Adminbtration Act to allow a
any time. change in delivery schedule

precipitated by closure of the

r
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10. Motor Vehicle Licencing

White Pass and Yukon Railway.
With the rail closure, the total
tonnage required had to move up
the highway system. Scheduling
was changed to requre delivery
of the annual tonnage prior to
March 31 before the spring
break-up rather than in two
movements bracketing the fiscal
year—end. Procedures are now in
place to ensure the Fund limit
wrn not be exceeded.

Motor vehicle licence plates and decais are serially numbered. They are
issued by the Department or through Territorial Agents and controlled on a numerical
basis. Cash received from the sale of plates and decais is recorded in cash blotters by
an employee and reconciled with the issues recorded by the control clerk.

procedures:
We found the following internal control deficiencies in licencing

• unissued decals held by Territorial Agents were not beng returned to
the Department at the 2nd of each renewal year;

• a Dhys!cal count of the unissued plates and decals held by the
Department was not being made and, together with the unissued
plates and decals held by Territorial Agents, reconciled with the
control records to account for the cash received; and

Re comm enda tic os

1. Territorial Agents should return
unissued decals to the
Department at the end of each
renewal year.

2. The Departmcnt should under
taRe a physical count of unissucd
plates and decals at the end of
each year and reconcile the
inventory with the control
records.

1. Terricorial Agents
unused decals to
Vehicles Branch at
the renewal year.

2. Physical count of unissued plates
and decals will be done at the
end of the current year and
reconciled with issue records.

o the employee responsible for preparing the cash blotter has overall
control of licence plates and decais.

Government’s Comments

now
the
the

return
Motor

end or



3. The Department should estjblish
overall control of plates and
decals through a person
independent of the cash
function.
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3. Commencing February 1, 1985,
(new license year), the decals
wifi be maintained and
reconciled by the Finance and
Administra ion Branch and the
cash collection and reconcilia
tion will be performed by the
Motor Vehicles Branch.

F,
11

11. Land Development Costs Inventory

Our Reports to Council for the past three years have referred to
inadequacies in the Department of Municipal and Community Affairs land inventory
records and the lack of disclosure in the Territorial Accounts of the Government’s
substantial land inventories. The Government’s policy is to charge these costs to
expenditure when incurred and to recognize revenue from the sales of land at the time
of sale. The Department estimated the land development costs inventory at March 31,
1983 to be $18 million.

In responding to the recommendations in our 1983 Report to Council, the
Department referred to discrepancies and inconsistencies between the land inventory
records and Land Registry which had to be investigated. The investigation was
extremely time consuming and, although a considerable amount of work had been done,
a more realistic time—frame to complete this work would be March 31, 1985 instead of
March 31, 1984 as recommended by us. The Department is working towards meeting
this objective. In the meantime the Government, in 1984, approved the Departments
land costing policies. Should the Department meet its objective of completing the
land inventory by March 31, 1985, the Department will be in a position to implement
the other recommendations made by us. These recommendations relate to disclosure
in the financial statements of the development cost of land for sale as an asset of the
Government and, commencing with the 1985-86 Capital Estimates, disclosure in the
Capital Estimates of the proper funding requirement for land development cost
expenditures and the cost of the land dcvelopment inventory.

Recommendation

1. The Department should take
every action to ensure that the
development costs of land for
sale are determined by March

Government’s Comments

I. The Department is taking every
action to ensure that the
development costs of land for
sale are determined by
March 31, 1985. The 1935—86
Capital Estimates disclosed the
recovery component of land
developed for sale. The
financial statements for the
1984—85 fiscal year will disclose
the value of the finished land
inventory and the development
inventory as an asset of the
Government of Yukon.

DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 0
if]

31, 1985.

B
C

C
0
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12. Land Sales

The Regulations governing the administration and disposal of Yukon Lands,
authorized by DIG 1933/192, include various provisions with resDeet to land sales.

The provision in respect of the determination of the sale prLe of land
requires that it is to be based on development costs, with each lot bearing an equitable
portion of the costs including such costs as carrying charges. Our cev!ew of the land
inventory indicated that the Department in determining the sale price of land does not
include carrying charges attributable to the cost of land held in the work in process
inventory. The Department is, therefore, not complying with the requirements of the
Regulatzons. This omission :s signtricant as toe total esttmated cost or the land
inventory at March 31, 1981 comprised finished land of 57 million and work in process
of 511 million. Transfers are made from work ir. process to finished land when the lots
are fully developed and should include such costs as carrying charges at that time
since much of the land designated as work in process has been under development for
many years. For example, the main portion of the costs of the Hillcrest development
is included in work in process at a total cost of about $9 million. The costs were
primarily incurred between 1979 and 1930.

Recommendation Government’s Comments

1. The Department should include 1. The Department will include,
the carrying charges in the commencing April 1, 1985, the
work-in-process land inventory carrying charges in the work-in—
as development progresses so as progress land inventory as
to ensure compliance with the developnicnt progresses.
Regulations.

DEPARTMENT OP EDUCATION

13. Departmental Objectives

The departmental objectives according to the 1933-84 Main Estimates are:

to provide primary, elementary and secondary education for school
age cnildren in Yukon;

o to facilitate the development of Yukon’s human resources by
providing an adult training and continuing education program and a
manpower planning and services section;

o to orovide recreation programs for Yukon residents.

In 1983-84, the Department was actively involved 10 the ted or ob
creation and retention although it was not referred to in the departmental objectives.
During the year, all departments, at the request of Finance, had redrafteJ their
objectives where necessary, for inclusion in the 1981—35 estimates. However, our
review of the 1984-85 Main Estimates indicated that these activities again had not
been included in the departmental objectives. The Department should ensure that all
significant activities are reflected in its objectives to more fully support the funds
being requested.
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Government’s Comments

11’
fl

The objectives included
Main Estimates should
all significant activities
Department.

opinion that
job creation

activities
included in
spe&fying

this
and

were
the
the

provision of a manpower
planning and services section and
that specific mention of our job
creation and recention activities
should not be required in our
outlined objectives. However,
we have amended our objectives
to encompass provision of
employment development and
job retention programs in the
1986—86 Main Estimates.

14. Licences/Permits

DEPARTMENT OF RENEWABLE RESOURCES

Prenumbered forms are used for the control and receipt of cash for fishing,
hunting, trapping and other licences or permits issued by the Department and other
vendors. Cash return forms are submitted either on a weekly or monthly basis and are
verified by the Revenue Clerk with the attached duplicate copy of the licences or
permits issued to ensure that the amounts have been accaunted for. At the end of the
season, the licence or permit forms, assigned to the Department or vendors, that have
not been used are recalled and entered in a control log. However, our review of the
system indicated that the unused prenumbered books in the Department and those
submitted by the vendors at the end of the season were not being reconciled with the
cash returns, nor, was the numerical sequence of the licences or permits issued being
accounted for.

Recoin mendat ion

1. The numerical sequence of all
used permit or licence forms
should be accounted for and
reconciled with the revenues
recorded.

The Department currently
records licences issued, licences
returned unused and total
licences used. The deposits are
reconciled to licences sold
individually but not in total at
the end of the licence season.

The Department will establish a
reconcUation form; classify the
vendors by volume/revenue
collected; reconcile all large
vendors and, on a sample basis,
the smaller vendors.

in the
include
of the

It was our
Department’s
retention
inherently
objective

U
•8
C?
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a
Government’s Comments
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES

15. Social Assistance Program

Payments for food, clothing, incidental, shelter, fuel, utilities and items of
special need under the Social Assistance Program are governed by rates included in
Schedule A of the Social Assistance Regulations passed in 1972 and amended from
time to time by Order in Council. These include the following rates that have not
been amended by Order in Council since the Regulations were passed:

o fuel allowances for one and two persons of up to 5240 annually and
for three or more persons of up to 5300 annually; and

. similarly for utilities of up to 5220 and 5350 annually.

In both cases, authority is provided to increase these allowances to minimum actual
costs wnere nardship woulc otnerwise result. The rates tor shelter, wn:ch nave not
beer. amended by Order in Council, are also governed by the 1972 Regulations Schedule
A. These authorize rental allowances for single perso’.s and families, based on actual
costs, up to stated maximums for furnished and unfurnished accommodation, with or
without utilities. A further provision is that the Director,of Social Welfare may
increase the rental allowances to minimum actual costs, upon being satisfied that
extreme hardship would otherwise result.

Pursuant to the authority provided for in the Regulations, the Director, in
January 1981, authorized an increase for rental allowances, including fuel and utility
allowances, where extreme hardship would otherwise result, of up to 3225 monthly for
single persons. Similarly, monthly increases of up to 5450, 5500 and 3600 respectively
were also authorized for two, three and more than four person families. The increases
authorized do not distinguish between furnished and unfurnished accommodation, with
or without utilities, and make no reference to actual rents, as contemplated by the
provision for shelter allowance. Furthermore, the increases authorized deal with
numbers of persons instead of single persons and families.

Recommendations Government’s Comments

1. The Director of Social 1. Schedule A to the Regulations is
should authorize out—dated and is currently being
increases for fuel, revised in order that allowances
shelter allowances paid no longer fall in the
with the provisions “exceptional” category, unless
A to fle Regulations. they are really exceptions. The

policy instituted in January
1984, was of an interim nature
pending the revision of
Schedule A to the Regulations.
The extreme hardship clause was
cited as the authoriti for the

Welfare
separate

utility and
consistent

of Schedule

policy.



p
— 19 -

2. The existing provisions for fuel, 2. The proposed revisions to the
utilities and shelter aLlowances Social Assistance Regulations
in Schedule A to the Regulations will be drafted to address the
should be kept reasonably issue of keeping aLlowances
current at all t’mes by amending current.
Order in Council.

CAPITAL PROJECTS

Two capital projects of a comoletely different nature were selected for
audit examination this year; the Department of Education Porter Creek Junior
Secondary School project and the Department of Municipal and Community Affairs
Watson Lake Sewage Lagoon project.

The two projects were undertaken in different time periods and are at
different stages of completion. Our examination consisted of a review of the project
files and recoils and discussions with various officers of the Departments involved in
the project. We did not, however, review the technical aspects of the projects. The
projects examined were assessed against the following criteria:

• Responsibility and accountability should be clearly defined and
corn municated.

• Requests for funds should be suncorted by accurate and comolete
documentation. - - C

o Final approval should be based on full information.

o Project imp1ementaton should be properly controlled.

• Completed projects should be reviewed.

The Porter Creek Junior Secondary School involved the construction of a U
new secondary school in Whitehorse planned by the Department of Education. The
project was initiated in 1978 and was ready for first occupancy in January 1983. The
principal expenditures on this project arose between 1981 and 1.982. Certain additional
costs for landscaping and playgrounds for completion of the project were incurred
during 1983-84. ft was undertaken for that Department by the Public Works Branch of
the then Department of Highways and Public Works. The Branch has since been
transf erred to the Department of Government Services.

The Watson Lake Sewage Lagoon project involved the improvement of
sewage facilities for Watson Lake and was undertaken by the Department of Municipal
and Community Affairs. The planning and implementation of the project was
undertaken by the Municipal Engineering Branch of the Department based on a number
of stuDIes carried out by an outs:de consultant. It was originally initiated n lOtS and
reactivated in 1982 with most exoenditures to date having been incurred during 1983-
84. Stage 1 or tne project is expected to be completed in 1934-So and :nvolves
modification of existing systems and construction of a long term sewage lagoon. Stage 1-1
2 will involve construction of an outfall from the lagoon when warrantod by the L
system..

C
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In the course of our examination, we noted a number of problems related to
the management of the School project which are commented on below. They were
primarily attributable to the lack of clearly documented project management control
procedures. Our exarninatjon of the Sewage Lagoon project revealed that decisions
and procedures were well documented, including the consultants report and formal
application to the Water Board for clearance of the oroject. We will follow-up on
cornpletior. of Stage 1 of the project in 1984-85 and report, if necessary.

16. Porter Creek Junior Secondary School

The Capital Main Estimates for 1930-SI disclosed an estimated cost of 53
million for this project. Costs to completion in 1983-84 approximate 58.8 million.
Comments follow against the criteria referred to above.

Responsibility and accountability should be clearly defined and
communicated. More specifically this criterion requires that responsibility and
accountability for analysing needs, setting objectives and goals, conducting feasibility
studies, developing proposals, exercising control over design and construction and
revewing completed projects should be clearly defined and communicated at the
beginning of the project.

This major project involved a significant sharing of responsibilities between
the Department of Education, which was responsible for the initial planning and the
development of final estimates, as a basis for seeking funds from the Legislative
Assembly, and Public Works Branch of the Department of Kighways and Public Works,
which participated in the project planning and was responsible for implementation of
the construction phase of the project.

In the planning stage, Public Works Branch provided initial estimates of
construction costs and conducted site surveys but its responsibility and accountability
was not clearly defined as demonstrated in the following section. The same situation
prevailed in the implementation phase, commented on later, for which Public Works
Branch was responsible.

Requests for funds should be supported by accurate and complete
documentation. More specifically this criterion requires that, for each capital
acquisition, there should be a clear written statement of objectives, which should be
related to the appraisal of needs; alternative courses of action should be evaluated
impartially on the basis of revenue, benefits and life cycle costs; capital cost
estimates at stages of the planning process should be realistic and complete; and a
revised estimate, based on act:al design should be prepared before obtairing final
approval.

The objectives for the Porter Creek Junior Secondary School based on our
review were perceived to be as follows:

o to provide additional junior secondary school capacily;
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• to pursue the neighbourhood school concept;

• to pursue the 6-3—3 split concept for grades 1 to 6, 7 to 9, and 10 to 12; and

• to provide a community recreation facility.

These project objectives, except for the need to accommcdate aoproximately 500
additional junior secondary school students in the area, were not clearly stated,
neither were they used in the appraisal of needs.

Alternative courses of action, such as, either, renovation of the Jack
Hulland elementary school to serve as a junior secondary school and constructirn of a
new elementary school in Porter Creek, or, expansion of the Jeckell junior seccr.dary
school, were referred to in the departmental submission. However, they were not fully
analysed and costed, to permit an impartial evaluation of the proposed project prior to
submission for final approval.

Proposed capital projects and related estimated expenditures are eporoved
by the Legislative Assembly on the basis of summary project information included in
the Capital Estimates tabled in the Assembly. The Capital Estimates for 1980-81,
tabled in November 1979, in which funds for the Porter Creek Junior Secondary School
were first requested, disclosrd an estimated project cost of 53 million, of which S.8
million was for funding in 1980-81, based on information provided by the Department
of Education. However, the Department had in early 1979 estimated the project cost
to be 54.2 million excluding costs for consultants, site purchase, rcad construction and
the playground. We also noted that there was no formal evidence of any review of the [j
departmental estimates having been conducted by the Department of Finance, prior to
inclusion in the Capital Estimates, in order to confirm the reliability of the
information. Revised estimates subsequently prepared in January 1980 indicated the
estimated cost to be $7.6 million comprising:

S million

Construction cost 56.4

Architects and engineers fees .5

Land acquisition .2

Playground and !andscaping .1

Equipment and other costs

57.6

A comparison of the annual estimates and total estimated project cost as
disclosed in the Main and Supplementary Estimates from the inception of requests for
funding of the project in 1980—81 follows:

Li
.iJ >‘

U
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Annual Total Estimated
Estimates Estimate Project Cost

S million

1980—81 Main $ 800,000 $3
1931—82 Main 200,000 $5.8
1981—82 Supplementary 3,609,000 Not disclosed
1982—83 Main 2,400,000 $7.6
1982—83 Supplementary 1,276,000 Not disclosed
1983—84 Main 150,000 $7.9

Final approval should be based on full information. This criterion suggests
that, when a project is first conceived, approval should be given only for funds
required to conduct feasibility studies, develop a design and prepare cost estimates.
Final approval for expenditures on construction should be given only when adequate
and complete information is available following completion of design, scheduling and
assessment of site conditions so that the cost can be based on realistic estimates,
which are basic to analysis such as cost benefit studies and cash flow forecasts.

Procedures in place did not apparently follow the two-stage approval
process called for in the criterion, as evidenced by the manner in which the
information was disclosed in the Estimates, as referred to above, with the result that
approval of the project was obtained without the benefit of full and complete cost
estimates.

Projects implementation should be properly controlled. This criterion
suggests that managers should exercise control over projects during design and
construction to ensure that facilities of the approved size and quality are completed
on schedule and within the authorized budget. Adequate systems should be used to
control changes in design and to report progress, highlighting accountability for
decisions taken and results achieved.

In order to exercise proper control over pro!ect implementation,
responsibilities and accountabilities should be clearly defined and communicated and
accurate and complete information regarding the status of the project should be
available on a current basis. While the Department of Education had the overall
responsibility for the project it was not always formally informed by the Public Works
Branch of the status of the project. There was no formal reporting system to provide
the Department with regular information on progress of the construction in
comparison to plan; difficulties, if any, being experienced and possible changes in
completion date; comparisons of actual to estimated cost; details of change orders and
balance of funds available. The only documentation on file was a memo of October 31,
1981 providing a summary of consultants fees from June 1980 to September 1981
amounting to $494,000, and another dated April 23, 1932 which showed project costs of
$3.8 million to March 31, 1982 and an estimate and cash flow for 1982-83 in the
amount of $3.7 million.
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Completed projects should be reviewed. This criterion suggests that each
major capital project should be reviewed upon completon in order to ascertain
whether appropriate procedures were applied, economy and efficiency were observed
and objectives were achieved; to evaluate the performance of managers; and to
develop recommendations for planning and controlling similar projects in the future.

No post completion review had
one planned according to our information.

I)
fl
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Recommendations

1. A review of the Porter Creek
Junior Secondary project should
be carried out with a view to
developing recommendations for
planning and controlling similar
projects in future.

2. Capital project management
procedures currently being
developed by the Government
should be completed as soon as
possible and should include
sufficient detail to meet the
project management criteria
referred to above.

Government’s Comments

1.12. Draft capital project
management procedures have
been developed by the
Department of Government
Services and were submitted to
the Auditor General for review
and comment during the summer
of 1934. A subsequent meeting
took place in October 1934 and
it was agrced that more detail is
required. A final policy manual
is to be completed by April 1985
and will take into account the
observations and advice of the
Auditor General in his Report on
Any Other Matter, including, as
far as possible, our exoerience
with the Porter Creek Junior
Secondary School project.

17. Inadequacies in implementing New Micro—Computer Information System

During the year, the Corporation implemented a new micro-computer
information system. Implementation was effected with little regard to control over
the implementation process or of the need for adequate management and audit trails.
This led to extra audit effort so that we could meet our objective of reporting on the
Corporation’s financial statements. The Corporation came near to losing effective
control of its operations. For example, no claims were made on Canada Mortgage and
Housing Corporation for the 1933 calendar year until well after the year-end, as
referred to in 2 below.

A major problem with micro-computer systems is that it is not possible to
achieve the same deree of control over their operations, as is the case with large
computers. A measure or control, nowever, can be acnteved througn supervisory
control and segregation of duties for the opcrations of the micro-computer. Under
section 4 of this letter on the subject of cheque issue and cancelled cheques, we note
that cheques after being signed were being returned for mailing by the person

been completed fjr this project neither is

YUKON HOUSING CORPOPLATIO1T
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responsible for input of the data and preparation of the cheque. Perhaps only one of
these persons should input data, with another person determining the total and
approving the data to be input. Another person, independent of the input, should
approve the validity of the output.

Recommendation Corporation’s Comments

1. The Corporation should
a proper segregation of
ensure independent
the output.

establish
duties to

control of

I. The Finance and Administrative
duties of the Corporation have
now been assigned to the
Director of Finance and
Administration, Department of
Community and ‘ftansportation
Services, and his staff. The
management of computer
resources has been segregated
from the major finajicial users
and a computer useage policy
will be established.

The following control deficiencies
take corrective ac:Eon:

were noted on which it is possible tn

o persons, and the purposes for which they may use the computer, are net
being authorized in writing; -

o computer systems and procedures have not been documented so that they
can be incorporated into a users’ manual;

o changes were made to the computer software but documentation was not
always retained by the Corporation;

o primary data files do net have adequate physical controls (locked up); ar.d

o back-up plans have not been made to cover all parts of the system from the
software and documentation through to the person operating the system.

Recommendations

2. The Corporation should establish
priorities and develop procedures
for correcting the above
deficiencies as soon as possible.

Corporation’s Comments

2. Computer systems and
procedures are now in the
process of being documented in
the Financial Administration
M anu&.

All computer software has been
purchased in “packaged” form
and any customizing thereto has
been fully documented and
maintained by the vendor. The
Corporation has no intention to
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customize any key financial
programs (General Ledger,
Accounts Receivables and
Payables etc.) without full
documentation being retainod.
The Corporation will attempt to
obtain full documentation from
the vendor on the software in it’s
possession.

Procedures have now been
implemented to secure back-up
of all primary data files and
source programs in a separate
location. fl
Back-up plans to deal with all
contingencies are currently
being formulated.

3. A Senior Officer should monitor 3. The Director of Finance and
progress on development of the Administration, Department of
necessary procedures to ensure Community and Transportation
that they are dealt with quickly. Services will monitor progress on

all procedural developments.

18. Year—end closing

We agreed to defer our year-end audit visit until July 16, 1981 to provide
the Corporation with sufficient time for year—end closing and preparation of financial
statements. Despite repeated assurances that everything would be ready for our visit,
the preparation of the financial statements and supporting working papers was far
from complete or adequate. Draft financial statements were not available when we
began our audit. Many of the working papers were incomplete or inaccurate and some
contained ‘balancing adjustments’ which were not readily explainable. In order that
the delays being encountered by Corporation staff would not result in undue delays in
finalizing our audit we undertook a great deal of additional reconciliation and clean-Up
work to assist the staff. When we left on July 31, 1984 our audit was incomplete.
Draft financial statements were still not available and adjustments were still required
to many of the supporting working papers. We did not receive draft financial
statements until September 12, 1984. Because of the problems encountered we had to
make a second visit in the week ended October 5, 1981 to complete our field audit
work. Early identification of problems encountered and implementation of plans to
resolve them could have minimized these delays together with more effective planning
for year end closing, establishing priorities and closer monitoring of progress.

U
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Recommendations

1. Year end planning should
commence prior to the year end
and standardized procedures and
pro—forma working papers should
be developed to ensure the
timely preparation of complete
and reliable financial state
ments.

2. Target dates for completion of
the various phases of the yenr
end closing shoald be established
and monitored by a senior
officer, independent of the
accounting function.

Corporation’s Comments

1. Every attempt will be made to
close the year-end in a timely
and orderly fashion for 19S4—U5.
Implementation of standardized
proceduros and pro—forma
working pipers which will
commence in 1985—88, will
permit a timely and orderly
closing in subsequent fiscal
yeax.

2. It is the intention of the
Corporation to develop target
dates for completion of all
phases of the year—end elosin; in
the form of an instruction
manual. It is also the intention
of the Corporation to meet with
the Auditor General’s staff
before the year—end to plan
year—end audit requirements and
establish target dates for the
Corporation to meet those
requirements, as well as for the
Auditor General to complete his
audit and issue his report on the
Corooration’s financial
statements. This plan will be
monitored by senior officers of
both parties.

19. Claims on Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation

The Corporation recovers from Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation
(CMHC) a share of the operating losses on CMHC approved community housing
prujects for each calendar year. Under the terms of the related agreements, interim
claims based on estimates can be made in December and generally result in an initial
settlement of 95% of the claim. Until settlement is received the Corporation is in
effect, financing costs shareable by CMHC over a twelve-month period. In our
management letter of December 2, 1933 for the year ended March 31, 1983 we noted
that the Corporation was exploring with CMHC the possibility of making claims and
receiving settlement on a quarterly basis. If this were not possible, we had
recommended as an alternative that the Corporation should attempt to obtain
accountable advances from CMHC which could be accounted for on a quarterly basis.

The Corporation on Jar.uarv 25, 1934, in response to last ye-ar’s
management letter, advised that local CMHC representatives had agreed to the
Corporation submitting quarterly claims, once the information system was in place to
produce accurate and time!;’ information for the preparation of such claims. Our
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comments on mplementation of the new Computer System indicate that such a system
was not in place during the year. It is also evidenced by the increase of $722,000 in
the amount recoverable from CMHC which wan $1,434,000 at the year end compared
with $762,000 last year. The amou.,t outstanding at the year e.id included $1,096,000
tor CMHC’s estimatec snare ot operating losses ror the calenar year 1583, in respect
of which an interim claim had not been submitted during the year. This situation has
an adverse effect on the Corporation’s working capita!, which was being used to
finance the amount recoverable from CMHC, and necessitated additional working
capital advances from the Government. The 1983 claim for CMHC’s share of
operating losses was submitted on August 15, 1984 and paid by CMHC on September 7,
1984.

Recommendation Corporatio&s Comments

1. The Corporation should establish 1. A system will be established so
a system to ensure that claims that claims on CMHC are
on CMHC are prepared and prepared and submitted on a
submitted on a quarterly basis, quarterly basis for the fiscal
as agreed to by CMHC. year 1985—86.

20. Inadequate Internal Control System

An adequate system of internal control is the principal safeguard against
irregularities and errors. Without such a system, the Corporation exposes itself to
considerable risk, such as with the implementation of the new Computer System
referred to in 1. above.

In last year’s management letter we referred to a number of internal
control deficiencies on which we had made recommendations. These related to control
of blank cheques, purchasing function, signing authorities, invoices not being voided
after payment, bank reconciliations and journal vouchers not being approved. In the
Corporation’s response of January 25, 1984, it indicated that action had been taken on
each of these points except for the purchasing function, referred to further below. In
this case, it was indicated that corrective measures would be implemented with the
new financial management ir.formation system.

This yea:’s audit again revealed that signing authorities were being
improperly exercised, invoices were not being voided after payment, and bank
reconciliations and journal vouchers were not being approved. This may have been due
to t:ming delays in iaiplementing the recommendations in last years management
letter. However, in the case of blank cheques we noted that, while they were now
being stored in a locked cabinet, the key is kept in an unlocked drawer and is readily
accessible to anyone. We also noted the folfrwing control deficiencies during this
year’s audit.

Cheque issue and cancelled cheques. Stank cheq.es in use were being
stored in a safe, together with the signature plate and a signature stamp instead of U
being stored and controlled separately. Cheques requiring the ignature of the General
Manager werc bcing returned to the person responsible for the input of the data and
the preparation of the cheque for mailing, instead of being nailed independently. Four
cancelled cheques, HA17925 to 7 and HA17960, were said to have been destroyed and
could not be accounted for.

I3
U
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Recommendations

The signature plate and
signature stamp should be kept
in the safe in a locked box under
the control of a person
independent of the cheque issue
process.

2. Duties should be segregated to
ensure that one person cannot
carry out all the functions
related to cheque issue.

3. Cancelled chequer should be
voided but not destroyed.

Corporation’s Comments

1.12. Signature plates and stamps are
now being stored in a safe under
the control of the Director of
Finance and Administration,
Department of Community and
Transportation Services, who is
independent of the cheque issue
process.

3. All cancelled cheques will now
be voided but not destroyed.

Purchasing function deficiencies. No formal commitment control system
exists to ensure that funds are available to meet the proposed expenditures. We noted
several instances of non—compliance with the Contract By-law, Sections 6(4) and 13(1).
Contracts over $500 executed without the approval of the Board are required to be
reported in writing to the Board under Section 6(4) but this was not being done. A
contract exceeding $18,000 was executed without public tender, contrary to Section
13(4) which requires that contracts over $10,000 are to be the subject of public tender.

Recoin me nda lions

4. A commitment control system
should be established and main
tained to control expenditures.

5. Procedures should be established
to ensure compliance with the
Contract By-law.

Corporation’s Comments

4. The Corporation agrees that a
commitment control system is
worthwhile, and every attempt
will be made to implement a
commitment system in the
future.

5. Procedures are now being
developed to ensure compliance
with the Contract By-law.

Inadequate control of rental revenues from Housing Associations. Housing
rentals are collected by Housing Association managers and deposited in Association
bank accounts and subeçuently transferred by them to the Corporation.
Semi—monthly reports on rents collected by the Associations are sent to the
Corporation’s Program Administrator.

We noted two cases where significant delays occurred in Association’s
transferring their bunk balances at March 31, 1934 to the Corporation. Carmacks
Housing Association did not transfer its bank balance of $7,500 until June 7, 1984.
Dawson City Housing Association did not transfer its bank balance of $9,700 until
June 19, 1984. There was no evidence to indicate review and follow-up on the semi
monthly reports provided by Housing Associations as well as reconciliation with the
remittances received.



Recommendation

6. The Program Administrator
should ensure that rental
revenues collected by Housing
Associations are remitted on a
timely basis and reconciled with
their remittances.

Corporation’s Comments

6. Procedures are being developed
to ensure that rental revenues
collected by the local
associations are remitted on a
timely basis for subsequent
reconciliation on a scheduled
basis.

recommended that the draft Manual should be reviewed to ensure that it meets the
By-law requirements and adequately covers key controls and reconciliation procedures,
including financial and management reporting. \fer review and preparation of the
necessary procedures, we recommended that the Manual should be reviewed by the
Territorial Treasurer and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors.

The Corporation on January 25, 1984, in resDonse to last years
management letter, advised that the financial management system was currently in
the process of conversion and would result in signiuicar.t changes to procedures and
controls. When the controls were in place on completion of the conversion the
controls ;,‘ould be documented.

We have made reference ur.der the above sections of this Report to: U
• Segregation ot duties and det!clenc:es in implemenhng tne new computer

system (section 17);

o Delays in submitting claims on CMHC (section 19); and

o Internal control deficiencies (section 20).

These sections point to a dire need to get the Financial Administration Manual
prepared as soon as possible so that it can be reviewed by the Territorial Treasurer and
approved by the Board of Directors. Until this is done, and the staff are fully aware of
Corporation policies and procedures, the Corporation will continue to have serious
control problems.
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21. Completion of Financial Administration Manual

in last year’s management letter we referred to the Financial
Administration By-law of January 1, 1981 which outlines the Corporation’s financial
policies and requires the preparation of a Financial Administration Manual. The
Manual is to be reviewed by the Territorial Treasurer and approved :y the Board of
Directors. We r.oted that, while efforts had been made to develop the Manual, it was
essentially in draft form. It did not, however, give sufficient recognition to financial
controls and the r.eed for regulations. Neither did it deal with a number of matters
referred to in the By—law such as property accounts and interest on late payments. We

0
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Recommendations

1. The Corporation should review
the existing draft Manual to see
that it deals adequately with all
policies and procedures.

2. Priorities should be established
to develop any missing policiis
and procedures.

3. The developrn; nt of the missing
policies and procedures should be
closely monitored.

Corporation’s Comnents

It is the intention of the
Corporation to review to
existing draft Manual with a
view to identifying any
inadequacies with respect to
poli2ics and procedures.

2. Priorities in terms of missing
policies and procedures will be
established in 1935—36.

3. This will b monitored by the
Director of Finance and
Administration, Department of
Community and Transportation
SeAwices.
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Department of Justice
Box 2703, Whilehorse, Yukon ViA 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260

1985 02 14

N EN CPA 1’3D UN

To: Missy FolIwell
Clerk to the Public Accounts Committee

U
U

LE. Byers, Q.C.
Deputy Minister of Justice

RE: Public Accounts Committee Hearings

The foflowing are the responses to the questions
Falle relating to the relative revenue by alcohol

The relative sales for each of the three categories of alcohol
for 1983—84 are as follows: spirits, 40%, wine 14%, beer 46%.

The total liquor tax transferred to the Government of Yukon for
the fiscal year 1983—84 was $1,287,000 as shown on page 10 of the
Annual Report. Using the above noted percentages for the three
types of alcohol, the tax relating to each may be calculated as
follows: spirits $514,800, wine $180,180, beer $592,020.

The net profit (revenue) transferred to the Government of Yukon
may be calculated in a similar manner. Total revenue for 1983—84
was S4,513,000 as shown on page 8 of the corporation’s Annual
Report. A deduction of 772,000 must first be made for the cost
of bottle deposits. The adjusted net profit is thus $3,741,000.
Using the above—noted percentages for the three types of alcohol,
the net profit relating to each category is as follows: spirits
$1,496,400, wine $523,740 and beer $1,720,860.

L

N.E. Byers, Q.C.
Department of Justice

U
U
[

6
/‘1

0
U
UOur APe.

Your FiLe

FROM:

raised
category.

by Mr.
0

IC

0
C
U
U
U

The Department of Justice is aware of the limitations of these
calculations by alcohol category. However, the statistical
system is currently manual and no means exist to allow greater
specificity. The Yukon Liquor Corporation is presently in the
project identification stage for the development of a
comprehensive computerized system. It is anticipated that such
information will be gleaned from that system once it becomes
fully operational. ,No tire frame may be attached to tns project
at present.
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STAFFING ENTITLEMEN1 FORMULA FOR YUKON SCHOOLS

EFFECTIVE JULY 198’3

A staffing entitlement formula for all Yukon public schools wasestablished by Executive Council to becurne effective for the 1 98-85 schoolyear and thereafter. There v.’ere several reasons why this decision wastaken:

I) to ensure that a ievel of staffing was provided to each schoolsufficient to deliver quality education;

2) to ensure that staffing was equitable from school to school andamong the various levels; and.

3) to provide comprehensible information to principals and schoolcommittees on how staff is allocated.

TEACHING STAFF

A. Kindergarten

Half day kindergarten sessions will be established according to thefollowing schedule. One half time teacher eill be assigned to eachsession.

Six students and less (1—6) no sessionSeven to twenty students (7—20) 1 session —Twenty—one to forty students (21.—’10) 2 sessionsForty—one to sixty students (111_GO) 3 sessionsSixty—one to eighty students (111—80) 1 sessions

Alter kindergarten staff has been assigned to a school additionalsessions will be added only when the average of the numbers ofstudents in the various existinc sessions in that sch:u exceedstwenty flv (25).

Examples

School A - projected Kindergarten enrollment — 39 students39 studentc falls in (21—40) c?ltcqcry = 2 sessions = I teacherIn September 143 students show up for kindergartenDoes the school get another session?
To determine the answer, take the average of session sizes and seeif it exceeds 25.
Suppose that the 113 students arc- in sc-ssibns of 2 and 21.22 21 2 = 21 .5; this is less than 25 so tha1 an additionalsession will not be established.
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School B — Projected Kindergarten ciirol!n;ent — 20 students
20 students fall into the (7—203 ctcqnry t I SeSSIOn .5 teacher
In September 26 students show up for kindergarten
Since there is only one session with 26 students and this exceeds [125, the school will be given another session.

B. Elementary (In Urban Schools Grades 1—6; in Rural Schocls Grades

1 . Where the projected elementary school population for Septemberexceeds 75 students, teichers will be assigned according to thefollowing formula.

a. Grades 1—3: one teacher for every twenty—three students to
a maximum 01 one teacher for every twenty—eight students.

Example

School C (Urban) has a projected elementary school
population of 170; of these 84 are in Grades 1 to 3. To get
the teacher entitlement do as follows:

84 23 = 3 teachers. Now the number of students per 0teacher may not exceed 23 so multiply 28 x 3 to get the
maximum number of students permissible with 3 teachers.
28 x 3 = 89; 3 teachers is correct.
In September 85 students show up; with 3 teachers thiswould
amount to 28.3 (85 3) students per teacher and so exceed
the maximum. Another teacher must be added.

b. Grades 4-6 (Urban) or lj—7 (RUral): one teacher for every
twenty seven students to a maximum of one teacher for
every thirty two s tuden Ls

Example U
School D (Rural) has a prrected elementary schoot
population of 110; of these 65 nrc in grades 14 7 To qet
teeacher entitlement do n follt’;s:

55 27 7 teachers. Now the nur.ber 0 students or
teacher may not exceed 32 si multiply 32 x 2 to qet the
maximum number of students permissible with 2 te,chers.
32 x 2 = 6;; since there nrc 55 students another teacher
must he added to give 3 teachers. UIn September only 59 students shov. up and as this falls
\vithnl the range for two teachcrs( 59 77 r 2 nrd 59 is less
tiFtn 514, the naximui:. pcridssihle 1cr 2 teachers), the staff
in Septenibe r will be reduced by one. U



1. Where the projected elurneri tz ry schoo p(.pul;: hon for
September is 75 students or less, teachers will be assigned
according to the follnwinq schedule (Grades 1—6 Urban and
1-7 Rural)

under 11 students - no entitlement
11 to 25 students — I Lu:cher
26 to 50 students - 2 teachers
SI to 75 students — 3 teachers.

C. Secondary (Urban Grades 7-12; Rural Grades 8-12)

Where the projected secondery school populatibn for September
exceeds one hundred (lOU) students, teachers wiU he assigned
according to the following formula.

One teacher for every twenty three (23) students to a maximum
of twenty eight (23) students.

Example

School E has a projected secondary school population of 310.
To get the teacher entitlement do as follows.
310 23 = 13 teachers; with 13 teachers the maximum
permissible number of studen’s is 13 x 28 = 364 and as 310 is
well within this no additional teachers must be added.
In September 342 students show up and as this falls within the
range for 13 teachers (up to 364) no additional teachers need be
added.

2. Where the projected secondary school p:3ulutinn for September is
one hundred (100) students or less, teachers will be assigned
according to the following schedules.

a. For schools enrolling any combination of grades 7 (Urban
only) 8, 9, or 10

under 11 students — no entitlement
11 to 25 students — 1 nacher
26 to 50 students - 2 teachers
SI to 75 students — 3 tuaclurs
71 to 100 studerltF — :terichers.

V For schools enrolling any combination of secondary grades
which include Gradc:. 11 and/or 12

up to SO students 5 teachers
51 to 100 students — 5 teachers.
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ADMINISTRATI\’E STAFF

Administrative stall re allocated over and above the teaching staff according
tu the following schedule, in calculating the Lotdl projected September
enrollment for a school kin&rgarten numbers are divided by Iwo before
being added to th.e noii—kiridergartcii total.

Students fri School Administrative Staff

0-40 .1
111—80 .2
81—120 .3

121—160 . 14
161—200
205 —2jG .6
241—280 .7
281—320 .8
321—360 9
361—1400 1.0
1401 —14i0 1 .1
14111—430 1.2
‘181—520 1.3
521—560 1.l
561—500 1.5
601—640 1.6

- 641—680 1.7
681—720 1.8

- 721—760 1.9
761—800 2.0

SCHOOL COUNSELLORS

School counsellors will be assigned to secondary schools according to the 0foHowing schedule.

175 - 250 .ScounseHor U250 — 525 1 counsellor
525 — 000 2 counse!lnrs

Secondary schools \\hich do no: qualify for a school courisehcg \vIl hivo suchservices pr ovjded by existing staff. As is:arcc is available o :i’o’: inrcughthe Student Services Coird;nator attached to t c Departinail o r o:caton.There is no allocation for school counsellors at the elementary level

U
• U

E



LIBRARIANS

Librarians will be allocated to schools b3scd on the projected Septemberenrollment. Regardless of changes in the enrollment of a school after theinitial projection, the librarian allotment will be neithtr increased ordecreused during the course of the year. To derive the total enrollment ofa schoul kindergarten nur2bers arc divided by tv.o hefore being added tothe non kindergarten totii

Total Student Enrollment Librarians

0 — 75 no allocation76 — 200 .2
201 — 1400
1400 — 800 1

SPECIAL EDUCATION

Special education teachers and paraprofessionals are not allocated on aformula basis. Characteristics and numbers of the students in a school willdetermine whether that school receives the services of a learning assistant,special class teacher or remedial tutor. Concerns about the need for specialeducation personnel should be addressed to the regional superintendents.

DEPLOYMENT OF STAFF WITI-IIN A SCHOOL

Considerable latitude exists for a school principals in consultation with theirschool committees to deploy the staff given to them under the entitlementformula in the manner best suited to meet local needs. Any major deviation,such as increasing class size so as to free a teacher to deliver a specialistservice, should receive prior consent from the regional superintendent.Care should be taken to see that the program of studies is followed.
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Departmsnt of Education, Advanced Our File:

Education and Man wer Your File:

Box 2703, Whitehorse, Yukon Y1A 205
(403) 537-5811 Telex 036-8-260 February 19, 1935

A COMPARISON OF THE SCHOOL LEVEL PROFESSIONAL TEACHING FORCE DEPLOYED DURING THE
1982-83 AND THE 1983-84 SCHOOL YEARS B
The following document compares the number of professional staff actually deployed U
at the school level during two school years, viz., 1982—83 and 1933—84.

Regular Special Ed. Native Language TOTAL
Teachers Teachers Teachers

1982-83(at April) 266.33 22.0 2.0 290.33 II
l983—84(at April) 259.85 25.0 2.0 286.85

Reduction in Professional Staff from 1982—83 to 1983-84 3.48

0
NOTES TO ABOVE:

1. “Regular Teachers” includes classroom teachers, principals, librarians and U
counsellors.

2. “Special Ed. Teachers” include learning assistants and special class teachers
in 1982—33 and learning assistants, special class teachers, alternate educa
tion class teachers and teachers of the gifted in i983—8%.

3. The monies identified in Supplementary Main Estimates Number One for Gifted
Education and Alternate Education were used to pay the salaries of the
co—ordinators and to purchase materials for the program as well as to cover
the costs of travel for the co-ordinators and professional development for
teachers -

4. Since “Special Ed. Teachers” work directly it classrooms with students, the
addition of more has the implication of reducing the requirement (or the
workload) for “Regular Teachers”.

5. Please note the following in regard to information provided to the Public U
Accounts Committee in Appendix A7.

a) The figure of 266.33 regular teachers derived from the Organi zation Chart
date April 1983 is an actual figure based on a count of regular teachers

7

-

0



deployed at that time.

b) The figure of 255.45 regular teachers derived from the Organization Chart
dated April 1984 is an estimate prepared in the previous school year of
the likely number of regular teachers required to operate the schools
during 1 983—84. This figure should not be confused with the acutal figure
shown in the table above.

6. The reduction in professional staff from school year 1982—83 to school year
1983-84 of 3.48 P.Y. represents a monetary value of $81,200. In a budget of
well over $20,000,000 this amount represents a small increase to the total
financial resources of the education system.

Ron Wallace
Assistant Deputy Minister
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Dsp artment 01 Ftnance
Box 2703 Whtehorse, Yukon Y1A2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-6-260

1985 02 20
U

?4EMORND13M TO:

ATTENTION:

Patrick Michael
Clerk of the Legislative Assembly

Missy Foliwell

U
U
0

SUBJECT PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE

U

Attached is a schedule for the Public Accounts
showing a breakdown by area of the property tax

receivable as at March 31, 1984.

There were a total of 4502 property tax accounts, 809
of which had outstanding balances varying from $1.00 to a high
of $60,323.43.

-,

F.B. Fingland
Deputy Minister

P H, w n

cc: C.W Pearson

U
U
U
U
U
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PAC #19(a)
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OurFe 4410—1
Ycut File

Committee

0
0
U

I trust this information meeis with your recJJiremcnts -

Minister of Finance

[
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COVEt’ NMENT OF YUKON
STATEMENT I ASSETS

AS Al MARCEl 31, I 984

ACCOt.INT 99-- £4122 ACCOUNI’>

Summary of Taxes Onit anclno
Property Ta\es

Taxes and
P ena Interest

Computer error small H Inces
1.00 - 10.00 deleted 503.14 503.14

451 ,523.50 — 183,096.65 634,620.55

AND LIAIILITIES

Area No.

ECEIVAflLE - PROPERTY TAXES

flalance

05 Quad 105 A,B,!) & E 91,805.58 27,704.29 119,509.87
06 Sundry YuI:on 368.62 4’; .20 412.82
07 beaver Creek 1,011.28 171.66 1, 182.94
09 Burwash Landiin; 691. 9’; 331 .87 I ,023 .81
13 Carcross I 40’; .17 140 .69 1,544 .86
15 West Yukon 40,933.73 15,189.86 56,123.59
16 DawsonArea 68,511.21 21,233.02 89,744.23
17 Herschel IsrarRI 110.00 8.10 1 18. 10
25 DesiructionB;,v 7,930.20 £4,510.17 12,440.37
27 EIsa .78 0 .78
29 Faro Mine I; .96 0 4.96
33 Haines Junction 28,259.56 9,381.30 37,600.86
39 Keno 18,931.28 10,606.79 29,538.07
47 Mayo 36,901.26 16,039.95 52,941.21
48 Mayo Area 2, 115.48 440.09 2,555.57
50 Carrnacks 3,083.20 66’; .18 3,747 .38
SI OldCrow 365.68 33.75 399•13
53 Pelly Crossing 2,247.19 236.01 2,483.20
55 Ross River 5,024.88 1,540.51 6,565.39
65 Teslin 8,936.03 3,776.05 12,712.08
68 Watson Lake 57,216.95 14,676.47 71,893.42
75 CancuIIedLea 74,212.3% 56.3:1.74 130,St.09
95 Quad 95 954.03 65.95
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Department of Community Our File

and Transportation Seices Your FiIo

Box 2703, Whitehorse, Yukon, YIA 206
(403) 667-5811 TeFex 036-8-260

SPORT, ARTS & RECREATION

February 27, 1985 -

U
TO: Missy Foliwell

Clerk Assistant A—9

FROM: Rick Butler

Manager L—1

RE: Clarification of 1983/84 Estimates

As requested by Mr. Ashley in Public Account Coin:uittee proceedings of

February 19, 1985, I provide the following infor;nation to help clarify the

1983/84 estimates for Recreation.

1. The grants appearing under the subtitles Community and Pool on

page 56 are not detailed in any further form on page 48 or 49.

Recreation contributions to community authorities ($127,000) are,

however, detailed on page 47.

2. Under the subtitle Sport, Games and Fitness on page 56, the

contributions to territorial sport governing bodies for 1983/84

($209,000) includes the sum of the following:

— the amount on page 48, under Yukon Recreation Advisory

Cormnittee Contrihutions disbursed to Sport Governing Bodies

— $130,000;

— plus $79,000 which was approved beyond the Yukon Recreation

Advisory Comaittee’s jurisdiction for cost of sports governing

body travel to the 1981 Arctic Winter Games in Yellowknffe.

3. Similarly, under the same section on page 56 for 1982/83, the

$134,000 amount includes the sum of the following:

— the amount on page 43, under Yukon Recreation Advisory

Committee Contributions, disbursed to sport governing bodies

— 128,000;

— plus $6,000 which was approved beyond the Yukon Recreation

Advisory Committees jurisdiction for cost of travel

respecting Canada Winter Games in 1983. 0
U
L
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4. Under Sport, Games and Fitness on page 56, the contributions to
both the Yukon Sports Federation for general programs, and Arctic
Winter Gaines Corporation are not contained in any further form on
page 48. The grant of $10,000 to Yukon Sports Federation for
Arctic Games administration is, however, included us part of the

$39,000 Recreation Branch costs of the 1984 Arctic Winter Games

(as detailed on page 48).

5. Under the rts Section on page 56, the contributions to
territorial arts programs for 1983/84 of $63,000 is detailed on
page 49. The 1982/83 forecast of $36,000 in the same section was
reported in the Branch work sheets as $35,300. This was
inconsistently rounded off to $36,000 on page 56 and $33,000 on
page 49.

It is apparent that details which appear in the estimates must be better
explained. The problem is that budget work sheets, which the Branch
submits, contain much more information then what appears in the final
published estimates. For purposes of brevity, the detailed information is
summarized. This summariiing process is largely to blam.. for the lack of
clarity. The 1985/86 Estimates will contain clearer information.

Thank you.

Rick Butler

cc: Jim Davie, Deputy Minister, Educatioft
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Department oc Heaith and Ow F’Human Resources
Your File:Eox 2703, Whhehorse, Yukon Y1A 2C6

(403) 667-5811 Te)ex 036-8-250
-

N E N 0 R A N D U N

U
1986.02.28 03 : j

TO: Chairman
Public Accounts Comittee

FROM: Deputy Minister
Health S Human Resources

RE: Proceedings of Public Account Corrniittee — 1985.02.21 0
Please find appended supplementary information respecting the enquiriesof the Public Accounts Coimnittee into Health Care Insurance Planpremiums. I trust this is the information the Coriinittee requires.

U
B

W. J. Klassen

WJK/jf
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1. Cocoplaints Concerning the New Health Care Insurance Cards

There have been only a few complaints respectin: the new health careinsurance cards, and those have been dealt witi by telephone. Errorsto date have resulted from members returning the old information,uncorrected, thus perpetuating mistakes in the computer file. Thecase raised by the Leader of the Opposition was investigated, withthe input documents re-checked, and found to be of the same type.

2. Discrepancy Between Revenue Reported
— 1983/84

The figure of $2,315,323 shown in the Annual Report was drawndirectly from the General Ledger. The Department ot iTEZfth and HumanR€sources was not notified by Finance of adjustments made — by theAuditor General’s office — after the closing of the General Ledgerfor 1983/84. Those adjustments account for the full difference.

Finance has agreed to provide the Department with information in thefuture respecting adjustments which occur folloing the closing ofthe General Ledgar.

3. Report on the Frequency Nature of ExaDYnation of Employer’s Records

For the period June 1984 to February 1985, payroll record investica—tions have been undertaken by the Health Care Insurance PlanInspector. Employer record investigations are limited to payrollrecords unless other records are required to establish premiumliability.

Two circumstances precipitate such an investigation. First, if acompany is found to be unregistered and liable for health carepremium remittance on behalf ot the Company employees, explanation ofthe Employer responsibility under the Health Care Jnsurance Plan Actis provided, along with the necessary documentation forms and aninvestigation of payroll records is undertaken to establishoutstanding premium liability in arrears. Most frequently, anappointment is made by the inspector to perform such an investigationat an alternate time which is mutually convenient to both parties.The Inspector has authority to issue a $30 ticket on the spot forfailure to remit premiums, but to date, no such tickets have beenissued. An additional imposed financial penalty has not beenrequired to obtain compliance under the Act.

Second, if a company is registered and has premium liability in
arrears, an investigation rVTe uK]ertaken to establish whether theEmployer has failed to deduct premiums from Employees and/or whetherthe Employer has subsequently failed to remit the deducted premiums(which could -constitute a case of fraud). The sar steps to arrangefor the records investigation and provide information regardingresponsibility under the Act, are taken as outlined earlier. Todate, only one (1) Company has been prosecuted in Court for failureto remit premiums. The form letter that would be used as an initial
contact with out—of—Whitehorse Employer groups is appended to thissubmi s Zion.



. Receivable Shown at Year End

The receivable shown in the Territorial accounts is arrived at by anaccounting convention. Some years ago, it was denonstrated that thereceivable at year-end consistently approximated 5% of the amountcollected over the year. Given the enormous manual task of tryingto calculate from the ledgers the actual amount each year, theconvention has been applied. That convention will be dropped whenthe premium system is computerized, as the actual will be available.
The cowinents made
respecting the amounts receivable
receivablc as distinct from the year
year. The total receivable is
reliability, as it cannot be
liabilities were real rather than a
an account or to identify a shift fr
It is proposed that a mechanism be e
that historic liability which dates

were directed at the total
end receivable for a particular
the figure which has little
demonstrated that historical
function of a failure to close

om Group to Individual account.
stablished to write—off much of
back to 1972.

verbally by the Director of Health Services

U
U
U
U
U
U
U
U
0
U
0
U
U
U
U
U
U
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PREMI UMS

Calculation Of Preniiurn Liability/Receivables

TOTAL SLPBSCRIBERS AT PERIOD 7 12,436

1. TOTAL FAMILY SUBSCRiBERS 6,118 RATE TOTAL $FULL PREMIUM 5,242 S25O fl4Tj55
PARTIAL ASSISTANCE 17 $13.75 S 233.75
FULL PREMIUM ASSISTANCE 133 0 0
SENIORS 726 0 0

2. TOTAL LIABILITY — FAMILY $144,388.75

3. TOTAL SINGLE SUBSCRIBERS 6,318 RATE TOTAL S
FULL PREMIUM 5,961 2O7O0 $1 W,2LTO
PARTIAL ASSISTANCE 28 $10.00 280
FULL ASSISTANCE 58 0 0
SENIORS 0 0

TOTAL LIABILITY - SINGLE $119,500

3. TOTAL MONTHLY PREMIUM LIABILITY $263,883.75

4. AVERAGE REVENUE PER PERIOD TO PERIOD 7 $257,700.00

5. THEREFORE: Average Monthly Arrears of $11,800.00

FULL ASSISTANCE PARTIAL ASSISTANCE
1983/81 1YBZWSS T983784 19E41S5

FAMILY 48 133 6 17

SINGLE 46 58 17 28

REVENUES TO PERIOD 9 $2,005,340
PROJECTED $1 ,5?4,000
VARIANCE S (481,340)
fl n
LU I TUOtUI Wi,

(Year End) $2,200,000

REVISED PROJECTION
(Year End) $2,345,000

ANTICIPATED REVENUE OVER PROJECTION $235,000
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NENC) TO: MS. M. FCLWELL
SEC R F TAR
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

FROM: JOHN FERBEY
DEFtLY MINIS1.ER
ECONOMIC RLVELCI’N liNT E. TOURISM

St’?JE:T: P .A. C. Request ro : Covermrnt
Ptoranizaion Fecur;rLnda OI15

I have di
to advise vat)
in the public

Cut s::.

scusc d the Comrni it cc’s request with my
that the consul taut S reports are not
doma in. As a result, I am unable’

Minister and wish
considered to be
c:’-121v with the
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Deputy Niniste
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Department of Economic
Development and Tourism
Gox 2703, Whitehorse, Yukon Y1A 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 035-3-250

a

Our FjIB; EDT —28
Your File.

March 15, 1985
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Pubhc Service Commission Our rile

Box 2703, Whftehorse Yukon ViA 2C6 Thur File.
(103) 667-5811 Telex 036-6-260

1985 March 14

.1 9Y3

Hr. T-. Penikett,
Chairman,
Public Accounts Committee,

Dear Mr. Penilcett:

Re: Delegated Authority — Casual 1-tires

The Public Service Corn mission is in the process of finalizing
procedures for the hiring of casuals both under delegated and without
delegated authority.

These procedures are part of a Recruitment Manual that is being
developed for use by all departments - There will he a review of the
manual by the Departmental Administrator’s Liaison Committee on
March 19, 1985 and it should be in place by the end of March.

Yours s5cereh’

esier
blic Service Commissioner.

PC/jp

EXPO

-: cr
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Box 2703

Whitehorse, Yukon
ViA 2C6

February 25, 1985 fl
Mr. Jim Davie UDeputy Minister
Department of Education
Government of Yukon
Box 2703
Whitehorse, Yukon
Y1A 2C6

Dear Mr. Davie:

Duriig the Department’s appearance before the Public Accounts Cormitteeon February 18th and 19th, 1985, you were advised that the Cori;mittee U
may require some additional infoniiation. The following summarizesrequests by the Committee für that information: U1) Transportation — the Committee requests a copy of theDiversified Transportation Ltd. busing contract and relevant costinformation related to the contract for the years 1982/83 and 1983/84.

2) Personnel — the Committee wishes a further clarification ofpersonnel redistribution in the Public Schools Branch for the year Uunder review (1983/84). According to the organizational charts provided,there is no identification of qifted and alternate program teachers,or consultants, in April of i983. However, by April of 1984, thereare 6 new gifted and alternate program teachers, as well as four new“consultant” positions.

Your memo to the Committee of February 19, 1985, does not address the Ucreation of these new positions, in relation to the apparent reductionof “regular” classroom teachers. What actual reductin of regularclassroom teachers took place in the year under review (exclusive ofgifted and alternate personnel)?

3) Advanced Education and Manpower:

fla) Yukon Campus — Please provide a breakout by course category
of the 186 students who took courses during the year under

U
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review. Please indicate by category students who tookdifferent numbers of courses, types of courses, endfull—year students. Also, indicate the number of practisingand non—practising teachers participating in the categoriesprovided.

b) Statistical discrepancies — The Committee notes thatstatistical information provided in the Yukon GovernmentAnnual Report varies with information provided in theBranch Annual Report. Could you please explain thesediscrepancies and offer an explanation as to why thisoccurs.

c) Vacant positions — Exactly which vacant positions werefilled during the year under review that, according tothe hearings, accounted for the majority of personnelcost increase5? If the positions existed but were simplyvacant, why is an increase required between budget yearsfor such positions?

d) Recoveries — Please advise the origin of each of therecovery items listed on page 54 of the Main Estimates.Are any of these “revenue” items, as opposed to recoveries?
4) Maintenance — Does the Department maintain a preventativemaintenance program in its schools? If so, how is it budgeted forand carried out?

The Cournittee looks forward to hearing from you at your very earliestconvenience. Thank you.

Sincerely,

%7__y;fl d.-e/
Missy Follwell
Clerk to Committee
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Department of Education. Advanced
Education and Manpower
Box 2703, Whilehorse, Yukon ViA 206
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260

Uj f.YoD/!

ME MD RAN DU K

Missy Foliwell A—9

Jim Davie

Public Accounts U
U

In response to your letter of February 25, 1985, the Department
has prepared the responses for a number of the items requested
by the Public Accounts Committee. The remaining items are
being finalized by the Finance and Administration section of
the Department and will be forwarded to you as soon as they
are completed.

ith respect to your letter, the following are the answers,
on a point by point basis:

1. Attached as Appendix 1, please find the contx act
sheets for the Diversified bussing contracts for
and 1983/84. Appendix 2 provides information on
dollar costs and the constant dollar costs of the
from 1975/76 to 1984/85.

3. ADVANCED EDUCATION AND MANPO’.JER

a) Yukon College Academic Program: UAttached in Appendix 3 is the summary record of the students
in each course category and the number of full—tine and
part—time students, for the academic year 1963/84.

EXPO

Our F,e

You’ Fie

March 18, 1985.

U
U
U
U

TO:

FR OK:

RE:

E- 1

U
U

U
U
U
U

summary
1982/83
the current
contract

It should be noted that 176 active students are reported
in the attached information, whereas the statistics provided
to the Public Accounts Committee indicate 185 active students.
This discrepancy of 12 students can be explained by the

L

C
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fact that the student count used in the preparation of
the Public Accounts report was for the fiscal year end
(ie. March 1984), while the figures in the attached College
information reflect the academic year statistics at the
end of the winter term. The data indicates that 12 students
cropped out of courses cetween March and ear]y May.

The Department regrets that specific information on the
number of practising and non—practising teachers participating
in each course category is not available. The occupational
history of College students is not presently kept on record.
However, the post—secondary academic program at the College
has 2 main mandates:

1) to provide a first and second year University
level program; and

2) to provide courses for the professional develop
ment of teachers.

With this in mind, it is likely that a large portion of
the students in the 300 and 400 level courses offered
by the College would be teachers, as these courses are
specifically aimed at that target group.

4. MAINTENANCE IN THE SCHOOLS

The school services section of the Public Schools Branch
has four people responsible for minor maintenance at the
schools and school yards in the Territory. They have
instituted a preventative maintenance program for the
school heating systems and the school playground equipment.
However, the majority of maintenance in schools is the
responsibility of Government Services and the Public Accounts
Committee may wish to consult with Government Services
to determine the extent of preventative maintenance in
the schools in their area of jurisdiction.

I hope that this information will be of use to the Committee.
As indicated above, the remaining material will be forwarded
as ouickiy as it is prepared.

N
CArc

Jim Davie
‘JDeputy Minister

Education, Advanced Education
and Manoower

CH:j.k
Attachments:
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1g83/84

Of:IG]AL (n:1XAC1 : June/83 AMOUNT:

_______________

REVISEI): DATE August/B] AMOUNT: 9l.DO.OO

REVISED: DATE

_______________________

AMOUNT:

_______________

REViSED: DATE AMOUNT:

____________

REVISED: DATE AMOUNT:

____________

TO iNCLUDE: ORIGINAL CONTRACT

ii 72 passenger school buses serving Whitehorse Schocs as
as s gre

2 72 passenger school buses operating in Watson Lake area

54 passenger school bus servicing Carmacks area

— Kindergarten — Whitehorse a.m.

4 i nde rgarter — Whitehorse p -n-.

I Kindergarten — Watson Lair

I Kindergarten — Carmacks

— To provide school bus service between Kono, Elsa a Mayo

A:-: TIONS:

To pro’.i de bus service between Rena’, Lisa and Kayo for i Q2:—s - school tern-



ADDITIONAL: DATE: September/82 AN!OL’NT: 23ICL.6L

TO iNCLUDE: ORIGINAL CONTFACT

1

1.

I

I

serving Wh
assigned — including lace runs

72 passenger school buses operating

54 passenger school bus servicing Ca

Kindergarten— -chicehorse a.r. -

Kindergarten — Whi tehorse p

Kindergarten — Wa:son Lak

Kindergarten — Carmacks

To provide school bus service teiween
72 passenger bus

itchorse Schoos as

it’ Vatson Lake area

macks a rca

RE’:ISED Cc.

To delete

To dclet&

LTRACI DECREASES

— 72 passenger

— 72 passenger

THE CRICINAL cN:UNT C 1115. CON1?.AL: AS i3LL:S:

schoo’ bus servire VHtehorse s.m!,e’

school bus operating between KoncCi:v arc Navo

(Crange Order.

Sc h c 01

LDNTRACT

Issued Ecr:eobcr/S2: 10 5U 1’ buss inr [ err Scpcerrt’e r 5 to Sc: t er—br r 15/SC
[or Keno/Mavo (service and severance)

To supply ccc busses inierin facilitatina relocation
of Porter Creek Junior Secondary pupils Septenber I
to October 3i 19P

IEAI: 1982/83

ov;TAL CONI PACT: ()ATi January/82 AMflUN1

ELVI SE: TE September/82 AMlrN1

REVISED: DATE AMOUNT:

REVISED: DATE AMOUNT:

REVISED: DATE AMOUNT:

965. :25.92

S 5L, 2 .70

13 72 passenger school buses

Keno, )ZtI an NavoSchools
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l9g386 Current Course Enrollments

The current enrollment of a course is based, whenever possible, on thepreliminary class list (P.C.L.) minus the formal withdrawals to date.The P.C.L. reflects the actual registrations in the course as notedby the Registrar’s Office, lJ.B.C., shortly after it begins whether itbe September or January.

Since Geography 102 and ilathematics 100 ended in December, the 12thof that month was the last date at which their enrollments could beassessed.

Finally, attrition is calculated as a simple percentage:

Current Enrollments
x 100 = Attrition RatelnLtkal Enrollments

because the above figure does not rake into account “vanishing acts(students who simply do not return to class and do not submit a formatwithdrawal) it is helpful to note the number of active stud.nts ——those who regularly attend classes and who can be expected to receivea grade. Then the completion rate can be forecasted as a simplepercentage

Active Enrollment.
—- x 100 rorecastedinitial Enrollments
Completion

initial Current AttritionCourse Enrollment Withdrawals Enrollment Race Active

5iologv ID? 11 3 25 (0)
Econcrics 103 12 10 16.5 (10)
Encltsh 100 30 25

English 201 9 I S II (6)
EngHsh 303 5 1 4 20 (4)
French liD 5 5 16.5 (5)
C.eograrh IC] (I !) )7 3 I 7.5 (16)
Cenzr.zv 0) (lb) 15 13 ii (12)
c-i•- ic:

Hi si orv 135 15 2 13 13 (It))
Lin1,uistics 200 Il 10 (1)



Initial Current Attrition
Course Enrollment Wic!idratals Enrollment ;{atc-h Active

Mathematics 100
-

(lb) 12 3 25 (9)

Mathematics 101
(1%) 7 0 7, o (6)

Psychology 100 20 1 19

Psychology 206
(C.1.S.) 16 0 16 (15)

Sociology 200 13 0 13 0 (9)

Education 1.79 17 2 15 6 (13)

Education 3!2
(1%) 6 0 6 0 (6)

Education 317
(1%) 6 0 6 0 (6)

TOTAL 239 25 216 lfl 176
- Initial Uithdrauals Current Attrition Active
Enrollment Enrollment Rate

Anticipated Co-plction Rate, i.e. a grade of F, F, 2, 1 given — 72l.

IT. Com?arisons: 19S2/3 — 1953/86

A. 932/E3 i-:: C’js Enrol lr,ent

Tot a I :1--:-t s i r c I ud i ng ext r as e S SI OILI I - ci Inch

Total of cot;rsc registrations including ex:ra—session.iI
enrollnents: - 213

- (H /22)

lull time 20 - Arts 30

._22 Ethic. 52

-tO
Otner

I 0

Yukon ColIcie :lroIl :lil’.[ (1 0

9ntal -;ucll:; :ucitidint extrasQssjoi:aI -:i,l ii;i,nH. •_

_ltClIll.IlIt
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C. !eçistrations/Studen:

1982/83: 1.9

19S3/8:

J. A.erai:c Class

I 982/83:

I 983/EL:

C S

DC)

otol 102

Econ IOU

Educ 3!)

I I

2.1 (without extrasessionil cnrc1l:-.,ncs)

Size

191/19 =

239/I? =

IS

II

9

I

7

8

II. IL Cont

Tot a
se ss

Full

Part

nuc ci

I ft of students for lRntcr Terms I II, to dac:

1ff of course registrations NOT including extra—
ional enrollments:

cimc 2) Arts 65

time 90 Educ. JO

113
Other 10

113

Student/Coursc

10.5 students/c lass

I2.5? students/class Ct: a:

p

109

2)9

I ‘]s 3,’ 8’.
ir:1;i Ln:oIIr:ics

II

Ii

17

30

S



[1. L. I,’ SLildents/Course Corit LflLICCI

1983/86
Course 1982/83 Initial Enrollments

EngI 303 6 5

Fron 110
5

Ceog 102
19

Geog 103
15

Ceol 105 17 15

Ceol 310
. 3 0His 135 10 15

Ling 200
—— I!

Nath 100 . 7 12

:ath 101 5

Phil tOO IS

Psyc 100 Ii 20

Soci 700
11 0

sct 206 (CIS) I...

Ethic 312 6

191

Extracssiona1 USprin;:. 1953

Ethic 305 7

201

15

-,

7



‘ 3

Department of Education, Advanced Our File 1400—6 2
Education and Manpower YOU, File
Box 2703. Wnitehorse, Yukon Y1A 2C6
(403) 667-5811 Telex 036-8-260

March 25, 1985.

gJ.t
, Y .7 2 S

MEMORANDUM:

TO: Missy Foliwell

FROM: Jim Davie

RE: Public Accounts -

As a follow—up to my letter of March 18, 1985, I have received the remaining
information to answer the questions that the Public Accounts Conmdttee requested
via your letter of February 25, 1955. As you realize, some of the materials
required some research and we are just now able to satisfy the requests.

With respect to your letter, the following are the answers, on a point by
point basis:

2) Personnel — Request for clarification of personnel distribution in the
Public Schools Branch.

At the time the organization chart dated April, 1983
was prepared, we did not have a structured Gifted or
Alternate program. However, there were two teachers in
the Work Experience Program (located at F.H. Collins).
These two positions were included in the numbers for
regular teachers.

The Gifted and Alternate programs were established and
structured in the fall of 1983. Funding for these new
thrusts in Education was received via the “new project
and program proposals”. The implementation of these
new programs together with an internal branch re—organ
ization resulted in the restructuring of some existing
positions, the creation of two additional positions and
the forming of an “Educational Consultant” unit under
the direction of the Director of Instructional Services
(previous working title was Director of Student Services).
The Educational Consultant positions are outlined in the
organization charts as follows:

/2
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April, 1983 April. 1984

Superintendent of Curriculum became
Consultant for Curriculum

Intermediate Supervisor became
Consultant for Intermediate
Grades

Primary Supervisor became
Consultant for Primary Grades

Regional Supt. (Rural South) became
Consultant for Alternate
Programs
New Position
Consultant for Special Education
New Position
Consultant for Gifted Programs

— As outlined above, the April 1983 figures on that organization
chart included the two Work Experience teachers with the figure
for regular teachers. These two positions are reported as
Alternate Program Teachers in the April 1984 chart. Also, on
a close perusal of the April 1984 organization chart for the
Public Schools Branch, I have discovered a few minor errors:

— Alternate Program teachers should have been reported as 2.0
in area 1 and 0 in area 2.

— There should have been a position of Oil Burner Mechanic
reporting to the Building Maintenance Foreman.

— There was an error of 1 in the addition of P/Y.

I am attaching a revised chart including the above corrections.

— Thus when you compare the numbers of professional teaching staff
between the two charts, you get:

Revised
April 1/83 Chart April 1/84 Chart

. U
Principal & Regular
Classroom Teachers 264.33 255.45

Alternate Program Teachers 2.0 2.0
Special Education Teachers 22.0 21.55
Gifted Program Teachers — 2.0
Native Language Teachers 2.0 2.0

Total Professional
Teaching Staff 290.33 283.0

— It should be remembered that the April 1, 19S4 organization chart
was based upon the 84/85 Main Estimates. These estimates were
prepared in the previous November/December and were a forecast
based upon our best estimate of requirement. Also, as the number L
of teachers may change, and as the largest change takes place
in September of each year, it was the practice of the Department
of Finance to report the average number of teaching positions
projected rather than the total. Therefore, the figure of 283.0

U
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for total teaching staff for the 84/85 fiscal year and as reported
on the April 1/84 chart was arrived at as follows:

Regular Special Native Gifted Alternate
Month Teachers Ed. Lang. Prog. Prog. Total

Apr. ‘86 259.3 21.55 .0 2.0 2.0 286.85
May 259.3 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 286.85
June 259.3 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 286.85
July 259.3 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 286.85
August 259.3 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 286.85
Sept. ‘84 252.7 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 280.25
October 252.7 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 280.25
November 252.7 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 280.25
December 252.7 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 280.25
Jan. ‘85 252.7 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 280.25
February 252.7 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 260.25
March 252.7 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 280.25

3,065.4 258.6 24.0 26.0 24.0 3,396.0

Total no.
ofteaching)j.2 ÷12 ÷12 ÷12 ÷12 ÷12
months. )

Average no.)
of teachers)
as reported) 255.45 21.55 2.0 2.0 2.0 263.0
in Budget
Book

— Thus, the total number of classroom teachers, exclusive of Gifted,
Alternate and Native Language teachers, was 286.33 in April, 1983
and 280.85 in April, 1986 — a decrease of 5.48. We might point
out that the number of students at Parch 31, 1983 was 4,638 and
4,480 at March 31, 198% — a decrease of 158.

3b) Statistical Discrepancies

Some of the discrepancies and reasons are as follows:

(a) The Public Schools Branch Annual Report advises a total of
6,480 students. This is the number of students reported

by the schools in March, 1984. The Government’s Annual
Report advises a total of 4,453 students. This is the number
reported by the schools in April, 1984.
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(b) The Advanced Education & Manpower Branch and Government Annual UReport statistical discrepancies are as follows:

Advanced Ed. Government
Annual Report Annual Report

Journeyman Certificates issued
— to apprentices 16 21
— to trades people 60 71
Journeyman receiving Inter—
Provincial standards Red Seal 54 65
Canada Student Loans II 172 169
Canada Student Loans $ 472,158 466,816

An explanation for these discrepancies will have to be obtained from
the appropriate individuals in that Branch. U

3c) Vacant Positions — Advanced Education & Manpower

— As explained during the hearings, while the major reason for the
increased personnel costs were vacant positions, there were also
a number of other reasons (return to 10—day fortnight, increased
P/I, effect of educational leave at reduced salary). A detailed
breakdowti of the $495,000 increased personnel costs are as follows:

$117,000 Branch Administrator
95,000 Position Vacancies (Assistant Deputy Minister,

Program Officer, Clerk Typists, Curriculum
Development Officer)

22,000 Return to 10—day fortnight

49,000 Manpower Planning & Industrial Training
28,000 New position for operation of Job Creation &

Retention Programs
21,000 Return to 10—day fortnight

329,000 Adult Education (Yukon College)
83,000 Additional monies received for additional BTSP

courses.
73,000 Return to 10—day fortnight

173,000 Position Vacancies (Director, Yukon College,
Assistant Director — Programs, Assistant
Director — Extensions, Administrative Officer,
Instructor vacancies).

$495,000 Total increased personnel costs

— The following is our response to the question “If the positions
existed but were simply vacant, why is an increase required between
budget years for such positions?” U
It must be remembered that the figures reported under 1982/83 f ore—
cast are not the original Main Estimate figures for that year. These
figures are prepared approximately two or three months prior to
year end (in conjunction with the Period 9 Variance Report) when
most of the year has already been completed and when the vacancy
factor is known. Perhaps a simple hypothetical example would best
serve to illustrate what we are getting at here:
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When the budget for 82/83 was prepared we might have
anticipated that a certain position would be filled at a
salary of $40,000. However, due to unforseen circumstances,
that position was vacant for 9 months (April to December).
Thus the actual salary expense for 82/83 would only be $10,000
(rather than $40,000) and it is the $10,000 figure that is
used in the 82/63 Forecast Column of the 63/84 Main Estimate
book. However, as we anticipate no vacancy on this position
in 83/84 we require $40,000 in the 83/84 budget for the
position.

The above example serves to illustrate what can happen when there is a
high number of vacancies.

3d) Recoveries

The origin of each of the recovery items listed on Page 54 of
the 83/84 Main Estimate book are as follows:

a) Schools Program Administration $44,000
This comprises of the following:
— rental of facilities to the Department of National

Defence for the Cadet Camp.
— rental of facilities to various organizations,

institutions, corporate and private concerns.
— isolated instances of rental of apartments in

schools to teachers.

b) Student Accommodation $52,000
This comprises of room and board charges to parents
and guardians of students residing at the St. Elias

Student Residence. Also included was rental revenue
from the Department of National Defence.

c) Remedial Tutors $ 3,000
This is a recovery of a portion of salary, text

books and tuition for Remedial Tutors attending
post—secondary educational institutions. Recovery
is made from Renewable Resources through the DREE
program.

e) French Language $194,000
This is a recovery of a portion of the costs of
various French Language programs from the Secretary
of State. Recovery is based on total expenditures
to an authorized maximum.

f) Teacher Training $ 32,000
Recovery of charges to students for such things as
books, student council charges, etc.

/6
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U
g) Advanced Education & Manpower $2,072,000

This figure comprises of a number of different
items, as follows:

$1,868,000 — Recovery of course costs from CEIC (Canada
Employment and Immigration Conunission) via
the Adult Occupation & Training Agreement.

27,500 — Sale of meals in cafeteria. While this could
also be classified as a revenue, we have chosen
to leave it as a recovery as the cafeteria is
really not set up to be a revenue producing
entity. Prices of meals are based upon cost of
supplies. We might also mention that the meals
are prepared by students under the direction of
instructors as part of the Food Services course
requirements.

76,000 — Extension services fees. Tuition charges for
evening courses (based upon course costs).

27,500 — Recovery from students for books and materials.

55,000 — Room and board payments from students living
in the Yukon College dormitory.

18,000 — Course fees. Tuition charges for students
taking full time courses but not sponsored by
CEIC (based upon course costs). fl

— While it might well be said that items a), b), and some of g)
above would more rightly be classified as a revenue rather than
a recovery, we would point out that in each of these cases the
charge is based largely upon the concept of recovery of 0 & M
costs and the purposes of these items are not to produce a revenue.

Finally, with regard to point 4 on maintenance, I have some further inf or—
nation.

The Department of Government Services, Public Works Branch, Building Mainten— U
ance Division, is responsible for maintaining all school buildings. We have
a very small maintenance crew working in the School Services section. The
purpose of this crew is to provide a highly mobile unit which can react
quickly to emergency situations and to undertake minor improvements not in
cluded in the Public Works mandate. The only preventative maintenance programs
administered directly by this Department are: U

a) preventative maintenance of heating systems is maintained by the
Oil Burner Mechanic. Funding is included in the Maintenance
activity of the Public Schools Branch.

/7
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b) a service contract is maintained with Total North Communications
to service all micro—computers in schools.

c) a service contract is maintained with Whitehorse Business
Machines to service office machines (typewriters, dictaphones and
calculators). This contract is administered by the Department
of Government Services.

I hope this information meets the needs of the Public Accounts Committee.

{Jim Davie
\Theputy Minister

Education, Advanced Education
and Manpower

CH:lk
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